
The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so 

that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov 

**Revised 

CITY OF FRANKLIN 

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL – COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

AGENDA* 

TUESDAY, MARCH 1, 2022, AT 6:30 P.M. 

 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call. 

 

B. 1. Citizen Comment Period. 

2. Mayoral Announcements:  A Resolution Urging the Wisconsin State Legislature to 

Reject Assembly Bill 610/Senate Bill 630 and any Proposed Amendments, which 

Shifts Property Tax Burden to Homeowners and Small Businesses to the Benefit of 

Large Commercial Property Owners. 

 

C. Approval of Minutes: 

1. Corrected Regular Common Council Meeting of October 5, 2021. 

2. Regular Common Council Meeting of February 15, 2022. 

 

D. Hearings – A proposed Ordinance to Amend the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive 

Master Plan to Change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map for Property Bearing 

Tax Key Number 892-9999-002, Generally Located on the East Side of South 112th Street, 

East of the Ryan Meadows Subdivision and West of the Franklin Savanna Natural Area from 

Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Residential Use (Totaling 

Approximately 35 Acres) (Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, 

Applicant) (Ignasiak Investment Co., LLC, Property Owner). 

 

E. Organizational Business. 

 

F. Letters and Petitions. 

 

G. Reports and Recommendations: 

 1. An Ordinance to Amend the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to 

Change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map for Property Bearing Tax 

Key Number 892-9999-002 from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource 

Features to Residential Use (By Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, 

LLC, Applicant, Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC, Property Owner). 

 2. An Ordinance to Amend the Unified Development Ordinance (Zoning Map) to 

Rezone a Certain Parcel of Land Bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002 from A-2 

Prime Agricultural District and C-1 Conservancy District to R-5 Suburban Single-

Family Residence District (By Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, 

LLC, Applicant, Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC, Property Owner). 

https://www.youtube.com/c/


Common Council Meeting Agenda 

March 1, 2022 

Page 2 

 

 

 3. A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use 

for a Meat Processing Facility Use upon Property Located at the Southwest Corner of 

the Intersection of West Loomis Road and the New Monarch Drive (Lot 83 of Ryan 

Meadows Subdivision) (Strauss Brands LLC, Applicant); (pursuant to Court Order 

signed January 24, 2022 and filed January 25, 2022, in Franklin Community 

Advocates, et al. v. City of Franklin, and Strauss Brands, LLC, Milwaukee County 

Circuit Court, Case No. 20-CV-7031. The City Administrative Record of the records 

and documents of the proceedings upon this subject matter and as filed and ordered by 

the Court in Franklin Community Advocates, et al. v. City of Franklin, and Strauss 

Brands, LLC, Milwaukee County Circuit Court, Case No. 20-CV-7031, are available 

for public inspection and review and may be accessed by entering upon 

https://franklinwi.box.com/s/3dt5qubmyim4caofk7hyine4iup4onv0. 

 4. An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code Section 245-3 B., Stops Required, to 

Add 24 Locations in and Around the New Subdivisions of Oakes Estates, Ryan 

Meadows and Pleasant View Reserve. 

 5. Approval of a Full External Penetration Test of the City’s IT System. 

 6. A Resolution for a Professional Services Agreement with Excel Engineering, Inc. for 

Engineering Services Related to S. 50th Street Reconstruction and Associated Water 

Main from W. Minnesota Avenue South to the Terminated End of 50th Street in 

Pleasant View Reserve and Water Main Extension in W. Minnesota Avenue from S. 

51st Street to S. 49th Street, then 50 Ft North of the Intersection in the Amount of 

$52,500. 

 7. Request for Approval of a Salary and Benefit Modification for a Building Inspector 

Candidate. 

 8. Request to Hire a Replacement Department of Public Works Light Equipment 

Operator in Advance of Current Employee Retirements. 

 9. 2022 Sanitary Sewer User Fee. 

 10. Results of Water Survey for Frontage Road Along S. Lovers Lane Road (USH 

45/STH 100) from W. Herda Place to S. Phyllis Lane. 

 11. Survey Responses for a Watermain Project on S. Lovers Lane Road from W. St. 

Martins Road to 7911 S. 100th Street. 

 12. A Resolution to Execute State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal 

Maintenance Agreement for Improvements Related to a Wisconsin Department of 

Transportation Project on S. Lovers Lane/W. Ryan Road (USH 45/STH 100) from S. 

60th Street to W. St. Martins Road in the Amount of $624,700. 

 13. Request to Participate in State Contract for Purchase of 2,000 Tons of Salt and an 

Additional 400 Tons in Reserve. 

 14. Survey for Participation in Sump Pump Collection Projects. 

 15. City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Program/GASB 74 and 75 

Disclosure Report for Fiscal Year 2021. 

 16. A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 2013-6920 and Appending Resolution No. 

2015-7062 Granting Limited Specific Authority for Disbursements in Advance of 

Review of Voucher Listings. 

https://franklinwi.box.com/s/3dt5qubmyim4caofk7hyine4iup4onv0


Common Council Meeting Agenda 

March 1, 2022 

Page 3 

 

 
 

 17. Potential Acquisition of Property from 11213 W. Swiss Street (TKN 796-0020-000) 

and 11225 W. Swiss Street (TKN 796-0021-001) for a public pathway/trail project.  

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), 

for competitive and bargaining reasons, to consider the potential acquisition of 

property from 11213 W. Swiss Street (TKN 796-0020-000) and 11225 W. Swiss 

Street (TKN 796-0021-001) to be used for a public pathway/trail project along W. 

Church Street and the negotiating of the purchase and the investing of public funds, 

including Park Impact fees with regard to the potential acquisition thereof, and to 

reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed 

therein as it deems appropriate. 

 18. A Resolution Disallowing Claim submitted by Peter Peckarsky Received November 

29, 2021.  The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 

19.85(1)(e) and (g), to consider a Notice of Claim submitted by Attorney Robert 

Pledl, on behalf of his client, Peter Peckarsky, announced candidate for U.S. Senate, 

Challenging the Unconstitutional Practice of Marking Absentee ballots with 

Identifying Information when absentee ballots are counted at a Central Location 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 7.52(3)(a), and may reenter open session at the same place 

thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.  

** 19. Request from Department of Public Works to Purchase a Runnion Equipment 

Company Aerial Bucket Truck for $229,916. 

   

H. Licenses and Permits. 

  Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting of March 1, 2022. 

   

I. Bills.  

  Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll. 

   

J. Adjournment. 
 

*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during normal business hours. 

 

[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 

services.  For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 

 

REMINDERS: 

 

 March 3  Plan Commission Meeting    7:00 p.m. 

 March 15  Common Council Meeting    6:30 p.m. 

 March 17  Plan Commission Meeting    7:00 p.m. 

 April 4   Common Council Meeting    6:30 p.m. 

 April 5   Spring Election     7:00 a.m.-8:00 p.m. 

 
 



APPROVAL

sh,
MAYORAL

ANNOUNCEMENTS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION URGING THE WISCONSIN STATE
LEGISLATURE TO REJECT ASSEMBLY BILL
610/SENATE BILL 630 AND ANY PROPOSED

AMENDMENTS, WHICH SHIFTS PROPERTY TAX
BURDEN TO HOMEOWNERS AND SMALL
BUSINESSES TO THE BENEFIT OF LARGE

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OWNERS

MEETING DATE

3/01/2022

ITEM NUMBER

B.2.

Assembly Bill 610 (AB 610) and the proposed amendment arbitrarily restricts the information assessors
may use to determine fair market value. The proposed changes favor large corporations and owners of
high-value land by blocking information that is real evidence of value, thereby shifting the tax burden to
residential and small business owners. Properties located in tax increment districts (TIDs) may see value
and tax revenue decreases such that the obligations of the TID cannot be met or will take longer to meet.
This will result in more tax burden on the balance of residential and small business property owners.

This bill would prohibit assessors from using various methods of determining assessed value: mortgages
or bank appraisals; projected rents and other future or anticipated benefits; list and asking prices or rents;
price trends in order to increase the value of multiple properties by a general amount or percentage; and
would consider the value of a club house, swimming pool, or other amenity that is part of a multifamily
property when assessing the multifamily property if the club house receives minimal or no rental income,
regardless of whether the club house is located on a separate lot. The bill would also allow the Wisconsin
Statutes to control practices of the assessor when there is an inconsistency or ambiguity between the
Wisconsin Property Assessment Manual and Statutes. This clause is unnecessary as Statutes already do
preempt the Assessment Manual.

A substitute amendment was proposed in the Senate to simplify the argument by not looking at asking
rents to determine fair market value and to codify that statutes preside over the Assessment Manual. By
removing the ability to use list, asking, or rent prices would diminish assessors' ability to determine fair
market values. Despite the potential "downsizing" of the legislation by the substitute amendment, the
central tenant of not allowing asking rents to be used as evidence when establishing a valuation still
remains, and is the most problematic policy change in bill.

No immediate fiscal impact is anticipated regarding the Resolution; however, unanticipated and negative
property tax base erosion and tax burden shifting could occur if the proposed legislation is made into law.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022-_, A RESOLUTION URGING THE WISCONSIN STATE
LEGISLATURE TO REJECT ASSEMBLY BILL 610/SENATE BILL 630 AND ANY PROPOSED
AMENDMENTS, WHICH SHIFTS PROPERTY TAX BURDEN TO HOMEOWNERS AND SMALL
BUSINESSES TO THE BENEFIT OF LARGE COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OWNERS.

Mayor's Office-SRO



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION URGING THE WISCONSIN STATE LEGISLATURE TO REJECT
ASSEMBLY BILL 610/SENATE BILL 630 AND ANY PROPOSED AMENDMENTS,

WHICH SHIFTS PROPERTY TAX BURDEN TO HOMEOWNERS AND SMALL
BUSINESSES TO THE BENEFIT OF LARGE COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OWNERS

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 610/Senate Bill 630 arbitrarily restricts the information
assessors may use to determine fair market value; and

WHEREAS, the proposed changes favor large corporations and owners of high-value
land by blocking information that is real evidence of value, thereby shifting the tax burden on
homeowners' small businesses; and

WHEREAS, a mortgage or bank appraisal is a real indicator of value because the
company lending the money used a licensed appraiser who is ethically bound to arrive at a fair
market value for the real estate, which the lender relies upon to loan its capital; and

WHEREAS, list or asking prices, or list or asking rents are real indicators of value
because a person in the business of selling or renting real estate is going to market their property
for a market rate in order to sustain their business; and

WHEREAS, price trends are important data points because they indicate the real value of
real estate in the short term; and

WHEREAS, it makes no sense to prohibit the use of price trends to increase multiple
properties yet allow price trends to be used to decrease multiple properties because it is the same
data; and

WHEREAS, there is value in a club house, swimming pool, or other amenity that is part
of a multifamily property even if the club house receives minimal or no rental income because
the multi-family property can just incorporate the cost of the amenities into rents, thereby
gaining the value of the amenity without paying the taxes on that amenity; and

WHEREAS, the information Assembly Bill 610/Senate Bill 630 proposes to restrict is
most used to value large commercial properties by showing their true value and by restricting
that information, the state is allowing commercially-interested property owners to lower their tax
bills and pass on the tax burden to property owners who do not have the same incentive to
challenge their assessment; and

WHEREAS, legislative changes proposed in a substitute amendment before the Senate
improve the proposed bill, but still retains the central policy of limiting evidence that can be used
to determine fair market value; and



Resolution No. 2022---
Page 2

WHEREAS, this bill is another example of individual and group lobbyists with financial
wherewithal to fund campaigns of state officials dictating public policy and legislation;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin urges the Legislature to avoid giving a windfall to the commercially-interested
property owners/taxpayers at the expense of other residential and small business property
owners/taxpayers by opposing this legislation.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 1st
day ofMarch, 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 1st day ofMarch, 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES-- ABSENT



From:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Date:

Senators

Steve Olson
Senator Julian Bradley· "Sen.Larson"
Rep.Wichgers (Rep.Wichgers@legiswjsconsip.gov);: Jessie Rodriguez (rep.rodriguez@legis.wigov); Ke
Skowronski (rep.skowronski@leis.isconsin.gov): "Peggy Steeno ". "Toni Herkert" Jerry. Deschane
ideschane@lm info.,org): "Curt itynski"
5B630/AB610 changes to assessment procedure
Monday, January 17, 2022 9 37:00 PM

Please oppose SB630/AB610

On its' face rt is not logical

• An assessor can't consider the opinion of a bank appraisal when setting value? If a bank Is
going to take an interest in a property and they acquire an independent estimate of value why
wouldn't the State feel that's a valid valuation to be considered? And then to not consider
the fruits of the transaction as value setting? That, to me is the gold standard.

• In my 4 decades in sales the axiom was (and 1s) always "a product is worth only what someone
Is willing to pay for it! Yet the Legislature wants to disallow consideration of rents and
mortgages in determining value Doesn't make sense to me

• S1m1larly, 1f a group of single family 3 bedroom ranches of 2,000 square feet are all selling for a
similar increase in price or at a percentage increase, wouldn't that be an accurate 1nd1cat1on
of their value? It's what people would be paying! The bill seeks to eliminate the use of the
trend

• And to eliminate a value add of a club house (surely to be followed next year by el1m1nat1on of
a pool, followed mn the next year by elimination of basketball hoops) who's sheer purpose in
existence Is to add value to the multifamily development Is absurd on its' face Who would
believe that the facility needs to be rented to provide value? Just last year the President of
the Mandel Group said to me "There's no way we would not build a pool and club house in
our properties They drive rental values"

Thus bill is a continuing gift to the realtors and real estate investors and another natl in the coffin for
local governments This bill and bills like It continue to erode local control and substitute the
Judgement of law makers for trained professionals who abide by the professional practices
developed over decades

If passed, It takes more tools out of the assessors' toolbox (which 1s the stated defined assessor's
manual) and narrows the universe of information that an assessor can use to accurately arrive at an
equrtable value for properties

My father would say "THIS FOOLISHNESS NEEDS TO STOP!"

Please kill SB630/AB610



Call 1f you have any questions

Thanks

Steve

Steve Olson
Mayor
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Rd.
Franklin, W 53132
0 414-427-7529
C 414-651-3367

blFranklin
WF5C.-ONSlr-l



From:
To:

Subject:
Date:

Ament Dave
Hoisington Joshua; Sen-Kooyenga; Sen-.Bradley; Bullet, Lucas Rep.Kugl itsch, Rep.Sanfelippo; Bick Petfalski,
steveOlson; Dan Bukiewicz Dan; Daniel Besson' Styba Melody; Jason Cyborowski, Mayor Shawn Beilly. Mayor
McBride. Steven Ponto; Syba, Melody; Kosteretz Timothy. "Mayor Neitzke"
FW· Taxation shall be uniform
Tuesday, February 22, 2022 6·23·03 PM

To our fellow local and State elected off1c1als, FYI
The ema! below is from the Crty of New Berlin Caty Assessor The entire emal is most interesting
however the most pertinent s bold at the beginning
Thanks to all of you for all you do to represent our constituents!
Dave

From: Kosteretz, Timothy <t1mkosteretz@newberlm org>
Sent: Tuesday, February 22, 2022 5 16 PM
To: Ament, Dave <dament@newberlin org>
Subject: Taxation shall be uniform

Mr Mayor,

One thing I should have included in my emails to you but did not mention is that under the
Wisconsin Constitution Article VIII,

"ARTICLE VIII. - FINANCE - Rule of taxation uniform; income, privilege and occupation
taxes. SECTION 1. [As amended Nov. 1908, April 1927, April 1941, April 1961, and April 1974]The
rule of taxation shall be uniform"

This little phrase governs everything the Assessor does and it is the reason for our existence.
The name of our International Assessment Journal is "Fair & Equitable" because that is the basis
of fair property taxation.
This is a constitutional requirement. The rule of taxation shall be uniform"

There have been amendments to this rule as you can see, to allow for "less than market value" or
taxed in a non-equitable manner'' such as assessments on forests and minerals, agricultural and
undeveloped lands and taxes on incomes, privileges and occupations which may be graduated
and progressive.

This legislation would also result in the Assessor being unable to assess commercial property at
its full market value because the development of a valuation model would be (or even a single
value appraisal for a special use property) would be based on incomplete market data, AS A
REQUIREMENT OF LAW.

The Assessor would be in the position of assigning a value to a commercial property that they
knew should be higher, but because of the limitations of the proposed statute, even in its
amended form, disallows even the consideration of certain market information, the Assessor
would be forced to assign a value lower than market, in contravention of the Constitution and



Chapter 70 because only "certain" market evidence is allowed to be considered in the
development of a value, or a automated valuation mass appraisal model or even presented as a
part of a valuation defense at the Board of Review or in Court of before the Tax Appeals
Commission for Manufacturing and Telecommunications property.

I do feel that the bill was written with the intent to lower commercial valuations based on
market data because the author felt that commercial valuation may at times be too high. I also
feel that the author does not fully understand the significance of market data like that identified
in the bill in the work of an appraiser whether for mass appraisal or for single value Fee-Simple
valuation work however, since the authors were neither Licensed Appraisers nor Certified
Assessors, I can understand how that could have come about.

My years of experience explamnmng things to such professionals both as a local assessor and mn the
Equalization and Manufacturing Bureaus of the Department of Revenue, have taught me that most
real estate professionals including brokers, leasing professionals, property managers, Investors, real
estate attorneys, accountants, mortgage underwriters and insurance or title examiners do not
understand core principles of real estate valuation, much less how those principles are applied to
the Mass Appraisal process used for ad valorum property tax purposes

Another matter connected with this that has not been brought up before can be illustrated by many
anecdotal experiences described to me by these professionals as they interacted over the course of
their professional work with the contract assessors that provide assessment services to the great
maJonty of smaller communities around the State for a fee These anecdotes demonstrate to me
how often professional property assessment standards and practices required by state law and the
Property assessment manual are followed to the barest letter of the law, but not up to the intent or
sp1nt of the law, not because of the low character or criminal intent of the contract assessment firms
around the state but because the fees pad for their services simply do not justify a higher quality
product To be very clear, current state law and the body of regulatory language built on that law
allows for this (there are many small mom & pop assessment companies and three large in-state
firms and one out of state mega-firm)

We have local control of the assessment function in Wisconsin for good or for ill as we do for local
school boards This 1s because Assessor's used to be elected officials like Mayor's and Sherr1ff's and
were accountable to the voters This 1s still allowed under state law The local assessor used to count
your chickens and your cows and your bails of hay and bushels of wheat and also your household
goods and your clothes all of which were taxable in the good old days You can understand why the
assessor needed to be accountable to voters Things are different now

We still do however have local control of the assessment function and local elected officials often
prefer to agree to contracts paying the very lowest of fees to pay for the barest minimum of services
to meet the minimum requirements of the law for that function What Is the problem with thus? The
perceived problem AB610 1s trying to solve 1s part of the problem In other words you get what you
pay for

Quality assessments take time and effort to produce, and mn communities of many representatives



around the state, contracts with firms that provide the barest minimum of assessment services to
produce an assessment roll, file mandated reports and collect a Levi are considered to be a good
thing though the assessments they produce may not be considered to be the best by unbiased
observers and the results can be frustrating to property owners and real estate professionals who
live and work in those communities

The problem Is not with the state of the property assessment laws per se, 1t 1s with the ease with
which local officials can contract with firms for the lowest possible rates per parcel because we pride
ourselves in Wisconsin on the principles of local control and we do not want to give that up Local
officials decide how much to spend on state mandated functions

However, 1f one of the results of those dec1s1ons 1s that assessments are NOT Uniform & Equitable, It
Is usually the result of a very low amount of effort being funded to produce these assessments I will
humbly say again that in the assessment production world, you get what you pay for

This problem Is well understood by professional local assessors and by administrators at the DOR,
under the Walker admm1strat1on and the Evers admm1strat1on The state of the law however does
not allow for admin1strat1ve oversight sufficient to improve the accuracy of assessment practice in
Wisconsin There 1s no required minimum assessment contract and the metrics used to measure
uniformity are designed to allow for the greatest possible leeway m assessmenmt quality Also, my
personal experience has indicated that rt has not been considered a political priority to ftx this
problem, though bills like AB6120 attempt to fix things by attacking the fruit of the flawed system
rather than the root of the system

Prior to my leaving West Allis to work at the DOR in 2013, I had been advocating for a number of
changes that would have been helpful in this area and would have improved the quality of
assessments statewide however the various elected state leaders I spoke to at the time through they
understood the problem, declined to take any steps to address them

I concluded that they must have determined that rt was not worth the political trouble at the time to
dig into the issue thunk about rt mn spite of the problems most assessors recognize wth thus locally
customizable system, taxes were always levied and taxes were always collected at all levels of
government without respect to the quality, equrtabtlrty or uniformity of assessments and since the
cost of the assessment function was being kept to a minimum around the state through the use of
the contract assessor system, and since local officials were responsible to make these decisions on
behalf of the taxpayers m their area and since no one was complaining, then there was no harm and
no foul and no reason to open a can of worms and upset the apple cart

I will not reveal the names of the elected state officials I contacted at that time or who I spoke to
explaining the issue, but the result was a respectful thank you

My next attempt was to work for the DOR, which I did for 7 years, to learn and to develop my
professional knowledge, to contribute and also to try to advocate for the kinds of change I knew
were necessary I did well there and over that time I worked for the Equalization Bureau and also
became the Milwaukee District Supervisor for the Manufacturing & Utility Assessment Bureau and



sat on the State Board of Assessors During that time I worked closely with the leadership of State
and Local Finance to perform my function and also to improve assessment practice in Wisconsin I
started at the same time as Claude Lrns when he became the Admin for SLF Claude and I had many
conversations about this issue Claude determined that the Department d1 d not have the authority
either to do anything to improve assessment practice under the statutory current structure nor did
he feel that the Department had a role to advocate for statutory change at a leg1slat1ve level 1f the
Governor wanted to do so It was his prerogative but felt that the Department should not and could
not advocate to improve the system at any level I disagree about this by the way Statutes say that
the Department must promulgate a manual explaining professional assessment practice and also the
department acts as a statutory assessor itself on a contract basis with any municipality that has
manufacturing property located wrthmn it The Manufacturing Bureau chief signs the Manufacturing
Assessment Rolls and the department serves as the assessor

The Standard on Assessment Adm1nistrat1on promulgated by the International AssocIatIon of
Assessing Officers indicates that property assessment regulators have a respons1b1hty to advocate
for to work to improve the quality an professionalism of assessment practice wrthmn the jurisdiction
the regulate DOR corporate council has said that the Department does not advocate or recommend
statutory initiatives of any kmnd on its own authorrty, that Is purely am executive or legislative
function If so, the DOR should not serve as a statutory assessor If they do, the Bureau responsible
to perform professional assessment function should be able to advocate for the advancement of
professional assessment practice

If you would like the opinion of someone you may trust, Claude Louis, as the former Mayor of
Burlington may be one to ask about me and about this issue I left State government to return to
local assessment work in 2019

Vanous leadership currently at the DOR also understand this issue I have also discussed related
matters with John Dickert the current SLF administrator (the former Mayor of Racine) Mr Dickert
also has a heart to improve assessment practice in Wisconsin If you ask him about me you will see
that he knows me and I believe he would say that 1f you want to understand better the real
problems with the assessment process in Wisconsin I am one of those you could talk to

I say all of that to say this, there are problems with the assessment process in Wisconsin, but It Is not
the problem that bill ab610 identified and in that way ab610 Is a solution without a problem

If you or any of your colleagues would hke to know more about what I am talking about, I would be
pleased to meet with you or with them at any time to explamn with your permission of course

Respectfully,

Timothy B Kosteretz
City Assessor



City of New Be

Confidentiality Notice: This message, mcludmg any attachments, is for the sole use of the
intended rec1pient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information, any
unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is strictly prohibited. Ifyou are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the
original message. The City of New Berlm is subject to the Wisconsm Public Records Law.
Ema1ls sent or received by City officials or employees are subject to these laws. Unless
otherwise exempted from the pubhc records law, senders and receivers of emails originatmg
from City employees or officials involvmg City business should presume that the email is
subject to release upon request and to the State ofWisconsm public record retention
requirements.

This email and any attachments have been scanned for malicious content However, the
recipient should check thus emaul and any attachments for the presence of viruses. The City of
New Berlm accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email.



ITEM G.16. (Page 7) CORRECTED 3/01/2022*
APPROVED OCTOBER 19, 2021

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

OCTOBER 5, 2021
MINUTES

4.1

ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

MINUTES
SEPT. 21, 2021

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

A.

B.

C.

E.

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on October 5,
2021 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman Shari
Hanneman, Alderman Mike Barber and Alderman John R. Nelson.
Not present was Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm. Also in attendance
were Dir. of Administration Peggy Steeno, City Engineer Glen
Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra
Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:32 p.m. and closed at
6:39p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of September 21, 2021 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to confirm the following Mayoral
appointments:

Architectural Board:
(1) Craig Marifke, 10402 W. Herda Pl., Ald. Dist. 6,

Alternate Member for a 3 year unexpired term expiring
04/30/24.

(2) Karen Marschner, 10340 W. Whitnall Edge Dr., Unit
#102, Aid. Dist. 6, Alternate Member for a 3 year
unexpired term expiring 04/30/24.

Community Development Authority:
(3) Curtis Schmitt, 10505 W. Candlestick Ln., Ald. Dist.

2, for a 4 year unexpired term expiring 08/30/24.
Environmental Commission:

(4) Thomas Niemiec, 4107 W. College Ave., Ald. Dist. 3,
for a 3 year unexpired term expiring 04/30/23.

Parks Commission:
(5) Karen Malecki, 8072 S. 59th St., Ald. Dist. 5, for a 3

year unexpired term expiring 04/30/22.
Board of Public Works:

(6) James Witt, 6540 S. 51st St., Ald. Dist. 3, for a 3 year
unexpired term expiring 04/30/23.



Common Council Meeting
October 5, 2021
Page 2

RES. 2021-7782 G.l.
CSM
10757 S. 92ND ST.
DOROTHY BOSCH
COMMON TRUST

ORD. 2021-2481 G.2.
AMEND §15-3.0430,
PPDNO. 25
WOODLAND TRAILS
CONDOS FACADE
CHANGES

RES. 2021-7783 G.3.
AMEND RES. NO.
2019-7522 AND QUIT
CLAIM DEED FOR
RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR
VELO VILLAGE
APTS.

POLICE OFFICER G.4.
HIRING

Technology Commission:
(7) Michelle Tischer, 11385 W. Rawson Ave., Ald. Dist.

2, for a 3 year unexpired term expiring 04/30/24.

Seconded by Alderman Mayer. On roll call, all voted aye. Motion
carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7782, A
RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2 LOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN (DOROTHY BOSCH COMMON TRUST,
APPLICANT) (AT 10757 SOUTH 92ND STREET). Seconded by
Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-2481,
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §15-3.0430 OF THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO. 25 (WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUMS
BURKE PROPERTIES) TO ALLOW FOR FACADE CHANGES
WITHIN THE WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUMS
COMPLEX (WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION, INC., APPLICANT) (9301, 9325, 9337, 9363,
9375, 9399 AND 9411 COBBLESTONE WAY). Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7783, A
RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2019-7522 AND
QUIT CLAIM DEED FOR DEDICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF
RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR VELO VILLAGE APARTMENTS, LLC
FOR PUBLIC ROAD/RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES (TAX KEY
NO. 754-9002-000). Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to authorize the hiring of a Police Officer or
Recruit Officer that is currently filled by an officer on unpaid
administrative leave. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

FIRE INSPECTOR
POSITION AND ICA
AGREEMENT WITH
OAK CREEK

G.5. Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve to reclassify and fill a
previously approved half-time Fire Inspector position as a full-time
position, shared with the Oak Creek Fire Department and execute an
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement (ICA) with the City of
Oak Creek. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion
carried.



Common Council Meeting
October 5, 2021
Page 3

CONTRACT WITH G.6.
MAXIMLOCUM
TENENS &
ADVANCED
PRACTITIONERS

CONTRACTS FOR G.7.
COVID-19
MITIGATION

RES. 2021-7784 G.8.
FENCE WITHIN 10-FT
STORM SEWER
EASEMENT
4818 W. ANITA LN.

RES. 2021-7785 G.9.
STATE/MUNI
FINANCIAL &
MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENTS FOR
WI DOT PROJECT ON
S. LOVERS LANE RD.

SPECIFICATIONS G.10.
WITH INDUSTRIAL
ROOFING SERVICES
WORK ORDER

ORD. 2021-2482 G.11.
AMEND ORD. NO.
2020-2453 FOR
CAPITAL OUTLAY
FUND FOR UDO
REWRITE PROJECT

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to allow a contract with Maxim Locum Tenens and
Advanced Practitioners for temporary staff position of an
Epidemiologist. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to allow the Director of Health and Human
Services to accept and sign the Division of Public Health
Consolidated Contracts for Continued COVID-19 Mitigation and
Recovery Efforts. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7784, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A
FENCE WITHIN THE IO-FOOT STORM SEWER EASEMENT,
UPON LOT 101 OF HIGH VIEW ESTATES ADDITION NO 2
(4818 W. ANITA LANE) (TAX KEYNO. 834-0074-000) (RATTAN
SONI AND AMITA SONI, APPLICANTS). Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7785, A
RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
AGREEMENT AND A STATE/MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO A
WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
ON S. LOVERS LANE RD (USH 45 / STH 100) FROM W.
RAWSON AVENUE (CTH BB) TO W. COLLEGE AVENUE IN
THE AMOUNT OF $188,330. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize an Annual Maintenance Repair
Specifications Work Order with regard to City of Franklin facilities
and associated infrastructure, with Industrial Roofing Services, Inc.
(IRS) and to authorize the Director of Administration to execute the
appropriate related agreement as needed. Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-2482, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-2453, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2021 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR
THE CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND TO PROVIDE $7,190 OF
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE UPDATE OF THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE REWRITE PROJECT. Seconded
by Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.



Common Council Meeting
October 5, 2021
Page 4

RES. NO. 2021-7786 G.12.
SIGNATURES FOR
CHECKS AND
ORDERS

AUGUST 2021 G.13.
FINANCIAL REPORT

2022 EMPLOYEE G.14.
BENEFIT-RELATED
COVERAGES

RES. NO. 2021-7787 G.15.
CODE OF CONDUCT
FOR ELECTED AND
APPOINTED
OFFICIALS

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7786, A
RESOLUTION DESIGNATING SIGNATURES FOR CHECKS
AND ORDERS PURSUANT TO WI STATE§ 66.0607. Seconded
by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to receive and place on file the August 2021
Financial Report. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the 2022 employee benefit
related coverages, carriers and premium shares, including: health
insurance, wellness, health and wellness supplementary programs and
dental insurance; and authorize the Director of Administration to
execute the appropriate related contracts. Seconded by Alderman
Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Upon recommendation of the Committee of the Whole, Alderman
Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7787, A RESOLUTION
ADOPTING THE CITY OF FRANKLIN CODE OF CONDUCT
FOR ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS AND THE
RULES OF THE COMMON COUNCIL, and include these
documents in the newly created Common Council Reference Manual
with the following changes from what was included in the 10/04/2021
meeting packet:

1) Draft Code of Conduct: Change the title from the existing
"City of Franklin Code of Conduct" to "City of Franklin Code
of Conduct and Ethics".

2) Draft Code ofConduct: Add "Section 9: Ethics" to the City of
Franklin Code of Conduct and Ethics and move the entire
contents of the current Attachment A (Ethics Section) into the
newly established Section 9.

3) Draft Rules of the Common Council: Change Section 14, the
first sentence of paragraph two from "The City of Franklin
utilizes the following process to fill a Council vacancy" to
"The City of Franklin has utilized the following process to fill
Council vacancies".

4) Draft Rules of the Common Council: Change Section 14, the
last sentence from "This process is utilized when Council
determines that it wishes to fill a vacated Council seat through
an appointment process." to "This process may be altered in
the future when Council determines that it wishes to fill a
vacated Council seat through an appointment process."

5) Draft Rules of the Common Council: Change Section 5 n.
from, "The Presiding Officer can (but is not obligated) to vote
whenever his/her vote will affect the result-that is, he/she



Common Council Meeting
October 5, 2021
Page 5

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

H.

I.

can vote either to break or to cause a tie; or, in a case where a
two-thirds vote is required, he/she can vote either to cause or
to block the attainment of the necessary two-thirds vote.", to
"Per Wisconsin State Statutes § 62.11 (1 ), the Mayor shall not
be counted in determining whether a quorum is present at a
meeting, but may vote in case of a tie. When the Mayor does
vote in case of a tie the Mayor's vote shall be counted in
determining whether a sufficient number of the Council has
voted favorably or unfavorably on any measure. The
foregoing Mayoral vote, only in case of a tie, is not applicable
when the Mayor is serving as the Presiding Officer of other
City Boards/Commissions/Committees, during which the
Mayor can (but is not obligated) to vote whenever his/her vote
will affect the result-that is, he/she can vote either to break
or to cause a tie; or, in a case where a two-thirds vote is
required, he/she can vote either to cause or to block the
attainment of the necessary two-thirds vote.
When the Council President is fulfilling the role of the
Presiding Officer at a Common Council Meeting, he/she may
exercise, at his or her option, the voting rights of an Alderman
or may choose not to vote and instead act as the Mayor to cast
a tie-breaking vote. In this circumstance, the Council
President should announce whether he/she is acting as Mayor
or Alderman on each proposal to be voted upon."

Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion
carried. (Vote recorded as unanimous).

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the following:

Grant 2021-2022 Operator License to: Juan Villa with a warning
letter from the City Clerk, Joshua Bishop, Erik Bogust, Elizabeth
Granrath, Ivana Perie, McKenna Surma, Katiana Valle; and

Grant 2021-2022 "Class A" Beer & Liquor Change of Agent to:
Walgreen Co, Elaine Blumreiter; Nerankar, LLC, Vinder Kumar.

Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the following: City vouchers
with an ending date of October 1, 2021 in the amount of $966,983.97;
Payroll dated September 24, 2021 in the amount of $439,133.78 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$471,844.09 plus City matching payments; Estimated payroll dated
October 8, 2021 in the amount of $410,000 and payments of the



Common Council Meeting
October 5, 2021
Page 6

CLOSED SESSION
RES. No. 2021-7788
AMEND RES. 2020
7681
SPECIAL USE FOR
MEAT PROCESSING
FACILITY
LOT 83 F RYAN
MEADOWS SUBD.

G.16.

various payroll deductions in the amount of $240,000 plus City
matching payments. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll
call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to enter closed session regarding single
family residence property at 6043 West Glen Court, Franklin,
Wisconsin, Tax Key No. 805-0046-000, human health hazard on
private premises and unfit for human habitation property. The
Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. §
19.85(l)(e), to deliberate the investing of public funds and
governmental actions in relation thereto with regard to the 6043 West
Glen Court human health hazard on private premises and unfit for
human habitation property, and pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19 .85(1 )(g),
to confer with legal counsel for the Common Council who is
rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with
respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved with
regard to the 6043 West Glen Court human health hazard on private
premises and unfit for human habitation property. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, all voted aye. Motion carried.

Upon reentering open session at 7:45 p.m., Alderman Barber moved
to direct staff to proceed as discussed in closed session. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

As the subject special use development is a subject in the litigation
matter Franklin Community Advocates, et al. v. City of Franklin, and
Strauss Brands, LLC, Milwaukee County Circuit Court Case No. 20
CV-7031, which litigation matter is in process and pending at this
time, Alderman Nelson moved to enter closed session at 7:47 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for
the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to
be adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Upon re-entering open session at 7:58 p.m., Alderwoman Hanneman
moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7788, to amend Resolution No.
2020-7681, A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND
RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR
A MEAT PROCESSING FACILITY USE UPON PROPERTY
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE
INTERSECTION OF WEST LOOMIS ROAD AND THE NEW
MONARCH DRIVE (LOT 83 OF RYAN MEADOWS
SUBDIVISION) (STRAUSS BRANDS LLC, APPLICANT), TO
EXTEND THE TIME FOR COMMENCEMENT OF THE SPECIAL

CLOSED SESSION G.17.
REGARDING HUMAN
HEALTH HAZARD AT
6043 W. GLEN CT.



Common Council Meeting
October 5, 2021
Page 7

* USE DEVELOPMENT. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion earried. On roll call, Alderman Holpfer, Alderwoman
Hanneman, and Alderman Barber voted Aye; Alderman Mayer and
Alderman Nelson voted No. Motion carried.

ADJOURNMENT J. Alderman Barber moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 p.m.
Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.



BLANK PAGE



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

ARBOR DAY
PROCLAMATION

MINUTES
FEBRUARY 1, 2022

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

CONSENT AGENDA

A.

B.1.

B.2.

C.

E.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FEBRUARY 15, 2022
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on
February 15, 2022 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve
Olson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis
Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman Kristen
Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, Alderman Mike Barber and
Alderman John R. Nelson. Also in attendance were Dir. of
Administration Peggy Steeno, City Engineer Glen Morrow, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and closed at
6:41 p.m.

Mayor Olson presented a Proclamation to Designate May 7, 2022, as
Arbor Day in the City of Franklin.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of February 1, 2022, with corrections to
G.3. and G.5. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to confirm the Mayoral Order for
Removal of Curtis L. Schmitt, Jr. from the office of Membership on
the Finance Committee and the Office of Membership on the
Community Development Authority. Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the following items on the
consent agenda:

SE WIS. INVASIVE
SPECIES CONSORTIUM
MEMBERSHIP AND
GRANT

DPW SNOW MACHINE
PURCHASE

DPW EXCAVATOR
PURCHASE

G.1.(a) Authorize the Department of Public Works to join membership in,
and apply for grant and use funds, if awarded, from the Southeastern
Wisconsin Invasive Species Consortium, Inc., 2022 Assistance
Program;

G.1.(b) Authorize the Department of Public Works to purchase a Maclean
MV5 Snow Machine, from Miller-Bradford & Risberg, Inc. for the
total cost of $164,900 which is included in the 2022 Capital Outlay
Fund;and

G.1.(c) Authorize the Department of Public Works to purchase a Gradall
Wheeled Hydraulic Excavator from Roland Machinery for the total
cost of $440,696 which is included in the 2022 Equipment
Replacement Fund.



Common Council Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 2

RES. 2022-7823
MONUMENT SIGN
PLEASANT VIEW
RESERVE SUBD.

RES. 2022-7824
STORM WATER
AGREEMENT FROM
B&BINV.AND
FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS

RES. 2022-7825
APPROVECSM
RYAN MEADOWS
SUBD.

ORD. 2022-2494
AMEND UDO
RYAN MEADOWS

G.2.

G.3.

G.4.

G.5.

Approval of the above Consent Agenda items was seconded by
Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7823, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A
MONUMENT SIGN WITHIN OUTLOT 1 OF THE PLEASANT
VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION (GENERALLY LOCATED
BETWEEN 7404 AND 7457 S. 51ST STREET) (VERIDIAN
HOMES, LLC, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderman Barber. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7824,
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF STORM
WATER FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS FROM
B&B INVESTMENTS OF RAWSON, LLC. (3130 W. RAWSON
AVENUE, TKN 738-9991-001) AND FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS (8222 S. 51ST STREET, TKN 807-9999-001), subject to
technical corrections by the City Engineer. Seconded by Alderman
Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7825, A
RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 3-LOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING ALL OF LOT 84 IN RYAN
MEADOWS AND A PART OF PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP NO. 975, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST 1/4
AND THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 AND THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE
NORTHWEST 1/4 ALL IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN (STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF
BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT (LOOMIS & RYAN,
INC. AND GURJIT SINGH AND GURMIT KAUR, PROPERTY
OWNERS)) (LOT 84 OFF RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION
AND AN ADJACENT PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE WEST
SIDE OF SOUTH 112TH STREET (APPROXIMATELY
LOCATED AT THE END OF MONARCH DRIVE IN THE RYAN
MEADOWS SUBDIVISION)), with technical corrections as outlined
by Alderwoman Wilhelm. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2494, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (ZONING MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN



Common Council Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 3

SUBD.

MABAS AGREEMENT

NEW HOUSING FEE
REPORT

ORD. 2022-2495
AMEND MUN. CODE
CH. 92, BUILDING
PERMIT FEES

ORD. 2022-2496
AMEND MUN. CODE
CH. 190, PLUMBING
PERMIT FEES

ORD. 2022-2497
AMEND MUN. CODE
CH. 118, ELECTRICAL
PERMIT FEES

G.7.

G.8.

G.9.

PARCEL OF LAND FROM M-1 LIMITED INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT AND R-2 ESTATE SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE
DISTRICT TO M-1 LIMITED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT
(GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE END OF MONARCH DRIVE
IN THE RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION (LOT 84 OF RYAN
MEADOWS AND AN ADJACENT PROPERTY LOCATED ON
THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH 112TH STREET)
(APPROXIMATELY 22.88 ACRES) (STEPHEN R. MILLS,
PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT).
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to table acceptance of public
improvements in conjunction with the "Development Agreement for
Tax Incremental Financing District No. 6 Public Improvements and
Ryan Meadows Subdivision" until such time staff is able to work
through the issue and return to the Common Council with a
recommendation. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve an amended Mutual Aid Box
Alarm System (MABAS) Memorandum of Agreement holding the
Department of Defense harmless in the event of discharge of
firefighting foam containing "forever chemicals" by the 128th Air
Refueling Wing. Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

No action was taken The New Housing Fee Report, pursuant to the
requirements of 2017 Wisconsin Act 243, Section 66.10014.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2495, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 92 OF THE MUNCIPAL
CODE FOR BUILDING PERMIT FEES TO REPEAL AND
RECREATE THE SCHEDULE OF PERMIT FEES. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2496,
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 190 OF THE
MUNICIPAL CODE FOR PLUMBING PERMIT FEES TO
REPEAL AND RECREATE THE SCHEDULE OF PERMIT FEES.
Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2497, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 118 OF THE MUNICIPAL
CODE FOR ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES TO REPEAL AND
RECREATE THE SCHEDULE OF PERMIT FEES. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

DEV. AGREEMENT FOR G.6.
TID6,RYAN
MEADOWS SUBD.



Common Council Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 4

ORD. 2022-2498
AMEND MUN. CODE
CH. 80, VICIOUS OR
BARKING DOGS

G.10. Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2498, AN
ORDINANCE TO UPDATE CHAPTER 80 OF THE MUNICIPAL
CODE, ANIMALS, TO UPDATE THE REQUIREMENTS FOR
KEEPING OF VICIOUS OR BARKING DOGS. Seconded by
Alderman Barber.

Alderman Holpfer moved to amend the motion to adopt Ordinance
No. 2022-2498 to include technical corrections. Seconded by
Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

ORD. 2022-2499
AMEND MUN. CODE
SEC. 169-1., HEALTH
DEPT. FEES

HEALTH DEPT.
GRANT

G.11. Alderman Nelson vacated his seat at 7:27 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2499, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND $169-1. OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE,
LICENSES REQUIRED, TO UPDATE THE HEALTH
DEPARTMENT LICENSE CATEGORIES AND FEES REFERRED
TO BY $138-28. OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, FEES. Seconded by
Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried. (Alderman
Nelson absent.)

G.12. Alderman Nelson returned to his seat at 7:29 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to accept the Strategic Prevention Framework,
Partnership for Success (SPF-PFS) Grant for 2022 with Community
Advocates, Inc. (CA). Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to amend the motion to include
amendments and provisions as outlined by Alderwoman Wilhelm.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

HEATH DEPT.
ORGANIZATION

APPOINT ACTING
HEALTH OFFICER

G.13.

G.14.

No action was taken following a discussion relating to the
organization of the Health Department.

Alderman Barber moved to appoint Darren Rausch, the Health
Director for the City of Greenfield, to serve as Acting Health Officer
for the City of Franklin for a period of 180 days and authorize the
Mayor and Director of Administration to sign the appropriate
agreements. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, all
voted Aye. Motion carried.

No action was required on the Unified Development Ordinance
rewrite project update, public process and diagnostic review.

UDO REWRITE UPDATE G.15.



Common Council Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 5

RES. 2022-7826 G.16.
AWARD ALL-WAYS
CONT., INC.-PLEASANT
VIEW PARK
IMPROVEMENTS IN AN
AMOUNT OF $405,561

ORD. 2022-2500 G.17.
AMEND MUN. CODE
SEC. 222-4., STREETS

STREET/UTILITY G.18.
CONST. INSP. RATES

RES. 2022-7827 G.19.
GRAEF-USA, INC.
CONTRACT FOR LIFT
STATION CONSTR.
OBSERVATION

RES. 2022-7828 G.20.
WEPCO LICENSE FOR
LINEAR PARK

2022 LOCAL STREET G.21.
IMPR. PROGRAM

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7826, A
RESOLUTION TO AWARD PLEASANT VIEW PARK
IMPROVEMENTS TO ALL-WAYS CONTRACTORS, INC. FOR
$405,561 pending approval of capital carry overs which includes
$300,000 for Pleasant View Park, giving consent to the City Clerk to
correct the Council Action Sheet to reflect the Bid as published and
Common Council's action. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2500, AN
ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE SECTION 222-4. OF
THE MUNICIPAL CODE AND TO RENAME "STREETS,
OPENINGS AND EXCAVATIONS" TO "CONSTRUCT,
MAINTAIN, OR REPAIR INFRASTRUCTURE WITHIN PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAY", subject to technical corrections. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approved revised rates of service
for street and utility construction inspection as included in the
Common Council meeting packet for the years 2022 and 2023.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7827, A
RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE CONTRACT WITH GRAEF
USA, INC. TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION
SERVICES FOR THE INDUSTRIAL PARK LIFT STATION
(10100 S. 60TH STREET) REPLACEMENT FOR $64,740 plus an
additional six hours for drop-in inspections. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7828, A
RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO A LICENSE WITH WISCONSIN
ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY TO USE THEIR PROPERTY
FOR A LINEAR PARK FROM S. 116TH STREET/W. MAYERS
DRIVE TO THE MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY WITH MUSKEGO,
subject to correction of the street name. Seconded by Alderman
Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to direct staff to proceed with advertising
and bidding both contracts of the 2022 Local Street Improvement
Program as presented. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted
Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 6

PRINCIPAL G.22.
RETIREMENT FEE
DISCLOSURE

ORD. 2022-2501 G.23.
AMEND 2021 BUDGET
FOR SPECIAL AUDIT
APPROPRIATIONS

Alderman Barber moved to authorize staff to implement change in fee
disclosure for Principal Retirement Plan Statements. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-2501, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2020-2453, AN
ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE 2021 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE GENERAL FUND TO MOVE $7,925 OF UNRESTRICTED
CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATIONS TO SPECIAL AUDIT
APPROPRIATIONS. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll
call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

NOV. 2021
FINANCIAL REPORT

RES. 2022-7829
A RESOLUTION
DESIGNATING AN
INTERIM FIN. DIR./
COMP./TREAS.

G.24. Alderman Nelson moved to receive and place on file the November
2021 Monthly Financial Report. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

G.25 Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7829, A
RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE DIRECTOR OF
ADMINISTRATION AS THE INTERIM FINANCE
DIRECTOR/COMPTROLLER/TREASURER FOR THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN UNTIL A SUCCESSOR FINANCE DIRECTOR/
COMPTROLLER/TREASURER IS SELECTED AND IN OFFICE
Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

H.

I.

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the following:

Hold the 2021-2022 Operator License of Kimberly Henzig for
appearance;

Grant 2021-22 Operator License to: Kailey Kowalski, Tyler Klemm
with a warning letter; and

Approved Police Incident Reports from February 13, 2021 thru
December 19, 2021, with a warning letter to New Liquor & Food,
Inc., Gurjeet Singh, Agent, Franklin Liquor Store (Quik Chek), 8305
$ 27 st.

Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending
date of February 10, 2022, in the amount of $2,633,912.87; payroll
dated February 11, 2022, in the amount of $441,175.93 and payment
of the various payroll deductions in the amount of $250,093.82, plus



Common Council Meeting
February 15, 2022
Page 7

ADJOURNMENT J.

City matching payments; estimated payroll dated February 25, 2022,
in the amount of $420,000 and payroll deductions in the amount of
$475,000, plus City matching payments; property tax disbursements
with an ending date of February 10, 2022, in the amount of
$10,018,213.42; approval to release payment to Bond Trust Services
in the amount of $3,672,369.59; approval to release property tax
settlements in the amount of $22,545,960.03; approval to release
Wanasek payment in the amount of $62,122.65; and approval to
release Library vouchers not to exceed $68,000. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:51 p.m.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Blank Page



D
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL

MEETING DETAILS

HEARING DATE: Tuesday, March 1, 2022, at 6:30 p.m.

PLACE: The Common Council Chambers at the Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis
Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132.

PROPOSAL INFORMATION
APPLICANT: Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC (Ignasiak Investment
Co., LLC, property owner).

SUBJECT PROPERTY: Generally located on the east side of South 112th Street, east of
the Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural Area (totaling
approximately 35 acres).

TAX KEY NUMBER: 892-9999-002.

PROPOSAL: To amend the Future Land Use Map designation for the area consisting of
one property designated as Recreational Use, covering approximately 35 acres, from
Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Residential Use.

CONTACT INFORMATION

City Development Department
(414) 425-4024
www.franklinw.gov/planning
generalplanning@franklinw1.gov

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION

This public hearing is being held pursuant to the requirements of Wis. Stat. §
66.1001(4)(d). The public is invited to attend the public hearing and to provide input. A
map showing the property affected, full legal description, the application and all
supporting materials, are available for review and may be obtained from the City
Council by way of request to the Department of City Development at Franklin City Hall,
9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132, telephone number (414) 425-4024,
during normal business hours. The proposed ordinance to amend the City of Franklin
2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Is available and open for inspection by the public in
the Office of the City Clerk at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin,
Wisconsin 53132, during normal business hours. Any questions or comments about the



proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan may be directed to Heath
Eddy, City of Franklin Planning Manager, at 414-425-4024.

Dated this 10th day of January, 2022.

Sandra L. Wesolowski
City Clerk

N.B. Class I



srogo
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN 2025 COMPREHENSIVE

MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN 2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP
FOR PROPERTY BEARING TAX KEY

NUMBER 892-9999-002 FROM
RECREATIONAL USE AND AREAS OF
NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES TO

RESIDENTIAL USE
(BY STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF
BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT,
IGNASIAK INVESTMENT COMPANY, LLC,

PROPERTY OWNER)

MEETING DATE

March 1, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.1.

At the regular meeting of the Plan Commission on February 3, 2022, the following action was approved: a motion
to adopt a Resolution recommending approval of an Ordinance to amend the City ofFranklin 2025 Comprehenszve
Master Plan to change the City ofFranklin 2025 Future Land Use Map for property bearing Tax Key Number 892-
9999-002 from "Recreational" use and "Areas of Natural Resource Features" to "Residential" use, in order to
provide consistency with a Rezoning Application also recommended for approval by the Plan Commission.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve Ordinance 2022- , amending the City ofFranklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan
to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map for property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002
from "Recreational" use and "Areas ofNatural Resource Features" to "Residential" use.
Department ofCity Development HE



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 01-24-22}

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTY BEARING TAX KEY NUMBER 892
9999-002, GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF SOUTH 112TH STREET,
EAST OF THE RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION AND WEST OF THE FRANKLIN

SAVANNA NATURAL AREA FROM RECREATIONAL USE AND AREAS OF
NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES USE TO RESIDENTIAL USE

(TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 35 ACRES)
(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC

(IGNASIAK INVESTMENT CO., LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.100 I (4), the City of
Franklin is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined in
Wis. Stat.§§ 66.I00l(l)(a) and 66.1001(2); and

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC has applied for
an amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future
Land Use Map designation for the property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002,
generally located on the east side of South I 12th Street, east of the Ryan Meadows
subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural Area, from Recreational Use and
Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Residential Use; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin by a majority vote of the
entire Commission on February 3, 2022, recorded in its official minutes, has adopted a
resolution recommending to the Common Council the adoption of the Ordinance to Amend
the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025
Future Land Use Map for three properties generally located on the east side of South I 12th
Street, east of the Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural
Area, from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Residential Use;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin held a public hearing upon this proposed Ordinance,
in compliance with the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 66.1001(4)(d); the Common Council
having received input from the public at a duly noticed public hearing on March I, 2022; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan is hereby



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-
Page 2

amended to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map
designation for the property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002,
generally located on the east side of South 112th Street, east of the
Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural
Area, from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features
Use to Residential Use. Such property is more particularly described
within Resolution No. 2022 of even-date herewith.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2022, by Alderman

Passed and adopted by a majority vote of the members-elect of the Common Council
at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this day of

, 2022.---------

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-002

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE ADOPTION OF AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025

COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTY BEARING TAX KEY NUMBER 892
9999-002, GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF SOUTH 112TH STREET,
EAST OF THE RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION AND WEST OF THE FRANKLIN

SAVANNA NATURAL AREA FROM RECREATIONAL USE AND AREAS OF
NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES USE TO RESIDENTIAL USE,

PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT.§ 66.1001(4)(b)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.1001(4), the City of
Franklin is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined in
Wis. Stat.§§ 66.l00l(l)(a) and 66.1001(2); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1001(4)(b), the Plan Commission may
recommend the amendment of the Comprehensive Master Plan to the Common Council by
adopting a resolution by a majority vote of the entire Commission, which vote shall be
recorded in the official minutes of the Plan Commission; and

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC has applied for
an amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future
Land Use Map designation for the property generally located on the east side of South I 12th
Street, east of the Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural
Area, from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Residential Use,
such property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002, more particularly described as
follows:

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8293. Being the South 1/2 of the Southwest
1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29 and the South 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4
of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 30, Town 5 North, Range 21 East in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (total acreage approximately 35
acres); and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having determined that the proposed amendment,
in form and content as presented to the Commission on February 3, 2022, is consistent with
the Comprehensive Master Plan's goals, objectives and policies and in proper form and
content for adoption by the Common Council as an amendment to the 2025 Comprehensive
Master Plan, subject to such modifications the Common Council may consider reasonable
and necessary, following public hearing, in order to protect and promote the health, safety



RESOLUTIONNO. 2022 -002
Page2

and welfare of the City of Franklin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the application for and the proposed ordinance to amend the City of
Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land
Use Map designation for property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002, generally located
on the east side of South I 12th Street, east of the Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of the
Franklin Savanna Natural Area, from Recreational Use and Areas of Natural Resource
Features Use to Residential Use, be and the same is hereby recommended for adoption and
incorporation into the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan by the Common Council.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this
3rd day of February, 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin this 3rd day of February, 2022.

APPROVED.

$th

ATTEST:

au«a.Euobowi
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES 4 NOES 2 ABSENT 0



APPLICATION DATE:
Planning Department

11;.JJf!JW 14M1 11\1E9229 West Loomis Road - .±tu gnl,
Franklin , Wisconsin 53132 Franklingeneralplanning@franklinwi.gov

(414) 425-4024 «f

franklinw i.gov W I s C 0 N s I N

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]
NAME: S.R . Mills NAME: Danie l Szczap

COMPANY: Bear Development, LLC (Danie l Szczap) COMPANY: Bear Development, LLC (Daniel Szczap)

MAILING ADDRESS: 4011 80th Street MAILING ADDRESS: 4011 80th Street

CITY/STATE: Kenosha , WI ZIP: 53142 CITY/STATE: Kenosha , WI ZIP: 53142

PHONE: (262) 949-3788 PHONE: (262) 949-3788

EMAIL ADDRESS: dan@beardevelopment.com EMAIL ADDRESS: dan@beardevelopment.com

PROJECT PROPERJY INFORMATION :

PROPERTY ADDRESS: Vacant 112 th Streel TAX KEY NUMBER: 992 .-9999-002

PROPERTY OWNER: Please see attached PHONE:

MAILING ADDRESS: EMAIL ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE: ZIP: DATE OF COMPLET ION: if,e, nl

APPLICATION TYPE .
Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review ~ Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment D Planned Development District □ Rezoning
□ Special Use/ Special Use Amendment□ Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval.
Applicant is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmitt al materials up to 12 copies pending staff request and comments.

- SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other Information submitt ed as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information In this application; and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submitt al, and any subsequently issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By execution of
this application , the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00
p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review . The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. §943.13.

(The applicant's signature must be from a Managing Member if the business ls an LLC, or from the President or Vice President If the business ls a corporation. A signed
applicant's authorization letter may be provided In lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization letter may be provided In lieu
af the property owner's signature[s] below. If mare than one, all of the owners of the property must sign this App/icatlan),

□ I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common council approval and

submittals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed.

-
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATU RE: Puc(5u=7

-- -- )(-' c:)
:----.......

NAME & TITLE: DATE:
..__

H-NA ME& TITLE: S.R. Mills, President DATE:
12/27/2021

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATU RE: APPLICM if REPRESENT~?TI~E SIGNATU RE:

,I~AA-:;],~~ , A •~
u I r) "/

NAME & TITLE: DATE: Mt s pee !.a. sl, rs. Are
aniel czap , 'roject Manager 12/27/2021



August 18, 2021

Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC
Attn: Mike Ignasiak, Sr.
3132 Riwine.Way

' ._._ I

Green Bay, WI 5430.1

B

Re: Letter Consent - Z eh·ensive Pfail A.m ent for Bear
Dev.eloPJI!

Thisletter certifies that Ignasiak Investment Company, L1,C, @wneF of P,arcel Number '892-
9,999-002! an4 931--9999-004, consent to have Bear Development submit applications for
Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Recreational and Areas of i]j\:J'atufal :Resouree feature.s rt@
ResidentiaL)·and Rezoning (A-2 Agricultureto R-5 SuburbanSingle Family).

(Authofized Signatory)

fJI: . . ~-

Owner:
Ignasiak Investment Company, LiLC

20Uilated: 'U(lf



BER
DEVELOPMENT

4011 80" street, Kenosha, WI 53142
Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

December 27, 2021

Mr. Regula Martinez Montilva
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Franklin Expansion Lands- Comprehensive Plan Amendment

Dear Mr. Martinez-Montilva:

Please accept this letter and the enclosed submittal materials as formal application for an amendment
to the City of Franklin Comprehensive Plan. Bear Development LLC is contract purchaser of the subject
property, acting on behalf, and with authorization, of the owner of record, Ignasiak Investment
Company, LLC.

Project Summary
Bear Development, LLC is the contract purchaser of approximately 34.59 acres of land in the City of
Franklin. The land is located on the east side of 112" Street and lies south of Ryan Road. The property is
directly east of the Ryan Meadows Subdivision.

On August 17, 2021, Bear Development presented a Concept Plan for the subject property before the
Common Council. The Concept Plan received generally positive comments as to the proposed use as a
single-family neighborhood. As such, the applicant is seeking an amendment to the City Comprehensive
Plan to achieve consistency.

Current Plan Designation- Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC
The subject property (approximately 34.54 acres) is located on the east side of 112th Street adjacent to
Milwaukee County Park land known as the Franklin Savanna. The City Comprehensive Plan designates
this property as Recreational.

Proposed Comprehensive -Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC
Bear Development and Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC respectfully request a Comprehensive Plan
Amendment for the subject property to be changed from the designation "Recreation" to the
"Residential" designation. While it is designated as Recreational, we understand there are no plans for
either Milwaukee County or the City of Franklin to purchase the property and develop it as a public park.
The property has been offered for sale for the past two (2) years.



A legal description and graphic exhibit are enclosed for your reference and review.

We feel the Conceptual Plan presented to the Common Council on August 17, 2021 offers a realistic
future land use pattern when considering the current development/growth trends in the area and the
public utilities that have been extended nearby. We submit that holding the subject property in a
designation of Recreation precludes future development opportunities that can increase tax base on
properties that are viable for development on public sewer and water.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Respectfully,

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC



o_ir-1~_. .._ ~

t t ttE ts Ag $ ¢

~. ~ ~
! ~ -l; :)

~ ,JI
a ~ ~ i

~ 9 ~ I ~ § ~
~ ~ ~ 0 <~ ~± ~
. !.

~
j ~ •r" :.J

i! 0 d f .J ~2 . ~ a ~

;rot: ,t ~£
~ vi

1 ~ w
II> 1)/..
Ill,~ . II- r,I
1/1 Ill.

z
3

tu.I .,
I ~

L:~- -- --
- -- - --,-; -- --

l,;{ 4 #1!\£"



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Item D.1.

Meeting of February 3, 2022

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends denial of the Comprehensive
Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning applications submitted by Bear Development, LLC.

Project Name:

Applicant:

Agent:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Proposed amendment:

Action Requested:

Staff:

112th Street properties residential subdivision

Bear Development, LLC.

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC.

892-9999-002

Ignasiak Investment Co LLC

A-2 Prime Agricultural District & C-I Conservancy District

R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District

Recreational and areas of natural resource features

Residential

Recommendation for approval of rezoning and
Comprehensive Master Plan amendment

Heath Eddy, AICP, Planning Manager

Introduction

The applicant submitted Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning applications to
allow for a future single-family residential subdivision with 63 lots on a35-acre site.

Prior Actions
The Common Council heard a Concept Review for this development proposal on August 17, 2021.
A public hearing was held before the Plan Commission on October 7, 2021, and continued to the
next meeting on October 21, 2021, which reviewed a larger residential development project of 115
single family lots on 92 acres, followed by a reduced version of that application which would have
been 48 lots on a35-acre site. The Plan Commission recommendation deadlocked 3-3 for approval.
Due to the nature of State Statutes, the Common Council was unable to take a vote following the
public hearing for the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, and therefore was also unable to
vote on the Rezoning application. The applicant withdrew those applications just prior to the
Common Council meeting of November 4, 2021, although the public hearing on the
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment did take place. The applicant refiled these applications
in mid-November with the reduced request of 48 lots on 35 acres, which were brought to the Plan
Commission on December 9, 2021, for the Rezoning Application public hearing and the



recommendation on the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment. The Plan Commission voted 2-
2 on a recommendation of approval for the Plan Amendment, thus killing the applications a second
time. The applicant refiled both applications on December 27, 2021, this time requesting approval
for a concept that is now increased to 63 lots on 35 acres. This is the third time the Plan
Commission will hold a public hearing on a Rezoning Application, with a recommendation on the
Plan Amendment, for the subject property.

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment

The current application site consists of I property (TKN 892-9999-002) which is designated as
Recreational with inclusions along stream channels for Areas ofNatural Resource Features. Given
the proposed residential subdivision is not consistent with the Recreational designation of the City
of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, the applicant is proposing to change the future land
use designation from Recreational and Areas of Natural Resource Features to Residential. It is
noted that other adopted planning policies, such as the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
2025 (CORP) and the Post-Sanitary Sewer Scenario Map for the southwest portion of the city, also
identify this area as recreational, specifically as a "Planned Regional Park".

Rezoning

The subject property is zoned A-2 Prime Agricultural District with two stream corridors zoned C
l Conservancy District, which is an obsolete zoning district because the current Unified
Development Ordinance require protection of natural resources through conservation easements.
The applicant is proposing to rezone the entire site to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residential.

Project Description/Analysis

The applicant is seeking the rezoning and Comprehensive Master Plan amendment to allow for a
35-acre single-family residential subdivision with 63 lots designed to the development standards
of the R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District, specifically a gross density of 1.83
dwelling units per acre. It should be noted that the revised Development Concept (attached) does
not appear to reflect consideration of existing natural resource constraints on the subject property.
This appears to be a "maximum build" concept. The applicant's previous submission in December
accounted substantially for natural resource protections on the subject property. It should be further
noted that the applicant's revised concept is also in lmne with the maximumyield m the R-5 District.

According to the project narrative submitted for the Concept Review, the estimated site
improvement cost is 10 million dollars with a total project value of $51.75 million dollars or
$562,500 per acre. The overall project cost will be reduced with the smaller project but the average
value should be consistent.

2



Current zoning

Approximately 94% (32 acres) of the site is currently zoned A-2 Prime Agricultural District.
According to the Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0315, the district's intent is to
"prevent the premature conversation of agricultural land to scattered Urban and Suburban uses
such as residential, commercial and industrial uses". It is noted that the A-2 district is limited to
"prime agricultural lands", therefore, this development proposal is contrary to the intent of this
zoning district.

Consistency with adopted planning policies

As part of the Concept Review last August, City Development staff informed the applicant that
residential development at this location is not "consistent with" any of the adopted city plans,
specifically the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, the Post Sanitary Sewer
Scenario for the Southwest and the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2025 as noted below:

a. Not consistent with the city's Comprehensive Plan. The same area that it is currently zoned
A-2 as noted above, it is designated as Recreational in the future land use map of the City of
Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan. Therefore, this proposal is not consistent with the
comprehensive plan. A city zoning ordinance is required to be consistent with the local
comprehensive plan per Wisconsin Statutes §66.1001 (3), "consistent with" means "furthers
or does not contradict the objectives, goals, and policies contained in the comprehensive
plan".

Water

LJ Future Roads (SW Plan)

• • • Existing Trail

,--- • • • Proposed Trail

[ZJ Milwaukee County Parkway

a

Future Land Use
Areas of Natural Resou-ce Features

[c=pi==Y-, l] eousmess Pa

- Comrnerclat

- Communication and UiiUes

- Industrial

- Institutional

- AO an
Light Manufacturing° N/ ./ Mixed Use

/ 1 A4. l one
¢' ' /E-? s {' El Recreaona

¢' l h Residential

[4={[tad/ [!],] [El Res«era -Mo-rams»
Transportation

City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map

b. Not consistent with the southwest subarea plan. According to the Post-Sanitary Sewer
Scenario Map for the southwest portion of the city, the area that is designated as Recreational
in the Comprehensive Master Plan is identified as "Proposed Franklin Park Expansion". This

3



designation as park expansion area is related to the fact that this site is immediately adjacent
to the Franklin Savanna Natural Area owned by Milwaukee County and labeled as "Franklin
Park/Conservancy".

1
Proposed Land Use I Zoning

Institutional
II• Business Park
~- Commercial
- Light Manufacturing
LI Landfill

Countryside Residential Min. 87,120 sq. ft.

Estate Residential Min. 40,000 sq. ft.

- Suburban Residential Min. 25,000 sq. ft.

~Proposed Franklin Park Expansion

PARK EXPANSION
r a

i __.___

nznfA
EH
[ //# , l
! i

"
]444it

I ,
I I '

, , d. I , @

' > I ,I

Post-Sanitary Sewer Scenario Map (2009)

c. Not consistent with the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2025 (CORP).
Following the comprehensive plan and the southwest subarea plan, the "Existing and Planned
Public Outdoor Recreation Sites" map of the CORP identifies this area as "Planned Regional
Park" PRl. According to the CORP (Chapter 7, page 27), the recommended useable area for
the "Southwest Park" should be at least 40 acres. The concept plan does not include any park
dedication area, therefore, it is not consistent with the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation
Plan 2025.

Even though the subdivision design is not being reviewed at this time, it is worth noting that
the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-5.0110Parks, playgrounds and other
recreational and municipal facilities" requires that designated park areas shall be made part
of the subdivision plat by either dedication of land, reservation or payment of development
fee.

4



,j el [ ] htre».a eie«so»
1ht k#'IlllIl.).l • roes cows roe
hajj+iiisf t,{ es»en

-'.:'.s,?·/ ~I I t .... Planned Neighborhood Park
/ <P Planned Regional Park

I ' ¢ Planned Special Pork

'I
1
1 1.,.....,....__..,_-,1..;;....., I PC'I = Community Rec. Center Bldg. Pork

N } PM- PM5 = Mini ParksI l--j PN·I = Forest Hills Neighobrhood Park

I I I PN2 = Hillcrest Neighobrhood Park
1 • I PN3 = Woodview Neighobrhood ParkI &i:,. C, PR·t = Southwest Park

[

)[\ o - PS·t = Mahr Woods Special Park
·__. PS2 = Metro Conservancy Park

- J Q Service Area Radii of
co Planned Facilities

o.. .,ilfL1LIlpr,+-}·-·ht-
,7+,l\·•bi'4 . 1i

Existing and Planned Public Outdoor Recreation Sites map

Natural resources

As previously discussed in the Concept Review staff report, the proposed road layout would be
crossing two wetlands, separate Natural Resource Special Exceptions would be required to allow
for such wetland impacts in addition to state and federal wetland permits. It is worth noting that
one of these wetland crossings would also impact environmental linkages identified in the
Comprehensive Master Plan (Map 3.1 ). This linkage crossing is approximately located between
lots 11 and 12. According to the Comprehensive Master Plan, wildlife crossings and culverts that
allow for the passage of wildlife is recommended for roads that divide linkage areas.

The subject property was created by Certified Survey Map (CSM) No. 8293 which states that "The
natural resource features identified on lot 2 are not based on field surveys in the event of further
land division or development of lot 2 with any such natural resource feature, a complete natural
resource protection plan with field survey is required". The natural resources identified in the CSM
include proposed wetland linkages per the Comprehensive Master Plan, woodlands per 2008 aerial
photography and probable greenway connection per SEWRPC mapping (Southeast Wisconsin
Regional Planning Commission).

5



City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan, Map 3.1 Linkages

Additional information

Fiscal Impact. Staff noted previously that single-family subdivision developments do not create
tax revenues sufficient to cover the operational and maintenance costs associated with the public
infrastructure developed or provided for support. In short, this development will cost more to the
City over the long-term than it will generate in revenue.

Ryan Creek trail. It is worth noting that the city is evaluating a trail connection to the S. I 16th
Street trail as part of the Ryan Creek trail. The exact location has not been determined yet but this
would be reviewed at the time of an eventual subdivision plat if the rezoning and comprehensive
plan amendment are approved.

Milwaukee County Parks easement request. Bear Development applied for a "Milwaukee
County Parks' Land Utilization" to request consideration of a new sanitary sewer easement on
County parkland known as the Franklin Savanna. Per input received from Milwaukee County
Parks, "The proposal from Bear Development did not advance after being reviewed through the
Land Utilization process. This decision was largely based on the high potential for environmental
and hydrologic impacts caused from construction, as well as the need for routine maintenance
access within a County natural area. Additionally, there appear to be several alternative routes
within close proximity to the future development", e-mail attached to the meeting packet.

City Departments comments

Comprehensive Master Plan amendment
• Inspection Services Department. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal

at th is time.
• Police Department. The PD has no comment regarding this request.

6



Rezoning
• Fire Department. No comments at this time.
• Police Department. The PD has no comment regarding this request.

Staff Recommendation:

City Development staff recommends denial of the proposed Comprehensive Master Plan
Amendment and Rezoning Application requests by Bear Development, LLC. The development as
proposed appears to require significant additional follow-up applications just to make any
development feasible on the subject property, and the applicant's concept des1gn has been revised
to maximize the R-5 density (117 times more dense than the existing permitted density), which
makes an approval justification contradictory to the overall tenor of the City of Franklin 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan and the intent and purpose of the Unified Development Ordinance. In
short, the development project is too dense for the subject property, given the natural resource
constraints on-site.

However, should the Plan Commission wish to recommend approval, a draft Resolution
recommending approval of the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, an Ordinance amending
the Comprehensive Master Plan, and an Ordinance amending the Zoning Map are attached for
review/revision and adoption.

Exhibits:
1. Ordinance 2022 - Bear Development LLC Subdivision Zoning Map Amendment, draft dated

January 24, 2022.
2. Ordinance 2022 - Bear Development LLC Subdivision Comprehensive Master Plan

Amendment, draft dated January 24, 2022.
3. Resolution 2022 - Bear Development LLC Subdivision Plan Commission recommendation to

Common Council on Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, draft dated January 24, 2022.
4. Planning Maps (2 pages) showing subject property and surrounding area.
5. Revised Development Concept Design, submitted December 27, 2021.
6. Prior Development Concept Design, submitted November 12, 2021.
7. Signed Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application, dated December 27, 2021.
8. Request Letter for Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, dated December 27, 2021.
9. Signed Rezoning Application, dated December 27, 2021.
10. Owners Consent Authorization, dated August 18, 2021.
11. Request Letter for Rezoning, dated December 27, 2021.
12. Legal Description of subject property.
13. Page 1 of CSM #8293, recorded October 11, 2010.
14. Conservation Easement for CSM #8293, as approved for recording September 2010.

7



0 S. 112th Street
TKN: 892 9999 002

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 500 1,000 2,000 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor.
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may no/ be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



0 S. 112th Street
TKN: 892 9999 002

:::c:
lo
ho........ --I

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 500 1,000 2,000 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informationalpurposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



Blank Page



«"""st2
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (ZONING
MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN PARCEL
OF LAND BEARING TAXKEYNUMBER

892-9999-002 FROM A-2 PRIME
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND C-1
CONSERVANCY DISTRICT TO R-5

SUBURBAN SINGLE-FAMILYRESIDENCE
DISTRICT

(BY STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF
BEARDEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT,
IGNASIAK INVESTMENT COMPANY, LLC,

PROPERTY OWNER)

MEETING DATE

March 1, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.2.

At the regular meeting of the Plan Commission on February 3, 2022, following a properly noticed public hearing,
the following action was approved: a motion to recommend approval of an Ordinance amending the Unified
Development Ordinance (Zoning Map) to rezone the property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002 from A-2
Prime Agricultural District and C-1 Conservancy District to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve Ordinance 2022- amending the Unified Development Ordinance (Zoning Map) to
rezone the property bearing Tax Key Number 892-9999-002 from A-2 Prime Agricultural District and C-1
Conservancy District to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District.
Department ofCity Development HE



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 01-24-22}

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (ZONING MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND

BEARING TAX KEY NUMBER 892-9999-002 FROM A-2 PRIME AGRICULTURAL
DISTRICT AND C-1 CONSERVANCY DISTRICT TO R-5 SUBURBAN SINGLE

FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT (GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF
SOUTH 112TH STREET, EAST OF THE RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION AND

WEST OF THE FRANKLIN SAVANNA NATURAL AREA)
(APPROXIMATELY 35 ACRES)

(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC having
petitioned for the rezoning of approximately 35 acres of land, from A-2 Prime Agricultural
District and C-1 Conservancy District to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District,
such land generally located on the east side of South 112th Street, east of the Ryan Meadows
subdivision and west of the Franklin Savanna Natural Area; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the City of Franklin Plan Commission
on the 3rd day of February, 2022, upon the aforesaid petition and the Plan Commission
thereafter having determined that the proposed rezoning would promote the health, safety
and welfare of the City and having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council;
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having
concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission and having determined that the
proposed rezoning is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin and would promote the health, safety and welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: § 15-3.0102 (Zoning Map) of the Unified Development Ordinance of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to provide that the
zoning district designation for land generally located on the east side of
South 112th Street, east of the Ryan Meadows subdivision and west of
the Franklin Savanna Natural Area, described below, be changed from
A-2 Prime Agricultural District and C-1 Conservancy District to R-5
Suburban Single-Family Residence District:



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-
Page 2

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8293. Being the South l /2 of the
Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29 and the South 1/2 of
the Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 30, Town 5 North,
Range 21 East in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.
Tax Key Number 892-9999-002.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of° 2022, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



BER
DEVELOPMENT

4011 80" Street, Kenosha, WI 53142
Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

December 27, 2021

Mr. Regula Martinez Montilva
City of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Rezoning - Franklin Expansion Lands

Dear Mr Martinez Montilva:

Bear Development is pleased to submit this letter and the enclosed submittal materials as formal
application for rezoning. Bear Development is acting with authorization of the owner of record, Ignasiak
Investment Company.

Project Summary
Bear Development, LLC is the contract purchaser of approximately 34.59 acres of land in the City of
Franklin. The land is located on the east side of 112" Street and south of Ryan Road. Bear Development
is respectfully requesting a zoning amendment for the entire property to facilitate a single-family
neighborhood. A Conceptual Plan was presented to the Franklin Common Council on August 17, 2021.
Common Council comments were perceived as positive with no major objections raised.

Current Use
The subject property (approximately 34.59 acres) is actively farmed for row crops. There are scattered
wetlands on the property and established tree lines which separate agricultural fields

Current Zoning- Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC
The subject property is currently zoned A-2 Agriculture with two (2) small areas of Cl Conservancy
zoning which follow assumed waterways.

Adjacent Zoning
North: R-2 Residential
South: R-1 and R-2 Residential
East: Pl Parks (Franklin Savanna)
West: R-6, R-1 and R-2 Residential



Adjacent Land Use
North: Agriculture
South: Agriculture
East: Public Lands
West: Residential and Agriculture

Proposed Zoning
Bear Development, LLC is respectfully requesting zoning reclassification of the subject property to the R
5 Suburban Single Family Residence District.

Proposed Land Use
Bear Development is proposing a single-family neighborhood for the subject property. The Conceptual
Plan was presented to the Common Council on August 17,2021. Generally, the feedback from Council was
positive and there were no major objections to the proposed plan.

Bear Development, LLC has retained the services of Pinnacle Engineering Group to develop the
Conceptual Site Plan, which is enclosed for your review and reference and is considered a working
document. Upon favorable hearing, we will advance the Concept Plan into full engineering design.

We feel the Site Plan offers a realistic land use pattern for this area of Franklin considering the recent
development trends and the extension of public sewer and water to this area. The Concept Plan and
subsequent land divisions will create a land use pattern that is consistent and compatible with the
properties in the general area.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC



El



APPLICATION DATE:
Planning Department plea09229 West Loomis Road

'·,I .. ,i'!J fi± .It u only___J

Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 Franklingeneralplanning@franklinyi.gov
(414) 425-4024 «d

franklinwi.gov w I s C 0 N s I N

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECTINFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES) APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]
NAME: S.R. Mills NAME: Daniel Szczap

COMPANY: Bear Development, LLC (Daniel Szczap) COMPANY: Bear Development, LLC (Daniel Szczap)

MAILING ADDRESS: 4011 80th Street MAILING ADDRESS: 4011 80th Street

CITY/STATE: Kenosha, WI ZIP: 53142 CITY/STATE: Kenosha, WI ZIP: 53142

PHONE: (262) 949-3788 PHONE: (262) 949-3788

EMAIL ADDRESS: dan@beardevelopment.com EMAIL ADDRESS: dan@beardevelopment.com

' PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY ADDRESS: Vacant 112th Street TAX KEY NUMBER: g992.-9999-002

PROPERTYOWNER: Please see attached PHONE:

MAILING ADDRESS: EMAIL ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE: ZIP: DATE OF COMPLETION: ffi, w '"'=I ii•.

APPLICATION TYPE t

Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review□ Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment [] Planned Development District l!I Rezoning
D Special Use/Special Use Amendment □ Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval.
Applicant is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmittal materials up to 12 copies pending start request and comments.

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application; and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00
p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. 5943.13.

(The applicant's signature must befrom a Managing Member If the business Is an LLC, or from the President or Vice President if the business is a corporation. A signed
applicant's authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization letter may be provided In lieu
of the property owner's signature[s] below. if more than one, oil of the owners of the property must sign this Application).

D I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common council approval and
submittals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed.

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: APPLICANTMIGNATURE:

l.=/ . ---NAME & TITLE: DATE: Le NAME & TITLE: DATE:S.R. Mills, President 12/27/2021
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: APP'JICA ~RE~dESE j"?/.A E SIGNATURE: /7

»a. [.g
fee ee /}

NAME & TITLE: DATE: w s mhE ! ~ K ( owre
Danie Szczap, P OJect Manager 12/27/2021



G)
;a
0

August 18, 2021

Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC
Attn: Mike Ignasiak, Sr.

« «

3132 Ravine Way
;\ I

Green Bay, WI 5430.1

Re ,lan1Amendment for Bear
De

asiak) ofParcelNumber 892
937.9999.904, cons 1it applications for

an. 1endment (Rec eas o1 la . ai Resomice 'Features to
R ,. d Rezqhing (A.-2 Agcicul ,.,' ban Single Family).

ll9lated: WIIr Owner:
Ignasiak Investment Company, LLC



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Item 0.1.

Meeting of February 3, 2022

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends denial of the Comprehensive
Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning applications submitted by Bear Development, LLC.

Project Name:

Applicant:

Agent:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Proposed amendment:

Action Requested:

Staff:

112th Street properties residential subdivision

Bear Development, LLC.

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC.

892-9999-002

Ignasiak Investment Co LLC

A-2 Prime Agricultural District & C-I Conservancy District

R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District

Recreational and areas of natural resource features

Residential

Recommendation for approval of rezoning and
Comprehensive Master Plan amendment

Heath Eddy, AICP, Planning Manager

Introduction

The applicant submitted Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning applications to
allow for a future single-family residential subdivision with 63 lots on a 35-acre site.

Prior Actions
The Common Council heard a Concept Review for this development proposal on August l 7, 2021.
A public hearing was held before the Plan Commission on October 7, 2021, and continued to the
next meeting on October 21, 2021, which reviewed a larger residential development project of 115
single family lots on 92 acres, followed by a reduced version of that application which would have
been 48 lots on a35-acre site. The Plan Commission recommendation deadlocked 3-3 for approval.
Due to the nature of State Statutes, the Common Council vvas unable to take a vote following the
public hearing for the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, and therefore was also unable to
vote on the Rezoning application. The applicant withdrew those applications just prior to the
Common Council meeting of November 4, 2021, although the public hearing on the
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment did take place. The applicant refiled these applications
in mid-November with the reduced request of 48 lots on 35 acres, which were brought to the Plan
Commission on December 9, 2021, for the Rezoning Application public hearing and the



recommendation on the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment. The Plan Commission voted 2
2 on a recommendation of approval for the Plan Amendment, thus killing the applications a second
time. The applicant refiled both applications on December 27, 2021, this time requesting approval
for a concept that is now increased to 63 lots on 35 acres. This is the third time the Plan
Commission will hold a public hearing on a Rezoning Application, with a recommendation on the
Plan Amendment, for the subject property.

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment

The current application site consists of l property (TKN 892-9999-002) which is designated as
Recreational with inclusions along stream channels for Areas ofNatural Resource Features. Given
the proposed residential subdivision is not consistent with the Recreational designation of the City
of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, the applicant is proposing to change the future land
use designation from Recreational and Areas of Natural Resource Features to Residential. It is
noted that other adopted planning policies, such as the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
2025 (CORP) and the Post-Sanitary Sewer ScenarioMap for the southwest portion of the city, also
identify this area as recreational, specifically as a "Planned Regional Park".

Rezoning

The subject property is zoned A-2 Prime Agricultural District with two stream corridors zoned C
l Conservancy District, which is an obsolete zoning district because the current Unified
Development Ordinance require protection of natural resources through conservation easements.
The applicant is proposing to rezone the entire site to R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residential.

Project Description/Analysis

The applicant is seeking the rezoning and Comprehensive Master Plan amendment to allow for a
35-acre single-family residential subdivision with 63 lots designed to the development standards
of the R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence District, specifically a gross density of 1.83
dwelling units per acre. It should be noted that the revised Development Concept (attached) does
not appear to reflect consideration of existing natural resource constraints on the subject property.
This appears to be a "maximum build" concept. The applicant's previous submission in December
accounted substantially for natural resource protections on the subject property. It should be further
noted that the applicant's revised concept 1s also mn line with the maximum yield in the R-5 District.

According to the project narrative submitted for the Concept Review, the estimated site
improvement cost is 10 million dollars with a total project value of $51.75 million dollars or
$562,500 per acre. The overall project cost will be reduced with the smaller project but the average
value should be consistent.

2



Current zoning

Approximately 94% (32 acres) of the site is currently zoned A-2 Prime Agricultural District.
According to the Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0315, the district's intent is to
"prevent the premature conversation of agricultural land to scattered Urban and Suburban uses
such as residential, commercial and industrial uses". It is noted that the A-2 district is limited to
"prime agricultural lands", therefore, this development proposal is contrary to the intent of this
zoning district.

Consistency with adopted planning policies

As part of the Concept Review last August, City Development staff informed the applicant that
residential development at this location is not "consistent with" any of the adopted city plans,
specifically the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, the Post Sanitary Sewer
Scenario for the Southwest and the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2025 as noted below:

Light Manufacturing

Transportation

water

D Future Roads (SW Plan)

Existing Trail

F. • ■ Proposed Trail

[ZJ Milwaukee Courly Parkway

°', Me d use

•. ls l once.....·· ...-"" ,,/" .•~===~· j .sy lereson
° y4, Ride itial8° }, [] ':. <esidenta

/ .__J - Residential-Multi-Family,..

City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map

a. Not consistent with the city's Comprehensive Plan. The same area that it is currently zoned
A-2 as noted above, it is designated as Recreational in the future land use map of the City of
Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan. Therefore, this proposal is not consistent with the
comprehensive plan. A city zoning ordinance is required to be consistent with the local
comprehensive plan per Wisconsin Statutes §66.100 I (3), "consistent with" means "furthers
or does not contradict the objectives, goals, and policies contained in the comprehensive
plan".

[EE3noire -on4u»
iini=i- 'TTl" -r-""°"i ' Areas fl Natural Resol.J'ce Features

- - BusinessPark

ll comrerta
- Corrmunication and LUilles

- lnclls1rial

- lnStitulional
-IDl LandfiU

b. Not consistent with the southwest subarea plan. According to the Post-Sanitary Sewer
Scenario Map for the southwest portion of the city, the area that is designated as Recreational
in the Comprehensive Master Plan is identified as "Proposed Franklin Park Expansion". This

3



designation as park expansion area is related to the fact that this site is immediately adjacent
to the Franklin Savanna Natural Area owned by Milwaukee County and labeled as "Franklin
Park/Conservancy".

I Proposed Land Use I Zoning
Institutional

- Business Park
- Commercial
- Light Manufacturing
~ Landfill

Countryside Residential Min. 87,120 sa. ft
Estate Residential Min. 40,000 sq. ft.

- Suburban Residential Min. 2s,ooo sq. ft.

~Proposed Franklin Park Expansion

PARK EXPANSION
a

i
I tl

Ml ,E
, , ,' .I

lane?. i~r'/i'~~>
. ' J

II ;·i -_ ff4pp/ t]
'. . "'- ' i--:-

. ' - I
- 1 _UP, -1rime

. ~ Z 1/YA
, • • I • ,

i/·.·-~;

Post-Sanitary Sewer Scenario Map (2009)

c. Not consistent with the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2025 (CORP).
Following the comprehensive plan and the southwest subarea plan, the "Existing and Planned
Public Outdoor Recreation Sites" map of the CORP identifies this area as "Planned Regional
Park" PRl. According to the CORP (Chapter 7, page 27), the recommended useable area for
the "Southwest Park" should be at least 40 acres. The concept plan does not include any park
dedication area, therefore, it is not consistent with the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation
Plan 2025.

Even though the subdivision design is not being reviewed at this time, it is worth noting that
the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-5.0110"Parks, playgrounds and other
recreational and municipal facilities" requires that designated park areas shall be made part
of the subdivision plat by either dedication of land, reservation or payment of development
fee.

4



PS·I = l\•lahr Woods Special Park
PS2 = Metro Conservancy Park

PCI= Community Rec. Center Bldg. Park
PM·\ - PMS= Mini Parks
PN ·1 = Forest Hills Neighobrhood Park
PN2 = Hillcrest Neighobrhood Park
PN3 = Woodview Neighobrhood Park
PR"I = Southwest Park

} l,[ lees re@eor« so»
11. ti.le • Planned Community Park~u;----,i-- r H ~....,.,,- --1 -·-- -- II l_Tl f, ■ Planned Mini Park

.
- ._..__--:;:::;;.i§.::> ~ I ~ .6.. Planned Neighborhood Park

· - <P Planned Regional Park

-- - - ♦ Planned Special Park

~ i I.,.___..........,....✓~~~ ~I
I Do

Existing and Planned Public Outdoor Recreation Sites map

Natural resources

As previously discussed in the Concept Review staff report, the proposed road layout would be
crossing two wetlands, separate Natural Resource Special Exceptions would be required to allow
for such wetland impacts in addition to state and federal wetland permits. It is worth noting that
one of these wetland crossings would also impact environmental linkages identified in the
Comprehensive Master Plan (Map 3.1). This linkage crossing is approximately located between
lots 11 and 12. According to the Comprehensive Master Plan, wildlife crossings and culverts that
allow for the passage ofwildlife is recommended for roads that divide linkage areas.

The subject property was created by Certified Survey Map (CSM) No. 8293 which states that "The
natural resource features identified on lot 2 are not based on field surveys in the event of further
land division or development of lot 2 with any such natural resource feature, a complete natural
resource protection plan with field survey is required". The natural resources identified in the CSM
include proposed wetland linkages per the Comprehensive Master Plan, woodlands per 2008 aerial
photography and probable greenway connection per SEWRPC mapping (Southeast Wisconsin
Regional Planning Commission).

5



City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan, Map 3.1 Linkages

Additional information

Fiscal Impact. Staff noted previously that single-family subdivision developments do not create
tax revenues sufficient to cover the operational and maintenance costs associated with the public
infrastructure developed or provided for support. In short, this development will cost more to the
City over the long-term than it will generate in revenue.

Ryan Creek trail. It is worth noting that the city is evaluating a trail connection to the S. 116th
Street trail as part of the Ryan Creek trail. The exact location has not been determined yet but this
would be reviewed at the time of an eventual subdivision plat if the rezoning and comprehensive
plan amendment are approved.

Milwaukee County Parks easement request. Bear Development applied for a "Milwaukee
County Parks' Land Utilization" to request consideration of a new sanitary sewer easement on
County parkland known as the Franklin Savanna. Per input received from Milwaukee County
Parks, "The proposal from Bear Development did not advance after being reviewed through the
Land Utilization process. This decision was largely based on the high potential for environmental
and hydrologic impacts caused from construction, as well as the need for routine maintenance
access within a County natural area. Additionally, there appear to be several alternative routes
within close proximity to the future development", e-mail attached to the meeting packet.

City Departments comments

Comprehensive Master Plan amendment
• Inspection Services Department. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal

at th is time.
• Police Department. The PD has no comment regarding this request.

6



Rezoning
• Fire Department. No comments at this time.
• Police Department. The PD has no comment regarding this request.

Staff Recommendation:

City Development staff recommends denial of the proposed Comprehensive Master Plan
Amendment and Rezoning Application requests by Bear Development, LLC. The development as
proposed appears to require significant additional follow-up applications just to make any
development feasible on the subject property, and the applicant's concept design has been revised
to maximize the R-5 density (117 times more dense than the existing permitted density), which
makes an approval justification contradictory to the overall tenor of the City of Franklin 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan and the intent and purpose of the Unified Development Ordinance. In
short, the development project is too dense for the subject property, given the natural resource
constraints on-site.

However, should the Plan Commission wish to recommend approval, a draft Resolution
recommending approval of the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, an Ordinance amending
the Comprehensive Master Plan, and an Ordinance amending the Zoning Map are attached for
review/revision and adoption.

Exhibits:
1. Ordinance 2022 - Bear Development LLC Subdivision Zoning Map Amendment, draft dated

January 24, 2022.
2. Ordinance 2022 - Bear Development LLC Subdivision Comprehensive Master Plan

Amendment, draft dated January 24, 2022.
3. Resolution 2022-Bear Development LLC Subdivision Plan Commission recommendation to

Common Council on Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, draft dated January 24, 2022.
4. Planning Maps (2 pages) showing subject property and surrounding area.
5. Revised Development Concept Design, submitted December 27, 2021.
6. Prior Development Concept Design, submitted November 12, 2021.
7. Signed Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application, dated December 27, 2021.
8. Request Letter for Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, dated December 27, 2021.
9. Signed Rezoning Application, dated December 27, 2021.
10. Owners Consent Authorization, dated August 18, 2021.
11. Request Letter for Rezoning, dated December 27, 2021.
12. Legal Description of subject property.
13. Page 1 of CSM #8293, recorded October 11, 2010.
14. Conservation Easement for CSM #8293, as approved for recording September 2010.

7



0 S. 112th Street
TKN: 892 9999 002

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 500 1,000 2,000 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperly
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informationalpurposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



0 S. 112th Street
TKN: 892 9999 002

::c
oleo
ho....,..... _

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 500 1,000 2,000 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative localion ofproperly
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



Blank Page



APPROVAL 

 

REQUEST FOR 

COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE 

March 1, 2022 

REPORTS & 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS 

AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE 

APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A 

MEAT PROCESSING FACILITY USE UPON 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE 

INTERSECTION OF WEST LOOMIS ROAD 

AND THE NEW MONARCH DRIVE (LOT 83 

OF RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION 

(STRAUSS BRANDS LLC, APPLICANT); 

(pursuant to Court Order signed January 24, 2022 

and filed January 25, 2022, in Franklin 

Community Advocates, et al. v. City of Franklin, 

and Strauss Brands, LLC, Milwaukee County 

Circuit Court, Case No. 20-CV- 7031).  The City 

Administrative Record of the records and 

documents of the proceedings upon this subject 

matter and as filed and ordered by the Court in 

Franklin Community Advocates, et al. v. City of 

Franklin, and Strauss Brands, LLC, Milwaukee 

County Circuit Court, Case No. 20-CV-7031, are 

available for public inspection and review and may 

be accessed by entering upon:   

ITEM NUMBER 

 

 

G.3. 

https://franklinwi.box.com/s/3dt5qubmyim4caofk7hyine4iup4onv0 

 

On February 17, 2022, the Plan Commission conditionally approved the Site Plan for Strauss Brands, Inc. to 

construct a 152,035 square foot meat packing plant, along with a recommendation for approval of a Special 

Use for the same facility, as required in the M-1 Limited Industrial District. This public hearing was held 

pursuant to a Court Order signed January 24, 2022 and filed January 25, 2022, in Franklin Community 

Advocates, et al. v. City of Franklin, and Strauss Brands, LLC, Milwaukee County Circuit Court, Case No. 

20-CV-7031. Following the public hearing public comments, and discussion among members of the Plan 

Commission, the Plan Commission approved the following: 

 

• A motion amending proposed Condition #4 to further specify the phrase “unless unforeseen conditions 

occur” where the arrival of livestock deliveries failed to comply with the hours specified in this 

Condition, which was adopted 5-0-1; 

• A motion amending proposed Condition #8 to add “cleaned to applicable State and Federal standards” 

to this Condition, which was adopted 5-0-1; 

• A motion amending proposed Condition #12 to change “site plan” to “special use” thus requiring any 

changes to the site design, additions, etc. to require a public hearing process, which was adopted 5-0-1; 

and 

• Finally, a motion recommending approval of the attached Resolution, as amended, which was adopted 

by a vote of 4-1-1 (Nays: Haley) (Abstain: Burckhardt) 

 

 

 



 

Page 2 

 

Annexed hereto are copies of the documents and correspondence with regard to the Site Plan and Special Use 

matters submitted for and at the Plan Commission meeting.  Also annexed hereto are copies of documents and 

correspondence received subsequent to the Plan Commission meeting, for this Common Council meeting 

item. 

 

Attached is the draft Resolution as amended, along with the Plan Commission Resolution approved by the 

Plan Commission for the Site Plan Application (Resolution No. 2022-026).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED 

A motion to adopt Resolution 2022-_________, imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a 

special use for a meat processing facility use upon property located at the southwest corner of the intersection 

of West Loomis Road and the new Monarch Drive (Lot 83 of Ryan Meadows subdivision) (Strauss Brands 

LLC, applicant). 

Department of City Development:  HE/jw 



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022--

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR
THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A MEAT PROCESSING FACILITY
USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE

INTERSECTION OF WEST LOOMIS ROAD AND THE NEW MONARCH DRIVE
(LOT 83 OF RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION)

(STRAUSS BRANDS LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Strauss Brands LLC having petitioned the City of Franklin for the
approval of a Special Use within an M-1 Limited Industrial District under Standard Industrial
Classification Title No. 2011 "Meat Packing Plants" to allow for construction of a 152,035
square foot (total building footprint of the single-story building) meat processing facility
(Phases I and II (staffed by approximately 261 employees in the production area and 11
employees in the office area)) designed to process 250 to 500 head of cattle per day, which
will include cattle pens, a harvest floor, carcass coolers, fabrication areas, packaging areas,
warehouse areas, shipping docks, operations offices, employee welfare spaces and associated
mechanical support facilities and spaces, upon property located at the southwest corner of the
intersection of West Loomis Road and the new Monarch Drive (Lot 83 of Ryan Meadows
Subdivision, approximately 30.2 acres), bearing Tax Key No. 891-1083-000, more
particularly described as follows:

Parts of Lot 1 and Outlot 1, of Certified Survey Map No. 9095 as recorded in
the register of deeds office for Milwaukee County as Document No.
10830741, being a part of the Nmiheast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the
Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows: Commencing
at the southwest comer of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 30; thence South
8939'32" East along the south line of said Northwest 1/4, 1345.74 feet to the
southwest comer of Lot 1 Certified Survey Map No. 9095 and the Point of
Beginning; Thence North 003412" West, along the west line of said Lot 1,
1523.10 feet to the southerly line of said right-of-way of West Loomis Road;
thence North 79°00'41" East along the southerly line of said right-of-way,
156.97 feet; thence Nmih 75°45'51" East along the southerly line of said right
of-way, 215.80 feet to a point of curvature; thence northeasterly along the
southerly line of said right-of-way, 30.51 feet along the arc of said curve to the
left, whose radius is 1979.86 feet and whose chord bears North 75919'22" East,
30.51 feet; thence South 29°08'47" East, 22.47 feet; thence South 16%09'38"
East, 83.27 feet to a point of curvature; thence southeasterly 198.68 feet along
the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius is 265.00 feet and whose chord
bears South 37°38'23" East, 194.06 feet; thence South 59°07'06" East, 356.12
feet to a point of curvature; thence southeasterly 170.14 feet along the arc of



STRAUSS BRANDS LLC- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
Page 2

said curve to the right, whose radius is 190.00 feet and whose chord bears
South 33°27'51" East, 164.52 feet; thence South 07°48'36" East, 543.63 feet to
a point of curvature; thence southwesterly 128.99 feet along the arc of said
curve to the right, whose radius is 190.00 feet and whose chord bears South
11°38'18" West, 126.52 feet; thence South 31°05'13" West, 282.33 feet to a
point of curvature; thence southwesterly 75.12 feet along said curve to the
right, whose radius is 190.00 feet and whose chord bears South 42°24'5 l"
West, 74.64 feet; thence South 53944'29" West, 143.69 feet to the south line of
said Northwest 1/4; thence North 89°39'32" West along said south line, 662.99
feet to the Point of Beginning. Containing 1,316,168 square feet (30.2151
acres) of land, more or less; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 17th day of September, 2020, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Strauss Brands LLC, for the approval of
a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this Resolution, be
and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Strauss
Brands LLC, successors and assigns, as a meat processing facility use, which shall be
developed in substantial compliance with, and operated and maintained by Strauss
Brands LLC, pursuant to those plans City file-stamped September 28, 2020 and
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.



STRAUSS BRANDS LLC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
Page 3

2. Strauss Brands LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin the
amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the
City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Strauss
Brands LLC meat processing facility, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to $15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19. of the Municipal Code, the general
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Strauss Brands LLC and the meat
processing facility use for the property located at the southwest corner of the
intersection of West Loomis Road and the new Monarch Drive (Lot 83 of Ryan
Meadows Subdivision): (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental
laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other
governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to
the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

4. Hours of livestock delivery shall be between the hours of I :00 AM to 1 :00 PM,
Monday thru Friday, livestock delivery hours may be extended in case of severe
weather conditions or traffic incidents. Hours of operation for the harvest area shall
be from 5:00 AM to 6:00 PM, Monday thru Friday. These conditions shall not apply
to fabrication, grinding, maintenance, cleaning, and administrative activities which
can operate 24 hours per day, Monday thru Saturday.

5. No outside storage of supplies and/or equipment shall be permitted.

6. No livestock shall be kept outside the buildings.

7. No livestock shall be kept on the premise overnight except when requested by state or
federal inspector.

8. A maximum of 14 empty livestock trucks, cleaned to applicable federal and/or state
standards, shall be permitted to park on the premise overnight.

9. No livestock trucks shall be washed or cleaned on the premise.

10. All processing waste shall be removed from the premise daily.

11. Removal of snow from private parking lots, walks and access drives shall be the
responsibility of the owner.

12. A special use amendment shall be required for the future building expansion areas,
future truck maintenance facility, future parking and future driveways.



STRAUSS BRANDS LLC -- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
PAGE4

13. This Special Use is not approving any signs, signage requires a separate permit from
the Inspection Services Department prior to installation.

14. The applicant shall prepare conservation easements for all protected natural resource
features for staff review and Common Council approval, and recording with the
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, prior to issuance of a Building Pennit.

15. The applicant shall obtain final approval of grading, erosion control, storm water
management, and utilities by the Engineering Department prior to any land
disturbance activities.

16. The minimum required off-street parking is 280 parking stalls.

17. The maximum driveway width is 28 feet for the employee parking lot and 48
feet for the truck entrance.

18. The maximum height is 8 feet for chain link fences and 10 feet for masonry
walls, measured from grade.

19. The cattle barns and harvest areas shall be ventilated to dissipate odors. Trucks and
trailers used to remove remainder animal wastes shall be loaded in enclosed dock
areas to reduce spread of odors.

20. In the event of obnoxious odors detected off the premise, the Department of City
Development shall immediately notify the operator and the federal or state inspector
assigned to the facility.

21. The applicant, successors and assigns, shall implement sound control devices,
including, but not limited to additional chimneys or baffles, to reduce the sound from
exhaust and ventilation fans to a maximum of 65 decibels at the ground level
adjacent to the building.

22. The applicant, successors and assigns, shall mitigate truck traffic noise and impact by
installing a 5-foot high landscape berm on the east side of the livestock loading area
to provide additional screening and sound deflection.

23. The applicant, successors and assigns, shall further mitigate truck traffic noise and
impact by increasing the height of the berm along the north property line by an
average of 2 feet over that shown on the existing approved site plan. This berm shall
be designed to appear natural.



STRAUSS BRANDS LLC- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
PAGE 5

24. The applicant, successors and assigns, shall submit a revised Landscape Plan which
shows the approved changes to berms and landscape buffers as provided in
Conditions 22. and 23., above.

25. The applicant, successors and assigns, shall establish and maintain a citizen
complaint procedure, in which concerned residents contact a designated
representative of the applicant, successors or assigns, and provide details of any
complaints. The applicant, successors and assigns, shall compile any and all
complaints and submit a monthly report of the complaints to the City Health
Department, along with any actions taken. This procedure shall be in addition to
current coordination with the City Health Department regarding complaints and
coordinating responses thereto.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Strauss Brands LLC, successors or
assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any of the
conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day notice to
cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and
hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to $15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19. of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by $15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.01030. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of a building permit for
such use



STRAUSS BRANDS LLC -- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022---
PAGE6

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-006

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A MEAT
PROCESSING FACILITY WITH ASSOCIATED CATTLE PEN, A HARVEST FLOOR,
CARCASS COOLERS, FABRICATION AREAS, PACKAGING AREAS, WAREHOUSE

AREAS, SHIPPING DOCKS, OPERATIONS OFFICES, EMPLOYEE WELFARE
SPACES, ASSOCIATED MECHANICAL SUPPORT FACILITIES AND SPACES, A
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA, STORMWATER PONDS, PARKING LOT AND

TRUCK AND EMPLOYEE VEHICLE ENTRANCE DRIVES
(THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF WEST LOOMIS ROAD

AND THE NEW MONARCH DRIVE (LOT 83 OF RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION)
(STRAUSS BRANDS LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Strauss Brands LLC having applied for approval of a proposed site plan
for construction of a 152,035 square foot (total building footprint of the single-story
building) meat processing facility (Phases I and II (staffed by approximately 261 employees
in the production area and 11 employees in the office area)) designed to process 250 to 500
head of cattle per day, including cattle pens, a harvest floor, carcass coolers, fabrication
areas, packaging areas, warehouse areas, shipping docks, operations offices, employee
welfare spaces, associated mechanical support facilities and spaces [the proposed Site Plan
includes a building positioned north/south on the site (roughly centered on the site) with
employee/visitor parking on the east side of the building (280 spaces) and an access drive
located along the south, west, and north sides of the building for truck traffic, with all access
to the site via Monarch Drive (two access drives will be provided, one for employee auto
parking and one for truck receiving and shipping) (the western portion of the site is identified
as future building expansion area) (the site is designed to detain all stormwater on-site in
three (3) detention ponds; the ponds are designed with a capacity to accommodate the future
phases of work as indicated on the site drawings)], property located at the southwest corner
of the intersection of West Loomis Road and the new Monarch Drive (Lot 83 of Ryan
Meadows Subdivision (approximately 30.2 acres)); and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having found
same to be in compliance with the applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0421 of the
Unified Development Ordinance and in furtherance of those express standards and purposes
of a site plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 ofthe Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for the construction of a 152,035 square foot meat
processing facility designed to process 250 to 500 head of cattle per day, including cattle
pens, a harvest floor, carcass coolers, fabrication areas, packaging areas, warehouse areas,
shipping docks, operations offices, employee welfare spaces, associated mechanical support



STRAUSS BRANDS LLC - SITE PLAN
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-006
Page2

facilities and spaces [the proposed Site Plan includes a building positioned north/south on the
site (roughly centered on the site) with employee/visitor parking on the east side of the
building (280 spaces) and an access drive located along the south, west, and north sides of
the building for truck traffic, with all access to the site via Monarch Drive (two access drives
will be provided, one for employee auto parking and one for truck receiving and shipping)
(the western portion of the site is identified as future building expansion area) (the site is
designed to detain all stormwater on-site in three (3) detention ponds; the ponds are designed
with a capacity to accommodate the future phases of work as indicated on the site
drawings)], property located at the southwest comer of the intersection of West Loomis Road
and the new Monarch Drive (Lot 83 of Ryan Meadows Subdivision (approximately 30.2
acres)) as depicted upon the plans dated September 28, 2020, attached hereto and
incorporated herein, is hereby approved, subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. The property subject to the Site Plan shall be developed in substantial compliance
with, and operated and maintained pursuant to the Site Plan for the Strauss Brands
LLC meat processing facility dated September 28, 2020.

2. Strauss Brands LLC, successors and assigns, and any developer of the Strauss Brands
LLC meat processing facility construction project, shall pay to the City of Franklin
the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the
City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Strauss
Brands LLC meat processing facility construction project, within 30 days of invoice
for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9 .0502 thereof and § 1-19. of the
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Strauss Brands LLC meat
processing facility construction project (i) being in compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

4. That the Strauss Brands LLC meat processing facility construction project shall be
developed and constructed pursuant to such Site Plan within one year from the date of
adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted
hereunder shall be null and void, without any further action by the City of Franklin.

5. This Site Plan is conditioned upon the approval of a Special Use to allow for meat
packing plants.



STRAUSS BRANDS LLC - SITE PLAN
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-006
Page 3

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this
17th day ofFebruary, 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin this 17th day ofFebruary, 2022.

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

d.ax.hetocula
'Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES 4 NOES 1 ABSTAIN 1 (Commissioner Burckhardt)



Case 2020CV007031 Document 195 Fled 01-25-2022 Page 1 of 3

BY THE COURT:

DATE SIGNED: January 24, 2022

Electronically signed by Hannah C. Dugan
Circuit Court Judge

FILED
01-25-2022
Anna Hodges
Clerk of Circuit Court
2020CV007031

STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT MILWAUKEE COUNTY

FRANKLIN COMMUNITY ADVOCATES, INC.,
WOODLAKE VILLAGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
CHAD and KARYN ZOLECKI, JEFF and DANELLE KENNEY,
RYAN and RACHEL RINGWELSKI, STEVE VALLEE and
COLLEEN DOMASK, NICK POPLAR, TOM and ALICE BENNING,
MIKE and JOANNE ZOLECKI, DEAN REIN,
ERIC and MICHELLE BALCEROWSKI, MELINDA HAMDAN

Plaintuffs,
V.

CITY OF FRANKLIN,

And

STRAUSS BRANDS, LLC,

Defendant,

Intervenor Defendant.

Case No. 20-CV-7031
Honorable Hannah C. Dugan

ORDER
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION
CORRECTION OF THE RECORD

AMENDED REMAND ORDER FOR FURTHER PROCEEDINGS

A heanng was held va zoom on January 10, 202 before the Hon. Hannah C. Dugan on

Defendants Motton for Reconsideration. Appearances were made by Plaintiffs by the Law Of

fices of Joseph R. Cmcotta by Joseph R. Cincotta, Defendant City ofFrankhn by Municipal Law

& Litigation Group, S.C. by Remzy D. Bitar, and Intervenor Strauss Brands, LLC by Stafford

Rosenbaum, LLP by Ruck A. Manthe.

1



Case 2020CV007031 Document 195 Filed 01-25-2022 Page 2 of3

The Motion for Reconsideration was argued by the parties. The Motion related to the

Court's Decision during a hearing on November 16, 2021 to remand the matter for further pro

ceedings before the City. The Motion for Reconsideration was timely and a briefing schedule

was followed per local rule.

The Court considered all pleadings and papers on file herein, the arguments by the par

ties, and the record of proceedings for all motions and hearings.

The Court heard oral argument. Pursuant to Section 805.16 Wis. Stats. and Koepsell's

Olde Popcorn Wagons v. Koepsell's Festival Popcorn Wagons, 275 Wis.2d 397 (Ct. App. 2004)

the Standard of Review for Motions for Reconsideration was not met. The Court noted that De

fendant had filed documents regardmg the scope of the Court's remand which included misstate

ments of the Court's remand ruling. The Court stated that the record must be corrected by sup

plemental pleadings for accuracy on remand. Further the court, recognized that, upon review of

the Motion for Reconsideration and pursuant to Section 805 .16 Wis. Stats , that it would modify

the scope of the remand, but not change the decision to remand.

Based on the filings and on argument at the January 11, 2022 hearing, and for

reasons stated on the record,

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED;

1. The Motion for Reconsideration is DENIED.

2. Further it is ordered that counsel for the City must submut a Notice of Moton and

Motion for Correction of the Record pursuant to statute and Supreme Court Rule 20:3.3

along with affidavit to correct inaccuracies and/or misrepresentations of fact in the record

and pleadings and a proposed Order within 10 days of the January 11, 2022 hearing or the

court will schedule an Order to Show Cause hearing

2



Case 2020CV007031 Document 195 Fled 01-25-2022 Page 3 of 3

3. Further it is ordered that the previous remand order is amended and supersedes the No

vember 29, 2021 Remand Order and 1s as follows:

a. Thus matter is remanded to the City of Franklin Common Council with in

structrons to allow for a heanng, noticed and conducted to be held consistent with the City of

Franklm's Code and Chapter 62 of the Wisconsin Statutes regardmg the review of Special Use

Permit applcations, and consistent with due process required when reviewing Spec1al Use Per

mits accordmg to the City's Code, Wisconsin state statutes 1cludmng Ch. 62 Stats., controllmg

caselaw and Constitutional requirements for adequate due process.

b. A decision on remand by the common council shall be deemed a separate

and distinct final decrs1on for purposes of certioran review, however such decrs1on may be added

to and challenged by Plaintiffs mn th1s action 1f it is not satisfied by the dec1s1on so as to avoid the

need for Plaintiff's to commence a new certorar action.

c. Regardless of the outcome of the act10n upon remand, and the decision of

the Common Council upon remand, all arguments shall be preserved should the parties not re

solve this matter

d All dates are suspended until such time as the parties advise the Court as

to whether the matter has been resolved upon remand. Upon notice that the matter has not been

resolved, the Court shall hold a status conference and set a schedule to amend pleadings and/or

reestablish a bnefing schedule.

e. The Court will retam Jurisdiction to review the case based on the admmis-

trative record and outcome of the Common Council's action on remand

3



CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of February 17, 2022

Special Use and Site Plan

Item C.2

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval of the proposed
Special Use and associated Site Plan for Strauss Brands meat processing facility upon property
located on Lot 83 of Ryan Meadows subject to the conditions set forth in the draft Resolution.

Project Name:

Project Address:

Applicant/Property Owner:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Applicant Action Requested:

Planners:

Strauss Brands, Inc.

Lot 83 of Ryan Meadows (Tax Key 891-1083-000)

Strauss Investments, LLC

M-I Limited Industrial District

Business Park

Singlefamily residential zoned R-8 to the north, vacant
land zoned M-1 to the east, Copart property zoned M-2
to the south and vacant land zoned R-2 to the west.

Recommendation of approval for the proposed Special
Use and associated Site Plan for the development of
Strauss Brands meat processing facility.

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP (October 2020)

Heath Eddy, AICP (February 2022)

This staffreport is a revised version ofthe staffreport presented lo the Plan Commission on
October 8, 2020, when these application requests were first heard. Staffmade afew
clarification edits (in italics) to the text but essentially left the gist ofthe original report
intact. Attachments to this StaffReport:

A. Special Use Resolution 2022 - draft date February 9, 2022
B. Site Plan Resolution 2022 - draft date February 9, 2022
C. Circuit Court Order signed January 24, 2022, filed January 25, 2022

Note: all materials not attached to this staffreport can befound via the Box link noted on the
meeting agenda.

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

The site area is approximately 30.2 acres. The facility is designed to process 250 to 500 head
of cattle per day, and includes cattle pens, kill floor, carcass coolers, fabrication areas,
packaging areas, warehouse areas, shipping docks, operations offices, employee welfare
spaces and associated mechanical support facilities and spaces. This use is classified under
Standard Industrial Classification No. 2011, Meat Packing Plants, which requires a Special
Use in the M-1 Zoning District.

On April 15, 2020, the applicant submitted Site Plan and Special Use applications for the
development of a 127,760 square foot meat processing facility. City staff sent memorandum



dated May 18, 2020, with a total of 37 review comments. On July 29, 2020, the applicant
resubmitted with the following major changes: a building footprint increase from 127,760 sf
to 152,035 sf, as well as an increase to the parking capacity from 234 spaces to 280 spaces.
The applicant had addressed most of the review comments in this resubmittal. However, staff
sent a second memorandum dated September 2, 2020, with 11 review comments including
comments from the Mayor and the Alderman of the District. Revised documents were
submitted on September 28, 2020, and the staffreport and materials werepubhshedfor the
publzc meeting on October 8, 2020

On October 8, 2020, the Plan Commission held apublic hearzng concernzng the Special Use
application, and reviewed the Ste Plan applcaton Following several hours oftestmony,
the Plan Commission moved to recommend approval ofthe Specal Use applcation, and
further conditionally approved the Site Plan application (pendingfinal deciswn on the
Special Use) The Sue Plan approval is codified as Plan Commssion Resoluton 2020-024

On October 20, 2020, the Common Council heard several hours oftestlmony, and then
mntally voted to deny the Specal Use applcaton On November 2, 2020, the Common
Council elected to reconsider the Special Use application denial, and then approved the
Special Use applcaton, whch decision was codified as Resolution 2020-7681

On October 5, 2021, the Common Councl amendedResolution 2020-7681 to extend the
approval deadlinefor another year, which decision was codified as Resolution 2021-7788

On January 24, 2022, a Court Order was sgned by the Mlwaukee County Crcut Court,
pursuant to Case No 20-CV-7031, Franklzn Community Advocates, et al v Czty ofFranklin,
and Strauss Brands, LLC, requmng the City ofFranklzn to hold apublic hearzng regarding
the Speczal Use applcaton

It is notedfor the record that thepublc noticefor thzs pubhc hearzng has been publzshed in
the South NOWnewspaper on February 2 andFebruary 9, 2022, and maledpuble notces
were sent by Cay ofFranklin staffon February 4, 2022, as required by State Statute The Ste
Plan is a Business Item relative to decison making and no public hearing s required

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS

SPECIAL USEAPPLICATION

Strauss Brands, LLC submitted a substantially complete application for a special use permit,
allowing for Section§ 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance sets out the General
Standards for Special Uses. The applicant has submitted responses to each of those standards.

City Development staff has the following comments about the general standards for Special
Uses:

1. Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent.
Staff comment: The development is compatible with the limited industrial zoning district
(M-1) that provides for "manufacturing, industrial and warehousing uses" and the
Business Park designation of the Comprehensive Plan.

2



2. No Undue Adverse Impact.
See Fire Department comments below.

With regards to obnoxious odors and noise. The applicant stated that "the wastewater
treatment room is fitted with air scrubbers to eliminate odors. The cattle barns and
harvest areas are ventilated with a high volume of outside air to dissipate buildup of
odors. Trucks/trailers used to remove hides and inedible waste are kept in enclosed dock
areas to eliminate spread of odors. All processes are preformed within the building which
will eliminate noise concerns. Noise generation will be limited to truck traffic of
approximately 20 trucks per day".

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development.
Staff comment: The properties to east and south are also zoned M-1. The adjacent
property to the west is zoned residential but a landscape buffer is proposed along the
western property line.

4. Adequate Public Facilities.
See Fire Department comments below.

5. No Traffic Congestion.
Staff comment: No expected truck traffic through residential streets.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features.
Staff comment: Conservation easements are recommended to protect existing on-site
natural resources.

7. Compliance with Standards.
See site plan analysis presented further in this staff report.

The Fire Department has expressed the following:
• Significant concern with storage/use oflarge quantities of ammonia immediately

adjacent to and upwind of planned residential, commercial, and multi-use
development. Asphyxiant, corrosive/irritant, and potential explosive properties will
be present in the event of a release/leak or fire. Note thatfurther explanaton and
comnutments by the applicant resolve these concernsfor the Fire Department

• Area is poorly served by existing fire station locations and staffing. Response times
for Effective Response Force for fire and EMS calls-for-service, and emergency
incident types will likely exceed accepted industry standards (possibly significantly)
for the entire development. Note this coverage ssue remans a work in progress,
though the buldng design s ntended to resolve mostfire-related ssues internally,
whle EMS calls should be assisted when the Caty relocates afire staton to the Puble
Worksfaclity location on 781I West Ryan Road

The applicant stated that "the ammonia refrigeration system will meet all current codes and
regulations. Due to the volume of ammonia on site a Process Safety Management (PSM)
program will be in place. Furthermore, the system will be provided with an ammonia

3



diffusion tank to allow for emergency evacuation and diffusion in a hazardous ammonia
situation" per letter dated June 28, 2020.

SITEPLANAPPLICATION

The proposed meat processing facility includes a 152,035 square foot building, oriented
north-south and roughly centered on the property and facing east. The site will be
accessed at two locations on the future Monarch Drive and will not have access from
Loomis Road. The first access point on Monarch Drive, located roughly at the midpoint
of the lot, will lead to an employee parking lot along the front (east) side of the
building. The second access point, located at the southern end of the lot, will be for
truck receiving and shipping. The access drive leads to a guardhouse located
approximately 200 feet from the property line. The access drive continues past the
guardhouse along the south, west, and north sides of the building. A future access drive
would be located at the intersection of Chicory Street and Monarch Drive, a separate
site plan amendment would be required for this future drive.

The building is a single-story structure, the processing area of the building will be 36
feet in height and the office/support areas of the building will be 18 feet in height. The
building will be a steel framed and concrete slab-on-grade structure enclosed with
insulated metal wall panels. The exterior of the office/ employee welfare will be a
combination of masonry and architectural metal wall panels.

The site plan includes a future expansion area on the west side of the proposed building.
This includes a roughly 112,000 square foot "building expansion area" and a roughly
47,000 square foot truck maintenance facility. The site plan also identifies areas for
future truck dock parking north of the proposed meat processing facility. The future
development would require review approval by the City before development.

Trucks containing cattle would be unloaded at docks located on the south side of the
building. The floor plan includes indoor cattle holding pens and areas for various steps
of meat processing, including preslaughter handling, stunning, and slaughtering. There
are extensive coolers for chilling carcasses before fabrication (butchering) and a large
area for the fabrication process. The floor plan also includes various employee
breakrooms, office and conference spaces and restrooms.

This project complies with the development standards of the M-1 zoning district as
shown below:

• Gross Floor Area Ratio (GFAR): 0.20 Maximum allowed: 0.42
• Net Floor Area Ration (NFAR): 0.33 Maximum allowed: 0.85
• Landscape Surface Ratio: 0.50 Minimum required: 0.40

Exterior trash compactors are proposed on the north and southwest sides of the
building. Various pieces of mechanical equipment are located on the east and west sides
of the building, which are to be concealed by screen walls.

4



Watermain easements are proposed on all sides of the site. Any future building
expansions would need to be designed to avoid the easement.

Driveways

Proposed driveway openings are 28 feet wide for the employee parking lot and 48 feet
wide for truck entrance. UDO 15-5.0207B limits width to 24 feet and 30 feet at
roadway; however, it also states that the Plan Commission may approve openings for
vehicular ingress and egress greater than 30 feet.

Staff has no objections to the request above. However, if the Plan Commission does not
approve wider driveways, staff recommends that the applicant shall provide a revised
Site Plan with driveway openings no wider than 24 feet and 30 feet at roadway, for
Department of City Development review and approval, prior to issuance of a Building
Permit. Note At the Plan Commsson meetng on October 8, 2020, the applcant 's
requestfor wider driveway entrances was approved, wth a maximum of28feetfor the
employee parking access and 48feetfor the truck entrance, and was included mn the
Specal Use Resolution

Parking:

Table 15-5.0203 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) requires two parking
spaces per 1,000 square feet of Gross Floor Area for "Light Industry" land uses. Based
on the overall square footage (162,830), 324 parking spaces are required.

The applicant is requesting a reduction of 13% (44 stalls) for a total of 280 parking
stalls. The applicant stated that "the overall number ofemployees is 272 with a
maxmum of240 bemng onsite at the same tme Even wth the reducton nparking there
would stll be 40 overflow spaces avazlable"

The Plan Commission may approve (up to) a 25% parking reduction, provided that the
applicant has submitted sufficient proof that the minimum number ofrequired parking spaces
would exceed the proposed use's projected parking demand. Staff has no objection to the
justification provided by the applicant. Additionally, the proposed 7 ADA parking spaces
comply with Table 15-5.0202(1)(1 ). Note At the Plan Commission meeting on October 8,
2020, the applcant's request reducton ofparkang was approvedfor a mnmum of280
parking stalls, and zncluded in the Specal Use Resolution

Landscaping:

Landscape plantings are provided along the perimeter of the property and concentrated
around the stormwater ponds. Bufferyards are required on the north and west sides of this
property due to adjacent residential zoning.

The applicant has addressed staff comments regarding landscaping in communication dated
June 28, 2020, page 4. Note the Special Use Resoluton contains addtonal condutons to
address truck traffic nose wth additional bermng or increased heght ofbermmng, as
required mn Conditions 22-24

5



Fencing:

Much of the site, including truck traffic drives and the south, west, and north sides of
the proposed building, is enclosed by an 8-foot high chain link fence.

According to UDO $15-3.0803(C)2)b), fences installed in nonresidential zoning
districts shall not exceed six feet in height, except when required to enclose outside
storage areas or when approved by the Plan Commission may be up to ten feet in
height. The 8-ft high chain link and the 10-ft high masonry wall are subject to approval
by the Plan Commission. Note At the Plan Commsson meeting on October 8, 2020,
the appleant 's requestfor 8-foot high chan lnkfence and I0-foot hgh masonry wall
were approved, and included in the Specal Use Resoluton

Lighting:

The applicant has provided a Lighting Plan with photometrics. The Lighting Plan includes
31 new light poles, 10 wall-mounted building lights, and 17 wall-mounted emergency egress
fixtures. The light poles have an overall height of 30 feet, which is below the maximum
permitted height of 50 feet.

The maximum illumination is 0.9 foot-candles and at the property lines, which meets the
requirements of Table 15-5.0401(C) of the UDO, and the cutoff angle of fixtures is 90
degrees or less.

Architecture:

The exterior of the building will be enclosed with cream-colored insulated metal wall panels.
The front facade includes a combination of dark grey masonry and dark brown (wood-like)
architectural metal wall panels. The side and rear facades are predominately flat insulated
metal wall panels with little to no facade articulation.

Natural Resource Protection Plan:

A natural resource investigation of the property was conducted by Pinnacle Engineering
Group on September 12, 2019. There are wetlands at the northwest and southwest corners of
the property. A small pond is located just west of the property line. The proposed
development maintains all required setbacks and buffers from the wetlands and pond. Staff
recommends that the applicant shall prepare a Conservation Easement for all protected
natural resource features for staff review and Common Council approval, and recording with
the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

Signage:

The applicant is aware that signs are subject to separate review and approval through the
Architectural Review Board and Inspection Department. Thus process has been revised sznce
October 2020, the applcant will now need sign permt applicaton revew and issuance ofa
permit by the Department ofCty Development

Public input:

6



Public comments ofany kind that were a part ofthe original record are zncluded 111 the
lznked materials via Box

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Wzsconszn State Statutes §62 23(7)(de) 2 a states

"ifan applcantfor a condtonal usepermit meets or agrees to meet all ofthe
requzrements and condztions specified in the cty ordnance or those zmposed by the
cty zoning board, the city shallgrant the conditonal usepermit Any condton
imposed must be related to the purpose ofthe ordznance and be based on substantzal
evdence "

And subsection 2 b to the above reference states

"The reqwrements and condztwns described under subd 2 a. must be reasonable and, to the
extent practcable, measurable and may mnclude condtons such as thepermt's duraton,
transfer, or renewal The applcant must demonstrate that the applzcation and all
requrements and condtons established by the cty relating to the condtonal use are or
shall be satsfied, both ofwhch must be supported by substantal evdence The cty's
decson to approve or deny the permt must be supported by substantal evdence "

Cty Development staffbeleve the applcant met the burden ofproofrelative to compliance
wth the Cty ofFranklzn UnifiedDevelopment Ordnance, and agreed to comply wth all
lmitatons, restrictions, and conditions ofapprovalprovided in the attached Specal Use
Resolution and as provided under the UnifiedDevelopment Ordznance and other
requirements ofthe City ofFranklin Mumcipal Code Therefore, City Development staff
recommends approval of the proposed Special Use for Strauss Brands meat processing
facility upon property located on Lot 83 of Ryan Meadows, subject to the conditions set forth
in the attached draft Resolution. Staffnotes that the draft Resoluton reflects the condtons of
approval at the tme oforiginal approval by the Common Council on November 2, 2020,
which included additzonal Conditzons 21-25

Stafffurther recommends that unless the Plan Commsson objects, the draft Resolution shall
reflectpror decsons made by the Plan Commsson ncludng thefollowng.

• A 13% reduction ofrequired parking for a total of 280 parking stalls while 324 are
required per Table 15-5.0203 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Thzs zs
codified zn Condztwn 16

• 28 feet wide driveway for the employee parking lot and 48 feet wide for truck
entrance while UDO §15-5.0207.B limits width to 24 feet and 30 feet at
roadway. This is codified in Condition 17

• 8 feet high chain link fence and 10 feet high masonry wall while fences installed
in nonresidential zoning districts shall not exceed six feet in height per UDO
§15-3.0803.C.2.b, except when required to enclose outside storage areas or
when approved by the Plan Commission may be up to ten feet in height. Thzs is
codified zn Condztwn 18

7



Staffrecommends approval ofthe Ste Plan as previouslypresented, subject to the provisions
granted above, and conditioned on approval ofthe Specal Use request to operate a "Meat
Packing Plant "

8



LAW OIHCHS OI

>
JOSEPH R. CINCOTTA, LLC

February 24, 2022

Via Email

Jesse Wesolowski
City Attorney
City ofFranklin
9299 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Supplemental Objection Position Statement on Special Use Permit.

Dear Mr. Wesolowski:

Please accept this correspondence on behalf of my clients Franklin Community
Advocates, et al. regarding the proposed Special Use Permit request that is to be taken up
at the Common Council at its meeting ofMarch 1, 2022

I. This matter is moot and the Common Council is not permitted to act on it.

The subject matter at issue is the review, and review or approval, of a Special Use
Permit. That permit would cover and effect lands in the City currently owned by Strauss
Brands and allow for construction and operation of a slaughterhouse. However, as
announced at the Plan Commission hearing of February 17, 2022, Strauss Brands, who
was the applicant for the SUP in the past, has withdrawn its request for that SUP. The
matter is moot and can no longer be acted on by the Council.

The statutes only contemplate a conditional use permit or special use permit being
requested and pursued by an applicant. As the plain language of Wis. Stats.
§62.23(7)(de) provides, the "applicant" for a SUP must "demonstrate" that its proposal
satisfies all ordinance requirements with substantial evidence. Because the applicant has
withdrawn its pursuit of the SUP, there is in effect no applicant. As was acknowledged at
the February 17" Plan Commission hearing, the applicant Strauss, did not appear. The
Plan Commission went forward despite this fact. That was improper for several reasons.
The Plan Commission and the City Staff cannot act as the proponent of a SUP for a piece
ofprivate property and also the regulatory agency. That is what happened at the hearing
on the I7 and was a disappointing and improper display of ostensibly neutral City
officials acting as advocates for a harmful development in effect against their own
constituency, the citizens and taxpayers of the City.

2510 East Capitol Drive
Shorewood, WI 53211 www.Jrc4law.net Phone: (414) 416-1291

Email: Jrc4@chorus.net



Secondly, the statutes and ordinances do not permit the City to review and pass
on a Special Use Permit in the absence of an actual applicant as noted above.

Thirdly, the Court order did not require the Plan Commission go forward in the
absence of the applicant. Indeed, the Court made clear that it expected the applicant o be
present and make its case for the SUP and for the public to speak to ensure due process.
The Court order did not require or allow for a hearing when the issue in controversy is
moot.

This raises the issue of how long the City and its officials have known of the
intent of Strauss to withdraw its pursuit of the SUP. It seems obvious that this was
known by the City and its officials for many weeks prior to the Plan Commission meeting
of the 17%. That is very concerning because FCA not to mention the Court has been
spending significant time and resources on this matter under the assumption that Strauss
was still planning on pursing the SUP.

Finally, as was explained in the record, it appears that the true purpose of the Plan
Commission hearing was to allow the City to carry out plan whereby it approves the SUP
for Strauss and the property itself as part of an effort to establish or strengthen a legal
claim for minimum tax assessment revenues under a separate contract with the property
owner(s). That is an improper purpose for granting a permit. The City cannot grant a
permit for the purpose of litigating with the former applicant in a separate legal dispute.
The City may only grant SUPs according to state law and City ordinance if the proposal
meets the applicable substantive requirements.

II. Staffadvocacyfor the SUP was inaccurate and misleading.

As described in our earlier submissions, the current 152,000 S.F. initial phase of
the Slaughterhouse Project fails to meet the ordinance standards and will harm the
surrounding property owners diminish property values and reduce the long term tax base
of the area.

In addition, a proper alternatives analysis has not been completed pursuant
to UDO $ 15.3-0701 (c). And, as is known, City staff have been directed by
political officials to recommend approval of the project in the past despite their
concerns about the merits of the project.

The City Staff report provided in advance of the Plan Commission hearing did not
include a meaningful alternatives analysis. Apparently as part of pre-arranged plan, City
engineering and planning staffwaited until the hearing itself to provide further
information that purported to comply with the ordinances requirements both with respect
to the specific requirements for a SUP and the alternatives analysis

A review of the recording of the Plan Commission hearing shows that the
statements made by Staffwere incomplete and conclusory. As stated above, the Staff
should not have been acting in what was essentially an advocate for the SUP However,



even with that flaw, the assertions of the Staff were inadequate and incorrect in many
ways.

Two of those deficiencies were (i) a failure to address property value diminution
and (ii) a failure to properly apply the language of the Comprehensive Plan.

A. Negative Impact on property values.

The City's Ordinances as set forth at Ord $ 15-3.0701 prohibit the decision
making body of the City to approve a Special Use Permit unless the proposed use
satisfies several requirements including but not limited to as follows:

No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant
to this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following.

2 The proposed use and development will not have a substantial
or undue adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent
property, the character of the area, or the pubhc health, safety,
morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish
and impair property values within the community or neighborhood

The City's ordinances and Wis Stats $ 62 23(7)(de) ("Act 67) require that the
applicant for a special use permit/conditional use permit, here, Strauss Brands, must
demonstrate through substantial evidence that it satisfies all applicable requirements prior
to being granted a special use permit/conditional use permit.

As noted, Strauss was not present to demonstrate compliance with this
requirement. However, when staff essentially stepped into the role of Strauss, the
statements made did not address the issue at hand, which is whether the proposal 152,000
SF slaughterhouse will diminish property values.

In addition, as provided in our previous submission FCA has engaged its own
expert on this issue. A copy of their initial findings is attached. This shows that there is
"a reasonable andprobable risk that proximate residentialproperty values would be
negatively impacted attributed to proximity to theproposed slaughterhouse use."

In summary, there is no substantial evidence supporting a conclusion that the
proposed facility will not substantially diminish adjacent and surrounding property
values. On the contrary, as demonstrated by the physical location of the proposed
development and surrounding properties character and future uses, see Exhbt C, and as
confirmed by FCA's expert the construct1on and operation of thus large faculty will
substantially diminish surrounding property values and with that will also diminish the
long term tax base of this area of the City. The proposed project cannot be granted an
SUP as a matter of law because it violates 15.3-0701(2).



B. Inconsistency with Comprehensive Plan.

As noted above, the written Staff report is conclusory and contrary to the City's
ordinances. With respect to consistency with the Comprehensive plan, the staffs
information and analysis and applicant of the law remain deficient.

Regarding this requirement of consistency with the Comprehensive Plant, which
is set for in UDO § 15.3-0170(1 ), the staff report provides as follows:

1. Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent.
Staff comment The development Is compatible with the limited industrial
zoning district (M-1) that provides for "manufacturing, Industrial and
warehousing uses" and the Business Park designation of the
Comprehensive Plan

It is obvious that the project is compatible with the M-1 zoning, which was
adopted specifically to accommodate this development. The issue is whether the M-1
zoning and this project are compatible and indeed consistent with the Comprehensive
plan covering this region of the City. It is not.

The City Comprehensive Plan designates the area covering the Strauss parcel and
the surrounding properties as "Areas of Natural Resource Features and also Business
Park." Uses that are appropriate for these areas accordng to the Cty's Comprehensive
Plan including among other requirements that new development:

Protect all Open Lands The only development allowed in the Open
Lands are compatible park, outdoor recreation, open space, trail,
and stormwater management fac1ht1es as approved by the City, in
accord with all existing regulations. Surrounding development shall
not create a significant adverse impact upon the visual connections
to the natural resource features or to the sustainability of the
protected landscape Surrounding development shall not increase
erosion or untreated stormwater runoff of surround mg lands.

Business Park uses according to the Comprehensive Plan are intended for lmted
ntensty uses, intended toprovde an aesthetically pleasing envronment, and a unified
design and ownership which exceed 20 acres in size. The Strauss proposal is
incompatible with and inconsistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan and therefore
may not be approved pursuant to the UDO§ 15.3-7010(1) and Wis. Stats. § 66.100 I (3).

The Staff report provides the following regarding the second requirement of §
15.3-0701:

2. No Undue Adverse Impact.
See Fire Department comments below



With regards to obnoxious odors and noise The applicant stated that "the
wastewater treatment room Is fitted with air scrubbers to eliminate odors
The cattle barns and harvest areas are ventilated with a high volume of
outside arr to dissipate buildup of odors Trucks/trailers used to remove
hides and mnedible waste are kept in enclosed dock areas to eliminate
spread of odors All processes are preformed within the building which
will eliminate noise concerns Norse generation wll be limited to truck
traffic of approximately 20 trucks per day"

This analysis and recommendation are deficient on their face. The additional
information stated by Staff at the February 17th hearing did nothing to cure this
deficiency. Indeed, the Staffmisapplied the state smart growth law and in so doing
construed that law and City ordinance in such a way as to heavily favor a finding of
consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. That is contrary to state law and due process.
City staff are not permitted to advocate for a project. And when construing ordinances
and land use statutes, state law requires that a more restrictive construction be taken.

This proposal is glaring contrary and inconsistent with adjacent zoning uses and
the Comprehensive plan and for that reason in addition to others it may not be approved.

IV. Recusals and Due Process and the record.

The entire project is moot. By continuing to pursue the SUP the City is acting as
advocate and regulator rendering the entire process in conflict with itself. FCA requests
that the City cease any further proceedings on the SUP for the subject property. FCA
also continues to request recusal of those individual officials who have displayed am
impermissible bias in favor of the project.

In addition, included with this submission are several exhibits containing facts
and information relevant to the merits of the proposal and the due process concerns that
have been raised. These are being submitted and should be made part of the record in
this matter and specifically included in any record submitted to any court or legal tribunal
regardmg review of the City's actions on this matter

V. Conclusion.

Based on the above the Plan Commission must recommend against the proposed
SUP.

Very truly yours,

Electronzcally signed by Joseph R Cmcotta

Joseph R. Cincotta

Cc: Attorney Rich Manthe
Attorney Remzy Bitar



CohnReznick www. coh n rezn ick. com

REAL ESTATE -
·-

PROPERTY VALUE IMPACT ANALYSIS:
ht o

Academic and Valuation Expert Studies of ExistingFood
,· Animal Operation Uses (Including Slaughterhouse Facilities)
onProximate Residential PropertyValues

• I

, . It o + as d •

.'·, . ·. _J . . !

Prepared For:

David Sorensen
Executive Director·,
Franklin Community Advocates, Inc.

Submitted By:

CohnReznick LLP
Valuation Advisory Services
200 S Wacker Dr
Chicago, Illinois 60606
(301 ) 508-5900

Patricia L. McGarr, MAI, CRE, FRIGS

February 23, 2022



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 2
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

February 23, 2022

Mr. David Sorensen
Executive Director
Franklin Community Advocates, Inc.

SUBJECT: Analysis of Existing Animal Operations (AO),
Including Slaughterhouse Uses Impact on
Proximate Residential Property Values

To Whom it May Concern:

CohnReznick is pleased to submit the following property value impact analysis for a proposed
slaughterhouse/meat processing facility in Franklin, Wisconsin (Approximate address: 11907 West Loomis Rd /
PIN: 8911083000) referred to as Strauss Brands LLC Proposed Slaughterhouse.

The proposed facility is reported to be planned for two phases, including an original 152,035 square foot building
designed to process up to 500 head of cattle per day, which will include cattle pens, a harvest floor, carcass
coolers, fabrication areas, packaging areas, warehouse areas, and operations offices, situated on a 30.2-acre
site. The facility will have some form of operations on-going 24 hours per day, Monday thru Saturday. Reportedly
plans call for future building expansion areas and truck maintenance facility that will potentially increase the size
of the building by nearly 80% (278,500+/- square feet'). If animal density is increased at a similar rate, the
potential expansion could bring 900 heads of cattle per day to the site.

Per the client's request, Cohn Reznick researched property transactions proximate to existing AO 2 uses,
researched and analyzed academic and peer reviewed and published studies, to gain an understanding how
these uses may impact proximate property values.

The purpose of this consulting assignment is to determine whether proximity to an Animal Operation use,
including slaughterhouse/meat processing facilities, has an impact on nearby property values. The intended use
of our opinions and conclusions is to assist the client in addressing local concerns and to provide information

1 Email from S.R., Mills, CEO of Bear Real Estate Group dated February 5, 2020, regarding the "Strauss Agreement"
2 Animal Operations (AOs) may be broadly defined as facilities in which animals are raised or brought for slaughter The common
denominator is a large perpetual inventory and density of animals. The Appraisal Journal. Winier 20 I 5

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 3
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

that local bodies are required to consider3 in their evaluation of proposed special use applications. We have not
been asked to value any specific property, and we have not done so.

The client and intended user for the assignment is David Sorensen and Franklin Community Advocates, Inc.
The report may be used only for the aforementioned purpose and may not be distributed without the written
consent of Cohn Reznick LLP ("CohnReznick").

This consulting assignment is intended to conform to the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
(USPAP), the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal
Institute, as well as applicable state appraisal regulations.

Based on the analysis in the Strauss Brands LLC Proposed Slaughterhouse report, and subject to the
definitions, assumptions, and limiting conditions expressed in the report, our findings are:

FINDINGS

I. Academic and Valuation Expert Studies: CohnReznick reviewed and analyzed published
academic and peer reviewed valuation expert studies that specifically analyzed the impact of animal
operations, AO (including slaughterhouses) on proximate (0-3 miles) property values. These studies
include multiple regression analyses of hundreds and thousands of sales transactions, and opinion
surveys, for both residential homes and farmland properties in both rural and suburban communities,
which concluded existing food animal operation facilities have had negative impacts on proximate
property values generally within one mile, which varied depending on distance from facility, animal
density, and wind direction.

II. The proposed AO facility is located within one-mile of several built-up residential subdivisions to the
northwest (sale prices in the $400,000 to $600,000 range), rural homes to the north ($250,000+), and
a new subdivision in development (Ryan Meadows, $450,000+) within 1,000 feet to the east. Based
on the information we have gathered to date, there is a reasonable and probable risk of negatively
impacting residential property values as a result of the development of the proposed AO facility

CONCLUSION

Considering all of the preceding, the data indicates that slaughterhouse facilities do have a negative
impact on proximate property values.

3 The proposed Special Use will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it will not interfere with the
development of neighborhood property; and will not result in damage to property of significant importance to nature, history or the
like; typically, the burden of proof to address these issues falls upon the applicant.

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, orby any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page ] 4
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

If you have any questions or comments, please contact the undersigned. Thank you for the opportunity to be of
service.

Very truly yours,

CohnReznick LLP

Patricia L. McGarr, MAI, CRE, FRICS
National Director - Valuation Advisory Services
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
Wisconsin License No. #1704-1 0
Expires 12/14/2023
Illinois License No. #553.000621
Expires 9/30/2023

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h nRezn jCkf"J',
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any o1 'l'
form, orby any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 5
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

TABLE OF CONTENTS
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 2

FINDINGS
CONCLUSION.

3
3

SCOPE OF WORK 6

CLIENT AND INTENDED USERS .
INTENDED USE ...
PURPOSE
DEFINITION OF VALUE
EFFECTIVE DATE & DATE OF REPORT
PRIOR SERVICES..
INSPECTION .

6
6
6
6
7
7
7

APPRAISAL THEORY - PROXIMATE USE'S IMPACT ON VALUE.. 8

METHODOLOGY .....
SCOPE OF WORK.

9
10

TECHNIQUE 1: REVIEW OF PUBLISHED STUDIES 11

ACADEMIC STUDIES & VALUATION EXPERT REPORTS
CONCLUSION ...

11
17

CERTIFICATION 18

ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 20

ADDENDUM A: APPRAISER QUALIFICATIONS 24

Professional Affiliations ···································· 26
Licenses and Accreditations ..
Appointments .
Education .
Professional Affiliations.

. 26
26

·······"· ·· 27
27

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • @
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n eZn IC! 'l
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 6
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

SCOPE OF WORK

CLIENT AND INTENDED USERS

The client and intended user of this report is David Sorensen on behalf of the Franklin Community Advocates;
other intended users may include the client's legal counsel. Additional intended users of our findings include all
relevant permitting authorities for the proposed special use slaughterhouse project.

INTENDED USE

The intended use of our findings and conclusions is to address certain criteria required for the granting of
approvals for a proposed slaughterhouse uses. We have not been asked to value any specific property, and we
have not done so. The report may be used only for the aforementioned purpose and may not be distributed
without the written consent of CohnReznick LLP ("CohnReznick").

PURPOSE

The purpose of this consulting assignment is to determine whether proximity to the proposed slaughterhouse
facility will result in an impact on proximate property values.

DEFINITION OF VALUE

This report utilizes Market Value as the appropriate premise of value. Market value is defined as:

"The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market under all conditions
requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming the price is
not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition are the consummation of a sale as of a specified date
and the passing of Title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby·

1 Buyer and seller are typically motivated;
2. Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider their own best interests;
3. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market.
4. Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable

thereto; and
5. The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative

financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale."4

4 Code of Federal Regulations, Title 12, Chapter I, Part 34.42[h]

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 7
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

EFFECTIVE DATE & DATE OF REPORT

February 23, 2022

(Paired sale analyses is in process and will be an addendum to this report when complete.

PRIOR SERVICES

USPAP requires appraisers to disclose to the client any services they have provided in connection with the
subject property in the prior three years, including valuation, consulting, property management, brokerage, or
any other services.

This report is a compilation of academic and peer reviewed impact studies and interviews with market
participants that have experience with existing slaughterhouse uses and the properties proximate to them and
is not evaluating a specific subject site. In this instance, there is no "subject property" to disclose.

INSPECTION

Patricia L. McGarr, MAI, CRE, FRICS, has viewed the exterior of all relevant data referenced in this report in
person, via photographs, or aerial imagery

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h ReZn jCk~j\
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n 'JJ
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 8
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

APPRAISAL THEORY -- PROXIMATE USE'S IMPACT ON VALUE

According to Randall Bell, PhD, MAI, author of text Real Estate Damages, published by the Appraisal Institute
in 2016, understanding the market's perceptions on all factors that may have an influence on a property's
desirability (and therefore its value) is essential in determining if a diminution or enhancement of value has
occurred. 5 According to Dr. Bell:

"There is often a predisposition to believe that detrimental conditions automatically have a
negative impact on property values. However, it is important to keep in mind that if a property's
value is to be affected by a negative condition, whether internal or external to the property, that
condition must be given enough weight in the decision-making process of buyers and sellers to
have a material effect on pricing relative to all the other positive and negative attributes that
influence the value of that particular property. "6

Market data and empirical research through the application of the three traditional approaches to value should
be utilized to estimate the market value to determine if there is a material effect on pricing due, to the influence
of a particular characteristic of or on a property

A credible impact analysis is one that is logical, innate, testable and repeatable, prepared in conformity with
approved valuation techniques. In order to produce credible assignment results, more than one valuation
technique should be utilized for support for the primary method, or a check of reasonableness, such as utilization
of more than one approach to value, conducting a literature review, or having discussions (testimony) with market
participants. 7 Cohn Reznick implemented the scientific method 8 to determine if a detrimental condition of
proximity to a slaughterhouse exists, further described in the next section.

5 Bell, Randall, PhD, MAI. Real Estate Damages. Third ed. Chicago, IL. Appraisal Institute, 2016. (Pages 1-2)
6 Ibid, Page 314
7 Ibid, Pages 7-8
8 The scientific method is a process that involves observation, development of a theory, establishment of a hypothesis, and testing. The
valuation process applies principles of the scientific method as a model, based upon economic principles (primarily substitution) as the
hypothesis. The steps for the scientific method are outlined as follows:

1 Identify the problem.
2. Collect relevant data.
3. Propose a hypothesis.
4. Test the hypothesis.
5. Assess the validity of the hypothesis.

Bell, Randall, PhD, MAI. Real Estate Damages. Third ed. Chicago, IL. Appraisal Institute, 2016. (Pages 314-316)

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation ofa proposedAnimal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • k~j\
in the City of Franklin, WI, andpurpose statedwithin. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n eznlC '/,J
form, orby any means, without the priorwritten permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••• •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 9
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

METHODOLOGY

The purpose of this report is to determine whether proximity to a slaughterhouse facility resulted in any
measurable and consistent impact on adjacent property values. CohnReznick identified three relevant
techniques to test if a detrimental condition exists.

(1) A review of published studies;
(2) Paired sale analysis of properties adjacent to existing slaughterhouse generating facilities, which may

include repeat sale analyses or "Before and After" analyses; and,
(3) Interviews with real estate professionals and local real estate assessors.

The paired sales analysis is an effective method of determining if there is a detrimental impact on surrounding
properties.

"One of the most useful applications of the sales comparison approach is paired sale analysis.
This type of analysis may compare the subject property or similarly impacted properties called
Test Areas (at Points B, C, D, E, or F) with unimpaired properties called Control Areas (Point
A). A comparison may also be made between the unimpaired value of the subject property before
and after the discovery of a detrimental condition. Ifa legitimate detrimental condition exists, there
will likely be a measurable and consistent difference between the two sets of market data; if
not, there will likely be no significant difference between the two sets of data. This process
involves the study of a group of sales with a detrimental condition, which are then compared to a
group of otherwise similar sales without the detrimental condition. "9

As an approved method, paired sales analysis can be utilized to extract the effect of a single characteristic on
value. By definition, paired data analysis is "a quantitative technique used to identify and measure adjustments
to the sale prices or rents of comparable properties; to apply this technique, sales or rental data on nearly
identical properties is analyzed to isolate a single characteristic's effect on value or rent "10 The text further
describes that this method is theoretically sound when an abundance of market data, or sale transactions, is
available for analysis.

Where data is available, CohnReznick will also prepared a "Before and After" analyses or a Repeat Sale
Analysis,'' to determine if a detrimental impact has occurred.

9 Bell, Randall, PhD, MAI. Real Estate Damages. Third ed. Chicago, IL. Appraisal Institute, 2016. (Page 33)
10 The Appraisal of Real Estate 14" Edition. Chicago, IL. Appraisal Institute, 2013.
11 Another type of paired sales analysis involves studying the sale and subsequent resale of the same property. This method is used to
determine the influence of time on market values or to determine the impact of a detrimental condition by comparing values before and
after the discovery of the condition.
Bell, Randall, PhD, MAI. Real Estate Damages. Third ed. Chicago, IL. Appraisal Institute, 2016. (Page 35)

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page ] 10
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

SCOPE OF WORK

The scope of work utilized to test the hypothesis stated on the prior page is as follows:

1 Review published studies, assess credibility, and validity of conclusions;
2. Prepare paired sale analyses for existing slaughterhouse farms as follows:

2.1 Identify existing slaughterhouse farms comparable to the proposed project to analyze;
2.2. Define Test Area Sales and Control Areas Sales;
2.3. Collect market data (sale transactions) for both Test Area and Control Area Sales;
2.4. Analyze and confirm sales, including omission of sales that are not reflective of market value;
2.5. Prepare comparative analysis of Test Area and Control Area sales, adjusting for market

conditions;
2.6. Interpret calculations; and

3. Conduct interviews with real estate professionals and local real estate assessors who have evaluated
real property proximate to existing slaughterhouse facilities.

It should be noted that CohnReznick is in the process of preparing a paired sale analysis for an existing
slaughterhouse, and that study is not yet completed. As of the date of this report we have completed the first
technique to evaluate if existing slaughterhouse facilities have any measurable impact on proximate properties.

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposedAnimal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • k~j\
in the City of Franklin, WI, andpurpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n eZn IC 'JJ
form, orby any means, without the priorwritten permission of CohnReznick LLP

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page ] 11
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

TECHNIQUE 1: REVIEW OF PUBLISHED STUDIES

The following is a discussion of various studies that consider the impact of animal operations (AO) on surrounding
property values. The studies range from quantitative analysis to survey-based formal research to less formal
analyses.

ACADEMIC STUDIES & VALUATION EXPERT REPORTS

There have been numerous academic reports that attempt to quantify the effect on property values due to
proximity to Animal Operations use, such as a slaughterhouse. In this instance we have attempted to include
as many studies as possible that address factors that might be a consideration for the proposed Slaughterhouse
facility locating in a suburban/incorporated area, similar to the City of Franklin.

i. In 1995 and updated 1997, Raymond B. Palmquist, Fritz M. Roka and Tomislay Vikina, of North Carolina
State University, published their study entitled, Hog Operations, Environmental Effects, and Residential
Property Values. A hedonic study of rural residential house sales in southeast North Carolina was
conducted to determine the effect of large-scale hog operations on surrounding property values. An index
of manure production at different distances from the houses was developed. It was found that proximity
caused a statistically significant reduction in house prices of up to -9 percent depending on the
animal density and their distance from the house.

ii. In June 2003, Richard Ready, Assistant Professor of Agriculture and Environmental Economics and
Charles Abdalla, Associate Professor of Agricultural and Environmental Economics, at Pennsylvania
State University, published their study titled: "The Impact of Open Space and Potential Local Disamenities
on Residential Property Values in Berks County, Pennsylvania" This hedonic regression analysis study
includes poultry, swine, and beef and dairy animal operations, and a total of 8,090 residential property
sales that occurred between 1998 and 2002. The study revealed that Animal Operations negatively
impact home prices by -6.4% up to 0.31 miles from the facility, and -4.1% within 0.50 miles, and
1.6% at 0.75 miles. Similar to Palmquist's study (1997), this study found that animal operations within
one mile of a residence had a statistically significant negative impact on house prices, but that operations
between one and two miles from the house did not. At this time, the researchers considered a large-scale
animal production facility to have over 200 animal equivalent units12 (AEU's). When broken into three

?AU or AEU - Animal Equivalency Unit - One Animal Unit is 1,000 pounds live weight of livestock or poultry animals, regardless of

the actual number of individual animals comprising the unit. When measuring "finish weight" (weight at slaughter), beef weight
tends towards 1,200 to 1,350 lbs; compared to swine weight that tends towards 275- 285 lbs. Applying this data to a minimum of
500 AUs would calculate to 370 to 416 heads of beef at finish, compared to 1,754 to 1,818 heads of swine.

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h ReZn• k~j\
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n IC 'J,J
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 12
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

groups by size, the medium group (200 to 300 AEU's) had a significantly negative impact on nearby
house prices, while larger operations, while negative, were not as high.

Finally, this study investigated whether the impact of an animal operation on nearby house prices
depended on the species of the animals housed at the facility. While the negative impact was found to
be highest for poultry, intermediate for hogs, and lowest for dairy and beef cattle, the differences among
species were not statistically significant. The study also notes of the 71 animal operation facilities
studied, the operations tend to be located in areas that have few houses. The number of houses located
within 0.25 miles and 0.5 miles of actual animal facilities is about one-quarter of that which would be
expected if these facilities were locating themselves randomly in the landscape. The authors state it is
not known whether this is the result of decisions made by animal producers to locate in areas with few
houses, by decisions made by developers not to build homes near animal facilities, or whether each
group is locating on land with different attributes, resulting in a natural separation.

iii. The study "Living with Hogs in Iowa: The Impact of Livestock Facilities on Rural Residential Property
Values" was prepared by a team at the Center for Agricultural and Rural Development (CARD) at
Iowa State University and was published in August 2003. The team - Joseph A. Herriges, professor of
Economics; Silvia Secchi, assistant scientist with the Resource and Environmental Policy Division CARD,
and Bruce A. Babcock, professor of Economics and director of CARD, utilized a hedonic model to
investigate residential sales prices in proximity to AOs (livestock feeding operations) in five rural counties
throughout Iowa. Counties include Franklin, Hamilton, Hardin, Humboldt, and Webster yielding 1,145
actual home sales between 1992 and mid-2002 after removing those not considered arm-length or
which have greater than 10 acres of land. These sales were proximate to 550 livestock facilities with an
average live weight of 727,000 pounds, which were included in the analysis.

The authors presented three primary factors that affected property values in the region; AO size, distance
from AO, and whether the property is down or upwind of the AO. At all distances, properties down or
upwind of an AO for one season of the year had greater reductions in value than those that were not.
For example, locating the new facility 0.25 mile away from a home, with the facility located upwind of the
home, and being of moderate in size (i.e., 250,000 pounds live weight), the property value reductions are
statistically significant (at a 95 percent confidence level), on average of -26% if the facility is located
northwest of the home and -22% if located south (primary wind patterns). Those negative impacts in
values at 1-mile distance are reduced to -6%. For a larger sized facility of over 450,000 live weight, the
percentage of reductions are cut by about half."° They conclude that there may be approximately 
10% drop in property value if a new (AO) livestock feeding operation is located upwind and near
a residence.14

?https://www.card.iastate.edu/products/publications/pdf/03wp342.pdf
'Land Economics, November 2005-81(4): 530-545 ISSN 0023-7639; E-ISSN 1543-8325 Copy write 2005 by the Board of Regents
of the University of Wisconsin System.

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page [ 13
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

iv In 2008 Dr Jungik Kim and Dr Peter Goldsmith, (University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign, College
ofAgricultural and Consumer Economics), published their study entitled, A Spatial Hedonic Approach
to Assess the Impact of Swine Production on Residential Property Values. The study utilized a Spatial
Hedonic model to investigate property values of 5,352 non-urban houses and the effects of 26 Animal
Operations (AOs) in Craven County North Carolina. The team collected data on property sales, assessed
values, neighborhood indicators/amenities, and AOs (hog operations) and locations. A major goal of their
study was to address spatial correlation within the testing. Spatial correlation is the concept that
neighborhood indicators and factors accounted for impacts in property values.

Drs. Kim and Goldsmith included several variables in their testing process such as home attributes like
the number of bedrooms and bathrooms and base square footage, as well as neighborhood indicators
including income, distance to school, distance to open space, and distance to the central business district.
Also included were directional variables to attempt to account for prevailing winds. The primary variable
of distance to an AO, alongside the above variables, were tested at 11 distance "bands" beginning at ½
mile and increasing in ¼ mile increments up to 3 miles.

The authors' study concluded that AOs were found to negatively affect property values, but that the size
of the operation did not increase the negative impact. Kim and Goldsmith concluded that on average the
property value of a home within 1 mile of an AO would decrease -8.2%, solely based on its
proximity to the A0.15

v. In September 2008 the Indiana Business Research Center published a study titled The Effect of
Regulated Livestock Operations on Property Values in Selected Indiana Counties. It was an extensive
study (7,849 sales) that includes both qualitative survey and interview methods alongside a quantitative
hedonic pricing model analysis. In its testing process, the team considered effects of AO's also known
as RLO's (regulated livestock operations) including distance, species, wind direction as well as how the
effects impacted each of the following property types, "non-town residential, town residential, and farm
properties." Most relevant to the current discussion are town residential properties, which are those that
are located within incorporated areas. These properties were "more acutely affected by the attributes of
surrounding RLO's than the other two property types".

The results of the testing were mixed, but the overall effect was negative led by significant impacts
by dairy operations and wind direction. It is evident that mid-to-higher value properties were
significantly more impacted by the effects ofAO's.16

° (PDF)_A Spatial Hedonic Approach to_Assess the Impact of Swine Production on Residential Property Values (researchgate.net)
https://www.ibre.indiana.edu/studies/indiana_cafo_cfo_property_impact_2008.pdf

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page ] 14
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

vi. Robert Simons Director of Real Estate at Central Michigan University, Dr Youngme Seo and Spencer
Robinson from Cleveland State University, published their study, The Effects of a Large Hog Barn
Operation on Residential Sales Prices in Marshall County, KY in the Journal of Sustainable Real Estate
in January 2014. The study utilized a hedonic regression analysis, to quantify the effect on property
values due to proximity to AOs by studying existing facilities in Marshall and neighboring Benton,
Kentucky The study evaluated a tightly clustered grouping of AO facilities, and 271 residential sales
within 1.25 miles of the cluster. Properties outside of the 1.25-mile radius and up to approximately 7
miles were part of the control (unaffected) group. The study considered sale pairs from 2002 through
2012, bracketing the opening of an AO (5,000-hog) facility in 2007. Further, the authors did illustrate that
the area is quite rural with home types ranging from mobile homes on 0.25-acre lots to mansions on over
10 acres, and the population of the nearest towns, Benton and Murray being approximately 22,400.

Their hedonic regressional analysis found a statistically significant average reduction in property value
averaging almost-23% across the subject area within 1.25 miles of the facility for the home sales from
2009 through 2012 when compared to the control group, a full year after operations began at the newly
developed Benton AO. Results from the regressional models indicate that the negative impact on affected
area property values was increasing, as the regressional analysis disclosed an average property value
diminution of -27% for sales from 2010 onward. Moreover, the authors found that properties in the
northeast quadrant of the subject radius had the most significant value reductions due to their location in
the path of the prevailing wind patterns for the area compounding odor nuisance."

vii. The peer-reviewed study, Animal Operations and Residential Property Values, was published by The
Appraisal Institute in The Appraisal Journal, Winter 2015. Written by Dr John A. Kilpatrick, (PhD, MAI),
the report discusses the growing concentration of animal operations (AOs), yielding fewer and larger
facilities throughout the country. Dr Kilpatrick has studied AOs for over 35 years, and reports that large
concentration of animals within an operation impacts the surrounding area's air, water, health, and
economic conditions. These factors contribute to potential effects on nearby residential property values.

In my interview with Dr Kilpatrick, he stated that he has performed 12 property value impact studies on
AOs use over his career In the Appraisal Journal, Kilpatrick summarizes empirical evidence that
"indicates that residences near AOs are significantly affected, and data seems to suggest a valuation
impact of up to 26% for nearby properties, depending on distance, wind direction, and other factors"

Further, Kuethe and Keeney18 find that higher-valued residences are more severely impacted by the
negative impacts of AOs. This finding is consistent with the 2008 Indiana Business Center study noted
above (v). Kilpatrick also cites a 1996 study by Padgett and Johnson stating, "that homes within 0.5 miles

https://cherry-county-truth.org/wp-content/uploads/9830-93_112.pdf
Todd H. Kuethe and Roman Keeney, "Environmental Externalities and Residential Property Values: Externalized Costs Along the

House Price Distribution," Land Economics 88, no 2 (2002): 241-250.

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page ] 15
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

of a confined animal feeding operation (CAFO) decrease in value by 40%, and homes within 1.0 miles
decrease in value by 30%, within 1.5 miles by 20%, and within 2.0 miles by 10%."19

Kilpatrick discussed assessed values of land as evidence of diminished property values because of A Os.
His example, from an article written by Lee Beasley of Guardian Publishing in 2001, reported that 50
homes near an AO in Clark County Illinois were given tax abatements. Beasley stated that homes "within
.5 miles were determined to have value diminished by 30%, ranging down to a 10% reduction for homes
at 1.5 miles."

viii. In November 2017, the Wisconsin Department of Revenue WDR) performed their own impact study of
184 sales of properties that took place over the three years near Kewaunee County's six largest CAFOs
and one other CAFO just over the county line in Brown County. The residential homes near the AOs
(dairy operations) were found to have been selling for as much as 13% below their assessed value in
Kewaunee County The Department's study concluded that assessments (based on market value) of
homes could be reduced by -8% to -13% for homes within a mile of the county's six largest CAFOs,
and that reductions may also be appropriate in nearby counties with similar conditions. The CAFOs are
defined as having at least 1,000 AUs or about 715 cows at an average weight of 1,400 pounds. The
WDR's study also determined that the size of the CAFO is relevant to market trends (influence). The data
also determined that proximity was also a factor in value loss, with those properties within 0.30 miles
demonstrating the largest negative impact on value of-13% and 0.30 to .95 miles reflecting value loss of
-8%. Properties over one-mile did not reflect impact. These impacts were for rural homes, as the study
excluded sales from the two villages and two cities in the County."

"http://www.greenfieldadvisors.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/animaloperations.JK winter2015.pdf
102017 Appeal #2017-81-01, Findings of Fact section D-6: https://rawford.extension.wise.edu/files/2020/08/2017-81-01-Findings
of-Fact_Final.pdf

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Q,)
C')
Ua.

•

•

"'Q,)-0(.)
0
>"C

<(
>

±: •C:
::I
E
E
0
(.)
C:

x.
C:
0...
LL...
0-"Ce
3a.
Q,)...
a.

C ...... (/) >0 (.) ro :;:::;ro 3 C
O') a. ro (/)
C E ...... ....: (.) ro...... (.)

"O ·- C Q) 0 E Q)
C Q) ro t- ...... C '-(.) roQ) > (.) Q) ro .9a. :;:::; E - 4- (/) "O
Q) ro C ro ro (/) Q)0) Q) C ...... ......"O Q) g '- 0 '- '- (.) ro

C (/) (I) Q) Q) (/) ro '-(/) > (/) 3 (/) :t:: (/) a. 0Q) ...... > (/) 0 ro o ro 0 E a.(.) (/) ro ...... (/) a. '-·.:::: Q) (.) Q) (/) Q) <{ Q) 0a. O') (.) ro .c ro E "O ::J > (.)
'- :;:::; a. .....,

3 4- C '- CQ) ro (/) E ...... Q) 0 5 ro ro(/) :;:::; ::J "O a. (/) > E::J "O ro (/) .0 C 0 5 0 ·- Q)0 ro ...... Q) 0 5 '- 0 '- "OQ) (/) ...... ...... ......ti) .c .c E C "O a. g C a. ::J(.) ...... (/) ·- Q) Q) ·- Q) -x C C (/) 0 0 ...... X Q)
Q) ::J '- (/) (.)... (/)·- ro => C .c (.)

'- cli ::J "O 0 ::J Xca ...... ro E - Q) ......C (/) w (/) '- 0 C ro (.) ro a>E ro a. ...... 0 > .c C0 <{ ro (.) Q) ...... 0 ro (.) "O(1) :;:::; "O 3 Q) E ro '- :;:::; '- 4- C(.) C ...... ...... Q) ro Q) > :;:::; >0:::: "O 0 4- (.) .0 (.) C ...... ro::J C 0 (/) 0 (.) 3 (.) .c 0 6"O • "O ...... ro 6 ro 0 • U
::J enro (") Q) a. "O :;:::; CQ) I (.) ...... C a. .t:!  .c Q) Q) (.) Q)'- 0 ro ·- E E C Q) Q) Q);::; Q) (/) (/) I t5 '- "C E...... 0 (.) ·- ·- ...... '-a. '- ...... ro .8 ro Q)C N 0 (/) - (/) 5 05 (/) 0 0 (/) '- I a. ::J roro 4- ...... ...... o Q)

Q) 0 "O .c(.) w 0 0 Q) (.) C ...... a.·- E ro "O -~E C .0 g ·- <{ C> Q) 5 C ro< '- > C(/) 0 (/) - 5 '-C Q) 0 (/) '- ~ .c (.) - > ...... ro ::JO') E 0 > ...... ro a:; C '-> :;:::; ...... C CG ...... - "O 4- .c ro "O "O...... G ro ...... 0 (.) G 0 ·- > »G 0 ro '- - :;:::; (.) C C 0> C C (/) C :;::; g C .c (/) g ...... ro .;:: ro roQ) Q) (.) Q) ...... C ·c (/)ro Q) 0 (.) "O Q) .?:- 0 > 5 Q) 0) > > ro"O C '- ...... Q) Q) 0) - .-<::::: >0 (.) C £ e (/) > U G e:;:::; - c Q) Q) "C ro Q) 5 C E(!) (/) ro '- ...... '- :;:::; >E "C E 5z ro Q) Q) ...... 5z:;:::; E e (/) X '- (/) X "Oz ro 0 C 0 0 Q) C> .D 0 0 0 0 ::J...... C C 6 5 '- C '- .c Q) E 5 '- '- -C Cf) ro < << Cl. <{ Cl. I- C ...... 0.... 0.... Cf)
z
LL
LL "'Q,)0 "' ..9? E
~ "' "' 0 "'ti) "' 0 E .r:. "' "'- "' 0 Q,) "'0 "' ...J C: -<< ...J .... ... 0 ·- 0ca 0 Q,) - 0 :;::; E:::!!: a. ...J Q,) ::I 3 "' - Q,) 3e <E Q,) ::I - "' - ro LO ::I 0 0:::!!: U "' (.) (.) y 0) 00- ::I 0 > "' 0 O 0 - 0 .... I::> > Q,) Q,) 0 ...J a.- "C .... > I IIn (1) n, a, .e ·- ...J a, a,

E a, II::::, > ·- .e ·- 0 E ·- - C: gE 0 E o a, ::I E ·- C ro e "'ca .e "'It N > ... .r:. 0

> 0 ..... I < ::I ro a, 0 - DO ..9? Een .... O 0 - > .... > 0 a. '§ y ·-I I C C: 0 :;::; ± I E ....C: - > C ...0 0 ·- .e U 0·- .r:. .e .r:. ·- 0 .e I- .r:. - 0 .r:. C') .r:. - 0- 0 - .e N (.) 0
o±: a.·- N 5 0 - @ ± C: 03 a. ) )

::::, ~ ::::, ~ N DO 00 5 z - N ::::, 0 0I I I - I

6
0
0
~

6 '-
Q) -0 - ........ ro0 C t '-• Q) T"" ::Ju 0 ......

~ U> x- .c z(.)-0 0 (.) C -'-::::,
6 (.) 6 ro 0 0- .0 Q) (/) -0 0 ro 0 (/) C C

(1) 0 (l) 0 Q) 5 Q)

ti) N 6 N Cl::'. 0 E- " Cl::'. t::'. ........ca r::::- ·- .c (/) r---~ ........ ro T""(.) .c :!:: (/) 05 l{)(J) ro t) E Q)
T"" 0- o

(J) "O (.) C o 0 Q) N
T"" Q) (/) G - .0 Cl) "O Q) N< 6 ::J Cf) - C (/)......

(l) Q)(/) o x- G05 C) o O (.)::J Q) ro ·.:::: C '-o > C> od C C - 0 ::J
E "O ·.:::: 0 0 U (.) 0ro '- E E a. "' (/)-

Q) Q) "O
~

Q)ro z C o z0.... Cl::'. I - Cl::'.

V,

ro
E
C
ro
ro
::J

""O

5
""O
C

'+-
0

b5
.0
E
::J
C

ro
::J
6
ro
QI

..c
+-'
'+-
0
V,
V,
QI

""O....
ro
00
QI....
i
ro
E
C
roz
±
::J
0a.....
0

-"'u
0
+-'
V,
QI
>

V,
""O
C
::J
0a.
0
0
0
«R
.2
±
C

=>
ro
E
C

<l'.
QI
C
0

±
C

=>
>u
C
QI
ro.>
::J
CY

LJ.J

ro
E i
C C

<l'. ::J

tJ!
+

LJ.J 00
<l'. C
- 'Go

o
<l'. E

0
"' u

••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page [ 17
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

CONCLUSION

These published academic studies and other valuation expert opinions, conclude that there is some measure of
impact to property proximate to an established food animal operation (including slaughterhouse facilities). These
conclusions have been confirmed by academic studies utilizing large sales databases and regression analysis
investigating this uses' potential impact on property values.

It can be concluded at this point that there is enough published data identifying that residential home values
would be adversely affected by their proximity to a slaughterhouse use, of the size and scope identified in the
application for a special use permit.

Based upon the examination, research, and analyses of the existing food animal operation uses, the surrounding
areas, and an extensive amount of research including empirical data, we have concluded that there is a
reasonable and probable risk that proximate residential property values would be negatively impacted
attributed to proximity to the proposed slaughterhouse use. Additionally, we are in the process of preparing
our own study of an existing meat processing facility in order to confirm the results the studies already identified.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact the undersigned. Thank you for the opportunity to be of
service.

Respectfully submitted,

CohnReznick LLP

Patricia L. McGarr, MAI, CRE, FRICS
National Director - Valuation Advisory Services
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
Wisconsin License No. #1704-10
Expires 12/14/2023
Illinois License No. #553.000621
Expires 9/30/2023

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • k~j\
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n ez n IC P
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page [ 18
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

CERTIFICATION

We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1 The statements of fact and data reported are true and correct.
2. The reported analyses, findings, and conclusions in this consulting report are limited only by the reported

assumptions and limiting conditions, and are our personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses,
findings, and conclusions.

3. We have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no personal
interest with respect to the parties involved.

4. We have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the property that is
the subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this
assignment.

5. We have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report, or the parties involved with
this assignment.

6. Our engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined
results.

7. Our compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or reporting of
a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value
finding, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to
the intended use of this report.

8. Our analyses, findings, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in
conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute, which includes the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice (USPAP).

9. The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by its duly
authorized representatives.

10. Patricia L. McGarr, MAI, CRE, FRICS, has viewed relevant data referenced in this report in person, via
photographs, or aerial imagery

11 We have not relied on unsupported conclusions relating to characteristics such as race, color, religion,
national origin, gender, marital status, familial status, age, and receipt of public assistance income,
handicap, or an unsupported conclusion that homogeneity of such characteristics is necessary to
maximize value.

12. TJ Schemmel provided significant appraisal consulting assistance to the person signing this certification,
including data verification, research, and administrative work all under the appropriate supervision.

13. We have experience in performing property value impact studies and are in compliance with the
Competency Rule of USPAP.

14. As of the date of this report, Patricia L. McGarr, MAI, CRE, FRICS, has completed the continuing
education program for Designated Members of the Appraisal Institute.

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page [ 19
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

If you have any questions or comments, please contact the undersigned. Thank you for the opportunity to be of
service.

Respectfully submitted,

CohnReznick LLP

Patricia L. McGarr, MAI, CRE, FRICS
National Director - Valuation Advisory Services
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
Wisconsin License No. #1704-10
Expires 12/14/2023
Illinois License No. #553.000621
Expires 9/30/2023

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility Coh Rezt@
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any nu 'l
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 20
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

The fact witness services will be subject to the following assumptions and limiting conditions:

1 No responsibility is assumed for the legal description provided or for matter pertaining to legal or title
considerations. Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated.
The legal description used in this report is assumed to be correct.

2. The property is evaluated free and clear of any or all liens or encumbrances unless otherwise stated.

3. Responsible ownership and competent management are assumed.

4. Information furnished by others is believed to be true, correct and reliable, but no warranty is given
for its accuracy.

5. All engineering studies are assumed to be correct. The plot plans and illustrative material in this
report are included only to help the reader visualize the property.

6. It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or structures
that render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for obtaining
the engineering studies that may be required to discover them.

7. It is assumed that the property is in full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local and
environmental regulations and laws unless the lack of compliance is stated, described, and
considered in the evaluation report.

8. It is assumed that the property conforms to all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions
unless nonconformity has been identified, described and considered in the evaluation report.

9. It is assumed that all required licenses, certificates of occupancy, consents, and other legislative or
administrative authority from any local, state, or national government or private entity or organization
have been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the value estimate contained in this
report is based.

10. It is assumed that the use of the land and improvements is confined within the boundaries or property
lines of the property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless noted in this
report.

11 The date of value to which the findings are expressed in this report apply is set forth in the letter of
transmittal. The appraisers assume no responsibility for economic or physical factors occurring at
some later date which may affect the opinions herein stated.

12. Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous materials, which may or may not
be present on the property, was not observed by the appraisers. The appraisers have no knowledge
of the existence of such substances on or in the property. The appraisers, however, are not qualified
to detect such substances. The presence of substances such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde foam
insulation, radon gas, lead or lead-based products, toxic waste contaminants, and other potentially
hazardous materials may affect the value of the property The value estimate is predicated on the

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility CohnReZn jCk~J'
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any 'JJ
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 21
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

assumption that there is no such material on or in the property that would cause a loss in value. No
responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for any expertise or engineering knowledge required
to discover them. The client is urged to retain an expert in this field, if desired.

13. The forecasts, projections, or operating estimates included in this report were utilized to assist in the
evaluation process and are based on reasonable estimates of market conditions, anticipated supply
and demand, and the state of the economy. Therefore, the projections are subject to changes in
future conditions that cannot be accurately predicated by the appraisers and which could affect the
future income or value projections.

14. Fundamental to the appraisal analysis is the assumption that no change in zoning is either proposed
or imminent, unless otherwise stipulated. Should a change in zoning status occur from the property's
present classification, the appraisers reserve the right to alter or amend the value accordingly

15. It is assumed that the property does not contain within its confined any unmarked burial grounds
which would prevent or hamper the development process.

16. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) became effective on January 26, 1992. We have not made
a specific compliance survey and analysis of the property to determine if it is in conformance with the
various detailed requirements of the ADA. It is possible that a compliance survey of the property,
together with a detailed analysis of the requirements of the ADA, could reveal that the property is not
in compliance with one or more of the requirements of the Act. If so, this fact could have a negative
effect on the value of the property Unless otherwise noted in this report, we have not been provided
with a compliance survey of the property Any information regarding compliance surveys or estimates
of costs to conform to the requirements of the ADA are provided for information purposes. No
responsibility is assumed for the accuracy or completeness of the compliance survey cited in this
report, or for the eventual cost to comply with the requirements of the ADA.

17 Any value estimates provided in this report apply to the entire property, and any proration or division
of the total into fractional interests will invalidate the value estimate, unless such proration or division
of interests has been set forth in this report.

18. Any proposed improvements are assumed to have been completed unless otherwise stipulated; any
construction is assumed to conform with the building plans referenced in this report.

19. Unless otherwise noted in the body of this report, this evaluation assumes that the subject does not
fall within the areas where mandatory flood insurance is effective.

20. Unless otherwise noted in the body of this report, we have not completed nor are we contracted to
have completed an investigation to identify and/or quantify the presence of non-tidal wetland
conditions on the subject property.

21 This report should not be used as a basis to determine the structural adequacy/inadequacy of the
property described herein, but for evaluation purposes only

22. It is assumed that the subject structure meets the applicable building codes for its respective
jurisdiction. We assume no responsibility/liability for the inclusion/exclusion of any structural

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • k~j\
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n eZn IC 'JJ
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 22
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

component item which may have an impact on value. It is further assumed that the subject property
will meet code requirements as they relate to proper soil compaction, grading, and drainage.

23. The appraisers are not engineers, and any references to physical property characteristics in terms of
quality, condition, cost, suitability, soil conditions, flood risk, obsolescence, etc., are strictly related to
their economic impact on the property. No liability is assumed for any engineering-related issues.

The evaluation services will be subject to the following limiting conditions:

1 The findings reported herein are only applicable to the properties studied in conjunction with the
Purpose of the Evaluation and the Function of the Evaluation as herein set forth; the evaluation is not
to be used for any other purposes or functions.

2. Any allocation of the total value estimated in this report between the land and the improvements
applies only to the stated program of utilization. The separate values allocated to the land and
buildings must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are not valid if so used.

3. No opinion is expressed as to the value of subsurface oil, gas or mineral rights, if any, and we have
assumed that the property is not subject to surface entry for the exploration or removal of such
materials, unless otherwise noted in the evaluation.

4. This report has been prepared by CohnReznick under the terms and conditions outlined by the
enclosed engagement letter Therefore, the contents of this report and the use of this report are
governed by the client confidentiality rules of the Appraisal Institute. Specifically, this report is not for
use by a third party and Cohn Reznick is not responsible or liable, legally or otherwise, to other parties
using this report unless agreed to in writing, in advance, by both CohnReznick and/or the client or
third party.

5. Disclosure of the contents of this evaluation report is governed by the by-laws and Regulations of the
Appraisal Institute has been prepared to conform with the reporting standards of any concerned
government agencies.

6. The forecasts, projections, and/or operating estimates contained herein are based on current market
conditions, anticipated short-term supply and demand factors, and a continued stable economy
These forecasts are, therefore, subject to changes with future conditions. This evaluation is based
on the condition of local and national economies, purchasing power of money, and financing rates
prevailing at the effective date of value.

7 This evaluation shall be considered only in its entirety, and no part of this evaluation shall be utilized
separately or out of context. Any separation of the signature pages from the balance of the evaluation
report invalidates the conclusions established herein.

8. Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication, nor
may it be used for any purposes by anyone other than the client without the prior written
consent of the appraisers, and in any event, only with property qualification.

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • k~J'
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n eZn IC 'JJ
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 23
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

9. The appraisers, by reason of this study, are not required to give further consultation or testimony or
to be in attendance in court with reference to the property in question unless arrangements have been
previously made.

10. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report shall be conveyed to any person or entity, other
than the appraiser's client, through advertising, solicitation materials, public relations, news, sales or
other media, without the written consent and approval of the authors, particularly as to evaluation
conclusions, the identity of the appraisers or CohnReznick, LLC, or any reference to the Appraisal
Institute, or the MAI designation. Further, the appraisers and CohnReznick, LLC assume no
obligation, liability, or accountability to any third party If this report is placed in the hands of anyone
but the client, client shall make such party aware of all the assumptions and limiting conditions of the
assignment.

11. This evaluation is not intended to be used, and may not be used, on behalf of or in connection with a
real estate syndicate or syndicates. A real estate syndicate means a general or limited partnership,
joint venture, unincorporated association or similar organization formed for the purpose of, and
engaged in, an investment or gain from an interest in real property, including, but not limited to a sale
or exchange, trade or development of such real property, on behalf of others, or which is required to
be registered with the United States Securities and Exchange commissions or any state regulatory
agency which regulates investments made as a public offering. It is agreed that any user of this
evaluation who uses it contrary to the prohibitions in this section indemnifies the appraisers and the
appraisers' firm and holds them harmless from all claims, including attorney fees, arising from said
use.

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • k~j\
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O nrezncl 'l
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Prepared for Franklin Community Advocates Page I 24
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

ADDENDUM A:
APPRAISER QUALIFICATIONS

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

cohnReznick@

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



EHIIEAEEMZEE-IIHEIOlISalElOEl
gIREIEIEGILE.IeGI5LIES9GIESE«el&Ge,et
I[IE@lueflt@Al fa8@Sf4is%es% aIE@lip)aEel.L oi7EegeiEej?

200 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600
Chicago, IL 60606
312-508-5802
patricia.mcgarr@cohnreznick.com

Patricia L. McGarr, MAI, CRE, FRICS, CRA, is a principal and National Director of CohnReznick Advisory Group's
Valuation Advisory Services practice. Pat's experience includes market value appraisals of varied property types
for acquisition, condemnation, mortgage, estate, ad valorem tax, litigation, zoning, and other purposes. Pat has
been involved in the real estate business since 1980. From June 1980 to January 1984, she was involved with the
sales and brokerage of residential and commercial properties. Her responsibilities during this time included the
formation, management, and training of sales staff in addition to her sales, marketing, and analytical functions. Of
special note was her development of a commercial division for a major Chicago-area brokerage firm.

Since January 1984, Pat has been exclusively involved in the valuation of real estate. Her experience includes the
valuation of a wide variety of property types including residential (SF/MF/LIHTC), commercial, industrial, and
special purpose properties including such diverse subjects as quarries, marinas, riverboat gaming sites, shopping
centers, manufacturing plants, and office buildings. She is also experienced in the valuation of leasehold and leased
fee interests. Pat has performed appraisal assignments throughout the country, including the Chicago Metropolitan
area as well as New York, New Jersey, California, Nevada, Florida, Utah, Texas, Wisconsin, Indiana, Michigan,
and Ohio. Pat has gained substantial experience in the study and analysis of the establishment and expansion of
sanitary landfills in various metropolitan areas including the preparation of real estate impact studies to address
criteria required by Senate Bill 172. She has also developed an accepted format for allocating value of a landfill
operation between real property, landfill improvements, and franchise (permits) value.

Over the past several years, Pat has developed a valuation group that specializes in the establishment of new utility
corridors for electric power transmission and pipelines. This includes determining acquisition budgets, easement
acquisitions, corridor valuations, and litigation support. Pat has considerable experience in performing valuation
impact studies on potential detrimental conditions and has studied properties adjoining solar farms, wind farms,
landfills, waste transfer stations, stone quarries, cellular towers, schools, electrical power transmission lines, "Big
Box" retail facilities, levies, properties with restrictive covenants, landmark districts, environmental contamination,
airports, material defects in construction, stigma, and loss of view amenity for residential high rises. Most recently,
the firm has studied property values adjacent to Animal Operations to address criteria required for special use
permits across the Midwest.

Pat has qualified as an expert valuation witness in numerous local, state, and federal courts.

Pat has participated in specialized real estate appraisal education and has completed more than 50 courses and
seminars offered by the Appraisal Institute totaling more than 600 classroom hours, including real estate transaction
courses as a prerequisite to obtaining a State of Illinois Real Estate Salesman License.

Pat has earned the professional designations of Counselors of Real Estate (CRE), Member of the Appraisal
Institute (MAI), Fellow of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (FRICS) and Certified Review Appraiser
(CRA). She has also been a certified general real estate appraiser in 21 states (see below).

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • @
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n eZn IC 'J,,I
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



Education
• North Park University: Bachelor of Science, General Studies

Professional Affiliations
• National Association of Realtors
• CREW Commercial Real Estate Executive Women
• IRWA International Right Of Way Association

Licenses and Accreditations

• Member of the Appraisal Institute (MAI)
• Counselors of Real Estate, designated CRE
• Fellow of Royal Institution of Chartered

Surveyors (FRICS)
• Certified Review Appraiser (CRA)
• Alabama State Certified General Real Estate

Appraiser
• California State Certified General Real Estate

Appraiser
• Connecticut State Certified General Real Estate

Appraiser
• Colorado State Certified General Real Estate

Appraiser
• District of Columbia Certified General Real Estate

Appraiser
• Illinois State Certified General Real Estate

Appraiser
• Indiana State Certified General Real Estate

Appraiser
• Louisiana State Certified General Real Estate

Appraiser

• Maryland State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• Massachusetts Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• Michigan State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• North Carolina State Certified General Real
Estate Appraiser

• New Jersey State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• Nevada State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• New York State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• Pennsylvania State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• South Carolina State Certified General Real
Estate Appraiser

• Tennessee State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• Texas State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• Virginia State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

• Wisconsin State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser

Appointments
• Appointed by two Governors of Illinois to the State Real Estate Appraisal Board (2017 & 2021)
• Chairman of the State of Illinois Real Estate Appraisal Board (2021)

TJ Schemmel
Manager, Valuation Advisory Services

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • k~j\
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n ez n IC P
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



200 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600
Chicago, IL 60606
312-788-6057
TJ.Schemmell@cohnreznick.com
www.cohnreznick.com

TJ Schemmel is a manager in Cohn Reznick Advisory Group's Valuation Advisory Services practice and is based in the
Chicago office. For the past two years, he has completed real estate valuation and other real estate consulting services
valued at over $2 billion in real property.

TJ has acquired competency in valuing a variety of commercial real estate across the United States, including the following
complex property types: full-service hotels, single family rental home portfolios, cannabis cultivation facilities, hospitals,
utility corridors, and for-sale residential units or subdivisions. He has also performed real estate appraisals involving
leasehold interests, air rights ownership, and right-of-way fee simple and easement acquisitions for utility corridors. He has
performed these and other appraisals for purposes including financial reporting, estate planning, bond and conventional
financing, litigation (eminent domain and LaSalle factors), and asset management, with the ability to handle complex
appraisals in expedited timeframes. TJ has also participated in assignments to determine the highest and best use of subject
properties, which included determining the value of the properties under potential zoning designations and determining the
likelihood of potential rezoning.

Education

• University of Cincinnati: Bachelor of Business Administration

Professional Affiliations

• Thomas Schemmel, Practicing Affiliate, Appraisal Institute
• Routes to Success, Incorporated (HOBY Ohio West) - Board President
• Chicago Tutoring - Associate Board Member

Disclaimer: This report is limited to the intended use, intended users Franklin Community Advocates and others stated in
the report as it relates to the evaluation of a proposed Animal Operation including slaughterhouse ormeat processing facility C h R • @
in the City of Franklin, WI, and purpose stated within. No part of this report may otherwise be reproduced ormodified in any O n ez n IC P
form, or by any means, without the prior written permission of CohnReznick LLP.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



From:
Sent
To:
Cc:

SubJKt:

Sara Arnold <sarald@frank4ww.gov>
Thursday. lune H1. 2029 205 PM
Daniel Szczap. Glen Morrow
Rnnwe sunon, Witt, Jm, Terry Fuller; Alex Nord; Russ Serers; Altair Cortes, Don
Hay. Jeff Weldon. James Meeks, Joseph Meeks, Kelle Rapers. Mchael Mahn; John
Nelson, Mara LaPointe; S R. Milli
[Forwarded from tntadynl [Tue Feb 23 22.4930 2021] RE Ryan Meadows 

Jim has Informed me dirt was Indeed plated whefe It should not havebeen and Is being moved now.
We wlll l'IClt rehash lhe hisbyof thissite but Beat has been notified ouer' a do«Jn times of erosion· control
Wllation$. Whilie meof thatwas relate$to the land DiStufbance prior tothe Ryan Meadows ccnstru(tion , it all $tlll falls
u..,. this site. Glen llladenoteof that when lhe City neartrdted ear after the fflO!St teQlflt eroslOn (Ontrol vliotatlon
and that Is uofortunatety why there is absoluttfv no room for any additional future violations.
Thank you.

Sara Arnold, P.E.
Assistant City Engineer
Oty of Franklin
414425-7510

From: Daniel Szaap (cmtzc,pObeatdeveklpment.comJ
Sent: Thursday, June ll, 20201:45 PM
To: Sara Arnold; Glen MOrnJw
Cc: Ronnie Asundan; Wit; Jim; TenyFuller; Alex Nord; Russ Slerers ; Aldair Cortes; Don Hay; Jeff Weldon; James
Meeks; Joseph Meeks ; Kellie Roper$; Mid,ael Malm; John Ndson ; Marcia l.aPolnte; John Nelson; S.R. Mills
MJ,ed : RE; RyanMeadows •

Sara:

This afternoc:,n Veit contractors usingGPS confirmed that they have not encroachedonto loi 84 Jim Witt with Graef
was present during the confirmation

Again, we apologize for any violations that have occurred since Bear/CMA have held the gradng permit. The instances 1
am awllre of lnclude erosioncontrol damage caused by a3" rain{24 hour period) andanoversight by whic:hour
contractors workedon Saturdaywithoutproper approval

OanSic:zap
841ar O.V.lopment, LlC
Olreet; 262.842.0556
Mobli.: 26U4UH8
dan@8ear98vel9pm¢ot.&r
wwwear0evelo@men3.sor

llfA\
DEVELOPMENT



from: Sara Arnofd <SArnold@franldtnwi gov>
Sent: Tuesday, Jar11.1a..-y S, 20218 S8 AM
To, Jerald 8.U$5en <Jeratd8@straussbtand-s com>, Manhew Carey <Man Carey@pinn.itle•engr com>
Cc:; O.tmel Szuap <dnt1ap@beardevelopmeot com>, Glen Morrow <GMorrow@franldinwi gov>, Ronnle A~uncion
<RA5unc1on@franklinw, gov>, Marion Eeks <MEcks@franklinwi gov>, Calli Berg <CBerg@franklnw gov>, Reguto
MarUncl•Montrlv<1 <RiVl.irtinel·Montllva@rrankhnw1 gov>, Mike Roberts <MRobert$@franklinwl gov>, Gl<ln Beardsl{]y
<GBeardsley@franklinwi.gov?
Subject: Strauss within Area G Re11ieW 17th)

} cAuroN: rs emait originated tonoutside at he organ»atwDo not#k links or open attachments unlessyou recognae the
, sender and know the ,ontl)nt I$ $.'ifll'
g-gusto+

Good morning Attached is the ltOrrn water management review
tn early October 2020 comments wern sent m regard to the Water Ma,n Easement (aUathed) On October 14. 2020, the
S" review eral wa$ sent and ooted rna, the Easement had not been submitted On 0!.'Cemlrer 4, 2020, the 6"' te\ltew
email was ~ent arid n-oted that the Easement had not ooen '!.ubm1tted At tlws time the Easement still has not been
submitted
Although the submittal 1s not yet at the approval stage, as consuurnan approaches please keep the following in mind
for sc:lwdullng purposes

• After approval of the plans by Cttv, MMSO, and DNR an Engineering pre con Is reqmred with the devttloper, all
contractors; City Engineermg, Water/Sf!:wer, and OPW Staff, and the private inspector {to be chosen by the City
and paid for by the developer) This pre con does not $.1lisfy any requ,ted Inspectton Serv1-ce\ pre--con or
Planni!1@ Department requIreme1m

• All ennion control facll1tie'S must be in and approved prior to Hmiance or any Buildfng Permit($)
• All norm water management faclties must be c;Qnstru,:;tl!!d and rough grade cert+hied prior to the 1ssuarte of

Occupanc,y Permits
• Plat cf S1.11Vl!'\r must b\1 .ippro•,ed prior to issuance of Sutldintt Permits

Thank you

Sara Arnold, P.E.
Assistant City Engineet







C:
C
E
Q)
C:
C:
0:c

C:
O
E
(I)
C:
C:
O
J:
·.:::
U..c:
(/)

>,
E
C

>
>
U
Q)

..c
Cf)

Ol
C
e
Ol "'O

'G O
Q) ......
'- "'O
:J C
CCI E

(/)
+-',._
0
Cl.
(l)
I,_

I,_

0
+-'

.9 &8E ,._
o -o E
C +-'
0 C ..Cu (l)
(l) E .8
(l) Cl. >,

..c O +-'
+-' (l) u

C'O -0 > (l)
..C C (l) ,._
0 0 0 U

::,
0

::, >,
0 (l)>
0 cu
+-' E
+-'
ro E

c
..c
+-'

..c ro
+-' +-'
Q) ::J
E o

+-' 0 .0u en ro
(l)
t: ri. "E
o ro ro
() - 0o

,._ Q)
0 >
>, 0ro .c
E ro





h
Cz
QI

E

Ill·c
s
E QI
& Ee
C "C
IV C::c QI
C E
0 IV

o
QI .t:
C. ...
t

"C Cci: ·;:;
%

o ?5=
.£ >.
±Z
g ES
'iii 12

C.Ill:.E QI... .t:
..: Ill

±:: 'i:
6 t#
r5

:,,
Q)

I Las .r:: r:I .... "'C £¥ .... " 44 " " d.... s 0 .r:: .r:: " ',._ "' .... .... . ... ,:, I" M :,, : ,:, "' .... '.r:: Q) .; I r; ,._ ,._ 6 .... .a "' d a.... >, .;- .... 0 0 ., 0 "' I.... "' .... .M " " r " ':,: :,: .... r:: .... " $ ..; '"' Q) " ., ,:, ,._ ,:, ,:, .. El "" " :,, 5 .r:: .r:: Q) " Q) ., "' 0 > .r:: I"' .; "' .... C/1 .... 0 .... .... .. C/1 0 "' ie e a " 0 ,:, 0 0 ....
6 ? Q) " Q) > " > > >, e I I " ,..

" ., 5 0 .. "' I I ,..z ,:, ,:, :, :, "' :, H "' H "' .... '.... .... "' 0 0 -" El .... .... :C i d i
.,

i t> ,.. ,.. 0 ::, C/1 t .;.r:: " i i i3 .. .... .Q .. 3 !' ?f;J f;J "' .. . .
H H " "' " H H H H ... H .

I "' .., "' .., 0 .., $ "' fzj "' I "' I "' I " "' '(/l H "' H H :, (/l (/l (/l (/l .., (/l t:,: :,: :,: :,: :,: C/1 :,: z 5 :,: :,: 5 z '0 0 0 0 0 ii 0 C.., z .., a 0: z ., .., "' .., .., "' .., .., (/l .0 "' 0 "' ., -" 0 0 0 0 : z 0 .., CH (/l .. (/l ..  .. "' (/l H (/l H (/l H (/l H " 0 (/l ., t3 eg (/l ., (/l $ (/l E e 3 ., 3 e 3 g 3 .{i (/l e z fH :,: H H :,: ..,
5 el 5 0 " 0 ~(/l ;:i ;:i z .... .; ;:i (/l ;:i (/l ;:i (/l ;:i (/l i ;:i 'e 03 £ 3 0 3 0 3 .... .... " 3 0 3 " 3 " 3 2 ..,

~z r: 0 z z z a "'i "' > " .. i0 (/l £ "' 0 :,, (/l 0 "' (/l 0 (/l 0 .r:: (/l "' Ciii ~
:,: ... :,: a iii iii ....i:l i I 0: .... .... i:l 0: i:l i:l i 0: i:l '., ., I ., ., C/1 0 ., ., "' 4. 0 ., '0 ., o "' 0 " " :, ,.. "' C "' C ., C I ~ C 0 ,.. "' C '2 .., :;J .., :;J "' :;] :;J .., .., :;J .., 2 .., :;J I :;J $ .., :;J tu u r:: Q) u u u u U1 u.... .r:: ~ ,...... .; .... ..0 .... ....> Q) .r:: :, :, ma

>, .... t> t> r::., .... .... . ... 0,.. .. :,, .... ... C/1o " ~ ....>, Q) "' "3 "' E , no, z... N M ... U'I "' .... "' 0, g ... ::l 2 ... ~ "' .... e 0, 0 ... N M ... L... .... .... ... ... N N N N N '

C/1
.,

.r:: ii.... .... ., "' H ....
"' o, .r:: r:: r::0 " :, r:: .... "" .... i ""' .... .... .... 0 5"' "' "Cl "' .... "" .... g "' " s e % i r:: -!l ~- ~-.r:: ,.. r:: .. QI r:: ....... o, ... ;;j 0 5 0 %0 .Q .... ~ 4 I r:: .,... ... :, ... I .; 0 .... ..." o, ,:, .... 0 " " >, ,.. " ...r:: , .... u 0, -" E -" E " C/1 C/1 z "'.... "' ,:, : " 0 " > "' ....
" .... ,.. .... ., .... ,:, " " " 9 I.r:: ., :, i: .r:: r:: .... .... C/1 "' i:,: ... 0 "Cl ., " ... 0 .,; "' "' .... e £0 >, 2 u 0 .Q u .r:: .r::e ... .... "Cl H ., r: :,, .... .. " " '0, "Cl .... 0 C/1 0 "Cl "Cl 'C/1 " I 2 & H " u r:: .... .... ;;J ,

" .Q H ~- 5 0 ., 0 0 3 < .;0 :,: % ... .... C/1 ... i G.... >, ... .., " >, . ... s ?. .... .. .. f;J .r:: " (/l ., C/1 H " f;J .,, z ;"' l'l " H .... .. " "' "Cl "' .r:: "' H Hu " "' .., -" ., s .., " 5 .... .., 2 "' "' '0 .... "' H "Cl 0 H " ~ H (/l (/l t.... .. .,, :,: I :,: ... .... .. :,: C z .... :,: :,: z :,: 0: '.r:: .... 0 I 0 .... .r:: 0 U1 .... 0 0 0 ., C., .... .... .., z u .... z " (/l :, .. z .., (/l ..,
4 l> N 0 C/1 e " z .... ., r::

~ "' z u ~ z 0 .., 0.... ., "' .... ,.. 0 :, .,, E 0 .... 0 0 "' fzj (/l C.... .... "" f;l (/l a .Q .... "' ~ , (/l .>( "' "' [.l f;l !"' .... 0 .,,
~ " .... H 0, .., H d

..,
r:: ., u .r:: 0 " :,, 5 0 z ~ 0 ... g 0 ~ !:!... r:: 3 .... .... 0 (/l "' " 0 2 ;:i .., ... 0 .,, ... t 8 0 t .... . ...

~ g H '... " pl 0 3 3 " 3 .., u 3 ... C 3 :,: !;;J .,, .... z 0 ~ .... 0 i g ~.... "' i 4 0 "' 4
., 5 E- I 30 ... "' £ .... (/l > g C u (/l 0 (/l "' (/l t: " ... r:: .... :, " z "Cl :,: ".; "' "Cl i:l 0 •,i " 0: 0 0 0: 5 ., 0: "' 0: .r:: 0: i:l i:l '.... o, "' .... 0 .... >, ., "' H 0 :,: ., .... 0 ., ., '" ... C/1 tJ " C "' 3 C " g 0 >, C ;i

., C tJ C '0 "' r:: ... :;J r:: !' "' " :;J " ;;;! g a :;J 0 .., :;J :;J t.... 0 . ... : ~ g .... u... .... u " "Cl 4l •,i "'"' " u "Cl " 0 ....... E " rl "' .... "' " .; r::
" .r:: .... .r:: i .r:: t"Cl " ..., 0 "Cl u " ... ....,,< .Q 0, " ... 0
C/1 .r:: "' " ':, .... " .... r:: " .... " ... ..., "Cl "' "0 "' .... .,, I .... 0 0 .. .r:: 5o u 3 ..., I 44 >, E Ei ...

.... N M ... U'I "' .... "' 0, 0 ... ::l M ..,. 2 "' .... e "' 0 ... N .... ..,. '... ... .... .... ... ... ... N N N N N '

0
M
N

...
M
N



l



STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT MILWAUKEE COUNTY

FRANKLIN COMMUNITY ADVOCATES, INC ,
WOODLAKE VILLAGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
CHAD and KARYN ZOLECKI, JEFF and DANELLE KENNEY,
RYAN and RACHEL RINGWELSKI,
STEVE VALLEE and COLLEEN DOMASK
NICK POPLAR, TOM and ALICE BENNING
MIKE and JOANNE ZOLECKI, DEAN REIN Case No. 20-CV-7031
ERIC and MICHELLE BALCEROWSKI
MELINDA HAMDAN Honorable Hannah Dugan

Plaintiffs,
v.

CITY OF FRANKLIN,

And

STRAUSS BRANDS, LLC,

Defendant,

Intervening Defendant.

AFFIDAVIT OF MARGARET POPLAR

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )
)

STATE OF WISCONSIN )

Margaret Poplar, bemg first sworn deposes and states as follows

1. My name is Margaret Poplar. I am a res1dent of Franklin and live at 11856 W

Ryan Road

2 I was employed as an Administrative Clerk at Franklmn City Hall, from January 1,

2019 through September 3, 2021

3. I quit my position, once I felt my job had become untenable, due to the ongoing

campaign against myself and my husband, Nicholas Poplar, launched by Mayor Olson, once we

spoke out agamnst his Strauss Slaughterhouse development.

1



4. I was somewhat surprised by this turn of events, as previously the Mayor and I

had a good, cordial relationship, since my desk was located just outside his office, durmg my

tenure working at City Hall. I was unaware of many/most of the details surroundmg the

slaughterhouse project, until the late summer of 2020. When I realized the size and scope of tlus

project, and that we were talkmg about an actual slaughterhouse, both my husband and I

immediately became concerned, since we are only a few houses away from the land where this is

set to be developed

5. I was a little shocked, the Mayor never inquired about my thoughts regard mg this,

since I have three children, who could be impacted by this project, via n01se, air or water

pollution. And of course, what parent would want their children to grow up next to, or play

around a slaughterhouse? He also never mquired about what my immediate neighbors thought

about this development

6 It was clear to me that Mayor Olson wanted thus development, and he mnd1cated to

me that building the slaughterhouse would happen Thus was prior to the Planning Commiss1on

meeting or City Council meetmng, required to formally approve the project

7. That is when both my husband and I decided to become more vocal m our

oppositron to thus poorly thought out plan To be clear, when I spoke at the public meetings

about the Strauss project, I stated I was speaking as a private citizen, not a Franklm government

employee My husband spoke out as well, and we aired our many concerns which had never

been answered by the Mayor or the City Engineers We were simply very concerned for both

our children's health, as well as our property value

8. During both the Planning and Council meetings, vn1:ually none of our concerns

were addressed, and in fact, virtually no attempt was made to provide any answers or studies that

2



would allay our fears. The focus of the meetmgs, other than hours of citizen complaints around

this awful development, seemed to be that since both key, interested patites, Strauss and Bear

Development, wanted this to happen, that meant it was a good thmg for Franklin, and anyone

that questioned that, Just didn't understand.

9. Since the Mayor could not believe that I spoke out against his project, even

though it was my family that had so much to lose, not him, he began a campaign against both me

and my husband He no longer would speak to me at work, to the point where it became

embarrassing. If five people were working when he came mn, he would specifically single out

each person by saying "Hi," and then walk past me stlently.

I 0. His new dislike for me qmckly became apparent, and other employees took

notice Soon, no discussions could occur in front of me, and when the ORR (open record

request) for this case was bemg worked on, the City Clerk, would always move rooms, so that I

would not be in ear shot of the things she suggested should be included, or not provided

11. The situatton contmued to deteriorate, to the point I felt hke I was in a high school

setting. People would whisper behind my back, or stop talking entirely when I entered a room

The situation then hit a new low, when the Mayor attempted to affect my husband's

employment

12. The Mayor called my husband's boss directly, and tried to get my husband in hot

water, by referring to negatrve posts, my very upset and frustrated husband (by ths point), had

posted online regardmg how corrupt this whole slaughterhouse development has been. As my

husband and his boss have a very good (and close) relationship, my husband's boss shared the

Mayor's recorded message with Nick (of which we have a copy). Although they both ended up

havmg a laugh, this served to fmther mfuriate my husband

3



13. If Mayor Olson truly felt this was a good development for t"rankhn. why ,vould

any of this have been necessary? We are the Franklin citizens he should be listening to and

representing. Instead. he attempted to vilify me at work, to the point where I felt it necessary to

seek different employment, and he attempted to create trouble between my husband and his boss,

14. How can any of this be considered normal'! And if there was time to conduct

these campaigns against actual citizens. why was there never enough time to produce any

reports. facts, 3" party studies. or anything of relevance, other than what Strauss or Bear chose to

provide for a development they had already agreed to (prior to any City approvals)? My

husband and l arc still waiting for any facts, support, or justification, for why a giant

slaughterhouse (an enonnous. unlikely. and unappealing development), would need to be built

right in the heart ofour neighborhood.

-:JJ1.u_'!f/" u.t€p 41
Margaret Polar

Subscribed nnd Sworn 10 Before me
This mber, 2021

Notary Wisconsin
My-en issi#er is pg/anent
M{ 0MM!66/ EK(KS

SSE4e. 24,2223

4



l.e
f
.I
±
I
i
I
'1,. Iti it

U U!
y',11&Hu I

li,al





m
2>
('{J
.g

41
.5
.!!!
Q.
E
Ou
C

~
Eu
Ol
C
i::
0

'

2
CD
C

• L
0-Ill ,1,-11 ...., (U

C2 €

u '.:::: .
•,, 1111

. f ...
o oo C

:2!! I I



Sandi Wesolowski

Frgr
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Shan Hanneman < shanneman@frankllnwi gov>
Thursday, October 22, 2020 8:34 AM
Steve Olson
[ F orw arded from Intradyn] {Tue F eb 2 3 2 1 093 4 2021] £. Outl mn 4 6! NR Program
Ravi@w Areas (general)

Whlle this was ngt the issue influencing my vote, It would have been extmneJyhelpful to have this informatlon presented
to us prier to the council meeting, It would have been useful for the Plan Ccimmlsslon. It would have been useful to
have It available to the residents who were so strong lopposltin.

[ feel oor res/dents desetwd better. If they had been prcMded more of these professional oplnions to review • well In
advance • ofthe the CQUncll meeting , we may hive been met with a more accepting publ.opion. There could have
been much more done to provide the pubikc with tacts. rm also concerned that your attltt.ldes and Interaction with
restdents • and yes, professional protestclt$from outside the dy, were not helpful In the cause of the project. In today's
~o,p,olitkal envtronment_, bylng to evtct everyone rrom the open meeting only served to Inflame everyone In
attendance.

l've been reflmlng on the pnxeedlngSof the past few weekssurrounding this project. In review of the plan
commission's reCQfflffleftdan and site approval, I think the ball was drooped at that stage. Onemmmlsslooef admitted
to "not having time" to review the documents. Mather with several questionswas dismissedas hyperbole • without any
revtew « answers to his questions, another had to recuse himself, thealderman literally phol'ledIt In and the City
Engineer, by virtue of his job is blased to vote in support of his boss. It would have been more prudent at that time to
Mk for a tabling for further review and allow time for questions of the Commissioners and the public hearing to be
evaluated and answered.

After the plan commission meeting, I asked Mr. Mahone to ask Strauss to hit the pause button to allow more time for
further review. I was told no, they Intended to rtove forward on the 2.0th.

The presentation Strauss brought to the table at the community meeting last week did not PfCW(dethe resldents wtth
greater comfort level with the developrent. In fact, I believe It raised more than It answered. So,ne. anSffl!fS were
prowlded at the council present.atlon, but not all.

Sharl Hanneman
Alderwoman - 4th District
(414) 510-6522

From: Steve Olson [steve-olson@wi.rcom]
Sent: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 10:26 PM
Toi Glen Morrow; Heath Eddy; Jesse Wesolowski
Cc Mark Dandrea; Daniel Mayer; Mike Barber; Shari Hanneman; John Nelson
Subject: Fw: Qutllne of NR Program Review Areas (general)

Toll is the document that Aid. WIiheim use<I to state that Strauss was not In compliance with MM$() and ONR permtis.

Some ofyou may have used that argument to In part base your vote

That would have been in error,



Specialty meat packer Strauss Brands plans to develop $20 million facility at new Franklin
business park
Tom Daykin, Milwaukee Journal Sentinel Published 1113 a.m. CT May 20, 2019 ] Updated 1:43 p.m. CT May 20, 2019

Bear's overall site plan for the land that city officials will review June 7.
Strauss Brands Inc. plans to develop a facility at a new business park near Loomis and Ryan
roads. (Photo. City of Franklin)
Specialty meat packer Strauss Brands Inc. is planning to operate a facility, valued at up to $20 million, at a new Franklin
business park.
A Strauss Brands affiliate is planning a building, or a "series of industrial buildings," on 30 acres near the intersection of
West Ryan and West Loomis roads, according to a city report.
The Franklin Common Council, at its Tuesday night meeting, is to consider approving a tax assessment agreement with
the company affiliate, Strauss Investments LLC.
That agreement calls for Strauss Investments to develop a building, or buildings, that would be assessed at minimum
values of $5 million by 2021, and $10 million by 2022.
The development would be for meat packaging and distribution operations.
The company also might add "meat harvesting and processing," according to the proposed agreement.
If that happens, those minimum values would increase to $10 million and $20 million.

That assessment agreement is needed because the city plans to help Strauss Investments pay for the development
through a tax increment financing district, which the Common Council approved in 2018.

The city document doesn't say how much Franklin might spend on the project, which would require a separate council
vote.

Also, the city report doesn't provide details on the size of the proposed facility, the number of jobs involved and whether
the project would relocate Strauss Brands from its longtime facility at 9775 S. 60th St , in the Franklin Business Park.
Strauss Brands President Randy Strauss couldn't be reached Monday for more information.
Also, Calli Berg, Franklin's economic development director, declined to provide any additional information about the
expansion plans







O'i
c::
Vl~
C:
0
V'l

0



.a!i

is



j
?iesf

I»
Ce
0
E
"0
0
0
\:}



STATEMENTS TAKEN DIRECTLY FROM THE OCT 20TH TRANSCRIPT

Added commentary, not part o
the transcription

Both the {then) President of Strauss,
Jerry Busan, and the Director of
Supply Chain at Strauss, Jack Prince,
have been crystal clear on the fact
that cattle will begin arriving at 1 AM,
and this will continue through the
early morning hours. They have
explained why this time frame cannot
be changed, per how they operate.
As Alderperson Wilhelm points out,
this as well as several other key issues
which Strauss is unable to fix, should
disqualify their SUP.

Cert. R. # 001456

U.S. LEGAL SUPPORT
866-339-2608

12 main motion and the documents have been read. The points

13 have been made. Um, if you want me to read them in full?

14 Adequate public facilities. our vote depends on the proof

15 of development is adequately served by essential public

16 services, including public water supply, police and fire

17 protection, or the applicant will provide for such

18 services. No such services or proof has been provided.

19 Traffic hours of operation. Traffic circulation hours from

20 1:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m, are not consistent with the future

21 residential area and will be a continuous noise complaint,

22 as well as concerns for diesel idling, more odors from

23 exhaust fumes. Adequate measure will be taken to provide

24 ingress and egress. The one-way in and out is far beyond

25 allowable UDO cul-de-sac length of 800 feet. Additional

11

13

140

Cert. R. # 001365

Franklin Community
October 20, 2020

Franklin Community
October 20, 2020

MR. JACK PRINCE: I just want to add. I have one

more thing on the reason 1:00 in the morning. So, ah, so

we're picking up cattle; cattle are coming in, we're

scheduling the cattle to arrive. So when the cattle

arrive, we don't want them to just sit on-- it's really a

humane welfare issue. \Ve don't want them to have to sit

on, on the trailer for an extra two or three or four hours

U.S. LEGAL SUPPORT
866-339-2608

19 themselves, let's put it that way. So my concern is what

20 exercise do you have over that? And can you change the

21 hours to make it less than 1:00 or l:OO·a.m. to start the

22 process of delivery?

23 ~- JERRY BUSSE~So the reason for 1 :00 a.m. is

24 to mimic our current hours of delivery and, and the reason

25 that we do that is we want the -- the animals have to rest

1 for two hours upon delivery; ah , we can't do anything until

2 they, they rest for that period of time. And our goal is

3 to have the, the, the scheduled deliveries for the day

4 finished ear1y in the morning so, so they' re really not

5 seen. If we were to push back the hours, then it would

6,just -- you know, then we would have animals being

7 delivered at 2:00, 3:00 p.m. in the afternoon, which would

8 align with bus routes, etcetera, and you know, just like

everyone else has concerns, we have concerns, as well, so





-s
E
8
"0y
£
li
,:
5l
.0

8
£

•',_.
"0±
E
E
8

i..
E
.I:u
£
<t





We appreciate the continued support of the mayor and members of City Council. We are very proud of our
expansion proposal; however, we have heard the voices of our fellow Franklin community residents. Strauss is
currently evaluating alternative paths to expand our production capacity. As part of these efforts, we are
exploring a sale of the land on Loomis Road that was originally purchased to construct the Greenfield facility. In
doing so, we ask that the City give us time and work with us to find the right occupant for the land.

STRAUSS BRANDS, LLC • W229 N1492 WESTWOOD DR, WAUKESHA, WI 53186 • (414) 421 5250 • INFO@STRAUSSBRANDS COM



eccunrE]
O AC ED0JCTIO HI EC 0LG

To whom it may concern:

Accurate Appraisal is contracted by the City of Franklin to perform
their assessments. We were asked to provide insight on any residential
value impact that the proposed new Strauss Brands LLC 152,035-Square
food facility would have. In our 20 plus years of experience, we rarely see a
residential decrease in value due to a manufacturing facility. We do not
believe that the proposed Strauss facility will cause a residential decline in
value.

Thank you,

Kyle L. Kabe

Accurate Appraisal



Thank you my name is Joe Cincotta and I am the attorney for Franklin Community
Advocates and the other individual plaintiffs in the Court case. I wanted to address a
primary issue about the requirements that the applicant here must meet in order for
the Plan Commission and the Common Council to approve a Special Use Permit for the
proposed meat-processing/slaughterhouse project.

As part of that I want to confirm that under state statutes and the City's ordinance the
Plan Commission is set up to be a neutral non-political body that reviews projects in
order to verify that proposed project is in the public interest. In the case of a Special
Use Permit the City's ordinances establish what must be considered in order to allow a
project and make sure it is in the public interest and not contrary to it.

Here, the City's Ordinances at Section 15.3-0701 list requirements that must be satisfied
before a SUP may be approved. A key provision is that a proposed project may not
substantially diminish or impair property values of surrounding properties. Again, this is
specifically required in the ordinances and is obviously to protect neighboring property
and taxpayers.

What also is important to understand is that SUPs are not presumed to be appropriate.
Even if a particular zoning district allows for a particular SUP, there is no presumption
that a SUP should be granted. The proposed SUP must fit into the particular site and
location. That is why the ordinances require that each project be reviewed on its merits
and that it satisfy the ordinances requirements.

What the state law requires, which you may have heard referred to as Act 67, is that the
applicant, which here is Strauss Brands, must provide actual facts and information that
is sufficient to demonstrate that its proposed project satisfies the ordinance
requirements.

Here, there is nothing in the current record that provides sufficient facts and
information that the proposed project will not diminish and impair the property values
of the adjacent and surrounding properties.

Also it is important to understand that it is not FCA and the property owner's burden to
show that the project will diminish surrounding property values it is the applicant's
burden to show that it will not. However, FCA and the plaintiffs have provided in their
submissions showing the proximity of the proposed project to the surrounding
residential uses and properties, including the residential subdivision that is being
developed just to the east, will cause a substantial diminution in property values. We
will also be submitting a formal expert analysis prepared by a well-known consulting



firm that addresses the extent of the devaluation that will occur and with that also the
loss of tax base in those surrounding properties.

My understanding is that other presenters will address other requirements of the
ordinance including whether it interferes with surrounding developments, public
benefit, alternative locations, mitigation of adverse impact and the precedent approval
of this project would set for the City. We believe these other ordinance requirements
are not satisfied by the proposed project. However, based on this key issue of negative
impact on surrounding property values the SUP may not be approved and should not be
recommended for approval by the Plan Commission.



Michael
Best

February 17, 2022

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND EMAIL

Mayor Steve Olson
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, W 53132

Re: Strauss Brands Slaughterhouse Proposal

Dear Mayor Olson and Members of the Plan Commission.

Michael Best & Friedrich LLP
Attorneys at Law

Bret A. Roge
T 414 347 4776

E baroge@mchaelbest com

Members of the Plan Commission
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

We represent the Indian Community School, Inc. (the "School") located at 10405 W. St. Martins
Road in the City of Franklin (the "City"). Attached are copies of our letter to Mayor Steve Olson
and the Members of the Common Council on behalf of the School dated November 2, 2020 and
the School's letter to the same dated October 20, 2020 (collectively, the "Letters"). We are
reaffirming that the School believes the concerns and objections raised in the Letters have
either not been addressed or have not been adequately addressed and, therefore, the School is
recommending that the Plan Commission reconsider its prior decision and deny the Special Use
Permit for the construction and operation of a large-scale slaughterhouse by Strauss Brands,
LLC at the southwest corner of West Loomis Road and new Monarch Drive because Strauss
Brands, LLC failed to meet the standards for approval of a Special Use Permit pursuant to City
of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) $ 15-3.070.

Please let me know if you have any questions or comments.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael Best & Friednch LLP

Bret A Roge

790 North Water Street, Suite 2500 I Milwaukee, WI 53202 I T 414 271 6560 I F 414 277 0656
michaelbest com



Michael
Best

November 2, 2020

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND EMAIL

Mayor Steve Olson
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Strauss Brands Slaughterhouse Proposal

Dear Mayor Olson and Members of the Common Council:

Michael Best & Friedrich LLP
Attorneys at Law

Bret A. Roge
T 414 347 4776

E baroge@michaelbest com

Members of Common Council
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

We represent the Indian Community School, Inc. (the "School") located at 10405 W. St. Martins
Road in the City of Franklin (the "City") and we are writing to express our significant concerns and
objections to the potential reconsideration by the Common Council of a Special Use Permit for
the construction and operation of a large-scale slaughterhouse by Strauss Brands, LLC at the
southwest corner of West Loomis Road and new Monarch Dnve (the "Strauss Proposal"). As you
are aware, the City's Plan Commission held a hearing and public comment period on the Strauss
Proposal on Thursday, October 8, 2020 (the "Plan Commission Hearing"), and the Common
Council considered and appropriately rejected the Strauss Proposal at the City's Common Council
meeting on October 20, 2020 because Strauss Brands, LLC failed to meet the standards for
approval of a Special Use Permit pursuant to City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance
(UDO) § 15-3.070. It has come to our attention that the City may "reconsider" its denial of a
Special Use Permit for the Strauss Proposal at the Common Council meeting tonight, Monday
November 2, 2020.

As the School presented at the October 20, 2020 Common Council meeting, the Strauss Proposal
does not meet the requirements of UDO § 15.3.070 and the School, which 1s located
approximately 1-mile northeast of the proposed slaughterhouse site, has significant concerns and
objections that were not adequately addressed at the Plan Commission Hearing or the last
Common Council meeting. The Strauss Proposal wll have a substantial and undue detrimental
impact on the School's property, create potential safety hazards for its students, staff, and visitors,
and adversely impact the overall health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare of its
surrounding community. See CityofFranklin Unified DevelopmentOrdinance (UDO) $ 15-3.0701.
Specifically, the proposed industrial slaughterhouse will likely diminish the value of the School's
property and other surrounding properties. The Strauss Proposal will add to the traffic congestion
and safety concerns on Loomis Road and surrounding streets as a result of large semi-trailer
trucks bringing an anticipated 500 head of cattle to the proposed slaughterhouse daily. The
Strauss Proposal is further likely to impact arr quality, and the storage of more than 16,000 lbs. of
toxic, highly pressurized ammona at the storage site poses a public safety risk that the City is not
equipped to address in the event of an accident or mishap.

790 North Water Street, Suite 2500 I Milwaukee, WI 53202 I T 414 271 6560 I F 414 277 0656
michaelbest com



Mayor Steve Olson
Common Council Members
November 2, 2020
Page 2

The Plan Commission did not appropriately consider the Standards set forth in UDO $ 15-3.0701
nor fully address the concerns, questions, and requests of the community during the October 8"
hearing. Instead, the majority of the Plan Commissioners either ignored the public's concerns or
dismissed these concerns with conclusory statements. The Common Council did not make the
same mistake and appropriately denied the Special Use Permit for the Strauss Proposal as
required by UDO $ 15-3.0701.

Despite the nearby residential homes and other planned residential development, neither Strauss
nor the City has presented any analysis, appraisal or other consulting report on the impact the
slaughterhouse will have on property values in the community or neighborhood. Instead the City
Assessor merely stated that he cannot know what impact the slaughterhouse will have on property
values until after it is constructed and operating. In addition to the stigma associated with living
near a slaughterhouse, air quality and sanitation is important to the School and the surrounding
community and will impact the desirability of the area. Other than stating that there will be "air
scrubbers" in the wastewater treatment areas of the slaughterhouse, neither the Plan Commission
nor Strauss presented any analysis, environmental impact or other study regarding the foul odors
that will be generated and the increased emissions from the slaughterhouse and its added truck
and automobile traffic.

Similarly, the Plan Commission and Strauss have not presented any plan for addressing the
increase in flies, cockroaches, parasites, rodents, and vermin that will be attracted to the
slaughterhouse and traveling into the School's community along with the continuous loads of
cattle and manure. The City and Strauss have also not presented a strategy to manage the risk
of transmission of zoonotic diseases and waterborne illness created by the large herds of cattle
and associated manure and waste containing microbes and pathogens. Additionally, concerning
is the lack of consideration given to the impact the large-scale slaughterhouse operation will have
on traffic in the area. Both City and Company officials have confirmed that no traffic study was
done to analyze the impact of the slaughterhouse on the area's roads and streets. There will be
numerous large trucks bringing approximately 500 head of cattle to the facility every day, but there
was no other detail provided in terms of the specific routes that will be utilized or other safeguards
to mitigate safety concerns. The safety of the School's students and staff is of paramount
importance and during morning drop-off and afternoon pick-up there is already significant traffic
volume in the area. Because of the number of students that attend the School from a long
distance, the School utilizes many buses to ensure that no child spends more than 45 minutes
traveling to the School. Adding large semi-trailer trucks to the already busy combination of parent
vehicles and buses presents a significant risk to the safety of the School's students, parents, and
staff.

Lastly, the Strauss Proposal includes the use of over 16,000 lbs. of highly pressurized ammonia
that will be piped throughout the slaughterhouse from a holding tank containing more than 12,000
gallons of the toxic chemical. The City's Fire Department has expressed concern about the safety
hazard that this presents to the community and the lack of adequate facilities and equipment to
address this rsk. Other than stating that the EPA will require a safety plan and "detectors," neither
the Plan Commission nor Strauss considered or presented any analysis of the risks presented
and the necessary steps to mitigate this hazard. Under the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), the slaughterhouse must submit a Material Safety Data Sheet



Mayor Steve Olson
Common Council Members
November 2, 2020
Page 3

(MSDS) for the large volume of ammonia to the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)
and State Emergency Response Commission (SERC), but the Plan Commission and Strauss
have not presented such proposed MSDS for evaluation.

It is important to note that Frankhn required the School to perform both traffic study, which
subsequently limited the directional flow of all bus traffic, and natural resource protection plan
before the rezoning could occur for 1t to relocate to Franklin. We would have thought that if a
grade school were required to obtain these types of study and plan, a proposed slaughterhouse
certainly would have been required to obtain them.

There remain significant gaps and omissions in the City's review of the Strauss Proposal that
continue to require the City's Common Council to deny the requested Special Use Permit
pursuant to UDO $ 15-3.0701. Due to the unresolved questions on increased traffic and odors;
the safety of nearby residents because of the significant amount of stored ammonia on site; the
unknown effect on air and water quality; and other issues, the Strauss Proposal requires further
study and analysis from experts and other independent voices. Until these issues are resolved,
the School cannot support the Strauss Proposal and respectfully requests that the City Council
not reconsider its correct decision to deny a Special Use Permit.

As a result, because the record is clear that the Straus Proposal does not meet the standards
required by UDO $ 15-3.0701, if the Common Council reconsiders and approves a Special Use
Permit for the Strauss Proposal, the School will have to consider its available options.

Sincerely,

MICHAEL BEST & FRIEDRICH LLP

:i±@Fr



October 20, 2020

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND EMAIL

Mayor Steve Olson
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Strauss Brands Slaughterhouse Proposal

Members of Common Council
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Dear Mayor Olson and Members of the Common Council:

This letter is written and submitted to the Common Council on behalf of the Indian Community
School (the "School") located at 10405 W. St. Martins Road in the City of Franklin (the "City") to
express the School's significant concerns and objections to the potential approval by the
Common Council of a Special Use Permit for the construction and operation of a large-scale
slaughterhouse by Strauss Brands, LLC at the southwest corner of West Loomis Road and new
Monarch Drive (the "Strauss Proposal") As you are aware, the City's Plan Commission held a
hearing and public comment period on the Strauss Proposal on Thursday, October 8, 2020 (the
"Plan Commission Hearing"), and the Common Council Is set to consider the Plan
Commission's recommendation to approve the Strauss Proposal at the City's Common Council
meeting today, October 20, 2020.

The School is located approximately 1-mile northeast of the proposed slaughterhouse site, and
we have significant concerns and objections that were not adequately considered by the City's
Plan Commission. The School believes that the Strauss Proposal will have a substantial and
undue detrimental impact on the School's property, create potential safety hazards for our
students, staff, and visitors, and adversely impact the overall health, safety, morals, comfort,
and general welfare of our surrounding community. See City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO) $ 15-3.0701 Specifically, the proposed industrial slaughterhouse will likely
diminish the value of the School's property and other surrounding properties. The Strauss
Proposal will add to the traffic congestion and safety concerns on Loomis Road and surrounding
streets as a result of large semi-trailer trucks bringing an anticipated 500 head of cattle to the
proposed slaughterhouse daily. The Strauss Proposal is further likely to impact air quality, and
the storage of more than 16,000 lbs of toxic, highly-pressurized ammonia at the storage site
poses a public safety risk that the City is not equipped to address in the event of an accident or
mishap

The Plan Commission did not appropriately consider the Standards set forth mn UDO $ 15
3.0701 nor fully address the concerns, questions, and requests of the community during the



Mayor Steve Olson
Common Council Members
October 20, 2020
Page2

October 8 hearing. Instead, the majority of the Plan Commissioners either ignored the public's
concerns or dismissed these concerns with conclusory statements.

Despite the nearby residential homes and other planned residential development, neither
Strauss nor the City presented any analysis, appraisal or other consulting report on the impact
the slaughterhouse will have on property values in the community or neighborhood. Instead the
City Assessor merely stated that he cannot know what impact the slaughterhouse will have on
property values until after it is constructed and operating. In addition to the stigma associated
with living near a slaughterhouse, air quality and sanitation is important to the School and the
surrounding community and will impact the desirability of the area Other than stating that there
will be "air scrubbers" in the wastewater treatment areas of the slaughterhouse, neither the Plan
Commission nor Strauss presented any analysis, environmental impact or other study regard mg
the foul odors that will be generated and the increased emissions from the slaughterhouse and
its added truck and automobile traffic.

Similarly, the Plan Commission and Strauss have not presented any plan for addressing the
increase mn flies, cockroaches, parasites, rodents, and vermin that will be attracted to the
slaughterhouse and traveling into our community along with the continuous loads of cattle and
manure. The City and Strauss have also not presented a strategy to manage the risk of
transmission of zoonotic diseases and waterborne illness created by the large herds of cattle
and associated manure and waste containing microbes and pathogens. Additionally concerning
to the School is the lack of consideration given to the impact the large-scale slaughterhouse
operation will have on traffic in the area. Both City and Company officials have confirmed that
no traffic study was done to analyze the impact of the slaughterhouse on the area's roads and
streets. There will be numerous large trucks bringing approximately 500 head of cattle to the
facility every day, but there was no other detail provided in terms of the specific routes that will
be utilized or other safeguards to mitigate safety concerns. The safety of our students, parents
and staff is of paramount importance to the School and during morning drop-off and afternoon
pick-up there Is already significant traffic volume in the area. Because of the number of
students that attend the School from a long distance, the School utilizes many buses to ensure
that no child spends more than 45 minutes traveling to the School. Adding large semi-trailer
trucks to the already busy combination of parent vehicles and buses presents a significant risk
to the safety of our students, parents, and staff.

Lastly, the Strauss Proposal includes the use of over 16,000 lbs of highly-pressurized ammonia
that will be piped throughout the slaughterhouse from a holding tank containing more than
12,000 gallons of the toxic chemical. The City's Fire Department has expressed concern about
the safety hazard that this presents to the community and the lack of adequate facilities and
equipment to address this nsk Other than stating that the EPA will require a safety plan and
"detectors," neither the Plan Commission nor Strauss considered or presented any analysis of
the risks presented and the necessary steps to mitigate this hazard Under the Emergency
Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), the slaughterhouse must submit a
Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for the large volume of ammonia to the Local Emergency
Planning Committee (LEPC) and State Emergency Response Commission (SERC), but the
Plan Commission and Strauss have not presented such proposed MSDS for evaluation.



Mayor Steve Olson
Common Council Members
October 20, 2020
Page3

Overall, we believe there are significant gaps and omissions in the City's review of the Strauss
Brands proposal Due to the unresolved questions on increased traffic and odors; the safety of
nearby residents because of the significant amount of stored ammonia on site, the unknown
effect on air and water quality; and other issues, we believe the Strauss proposal requires
further study and analysis from experts and other independent voices. Until these issues are
resolved, we at the Indian Community School cannot support the Strauss Brands proposal.
Accordingly, we urge the Council to table the proposal at this time to obtain the necessary
expert and independent venficat1on More transparency, further scientific review and increased
community dialogue will help build more trust that the final decision is the best outcome for the
City. We respectfully request that the City Council defer action on this important matter until
such time as these critical tasks can be undertaken. We at the Indian Community School stand
ready, willing and able to be active participants in this process

Sincerely,

INDIAN COMMUNITY SCHOOL

cc Bret A Rage, Esq



Heath Eddy

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Joy Draginis-Zingales <bellissimadesrgn@icloud.com>
Thursday, February 17, 2022 3:15 PM
Heath Eddy
Meeting

I would like to share my personal belief, observations and experiences with Mayor Olsen and the majority of the
Aldermen/Alderwomen and officials serving on the many City Boards, as I feel this information is pertinent to tonight's
meeting regarding the Strauss development.
As the City was going through the process of approvals regarding the ROC / BPC development, much of if not every
complaint noted in the Strauss lawsuit dated 2/14/2022 are the exact issues and concerns brought forward to the city of
Franklin elected officials by the neighbors. With that said, there is a very similar parallel to the approval "process", lack
of Due Diligence, non compliance of the UDO, non compliance of ordinances and state statutes, as well as lack of third
party studies required on the side of the City. These are Just a few of the protocols in my personal experiences and
opinion that were not followed in the approval process again regarding the ROC/ BPC development. I am sharing this
information with you as I feel it shows intent and common practice by the city and should be a consideration in you' re
vote regarding the proposed Strauss development tonight. I am asking you to vote NO to Strauss.
Thank you for your tmme, Joy Draginis-Zingales

Sent from my iPhone

Sent from my iPhone

1



February 14, 2021

Via Email

Jesse Wesolowski
City Attorney
City of Franklin
9299 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Objection Position Statement on Strauss Brands Special Use Permit.

Dear Mr. Wesolowski:

Please accept this correspondence on behalf of my clients Franklin Community
Advocates, et al. regarding the proposed Special Use Permit request that is to be taken up
at the Plan Commission meeting of February 17, 2022. I would appreciate it if you
would please include this correspondence in the record and supply a copy to all Plan
Commission members and staff.

I. Summary.

The current 152,000 S.F. initial phase of the Strauss Slaughterhouse Proposal,
with its additional guarantee of a 130,000 S.F. cold storage facility, fails to meet the
ordinance standards, will harm the surrounding property owners, diminish property
values, and reduce the long term tax base of the area. The project, if completed as
currently proposed, will not increase the tax base of the subject properties, as represented
by the Mayor. The Mayor has erroneously stated that the tax base value of the
development will be $70 Million. However, the contractual guarantee, only requires that
Strauss provide an investment of $20 Million. Other alleged benefits of the development
such as those discussed in the economic paper provided by the applicant and Alder
Hanneman, are speculative, irrelevant to the legal standard at issue, and not substantial
evidence.

In addition, a proper alternatives analysis has not been completed pursuant
to UDO $ 15.3-0701(c). And, as is known, City staffhave been directed by
political officials, to recommend approval of the project in the past, despite their
concerns about its merits.

1



IL Theproposedprojectfails to demonstrate compliance with UDO $ 15-3-0701.

A. Detrimental effect on adjacentproperty values.

The City's Ordinances as set forth at Ord. $ 15-3.0701 prohibit the decision
making body of the City to approve a Special Use Permit unless the proposed use
satisfies several requirements including but not limited to as follows:

No special use permit shall be recommended or grantedpursuant to ths
Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish thefollowing

2 The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or
undue adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacentproperty,
the character ofthe area, or the public health, safety, morals, comfort,
and general welfare and not substantally diminish and impairproperty
values within the communty or neighborhood

The City's ordinances and Wis. Stats. § 62.23(7)de) ("Act 67) require that the
applicant for a special use permit, here, Strauss Brands, must demonstrate, through
substantial evidence, that it satisfies all applicable requirements prior to being granted
that permit.

This is a very significant point in this matter. The Applicant, Strauss, has the
burden of showing that it satisfies the written requirements in the ordinance. The
applicant must provide actual facts to support any assertions that the project will not
diminish adjacent and surrounding property values. These facts must be substantial
evidence. They cannot be anecdotal assertions, conclusory opinions, or speculation.

To date, the applicant Strauss has failed to provide substantial evidence that satisfies the
requirements of UDO§ 15-3.0701. A document entitled economic study has been
submitted. The study appears to have been prepared by one of the Alders (Ms.
Hanneman) for Strauss. The study makes assertions about alleged positive economic
impact for the City as a whole. However, the analysis and conclusion are speculative at
best and demonstrably inaccurate at worst. As noted in the attached analysis of the
Strauss/Hanneman study:

Ifeverything goes well (farfrom a guarantee), for 20+ years, Strauss' tax
dollars wll go to pay offthe TIF, adding nothmng to the cty coffers Ifwe
had smply let a developer bald homes there, we would be making tax
revenue already But even more importantly, slaughterhouses are so
universally revled, what ft drags down the value ofsurrounding
property? That could make this whole development a net loss to Franklin
for years to come.

See "An Analysis ofStrauss Economc Paper " Exhbt A attached hereto

2



In addition, FCA has engaged its own expert on this issue, CohnReznick. Their
full analysis is forthcoming, but on a very preliminary basis, there appears to be a strong
correlation between a decline in property values based on distance from a slaughterhouse.
This property value study intends to utilize all existing data via previous studies and
current appraisal tools, and will quantify the actual loss to property value in Franklin, and
more specifically to the surrounding residences. This is a firm that is routinely engaged
by Businesses and/or Municipalities to create this type of study, which the City of
Franklin should have absolutely required Strauss to produce. It is unclear how both the
Planning Commission and the Common Council could have possibly approved this
application without this information. As they have failed to provide this within the past
15 months, Franklin Community Advocates has taken on this significant expense, on
behalf of the residents in Franklin, to provide at least the minimum required to render a
valid decision. Two exhibits are currently attached to show the issues the new study will
address, and the areas, via concentric circles where property values will be directly re
evaluated based on the study findings. ExhibitB & C

In summary, there is no substantial evidence supporting a conclusion that the
proposed facility will not substantially diminish adjacent and surrounding property
values. On the contrary, until the CohnReznick study is finished and provided, or some
other like study produced by a 3"party team of experts, the proposed project cannot be
granted a SUP as a matter oflaw because it violates 15.3-0701(2).

B. Failure to conduct alternatives analysis.

Pursuant to the UDO, before the Plan Commission or the City Council may grant
any SUP, they must engage in the following considerations:

Consderations. In determining whether the applzcant's evidence
establzshes that theforegoing standards have been met, the Plan
Commisson and the Common Councl shall consder thefollowng

1 Public Benefit Whether and to what extent theproposed use and
development at theparticular location requested snecessary or desrable
to provde a servce or afaclity that is mn the nterest ofthepublc
convenience or thatwll contrbute to the general welfare ofthe
nezghborhood or community

2 Alternatzve Locatzons Whether and to what extent suchpublic goals
can be met by the locatzon oftheproposed use and development at some
other ste or in some other area that may be more appropriate than the
proposedste.

3 Mztzgation ofAdverse Impacts Whether and to what extent allsteps
posszble have been taken to mnmze any adverse effects oftheproposed
use and development on the immediate vicinty through buildng design,
ste design, landscaping, and screenmng

3



4. Establishment ofPrecedent ofIncompatible Uses n the Surroundng
Area Whether the use wll establsh a precedent of, or encourage, more
mntensrve or ncompatble uses mn the surrounding area

See UDO $ 15.3-0701(c)

A review of the staff analysis provides no actual facts to support proper
considerations of these requirements.

1. As noted above, there is no demonstrable public benefit from this
proposed development in terms of tax base or ripple economic effects.
Furthermore, there is no reasonable study demonstrating the overall effect
on area property values, to assure that this development would not result
in a net loss for the city for years to come.

2. This location was not chosen by Strauss. In fact, the location was so odd,
and counter-intuitive, that then President of Strauss, Jerry Busan stated on
April 25", 2017, when this location was first brought to him, "are we not
concerned about the subdivision west of the land site?" He emphasized
this point further on May 3"" of that same year by stating, "To be clear,
this is the land we are discussing? With the house in the woods, the
subdivision, and other houses on Loomis, wouldn't this lead to an uproar
from residents?" Exhibits D & E

Strauss originally wanted to go into the new business park being
developed right next to the freeway, where a new off ramp leads right into
the property. Since Strauss will bring in 500 head of cattle every night,
between Midnight and 8AM, on large, noisy semis, and there is no new
subdivision of half million dollar plus homes adjacent to it, how is it
humanly possible to not cosider that area aMUCHpreferred location?

3. Very few steps have been taken, let alone all possible steps, to minimize
negative impacts. Strauss has dictated the terms of what they will build
from nearly the beginning. When asked about adding some type of
decorative panels to help disguise the large, ugly, almost windowless
structure, they simply responded that was too expensive. How is it that
the applicant dictates to the approver what requests they will comply with?

4



Furthermore, the Fire Chief brought up issues with regards to having large
amounts of ammonia (highly flammable and explosive) upwind from
adjacent residential areas. As there is no way to correct this issue, since
the slaughterhouse requires the ammonia, and the new residential
component has already begun construction, apparently this very valid
concern is just being ignored. Exhibit F.

Even more concerning, virtually all language regarding limits, restrictions,
and resolutions available to the City were eliminated from the Strauss
proposal. This effectively provides little or no control to the City or the
residents, regarding the new Strauss facility, which will initially be four
times the size of the current one, but essentially unregulated in terms of
the volume of cattle they can slaughter per day. Exhbit G

4. This proposal, in conjunction with the overall Loomis Business Park, of
which it is a part, will establish the most detrimental precedent in
Franklin's history. A "Business Park" with no land zoned for "business,"
with the literally unbelievable precedent of allowing heavy industry to
build facilities right next to new subdivisions. This will not only be
precedent setting for Franklin, but the entire country as a whole. Might
there be some rationale why no other community has ever attempted
something so odd and potentially problematic?

C. Staffanalysis is inaccurate and incomplete.

The Staffreport is conclusory and contrary to the City's ordinances. A review of
two key requirements demonstrates the inadequacy of the staff analysis and report.

Regarding UDO§ 15.3-0170(1) the staffreport provides as follows:

1. Ordinance and ComprehensiveMasterPlan Purposes and Intent.
Staffcomment: The development s compatible wth the lmted mndustral
zoning district (M-1) thatprovdesfor "manufacturing, ndustrial and
warehousing uses" and the Business Park desgnaton ofthe
Comprehensve Plan.

5



It is obvious that the project is compatible with the M-1 zoning, since that zoning
was apparently adopted specifically to accommodate this development. The issue is
whether the M-1 zoning, and this project, are compatible, and indeed consistent, with the
Comprehensive plan covering this region of the City. They are not.

The Staffreports merely asserts that the slaughterhouse is compatible with the
"Business Park" designation. This is no analysis at all, and this is, in fact, inaccurate.

The City Comprehensive Plan designates the area covering the Strauss parcel and
the surrounding properties as "Areas ofNatural Resource Features and also Business
Park." According to the City's Comprehensive Plan, new developments are required to:

Protect all Open Lands. The only development allowed in the Open Lands
are compatiblepark, outdoor recreation, open space, trail, and
stormwatermanagementfacilities as approved by the City, in accordwth
all existing regulatons Surrounding development shall not create a
significant adverse impact upon the visual connections to the natural
resourcefeatures or to the sustainability oftheprotected landscape.
Surrounding development shall not increase erosion or untreated
stormwater runoffofsurrounding lands

Business Park uses according to the Comprehensive Plan are intended for lzmzted
intensity uses, intended to provde an aestheticallypleasingenvironment, and a unified
design and ownership which exceed 20 acres in size. The Strauss proposal is
incompatible with, and inconsistent with, the City's Comprehensive Plan, and therefore
may not be approved pursuant to the UDO § 15.3-7010(1) and Wis. Stats. § 66.1001 (3).

The Staffreport provides the following regarding the second requirement of
§ 15.3-0701:

2. No UndueAdverse Impact.
See Fire Department comments below
Wzth regards to obnoxious odors and noise. The applicant stated that "the
wastewater treatment room isfitted wth ar scrubbers to elminate odors
The cattle barns and harvest areas are ventlatedwth a high volume of
outside air to dzsszpate buildup ofodors Trucks/trailers used to remove
hdes and nedble waste are kept in enclosed dock areas to eliminate
spread ofodors Allprocesses arepreformedwithmn the buldmng whch
wll elmmnate nose concerns Nose generaton wll be lmted to truck
traffic ofapproximately 20 trucksper day".

This analysis and recommendation are deficient on their face. They do not
address the bulk of the requirements in 15.3-0701(2), which are as follows:

2 Theproposed use and development will not have a substantial or
undue adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacentproperty,

6



the character ofthe area, or the public health, safety, morals, comfort,
and general welfare and not substantially diminsh and mpairproperty
values wthin the communty or neighborhood

See UDO§ 15 3-0701 (2)

The staff, and the applicant, must show that the proposed use and
development will "not substantially diminish and impair property values within
the community or neighborhood." There is nothing in the current record, or the
Staff report, or the applicant's submission to date, that comes close to substantial
evidence supporting this finding. It is obvious that a slaughterhouse will
substantially diminish and impair property values within the community and
neighborhood. FCA's expert analysis, which due to this matter being scheduled
without consultation with FCA, is forthcoming, will no doubt confirm this
obvious conclusion.

Ill Recusal ofpublic officials - lack ofdueprocess.

The decision on whether to deny or grant an SUP is not a political or legislative
decision. It is a quasi-judicial decision. One that requires the application of specific
facts about a particular project, on a particular site, in a particular area of the City,
affecting a subject property, and those adjacent and surrounding that subject property.
The project can only be approved if it meets written criteria in the law of the ordinances.
This is not a decision that is about whether the owner of the property is a good guy, or
whether decision-makers "feel like this is a good project." The determination that must
be made is whether the true, non-speculative facts satisfy the ordinance language.

Neutral application of the law to the actual facts of a particular project is
fundamental to providing adequate due process to both applicants and adjoining
property owners. Thus, the Wisconsin Supreme Court has made it clear that a
demonstration of bias by decision-makers in favor of an applicant, or against a
party to a proceeding, violates due process:

The zoning decsion n thus case requires that the Board examine a specific
pece ofland and the activities ofa particularproperty owner. It must
engage infact-findng and then make a decison based on the applcaton
ofthosefacts to the ordinance In this case, where establshed crtera
direct the Board'sfact-findng and decson-making, Marris should expect
that a decison wll be made on the bass ofthefacts and the law

See Marris v. City ofCedarburg, 176 Wis.2d 14, 26 (1991).

In fact, with regard to this development, Mayor Olson seems to have clearly
confused his role, with that of being either an employee of, or advocate for Bear
Development, the project developer for the entire Loomis Business Park. Prior to the
original Plan Commission Meeting, or Common Council Hearing for the Strauss

7



approval, Mayor Olson worked with both SR Mills and Randy Strauss, because he
thought it would be a good idea if they "planned out a strategy" together, in order to
ensure their success in this matter. This is the polar opposite of how this is intended to
work. How could a Mayor, who is so biased, he actively and unabashedly works directly
on behalf of the applicant and the developer, then put himself in the position of having
the deciding vote that will/could reject their SUP request? Exhbit H

And the revelations, that City staffhave been directed by the Mayor, to vote in
favor of projects, despite, based on their expertise, any concerns they may have had, also
shows a serious problem with a fair process. Exhbt I

For all these reasons, it is reasonable and appropriate that the Mayor recuse
himself from this decision. Ifthe Mayor publically came out against a building permit
for a homeowner who happened to have voted against him, no one would question that
was wrong. Or if in this case, the Mayor made harsh and negative comments against
Strauss, there is no doubt, Strauss would seek his recusal from the issue. The same
applies here. The participation of a decision-maker who has displayed a bias in favor of,
or against a particular project, renders that decision void for a failure to provide sufficient
due process.

IV. Conclusion.

Based on the above, the Plan Commission must recommend against the proposed
SUP.

Very truly yours,

Electronically signed byJoseph R Cincotta

Joseph R Cincotta

Cc: Attorney Rich Manthe
Attorney Remzy Bitar

8



AnAnalysis of the Strauss Economic Paper
written byAlderman Shari Hanneman

How will the development of a 280,000+ sq ft slaughterhouse and cold
storage facility (for perspective, 1/4 the size of Southridge Mall) positively or
negatively impact both the residential neighborhood where it is to built, as well as

the overall community of Franklin. No proper, in-depth, 3rd party, overall

economic study, was ever produced by the City of Franklin, or required to be
produced and paid for by Strauss Brands, even though it was requested by the

citizens of Franklin for the past 15 months. Aid. Shari Hanneman then created an
eight page paper in an attempt to at least provide something to exist within this

huge and obvious void.

Aid. Hanneman should be congratulated for not passing the buck, and

rightly recognizing that there should be information on what economic effects an

enormous and, on the surface, a very counter-intuitive slaughterhouse
development would have on Franklin. After all, per the city's own records, this
development will include large cattle pens, a kill floor, carcass coolers, cold

storage, trucking docks, etc., all adjacent to neighborhoods and new home

developments. But unfortunately, in stepping up to the plate, Aid. Hanneman has

created a whole host of additional issues.

First, the paper is entirely inadequate, as it has one narrow focus, and
requires the use of an economic model that would not logically be applicable here.
An even bigger issue has to do with Strauss branding Ald. Hanneman's paper with

their own cover page. This now suggests, she was either acting as an agent for

Strauss, or acting as a 3rd party providing them an analysis to use. Either way,

she would most certainly be conflicted out of voting on whether the Strauss

EXHIBIT A



proposal moves forward or not. She could however be called on to participate in a
subsequent hearing to testify to her methodology and results.

I make the above point, to show how upside down this whole ongoing issue
has been, and how dysfunctional the operation of our City's government has
become. The defendants in this case have produced a short, biased, wholly
insufficient paper to suggest their request "must be approved", and that somehow
this incredibly minimal, hearsay effort will satisfy Act 67. Ironically, it was then
FCA that was forced, at great expense, to be the entity that hired a national team
of experts to research and complete a true study on the economic impact of this
giant slaughterhouse proposal. Again, our topsy-turvy Alice in Wonderland form of

municipal government continues.

I refer to Aid. Hanneman's effort as a "paper" as it is 8 pages in length.
Those of you that have had to read full blown economic studies, know they
usually cover a myriad of details which often require hundreds of pages for proper
analysis. FCA has no idea how long our "study" will end up being, as it has yet to
be completed. However, when finished, we feel certain that it will not only be very
detailed, but will also be very enlightening to all Franklin home owners and
taxpayers. In the meantime, let's analyze what Strauss has provided (via Aid.
Hanneman) to support the granting of their special use permit {SUP) which is
required to put their development in motion.

Unfortunately we have issues with this paper right out of the gate. The 2nd
sentence under the introduction states, "The most generally accepted and widely
used analytical method is the Input-Output Model (I-O)." In fact there are 2

economic models:

• Input-Output

• Economic Simulation



While the Input-Output model may be used more frequently, it probably has more
to do with the fact that it is easier to run and produce than an Economic
Simulation model. The benefit to the more laborious 2nd model, is that it also
incorporates future economic changes created by the subject development.
Possibly of greater issue is, this study fails to mention or incorporate other models
that could be run to provide more accurate overall results, and overcome some of
the issues with the 1-0 Model in this specific case, including:

• Social Impact Assessment

• Environmental Impact Assessment

• Cost-Benefit Analysis

When you consider we're dealing with a slaughterhouse, which is uniquely
different to almost all other businesses, in particular with regards to inputs and
employment, the 1-0 model becomes a flawed choice as your only point for
economic assessment. That leads us to the 2 major flaws with this paper:

1. As is true with virtually any analytical paper - garbage in/garbage out

2. The 1-0 model works best when utilized to justify large projects, with large
required expenditures, that actually provide something desirable of benefit to the
overall community (think Fiserv Forum, Drexel Town Square}

GARBAGE IN / GARBAGE OUT

If the citizens of Franklin are being asked to fund an $8.SMillion TIF/TID to
create the infrastructure needed for this giant slaughterhouse, and are being
required to stomach the noise, pollution, traffic and smells this will bring (among
other things), and if we ignore the obvious degradation to our "quality of life," we
still want to know what great financial benefit we will receive in exchange. The

first issue in determining that has to do with inputting the appropriate



figures/information into the model. Aid. Hanneman starts with the construction
value of the facility to be built, and places that at $60Million, with an additional
$12Million in equipment.

The problem with using these figures, is that Strauss is only contractually
guaranteed to make a total investment of $20Million. So right off the bat, she is
running an economic model, with an initial investment figure inflated to more than
triple the actual guaranteed amount. And if Strauss really does want to make that
level of investment, they've had 15 months to sign a new contract guaranteeing
that higher dollar amount. Spoiler alert- they have not. I'll save you the pain of
having to go through all the other figures. As Strauss always was a private
company, and now is owned by a private equity fund (through majority share
control), none of their financials are required to be, or have ever been made
public. Any information used for a study like this, therefore must rely on what the
key interested (and biased) party chooses to provide. We have no possible way to
verify whether the figures are factual or not, or even if they are in the ballpark of

reality.

ODD USE OF THE I-O MODEL

This brings me to the second even bigger problem. Alderman Hanneman

concludes the overall net positive effect to just Franklin alone, will be an increase of

$162.1Million. But if we attempt to unpack this total, the problem quickly

becomes apparent. So when we look at the first category- direct effect spending
we're considering things like raw inputs and salaries paid. In the unique case of a
slaughterhouse, the greatest input is cattle. As there are no cattle farms in
Franklin, the city gains nothing from the largest input. But lets jump to salaries
then. Strauss has admitted, the highest number of Franklin residents ever working
there at one time was 3. So we have 3 taxpayers using their salaries to support
their homes here, and other businesses like restaurants and grocery stores. So



far, we're at about $180k in direct effect benefit then. OK, granted, that's a slow
start, but we have more to cover.

We want to also look at all wage earners, not just local citizens. Granted
those not living here will not be supporting a house, so will add less to the coffers,
but they will still eat at restaurants, shop at stores, etc.(or so this model predicts.)
Although Strauss does have a small contingent of white collar employees, the
majority of their workers are associated with the slaughtering, packing, and
required cleaning to keep the facility up and running. The average salary of these
workers, per Strauss, is $17 per hour. As these jobs are just as vile and disgusting
as one might imagine, the only people willing to take them, are the most
disadvantaged in our society.

In many cases, this group consists of poorly documented immigrants, who
need to keep a roof over their head and food on their tables, and can find no
better options. In fact, Strauss was forced to create a shuttle, as public
transportation does not come this far out, and many of their employees would be
unable to get to the slaughterhouse from their homes. This is in no way meant to
disparage these hard working individuals. They are people struggling to get by,
until they can improve their lot in life. My point here is, this group is not likely
going to restaurants or shops, and since they are shuttled in and out of our
community, they may very well spend no money in Franklin at all- yes, that's $0
additional dollars toward our direct effect benefit. While there are additional
inputs we can go through, I think this already serves to highlight the problems a
unique development, like a slaughterhouse, creates for the 1-0 Model.

There are still, however, other categories to consider. What about the
indirect and induced effects? This essentially refers to a snowball of money rolling
downhill, gaining both size and momentum at an increasingly rapid pace. This
expanding economic activity is what the 1-0 model hopes to account for through
the use of a multiplier. As other local businesses gain new money from this



development, they begin to spend and grow as well. Rising water (spending), lifts
all boats (businesses). Unfortunately, again, with our unique slaughterhouse
development, the story would translate to something truly odd:

After several years of growth, when busloads of school children come to Franklm for the

various slaughterhouse tours offered, and other tourists and visitors are drawn by this

development to our falf commumty, they will need somewhere to eat and stay. We'll need

more restaurants, more hotels, and the growth contmues. In add/tlon, when people

admire the beauty and unique benefit thus new slaughterhouse development brmngs,

these same visitors may decide to move here, building more homes and starting

additional new busmesses of theown.

Wait...what?! You can see how an 1-0 model works really well with a desired
development, like Fiserv Forum. The expense is high, there is a level of nuisance,
but the payoff is enormous in terms of the catalyst for growth. Unfortunately, a
slaughterhouse near nothing but homes and farms, where the only businesses
within a mile radius are two small taverns, becomes a very implausible candidate
for this type of study.

The study we need, is one that actually looks at what happens to our tax
base, and the value of our homes, since single family houses represent the
greatest concentration of structures for miles around the slaughterhouse. If
everything goes well (far from a guarantee), for 20+ years, Strauss' tax dollars
will go to pay off the TIF, adding nothing to the city coffers. If we had simply let a
developer build homes there, we would be making tax revenue already. But even
more importantly, slaughterhouses are so universally reviled, what if it drags
down the value of surrounding property? That could make this whole development
a net loss to Franklin for years to come.



And we have no idea how much damage may be done to Franklin's
reputation within our metro area, as we have no way to quantify and accurately
assess the cost when the perception of an area changes in the mind of the public,
from one that is appealing, to one that is undesirable. These are the things we need
to know, want to know, and deserve to know. Strauss should have been required
to provide this information, and it is unclear how the Planning Commission or
Common Council could grant their approvals without it. But, sadly, once again, it
is the overburdened residents of Franklin, and their supporters, who have had to
foot yet another bill ($25k) to get a truthful, reasonable answer, to these most
pertinent questions.

Executive D1rector
Frank.Im Commumty Advocates



Animal Operations and
Residential Property Values
l~r John f. hilpatrirk, PhD, \1-1 I

Proximity Case Studies
IHlpatrid,. presented a St'nes of east' -;tudu•s from
the 1990s that documt'nt the impacts of \Oo;;.1'' For
e,amp!t\ a \1innesota homeowner lied near tno
,m im• ·\Os ,, hen her family reportedly became Ill
and testing found that the lt'H'I of h_\drogt•n <,Ulfide
was well above the danger leels. An early study
m '\;orlh Carolma h;, Sdnffman et al. rt•ports Pmu
t10nal 1mpaet.;; (tl.'ll'>ton. dt'jJrt•:.sion, anger, reduced
\ 1µ:or, n1t1gue, anrl confusmn) lmkt•d to airborne
contammation ema11alm~ from an 4.0.::, ,\ l,tlt't'
North Carolmna study by Mg and olf reports
Increased Incidences ofheadache, runny nose, sore
throat, exeessre coughing, diarrhea, burning eyes,
and "rcdw·<·d qualil) of lift•.~~-• -\n early study in
lowa by Thu et al. finds creases mn t'}t' ,md upper
respiratory problems among tho'it> In inp; \-\ ithm 2
milr'i ol an \0. "' \ latt•r l,ma :-.tud}' find.:.; l"\t<'ll '>i\l'
litc•rnhin• docunwnting at·utt• and chrome 1·t•~pirn
lol') di'it'll'>t- and d) !<ii unction m110ng C·\FO ,rnrker-.
lrom exJmsun·); to complrx mixtun'" ofparlleulah'·s,
gases, and vapors; 1t concludes that CAFO ar em
<;ion--. mm con-.t1l11tc a puhlw health hazard

Taff, Ttffan). and \\e1slwrg perform a lwdon1c
prke anal)sis on 192 rural reside-net's in \lirrne~ota
and find a -,tatlsticall) signifieant prJC'ing impact
related both to the e,istence of an .\0 as nell as
the distance to the ~0.'1 .\ l 996 study by Padgett
and Johnson finds that home~,, 1th111 0.5 mile of a
C \FO dt•crease m ,alue by 40%, and homes w 1thm
1.0 nule decrease m \ alut• h.} 3()1'ro. ,, ithin 1.5 mitt,-,

by 20%, and withmn 2.0 mules by 10% '' Palmqu1 .. 1.
Hoka, and \'ub..urn quantutatiely determine that Vh
depress nearby home values. They develop a modt'I
tu nwasurf• tlw -.patml 1mp,u·ts or AO-. and, hke
Padgett and Johnson. find difft•reullal \ahH• 1mpnch
,ll 0.5, J .0, and 2.0 rmle,;. '"

t erall, the empteal rdene mi ,1\t'-. llt,1t
rt·sidenrt·s near \(h c11-.:• '>l~udk,mtl\ aflPctPd, and
data seems to snuggest a valuation mmpavt ofup to 26fl
tor nearby pr»pert#es, depending on d+stance, wml
dn·t•dmn. and utlwr t~wtot"> Furllwr, t!wre has been
sum' stug!on thatproperties mediately aluttng
an -\() c·an lw d11nu11.;;lwd n,; mud1 l.l'> 881it). One ,twh
stmates the totai negative impae? to property value
m Uw l ml~•d Stalt•,; al $1fibillum ... \t1l1gatmn mal,I'-. a
llMl'l!IUill impact

EXHIBITB



EXHIBIT C



Ffrm>:~Id &,:;w,, (11'.ai!to:J.erald~n<!s.c:mj
Sent: T<>;,<Aly, M.ly 02, 20117:52 Al'-!
To:Aaronlie<l2 t.....-g
Sulljed: Fra~l<lin Sire

~! y3u:ssen
5t!",J:jii 9 ;-,1:1\h t~;Gq:.-<t(-3\>M
,e-H•ce OC'-O•'S:52 TT~ v. l4H
C~! 765 22$,64$1
Qffo;~ ~ax 41.! d:?1 C(li,3
E Ma!~- i~takib;'6)1tu1.!!},.sj?!~~
eewrszasand$_zom
F3as c 5ace:k ;IL3rg,:54fg

rrvBu$e%
Sr3ass B3radscrsrareed

(e{! 76S 128-6461
Qr.icefa;i ~lA-4:! l -0098'
E MAd~1;f'MitJ!~:u;gm
,.- ...,w WJ:.JJ:p!';?;~d~ re~
~~:J.l-005a:C;t~~ "l •:ie:\·.:../~-~"1-. ,;: '"".f-.J__

Ill
from:Aaren Heruberg:fry- ~- ~ .!..t4.:.r-_; ::~:'..;{~fr1' __,;i(<!- £. -J
Seftt:Mc<-4.i-/ 4:ltil M. 2017 4:44 PM

EXHIBITD



•A~ i ·•·

~ f
}!?

=: ?.

IEXHIBIT E



FJont; Adam lll!mlngfJ:la
Sim:~.AllgVSt28,, 201910:3aAM
T~ GllMrlf Planlllng
Cc CTl.tl1alneHer,lr,SlfflllWaiclGrasll
MJecl:SpltlllV.atdSib!Ffilt,Slral.lssblflJfc.,W._..Rd.lClUIDSlllllt

{n atdiinto thegnmens bk.the fine deparrenr hasde flawingcon€cars,/comments.

Significant pangwith szorage/use of large quzitiesotammonia rutnediaehadjacentto and upeit -of
planned reskfeentel, €oenerca8, and multi-usedevespene .

a. ~ca,ros.wftmlllfft,alldpotential~ Jltotl!l f1/ff wm bepre,encIn l!Jiteventofa
relelH/fltak ~ fife.

z. Aruis poortr ser"9dby~ fil'lf g,Mlo/l loc;ationsand st.t fllng. Re'll(JflSetimeS f«Effi!ai¥e Res9a nse Fre
far fine adEMScalls-fr-sarvie, and energercy incident typeswht fikey eset accegtedindustrystandards
(possllJly siv,iflcan tlyJ farthtrefttire~

1

·(

Mail,J. Remln9fo, 1
l'WCIIW
Fmnk!lnFileDvpadaNmt
(414}431420
ammii lllinwiqpw

EXHIBIT F



I
i
£
l ,

Ia ...



JAN0$ QLSN: Are me cleer?
-~ 'IIIUJEU1 Sc . .... c.lmr. no 100.

l - .n(ISfill-~·ti.1& 1-MHt. 56 I -- ·lrt\to-lwd in i&t
.2 p;rd.tJ7fi ..t111 iJJI, !!111 J krmia- 11iMt:. it's l~. El.¢

3 ,f.~la. » :bl me nat:. -1:h: ,S-l.Jiht ·Jacntian, amt' .l:lfl"..ft Q.f the

·4 ~la1. -~~tt.ian!'I 1ilas UJ itfflk fer am a.lt:el"Mibe

S _ loeat~. I -dwtk~-~ ·tte tilt.Te' <wv by .zr~
& ~-. Qe~4-l'--• -~~ l --~ •t.t; -~ ,be

Y a~flt:, Y-fnf'sd 1\8\"S s bi ltng. It, wild tie
8 gush mope fissing, sh.his are, so
9

lO

1i,,'.J

.n pP~ C~c,Md 18! !i\4tl.iJ1llt, -~ ~~t~ .c.lm

12 -~dptUieyis" Fie jz 4s@ ±rs$ gig Pus±$, is'is

t3 .a¢ Jnel~-~ W-- that':

So to reiterate what came directly from the Nov. 2, 2020 transcript, not
only did the cm,nnon Council and Mayor reverse the SUP denial, they
provided virtually no limits ·on Strauss.

In the 1971 SUP,_whkh Strauss is currently operating under, they are:
-,subject to noise restrictions,
- subject to water restrictions,
- limited as tQ the volume and type ofanimals they can slaughter
- must respond to citizen complaints, or be shut down

Now, wi:th a new facility, 4 times the size, in a much more ecologically
.sensitive--area, where -tattle (as opposed to calves) will be killed, there a1
- no restrictionson thetype or volume.of animals to be slaughtered
- ·no restriction to the eventual size ofthe slaughterhouse

...,_ , ..J - no restriction to the amount of noise created
- no redress at all for neJghboring citizen complaints

If not illegal, it is obscene and a travesty to the tax payers of Franklin.

AL.DR##A/ TLIELjt Mayr. 9owcalled oms,
3$j4,$it8 3$ $6f : Alfereiasa i1helm.
A1.99£F7##3M4 lL.IE.4- 4 st4l tituk the bad

I count. 1s pretty Apr &gnt They'n wtll13B to"dl:t t.t;:. l

do'z krxie shy ye is3in" z do. «hat. Etterwiei, hi
i IL."WW. ~ OQii:W ~-~-:nth.-~ ,of. the 2cidest

t ~•-~~-~ ,l.tt t~ lJS,.

4 i±sex'teuf. vsjgea fr sue.. .gas up n 4 fan. #
~ e.~11)' did .raloo -~~- w.ertt- Cut for-- to-
3

) prooc~-sG>, f ~Un'/ 'iffllCh I soold "tmvB~-
2 bring t±str 8ld saps»:sai unpg fzari it, talks; si thro
l Ul.llt. .u" -t.hc.,y tia,.,u o1m: PllffiPl~nt. .aiuy have ill. -~

? within ,:,btllmlm m- ·t:ni!I mialth~~a
~- d<l'ffl1. So-~•$ r~U_y -~ t..,. in -that - JWt

-~ 'lffle"· 1""h$t governs 1hex iright no. £ sis@, )'Oil

$ #row. we wosld hoe been gin heat.. I wish rte
!i ple«ml!JS o:.:nt~iori -.mtbl lli-l\le _. 31~-~-~

? thg pal4c. hrtngg as going on -~••tgit; he
} ha sens$ cf€ this pr/1t30s ii theresirsgsid
hut a ltttl.~ M~ -~ 9f' ffil'J· ~.--.,~. t••~- ~

) llt.'"'IQW. mt ~UllB r-•lly ~~le·aliQut·t."'ie
I ~t~ f'r.m -mil"' c:awm1.tMty. Ami 1 p~ 1 ~
e to @gr&e nihi allernsa#eyer

EXHIBIT G



Fram; Steve Oson[naivto:steve-c!on@wi.n.cm]
Sent: Sunday, September 6, 20209.24 PM
To: Jeny eu-ii (jeraldb@srra ussbralldS.a:im), S.R. MIJIS; Randy Strauss
Slibject: Plan O!llmll$Si0n/Ccrllmon Coundl ir,ffilng planning

Genl!emen

l think it wovld be wise if we got together and pl<tnnedout a strategy fortheplan scommission adcommonounci ]
meetings COmi'18 upforti--.., special useand $lie plans fo, the faciliiy.

The earlier tile belter

SR, could you coordinate please?

Steve

Ste,o()l,;M
Mayr
City of Franlce'n
92Z!IWl.conil$Rd.
Fran klin.WI. 53132

414-4277529
3 414851-3387

Franklin

EXHIBIT H



STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT MILWAUKEE COUNTY

FRANKLIN COMMUNITY ADVOCATES, INC.,
WOODLAKE VILLAGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
CHAD and KARYN ZOLECKI, JEFF and DANELLE KENNEY,
RYAN and RACHEL RINGWELSKI,
STEVE VALLEE and COLLEEN DOMASK
NICK POPLAR, TOM and ALICE BENNING
MIKE and JOANNE ZOLECKI, DEAN REIN CaseNo. 20-CV-7031
ERIC and MICHELLE BALCEROWSKI
MELINDA HAMDAN Honorable Hannah Dugan

Plaintiffs,
V.

CITY OF FRANKLIN,

And

STRAUSS BRANDS, LLC,

Defendant,

Intervening Defendant.

AFFIDAVIT OF SARA HERR

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )
)

STATE OF WISCONSIN )

Sara Herr, being first sworn deposes and states as follows:
--.

1. My name is Sara Herr. My maiden name is Sara Arnold. I was married in 2020.

I am a resident ofMuskego and live at S83W13196 Hawks Trail.

2. Until recently Iworked for the City ofFranklin. My title was Assistant City

Engineer, and my duties included holding a supervisory role over three Departments:

Engineering; Public Works; Water and Sewer Utilities. I designed City utility and storm water

management projects and designed and managed the City Road Program. I reviewed all

1

EXHIBIT I



Case 2020CV007031 Document 108 Filed 07-16-2021 Page 2 of3

externally designed proposed projects for compliance with City, DNR, and MMSD requirements,

and managed consultants for City Construction Inspection and Storm Water Review contracts. I

handled all storm water and drainage complaints, along with other questions, from property

owners. I am a licensed, Professional Engineer, and my expertise is in the area of Land

Development.

3. I began my employment with Franklin in December of2015 and was promoted to

the position of Assistant City Engineer in March of 2017. On April 19, 2021, I was told my

services were no longer required and my last day of employment was April 30, 2021.

4. During my time with the City, I attended City Plan Commission (PC) meetings as

a voting member, when the City Engineer was unable to attend. This was part of my job and

duties for the City. I was often given short notice ofrequired attendance and was typically not

given time or assistance to review the various projects and items to be taken up at each session.

5. Mayor Olson has acted as the Chair of the PC during my tenure. At PC meetings

I was required to attend, I was instructed how to vote, regardless of my professional opinion, or

lack of knowledge on a particular item.

6. When the Agenda was cut and dry with no controversial items, the Engineering

seat on the PC was permitted to be vacant so long as a quorum could be reached. When

controversial items were on the Agenda and the Engineering vote was possibly required to pass

an item, either the City Engineer or I was required to attend. This is what occurred prior to the

Strauss SUP. The week prior to the PC meeting the City Engineer requested me to cover the

meeting, as he had approved vacation for that time. I also had approved vacation during this

same period, so I told him I could not. Mayor Olson then revoked my boss' vacation, to make

sure someone was present to steer the desired outcome.

2



;,;- · -. -., -, -. - --- . . ··'";;: 7? < · _• • - , , 7 .
-- .~-2SW3gerrs.-raga

$Poe so3
~-r

&ntt11roJJJSara'Berr

i,{.

. (.:lb!ta;na'. ,OitYEnglne~f~tl~ it :ilearto afl 08taff that the Strauss project

k .•. ,. I •lfflij'jtOViding thesefacts because they are true, and I believe that the public
-~: '!

-tllf>;Ptqved, This was despite numerous issues with the proposed site, some ofwhich

· _· ,J:>\lf~taftdtfl;g a;t ,the tune ·when my ,employment With the City ended.
~ ~ - > >

''.b.e!~Wl\t~ofhowth~ City has acted with regard to creating the Loomis Business Park,
·\ -:,-. '?~

_ 0 -:.! 't :r. ,

;_ gl11:g·it't{l,accott1rt1odate two large industrial developments, and moving forward with the-., ·•··, ·;

"-{-

Subscribed and Sworn to before me
~Thls /~4[: of July, 2021

- lSSlOil .· re» 31.34/2o5

3



Blank Page



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
March 1, 2022

Reports &
Recommendations

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 245-3 ITEM NO.
B STOPS REQUIRED TO ADD 24 LOCATIONS IN AND AROUND THE
NEW SUBDIVISIONS OF OAKES ESTATES, RYAN MEADOWS, AND G.4.

PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
BACKGROUND
On October 6, 2020, Ordinance No. 2020-2449 was adopted to Codify the Municipal Code
Sections 245-3.B. Stops Required and 245-3.D. Yields Required.

Since the time of the codification, there have been three subdivisions that have developed with
new stop signs. These streets are in and surrounding the developments of Oakes Estates, Ryan
Meadows, and Pleasant View Reserve. This ordinance will add 24 stop signs to the Municipal
Code.

ANALYSIS
The 24 locations are currently placed on public roads that have traveling public and need the stop
signs added to the Municipal Code for enforcement purposes.

OPTIONS
A. Adopt the new lists for stop intersections, Or
B. Provide further direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
No significant financial impact to the City.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Authorize Ordinance 2022- an ordinance to amend the Municipal Code section
245-3 B Stops Required to add 24 locations in and around the new subdivisions of Oakes Estates,
Ryan Meadows, and Pleasant View Reserve.

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 245-3 B STOPS REQUIRED
TO ADD 24 LOCATIONS IN AND AROUND THE NEW SUBDIVISIONS OF
OAKES ESTATES, RYAN MEADOWS, AND PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE

WHEREAS, three new subdivisions ofOakes Estates, Ryan Meadows, and Pleasant View Reserve
have recently been constructed in Franklin; and

WHEREAS, there are now 24 new stop signs in and around these subdivisions for the traveling
public.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin do hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION I. Section 245-3.B. of the Municipal Code is amended to add 24 locations for stop
signs as follows:

Stops required. Vehicles are required to stop at the following locations:

Location Direction of Required Stop
Travel

S. 49 Street and W. South S. 49 Street
Marquette Avenue

S. 50 Street and W. South S. 50 Street
Marquette Avenue

S. Bergamont Drive and Any direction Intersection of S.
W. Aster Street Bergamont Drive and

W. Aster Street
S. Bergamont Drive and Any direction Intersection of S.
W. Meadowview Drive Bergamont Drive and

W. Meadowview Drive
W. Aster Street and S. West S. 112 Street
112 Street
W. Loomis Road and W. West W. Chicory Street
Chicory Street
W. Marquette Avenue East and West W. Marquette Avenue
and S 49 Street
W. Marquette Avenue West W. Marquette Avenue
and S 51 st Street

W. Meadowview Drive East W. Meadowview Drive
and S. 112 Street

W. Meadowview Drive East W. Chicory Street
and W. Chicory Street



SECTION III.

SECTION IV.

Location Direction of Required Stop
Travel

W. Warwick Way and S. Any direction Intersection of W.
Cambridge Drive Warwick and S.

Cambridge Drive

W. Warwick Way and S. West W. Warwick Way
92' Street

W. Warwick Way and East W. Warwick Way
W. old Loomis Road

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its passage and publication as required
by law.

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in contravention to this Ordinance are hereby
repealed.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the day
of,2022, by Alderman

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the_day of> 2022.
APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson,Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



1-ww
0:::
I-

STOP SIGNS

Legend
Existing Stop Sign

i0 New Signs (12/04/2020 To 12/02/2021)

N

·-¢
s

RMA



CJ

%rn

Legend
@ Existing Stop Sign

• New Signs (12/04/2020 To 12/02/2021)

STOP SIGNS

N

·-¢
s

1-wwa::
I
C/)

RMA



STOP SIGNS

r
I
(!)

r
I-
Cf)

I
I-

r
Ico

l

o

Cf)

LO
Cf)

I-

•

Cf)

1-ww
0::

I-
Cf)
~
LO

Legend
9 Existing Stop Sign

8 New Signs (12/04/2020 To 12/02/2021)

N

A,y-
s

RMA



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Approval of a Full External Penetration Test
ofthe City's IT System

MEETING
DATE
3/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.5.
Below is information relative to and a recommendation related to the selection of a vendor to perform
penetration testing on the City's external/public facing gateways/firewalls for security purposes.

This item is being considered by the Technology Commission on February 28, 2022, and any recommendation
that is made by the Commission will be presented at the Common Council Meeting on Tuesday, March 1, 2022.

Background
It is considered sound security practice to perform security penetration testing on all Internet facing
gateways/firewalls throughout an organization. For publicly traded companies that are bound by PCI
(PaymentCard Industry) requirements, annual penetration testing mustbe performed with the results
incorporated into a risk matrix and presented to internal audit. It is strongly recommended that all
companies and government agencies perform a "white-hat human attack" against all perimeter
security systems at least on a two-year basis, preferably by a certified security professional with
skillsets specific to security penetration and vulnerability analysis. It is considered best practice to
perform a full security penetration testwhenever any significant change is made to the outward facing
perimeter technology, such has replacing firewalls or routers with new equipment. Penetration testing
can be performed on a regular basis using automated tools, such as Qualys or Rapid 7.

Analysis
A full security perimeter testnormally is performed within five stages: (1) planning and
reconnaissance, which defines the scope and goals as well as gathering intelligence; (2) scanning,
which inspects and analyzes how the target application will respond to various intrusion attempts;
(3) gaining access, which seeks unauthorized access to the systems; (4) maintaining access, which is a
persistent presence in the exploited system; and (5) analysis, which is compiling the results into a
report management.

To date, a full security penetration test has never been performed. This is a situation of "what you
don't know will eventually hurt you." Internet-based attacks are becoming highly sophisticated that
conventional hardening practices are no longer sufficient to block highly complex or coordinated
attacks.

On May 24, 2022, the Franklin Police Department is scheduled to have an on-site audit performed by
the FBI/DOJ for all existing IT security procedures and equipment. During this review, it is quite
possible that the auditing team may performboth internal and external penetration tests on all existing



equipment. The goal of the third-party penetration testis to identify and eliminate the largestpotential
risks that exist to the network today and to create a remediation list of required security changes. This
is a proactive approach being used to help protect the networks in a world of growing security threats
and to prepare for the upcoming audit.

Fiscal Impact
$73,500 was authorized by the Common Council for carryover into 2022 for this and other security
related purposes. This specific penetration testing is expected to cost between $19,000 and $23,000,
depending on the vendor selected. And, the funds willbe taken from the Information Services Budget,
Sundry Contractors, Account Number 01-0144-5299.

Recommendation
It is recommended by the Director of IT that a certified security professional perform a full penetration
test and mimic the common attack vectors that would be used in both traditional and sophisticated
hacking attempts. A vulnerability assessment will identify each vulnerability along with the level of
risk, which will then be incorporated into the City's IT Security Risk Matrix. Once identified by the
security professional, each attack vector and risk will be remediated.

Two penetration testing vendor proposals will be before the Technology Commission at their meeting on Monday,
February 28, 2022. The Director of Administration will apprise the Council of the Technology Commission's
action/recommendation to the Common Council for this item at the Council Meeting on March 1, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve an agreement with --------~ in the amount of
$ .to perform a full external penetrationtest of the City's IT System and to authorize
the Director of Administration to execute the appropriate, related agreement for the same.

DOA-PS



APPROVAL

Sl
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION FOR A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC. FOR

ENGINEERING SERVICES RELATED TO
S. 50TH STREET RECONSTRUCTION AND ASSOCIATED

WATER MAIN FROM W. MINNESOTA AVENUE SOUTH TO THE
TERMINATED END OF 50TH STREET IN PLEASANT VIEW

RESERVE AND WATER MAIN EXTENSION IN W. MINNESOTA
AVENUE FROM S. 51 ST STREET TO S. 49TH STREET, THEN 50

FT NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $52,500

MTG. DATE
March 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.6.

BACKGROUND
On February l, 2022, Common Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-7819, a preliminary
resolution declaring "intent to exercise special assessmentpowers ... for installation ofa water
main along W Minnesota Avenue from a point ofconnection at the intersection ofS. 51st Street
to the intersection ofS. 49th Street and then to a point oftermination approximately 50feet north
ofW Minnesota Avenue, and set thepublic hearing datefor April 4, 2022, at 6·30 p.m "

A project to only include the S. 50" Street roadway improvements and a watermain along S. 59h

Street then westward to S. 51 st Street along W. Minnesota Avenue was at a 90% design completion.
The analysis in the February 2, 2022, Council Action noted that "The additional watermain will
require additional engineering. "

ANALYSIS
Staff has asked Excel Engineering, Inc. to provide a proposal for the additional engineering to
complete the design and assist Staff with construction services. Excel was previously involved in
the design of the roadway and watermain. The enclosed scope of work warrants a lump sum fee
of $52,500.

The previous project budget was $140,000 (water) + $60,000 (road) = $200,000. The project
budget will need to be updated once survey commences. Including the engineering efforts, Staff
recommends a total budget of at least $325,000. This budget will be refined as the project is
prepared to bid.

To prepare for the public hearing date of April 4, 2022, an engineer's report will be prepared and
distributed on or before March 4, 2022. This report will estimate the funds needed from special
assessments, water impact fees, and other funds previously earmarked for this project.

Staff also requests permission from Common Council to bid this project at the earliest possible
opportunity.

FISCAL NOTE:
Very preliminary, but combined with the 2021 estimate and budget, this project assumes a 2022
budget of $60,000 (Fund 47- road)+ $123,000 (special assessments)+ $69,500 (water utility)+
$72,500 (miscellaneous water extensions)= $325,000.

OPTIONS:
Approve or deny contract with Excel Engineering to assist with this work.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) A motion to adopt Resolution 2022- A Resolution for a Professional Services
Agreement with Excel Engineering, Inc. for Engineering Services Related to S. 50th Street
Reconstruction and Associated Water Main from W. Minnesota Avenue South to the Terminated
End of 50th Street in Pleasant View Reserve and Water Main Extension in W. Minnesota Avenue
from S. 51 st Street to S. 49th Street, then 50 Ft North ofthe Intersection in the Amount of $52,500.

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 ---

A RESOLUTION FOR A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC. FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES RELATED TO

S. 50"H STREET RECONSTRUCTION AND ASSOCIATED WATER MAIN FROM W.
MINNESOTA AVENUE SOUTH TO THE TERMINATED END OF SOT STREET IN

PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE AND WATER MAIN EXTENSION IN
W. MINNESOTA AVENUE FROM S. 51° STREET TO S. 49" STREET, THEN 50 FT

NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $52,500

WHEREAS, the City desires to improve S. 50th Street south of W. Minnesota Avenue to
the terminus of a road constructed as part of the Pleasant View Reserve subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to extend a watermain in the same section of S. 50 Street,
and connect to a new watermain extending from S, 51" Street to S, 49 Street; and

WHEREAS, Excel Engineering, Inc. is a qualified engineering firm to provide
transportation and potable water designs and has unique knowledge of the particular issues
associated with this project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, to authorize Excel Engineering, Inc. to design and bid a
transportation and watermain project in the vicinity of S. 50 Street and W. Minnesota Avenue in
the lump sum amount of $52,500.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City ofFranklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOESABSENT



AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this day of between the City of
Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and Excel
Engineering, Inc. (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR), whose principal place of business is 100 Camelot
Drive, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin 54935.

WITNESS ETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provide 5O Street Reconstruction from Minnesota Ave to Pleasant
View Reserve and Water Main Extension in Minnesota from 51Street to 49" Street;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT
construction administration, construction staking, and
CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT dated February 11, 2022,

for survey, design, bidding,
as-builts, as described m

A. annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing services
hereunder are employees of, or independent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance Contribution Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and income tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

D. During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions
thereto, and for a penod of one (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party.

Page-1



II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described in Attachment A, with a lump sum fee of $52,500, subject to the terms
detailed below:

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of $52,500. For services rendered, monthly
invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of work
completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT.

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONTRACTOR in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT's review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A.

B.

Glen Morrow, City Engineer will coordinate the work of the
CONTRACTOR, and be solely responsible for communication within the
CLIENT's organization as related to all issues originating under this
AGREEMENT.

CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

Page-2



C. CONTRACTOR will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Grant
Duchac CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key providers of the Basic
Services. Substitution of other staffmay occur only with the consent of CLIENT.

V. TERMINATION

A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convemence, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated. Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that is
incomplete due to early termination.

C. The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing in any other article of this AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the minimum limits set forth below:

A. General/Commercial Liability $2,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily injury,
(Must have General/Commercial) personal injury, and property damage

$4,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an additonal nsured on a
primary, non-contributory bass

B. Automobile Liability (Must have $1,000,000 combined single limit
auto lablty)

CITYshall be namedas an addtonal mnsured on a
primary, non-contributory bass

C. Contractor's Pollution Liability (If $1,000,000 per occurrence
applicable) $2,000,000 aggregate

CITY shall be namedas an addtonal nsured on a
primary, non-contrbutory bass.

Page-3



D. Umbrella or Excess Liability
Coverage for General/Commercial,
Automobile Liability, and
Contractor's Pollution Liability

$10,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 1Jury,
personal injury, and property
$2,000,000 minimum aggregate per person, per
aggregate

CITY shall be named as an addtonal nsured on a
primary, non-contributory bass

D. Worker's Compensation
Employers' Liability (Must
workers compensaton)

and Statutory
have Contractor wllprovide a waiver ofsubrogaton

and/or any rights ofrecovery allowed under any
workers' compensaton law.

E. Professional Liability (Errors & $2,000,000 single limit
Omissions) (Ifapplcable)

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional insured as required above.

VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A. A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages, including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs, caused by the negligent acts or
omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, directors, partners,
employees, and consultants in the performance of CONTRACTOR'S services under
this AGREEMENT.

B. B. Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or
estoppel of the contracting municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the
limitations, defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including
those contained within Wisconsin Statutes §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the
extent that indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or
its msurer shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than
the limits ofliability for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately having received a Notice to Proceed as of
March 2, 2022.

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee

Page-4



County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such litigation, including
reasonable attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism. The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
all applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of interest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is required for the CLIENT to
continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or provision of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thus AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY: _

PRINT NAME: Stephen R. Olson

TITLE: Mayor

Excel Engineering, Inc.

BY: _

PRINT NAME: Grant Duchac

TITLE: Project Manager

Page-5



[)A'['];

BY: _

PRINT NAME:

TITLE: City Clerk

DATE: _

BY: _

PRINT NAME: Bryan Tomczak

TITLE: Director of Finance and Treasurer

DATE: _

Approved as to form·

Jesse A. Wesolowski, City Attorney

DATE: _

DATE: February 11, 2022

Page-6

Sandra L. Wesolowski



ATTACHMENT A

February 11, 2022

City of Franklin
Attn: Glen Morrow, PE, City Engineer

Re: 50th Street Reconstruction from Minnesota Ave to Pleasant View Reserve and Water
Main Extension in Minnesota from 51st Street to 49th Street.

Dear Mr. Morrow,

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a proposal for the above-mentioned project. In
accordance with your request, Excel proposes the following scope of work for civil engineering
design & permitting for 50th Street Reconstruction from Minnesota Ave to Pleasant View Reserve
and Water Main Extension in Minnesota from 51st Street to 49th Street. Scope includes a water
main loop from the Pleasant View Reserve subdivision to extension in Minnesota Ave, within the
50" Street reconstruction area. The work will begin in late winter 2022 with all approvals to be
completed by summer 2022. It is anticipated that the construction phase will be during the
summer of 2022 and completed by fall of 2022. As incremental items are completed, they will be
provided to you for review and coordination.

Scope of Work: This proposal includes the following items broken down by category, in general
conformance of your request.

1. TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

Existing Conditions Topographic Survey- $3,700
• Provide design grade existing conditions Topography Survey for the right-of-way area

described above. Include adequate overlap into adjacent residential properties and
extending past the project scope area. Price assumes no snow cover at the time of the field
work. Title search not included.

2. CIVIL DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

Civil Engineering Design Development (DD) Documents - $5,500
• Provide Civil Engineering Design Development plan documents. The documents will allow

the owner to budget the project and obtain project feedback from neighbors. Design
Development includes the following:

o Preliminary Existing Conditions & Demolition Plan
o Preliminary Grading Plan
o Preliminary Public Water Main Utility Plan
o Preliminary Road Plan, Profile and Cross Sections



• Attend (1) Owner Review Meeting (remote/virtual) and coordinate feedback from
owner/client.

3. CIVIL CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

Civil Engineering Construction Documents & Permitting - $12,000
• Provide Civil Construction Documents and Permitting. Services Include:

o Cover Sheet & Specifications, City Detail Sheets, Existing Conditions & Demolition
Plan, Detailed Grading Plan, Erosion Control Plan, Public Water Main Plan & Profile
Plans, Road Plan with Profiles and Cross Sections, and Dimensioned Site Plan for
road and driveway replacements at water main locations.

o Stormwater Management Plan & Calculation Report (covered by PVR Phase 1
Stormwater Management Plan).

o Preparation and submission of WI DNR Public Water Main Extension. Provide
required applications and pressure/flow calculations for DNR Review.

o Respond to review comments and revised plans based on City/State review
comments. One (1) revision is included.

• Attend (2) Owner Review Meetings (remote/virtual) and coordinate final owner/client
comments into final construction documents.

4. BID DOCUMENTS (PUBLIC BID PROJECT)

Public Bid Documents - $8,900
• Provide contract documents for a publicly bid project per City of Franklin standards.
• Provide detailed bid schedule for proposed work.
• Publicly advertise bids on platform preferred by City of Franklin.
• Answer questions from bidders.
• Tabulate construction bids.
• Qualify bids and notify bidders. Award Contract to a Prime Contractor.

5. CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

Construction Administration - $12,500
• Attend pre-construction meeting with contractors and City.
• Answer questions from contractors and coordinate project with City Inspectors as

necessary.
• Conduct periodic site visits.
• Review and approve pay applications from prime contractor.
• Provide City Engineer with weekly project update. Project update shall be emailed to City

Engineer every Friday for duration of project.

6. CONSTRUCTION STAKING

Construction Field Staking - $7,000



• Provide Construction Field Staking for proposed project. Five (5) staking trips are included
in lump sum. If additional staking trips are required, a fee of $1,500 will be applied per trip.
This additional per trip fee includes mileage and reimbursable expenses.

7. POST CONSTRUCTION AS-BUILT RECORD DRAWINGS

As-built Record Drawings - $2,000
• Provide as-built record drawings based off design plans. Design plans will be marked-up

with as-built information. City Inspector to provide detailed inspection reports and GPS
data of field information for Excel Engineering to use in record drawings. As-built field
survey and topographic information is not included.

Fees - Reimbursable (estimated - $900)
• Reimbursables (mileage, printing, mailing, etc.)
local consulting review fees are NOT included, if applicable.

Total Proposal Fee - $52,500

Alternate 1: Additional Meetings (In Person) - $700
Alternate 2: Legal Description and exhibit - $550 (does not include field work)
Alternate 3: Additional Staking Trip - $1,500 (Includes Reimbursables)

Exclusions:
Wetland Delineation and/or Wetland Permitting
Traffic Study
Geotechnical Engineering
Phase 1 ESA/Environmental Engineering
Pressure/Flow Testing (to be provided by City)

Thank you again for requesting our proposal for services. If you have any questions regarding
this information, please don't hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

Grant Duchac, P.E.
Project Manager
920-322-1681
grant.d@excelengineer.com



Blank Page





Blank Page



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Request for Approval ofa Salary & Benefit
Modification for a Building Inspector Candidate

MEETING
DATE

3/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.7.
Background
The City has had a Building Inspector position open in the Inspection Services Department since an
employee resigned in October of 2021. The position was posted last fall with only a handful of
applicants which did not result in a candidate being recommended for hire.

Analysis

Since the failed recruitment last fall, staff did search out and interview a candidate who has been a
Director of Inspections for more than 16 years at two smaller municipalities. The candidate has all
the required state certifications as well as the UDC electrical and plumbing certifications from the
State.

For the current hiring need, a Building Inspector, the City's hiring policy only allows for hiring up to
the 65th percentile of a salary range without Common Council approval. Staff is requesting approval
to hire the candidate at a salary of $77,500, which would be at the 78th percentile of the salary range.
All requested benefits, other than sick leave are within the normal hiring range. However, staff
requests approval to award the candidate three (3) sick days upon hire which can be used for any
immediate sickness. Additional accruals for sick leave would not commence until after 6 months of
service, per normal City policy.

In addition to obtaining a very strong building inspector at this time, staff is looking to the future as
there is a strong possibility that the current Director of Inspection Services will be retiring within the
next year, and the City will need a replacement for that position. Staff believes that this candidate
would be an excellent candidate to be that replacement. Provided the candidate shows that he is the
right fit for the position in the next year, it would be staff's intention to promote him to the position
of Director of Inspection Services at the appropriate time. We would anticipate a pay increase to
around the 50th - 65th percentile of Director position for that promotion. In addition, at the time of
the promotion, we would agree to provide him with a 4th week of vacation accrual. Please note that
this promotion would need to be brought to the Common Council at the time of promotion for
confirmation. The candidate would like an indication that Council is open to the above
salary/vacation benefits as it may determine if the candidate will decide to accept the current
position.

Fiscal Impact
The fiscal impact of hiring this position over the 65th percentile is less than $3,000 in 2022, and is able
to be covered by the existing vacancy.



Recommendation
Staff is requesting approval to hire the candidate at a salary of $77,500, which would be at the 78th
percentile of the salary range. Staff is also requesting approval of an exception to the established sick
leave policy to allow the award of three (3) sick days upon hire to be used as needed.

In addition, staff is requesting Council's support for promotion of the candidate to the Department
Head position when appropriate as long as the candidate proves himself in the interim and is a good
fit for the position along with the additional vacation accrual at that time.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the hiring of a Building Inspector at a salary of $77,500, and to allow the award
of three (3) sick days upon hire to be used as needed, as well as supporting a promotion of the
candidate to the Department Head position when appropriate as long as the candidate proves
himself in the interim and is a good fit for the position along with the additional vacation accrual at
that time.
HR-DZ



APPROVAL

Sh»
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
March 1, 2022

REQUEST TO HIREAREPLACEMENT DEPARTMENT OF ITEM NO.
PUBLICWORKS LIGHT EQUIPMENT OPERATOR IN G 8
ADVANCE OF CURRENT EMPLOYEE RETIREMENTS · ·

BACKGROUND
Two Light Equipment Operators (LEOs) at the Department of Public Works (DPW) have
submitted resignation letters that will be effective on April 18, 2022. While working through the
process to hire a new Laborer position, an applicant was identified that would make an excellent
LEO. Staff proposes that this applicant be hired as a LEO now while knowing that two LEO
positions will be vacated next month.

ANALYSIS
Normally the City does not hire a replacement employee until the departing employee has been
paid out his final wages, including accrued vacation, comp time, and severance payouts.
Nonetheless, it is becoming increasingly more difficult to hire persons with a Commercial Driver's
License (CDL) due to the near 100% employment in the construction and trucking industries.

In addition, the requirements to get a CDL have just recently changed. In order to obtain a CDL
an interested person will need to go through a lengthy and costly training school, which the City
may need to help pay for in the future. Applicants that had their temporary licenses prior to this
recent change are grandfathered and do not need to attend the new schooling.

The applicant identified as a potential LEO has his Class B CDL license and will be able to get his
Class A license, which we require by the end of his probationary period, by just taking the road
test. In addition, the applicant is an Arborist and has his pesticide application certification, both
of which are highly desirable for the DPW operations.

Staff does not want to lose this applicant and would like to make him the official offer immediately,
and start him upon completion of his physical and background checks, likely by the end of March.

OPTIONS
Approve or Deny request

FISCAL NOTE
Finance believes that there is sufficient funding in the DPW budget to fill at least one spot in
advance of the April 18, 2022, retirements.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to authorize Staff to immediately hire a replacement Department of Public Works Light
Equipment Operator in advance of current employees retirements.

Engineering: GEM



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

&lo COUNCIL ACTION 3/1/2022

REPORTS & ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS 2022 Sanitary Sewer User Fee G.9.
Background
Annually, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD) provides a Cost Recovery Procedures
Manual which provides the necessary information to determine the MMSD sewer charge for Franklin
sewer customers. The charge has three components, a fixed connection fee, a fixed hazardous waste
disposal fee, and a volumetric charge. All residential customers are charged a fixed rate, regardless of
the water volume used. And, commercial customers are charged for the fixed fee plus a volumetric
charge based upon their water usage.

Added to the MMSD rate is an additional charge that provides the resources to maintain the local
sanitary sewer system. The local charge represents approximately 38% of the total residential fee.

Analysis
Effective January 1, 2022, MMSD increased its total rate by 2.05% for residential customers. The prior
year the rate increase was 4.9%. By way of details, MMSD decreased the volumetric rate by .55%;
however, the fixed MMSD rate increased by 15.24% for a combined MMSD rate increase of 2.05% for
residential customers. MMSD's total residential rate increased to $169.88 annually, or $42.47 quarterly,
up from $166.47 annually, and $41.62 quarterly.

The total proposed Franklin residential rate is:
Residential Sewer Bill

2022 2021 Inc (Dec)
Franklin Charge 103.63 96.55 7.33%

Volumetric Charge (Variable) 122.71 124.26
Connection Charge (Fixed) 42.19 36.61
Hazardous Waste Disposal Charge 4.98 5.60
Total MMSD charge 169.88 166.47 2.05%

Total Annual Charge 273.51 263.02 3.98%
Quarterly Residential Billing 68.38 65.76 3.98%
(rounded for quarterly billing)

The annual increase of $7.08, or $1.77 on a quarterly basis, in the local sewer charge is due to
increased costs in the 2022 Budget, including the following: maintenance (inspection and cleaning) of
the St. Martin's force main, the local share of the newly created Private Property Inflow & Infiltration
Program, an increase in labor/benefits/cost allocations attributable to sewer duties, an increase in
insurance costs, and other miscellaneous adjustments.

An average commercial customer using 82,000 gallons of water will see an increase of approximately
2.0%. This is due to the commercial connection charge increasing from $14.46 to $16.99, and the
volumetric rate increasing from $3.85202894 per thousand gallons to $3.90367040 per thousand
gallons.



There are currently 10,609 Sewer customers; 9,442 of those are single-family or multi-family
residences.

Note that Sanitary Sewer bills are combined with water charges for properties utilizing both services.

A history of the combined residential sewer charge is represented below:

Annual Residential Sewer Charges
300 00

250 00

200 00

150 00 I100 00 I ~11I50 00

at A# A I
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

MMSD ■ Franklin

Fiscal Impact
The 2022 budget anticipated an overall 4% rate increase.

Debt for the planned lift station project has been issued and the debt service for 2022 will be
approximately $150,000, however will increase to approximately $225,000 in 2023 due to the
established repayment schedule.

Recommendation
The Finance Committee, at their February 22, 2022 meeting, approved a motion recommending that
the Common Council adopt the quarterly2022Residential Sanitary Sewer charge of$68.38 anda fixed
Commercial Connection charge of$16.99plus a $3.90367040per thousand-gal/on volumetric charge,
effective January 1, 2022, as providedby Municipal Code 207-14 H (3)(b).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt the quarterly 2022 Residential Sanitary Sewer charge of $68.38 and a fixed
Commercial Connection charge of $16.99 plus a $3.90367040 per thousand-gallon volumetric charge,
effective January 1, 2022, as provided by Municipal Code 207-14 H (3)(b).

DOA-PS



APPROVS!tU

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

RESULTS OFWATER SURVEY FORFRONTAGE ROAD
ALONG S. LOVERS LANE (USH 45 / STH 100) FROM

W. HERDAPLACE TO S. PHYLLIS LANE

MTG.DATE
March 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.10.
BACKGROUND
Wisconsin Department ofTransportation (WisDOT) is planning a project on S. Lovers Lane (USH
45 / STH 100) from W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) to W. College Avenue. The project schedule
has moved up from the previously reported circa 2024 or 2025 to a letting and commence
construction in 2023. This item was last discussed at the Common Council on August 18, 2020
when residents were surveyed for a preference on the one-way or two-way street configuration for
the east frontage road between W. Herda Place and S. Phyllis Lane.

During the utility coordination efforts, it was noted that these same six houses have no access to
public water, even though a watermain is extended on both W. Herda Place and S. Phyllis Lane.
There is also a watermain on the west edge of S. Lovers Lane, but the road is a 4-lane divided
highway and WisDOT would not allow six individual water services to cross beneath this road
section.

At the February 1, 2022, Common Council meeting, Staff was instructed to survey these six
property owners.

ANALYSIS
The six surveys were mailed on Wednesday, February 2, 2022. The surveys were due on Friday
February 18, 2022. Three surveys were received. One survey was in favor, and two were not in
favor. The lone comment was from the positive respondent and Staffs answers are incorporated.

• Can you please explain why the assessment is significantly morefor our address than our
neighbors? The amount of the assessment is based on the linear footage of the property.
Would we have a say in how the service line is routed?( We do not want it to disrupt our
driveway). Yes, each homeowner will be asked where along their property line that the
service will be placed. Does the assessmentfor the water service include the meter, etc
Are there any other surprise costs? There are additional fees and costs. The City
connection charge is approximately $2,700 and each property owner would need to hire a
private plumber/contractor to make the connection from the home plumbing to the shut-off
valve at the property line Who would be responsible for hooking us up to the line? A
private plumber/contractor hired by the homeowner. Would we be able to maintain our
well for water only? Yes, Inspection Services would ensure that there is no cross
connections between the City water and the well water. There is also periodic DNR
requirements for operation of a well.

With WisDOT doing major construction for this frontage road, water should be installed now, or
ignored for many decades. Staff has verified with WisDOT Staff that their construction could
accommodate coordination with a City contractor to construct a watermain along the frontage road.

Any decision to construct or ignore this watermain extension needs to be made soon.



OPTIONS
A) Direct Staff to return with a professional services contract to assist with this water main

project
B) Direct Staff to proceed with WISDOT coordination without consideration of a watermain

extension project

FISCAL NOTE
Water impact fees are not applicable since an 8-inch water main is the expected system to be
installed. There are annual budgets for miscellaneous water main extensions and the design could
be covered in the 2022 budget ($200,000) and next year's budget should consider the construction.
In addition, the six homes would be subject to special assessment.

RECOMMENDATION
Instruct Staff to return with a professional services contract to commence design and WISDOT
coordination.

Engineering Department: GEM



rwo"Slr
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

SURVEYRESPONSES FORAWATERMAIN
PROJECT ON S. LOVERS LANE ROAD FROMW. ST

MARTINS ROAD TO 7911 S. 100™ STREET

MTG.DATE
March 1, 2022
ITEM NO.

G.11.
BACKGROUND
The Franklin Water Utility is constructing a new water storage tower in the vicinity of 8120 S.
Lovers Lane Road. This tower is needed to address inadequate storage in the western pressure
zone and all of Franklin. This project has received approval from the Public Service Commission
and is expected to be bid in the second quarter of2022 once all permitting is cleared. Construction
is expected to take about 18 months from award of bid.

This tower will require connection to the water distribution system via a ¾-mile segment of a 16-
inch watermain. The watermain segment will complete a water system gap that extends from the
intersection ofW. St. Martins Road (approximately 750 feet north ofW. Loomis Road) north along
the eastern side of the road to the entrance of Target Corporation (approximately 1,500 feet south
of W. Drexel Avenue). The tower and associated watermain projects are anticipated in the 2022
budget.

At the February 1, 2022, Common Council meeting, staff was instructed to survey property owners
along this section ofS. Lovers Lane Road. Because of the need to connect the water towers to the
system, the survey did not ask opinion if they were in favor of the project, but if they had a desire
to connect to the 16" watermain.

ANALYSIS
Fourteen responses were received.

• Four responses were interested in connecting to the watermain. Upon closer investigation,
one of these properties appears to be unbuildable and is not likely to be able to construct a
structure that will need service.

• Seven responses were not interested in connecting.
• One indicated that they need more information.
• Two for the same property indicated unable to make a decision and also marked "no."

Six comments (including the two comments representing the same parcel) were received and are
as follows:

• ... I've been through this before (see 76th St) Expect strong resistance from the citizens
Expect local media to jump at the chance to cover this egregious over reach by local
government. I have sentyou a list ofquestions to your email address

• Don't know at this time Need more information. Way to much$$.
• I will attend the March 1st meeting. I do not understand the value I will receive for my

$48,653.30 investment /would like to hear more about what is included ifI amforced into
this payment Will I receive a stop box at each location? I will also reach out to the PSC

• Unable to make a decision with the nformation provided. We do not want to payfor any
ofit based on the current information. 1 Whywas there not a meetingwith the homeowners
prior to purchasing theseparcels 2 The cost oftheproject should bepart ofthe taxes and
not divided up by the homeowners 3 Our property has wetlands on it has this been
addressed in the pricing? 4 Can the project be vetoed ifall the homeowners or majority
vote "no"? 5 The city owns the land where thepipe is, it is not on our land so why should
we have to payfor it? 6 The homeowners should only have to payfor the water service
assessment & not the watermain. 7 For this to benefit us it would cost us an average
(guessing) 70,000.00 dollars Who can afford that!



• Unable to sayyes or no not enough information yet to make that decision. No. I am "Not"
interested in the watermain project! There should have been a surveyfor the watermain
project as a whole notjust interest in connecting to it The price ofthe watermain should
be divided between everyone that utilizes the water that is comingfrom the water tower
As landowners & taxpayers we should have a right to choose what we spend our money
on"

• Ifeel that this survey should have been done a while ago! From the way this project is
being run, you City Officials do not really care about what we think! The property has
already been cleared with no notification to any ofus neighbors. Sort offeels like your
ramming this down our throats!

Generally, the submitted comments were strongly opposed to the project. In response, Staff will
note the following:

The need for this project in the western water pressure zone has been studied for several
years. But the final selection of a site and purchase of the property didn't occur until
November 2020. Engineering design for the water tower started in December 2020 and
the Public Service Commission did not approve the project until December 17, 2021.
Efforts to survey the property owners along the route commenced in January 2022 with the
decision to survey on February 1, 2022. All decisions were made openly in public
meetings.
We appreciate that this project wasn't prompted by the "benefited" residents. The water
tower for the western pressure zone is needed for current deficiencies and future growth of
the City. This is one of the items that the Public Service Commission scrutinized when the
December 2021 approval was granted.
If one decides not to connect, the property owner could take as long as 22 years to pay with
the first payment not due until after 10 years.
Staff is not aware ofthe City Utility ofever constructing a watermain where residents were
not assessed. A watermain paid for or constructed by developer(s) is the only circumstance
that allows a property owner to not pay for a distribution watermain adjacent to their
property- and even then, a property owner must reimburse a proportionate share should
they decide to connect within ten years. Many of these residents feel that this process is
unfair, but it is the established practice that was adopted long ago for all City-funded
watermain extensions.

• A misconception is that these property owners along S. Lovers Lane are paying for a
disproportionate share of the water tower. The water tower portion is being paid for by
water utility rates and impact fees from new connections to the water system. The
watermain portion uses those two funding sources plus assessments from benefitted
properties. The assessments for these properties have the same maximum assessements as
any other watermain assessment projects.

• Regardless of a connection, having a watermain in front of a property almost always has a
positive impact on property values. Buyers like to know that they are not dependent on a
well.

• Proximity to a watermain with a good water supply and pressure usually has a positive
impact on fire insurance rates and provides the Fire Department better opportunity to
address a structure fire.

•

•

•

•

Even though they did not respond to the survey, the Tri-County Baptist Church was one of the
property owners that came to visit with Staff regarding this issue. They offered to provide their
facility for a neighborhood meeting on some Monday or Tuesday evening.

Given the efforts underway to get this project ready for bid and the anticipated completion date in
late 2023 or early 2024, Staff recommends that a neighborhood meeting be held this summer when



a detailed engineer's report may be completed. This meeting can occur prior to a preliminary
resolution to assess.

OPTIONS:
A. Have a neighborhood meeting for the benefitted property owners.
B. Proceed with bidding the project
C. Other direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
Preliminary estimates indicate that a 16-inch watermain system could cost $1.6 million and an 8-
inch watermain system would be just over $700,000.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Direct Staffto conduct a neighborhood meeting at the Tri-County Baptist Church (8050
S. 100 Street) this summer before returning to Common Council with a preliminary resolution to
assess for a watermain project along S. 100" Street. And also (Option B) direct Staff to bid the
water tower and watermain project along S. Lovers Lane Road with the recommendation to award
a contract on or after the preliminary resolution to assess.

Department ofEngmeermg GEM



Franklin
WISCONSIN

City of Franklin
Engineering Department

February 2, 2022

To: Property Owners on S. Lovers Lane from 7911 S. 100 Street to W. St. Martins Road

Re Assessment for Waterlme

At the February 1, Common Council meeting, I was directed to survey your opimon on a
watermain project for your street Last year, the City purchased four parcels for a park and to
locate two water towers We are working to bid out the first tower this year and it will take about
18 months to construct. You may have noticed the significant efforts we Just completed to remove
buckthorn and other dying trees from the parcel

The water tower project will include a 16-inch watermain to connect a watermain stub near the
entrance to Target with a stub near the intersection of W. St. Martins Road. As the watermain will
pass by your property, you will be assessed if your property is benefitted- even if you don't
connect You will also have the option to hook up to the watermain and be assessed for those
efforts also. You may also connect at a later date but you would need to hire another contractor to
make the connection in the State right-of-way.

A survey is not a vote per se but a tool for Common Council to gather all of the pertinent
information pnor to a decision Your input is appreciated prior to Friday, February 18, 2022 I
expect to bring this to Common Council with a summary of your responses and other relevant
infonnation at the March 1, 2022, Common Council meeting at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Common
Council Chambers You may attend 111 person or watch the meeting on the City's YouTube
channel

When the decision is made to proceed wrth the project, I will provide an engineering report to you
and I am available to meet with you individually or as a group to explain the process in detail and
answer any questions you may have.

Attached are preliminary estimates of assessments A detailed analysis and additional information
on procedures, deferments (typically up to 10-years) and financing (typically 12-years @6% APR)
would be available m the engineering report and not finalized until the project is bid.

Please call my office 1f you have any questons and my staff can schedule an appomhnent

Smcerely,e..
Glen E Morrow, PE (WI, IL, IN & MO)
Cty Engineer / Director of Publc Works / Utulity Manager

Copy Alderman Dan Mayer
Mayor Steve Olson

1 +! 9229 West Loomis Road Franklin, WI 53132 P(414)425-7510 F(414)425 3106 franklinw gov



,
'Franklin
WISCONSIN

City of Franklin
Engineermg Department

Survey

__ Yes, I Am mterested in connecting to a watermam project on S Lovers Lane

__ No, I am NOT interested m connectmg to a watermain project on S Lovers Lane

Name· -------------------------------

Address. ------------------------------

Other Comments. ---------------------------

', 1 nu H 1 ! r 9229 Westloom1s Road Franklin, WI 53132 P(414}425-7510 F(414)425 3106 franklinw1 gov



Assessment Assessment
Parcel

Address Tax Key No.
for the for the Water Total

#
Owner

Watermain Service Assessment
(Mandatory) (Optional)

1 N/A State of Wisconsin 801 9979 000 $ - $ - $
2 7911 S 100th St Alejandro A Cuevas 800 9971 000 $ - $ 6,500 00 $ 6,500 00
3 N/A Dean Dziczkowski 8019980 000 $ $ - $ -
4 N/A Mackenzie Square Condos LLC 8009972 008 $ - $ 6,50000 $ 6,500 00
5 7970 S 100th St Classic Realty of West Alhs 8019981002 $ - $ - $ -
6 7973 S 100th St B Boys Properties LLC 8009973 000 $ - $ 6,50000 $ 6,500 00
7 7977 S 100th St B Boys Properties LLC 800 9974 000 $ - $ 6,50000 $ 6,500 00
8 8041 S 100th St John & Marylyn Karshian 800 9975 000 $ - $ 6,500 00 $ 6,500 00
9 8050 S 100th St Tri County Baptist Church 8019981001 $ 80,962 20 $ 3,500 00 $ 84,462 20

10 8052 S 100th St Carl E Buckner 801 9982 000 $ 16,356 00 $ 6,50000 $ 22,856 00
11 8054 S 100th St Laurence Hendnckson 8019983 000 $ 16,356 00 $ 6,500 00 $ 22,856 00
12 8081 S 100th St Donald L & Paula Awe -- 8009976 000 $ 40,146 00 $ 6,500 00 $ 46,646 00
13 N/A City of Franklin 8019985 000 $ - $ $ -
14 N/A City of Franklin 801 9984 000 $ - $ - $ -
15 8120 S Lovers Lane Rd City of Franklin 801 9986 000 $ 87,381 93 $ - $ 87,381 93
16 8135 S 100th St Gary A Schuldt 800 9977 000 $ 40,146 00 $ 6,500 00 $ 46,646 DO
17 N/A City of Franklin 801 9987 000 $ 37,618 80 $ - $ 37,618 80
18 8171/8173 S 100th St Douglas & Carrie Clark 800 9978 000 $ 28,236 02 $ 6,500 00 $ 34,736 02
19 8209/8211 S 100th St James A Schabowski 8009979 001 $ 28,236 02 $ 6,500 00 $ 34,736 02
20 8210 S 100th St James M Mudlaff & Amy L Stewart 8019988 003 $ 26,987 40 $ 3,500 00 $ 30,487 40
21 8230 S 100th St Larry H Mueller 801 9989 001 $ 26,993 94 $ 3,500 00 $ 30,493 94
22 8231/8233 S 100th St Charlotte E Sauer 8009979 002 $ 24,760 71 $ 6,500 00 $ 31,260 71
23 8252 S 100th St Loomis Meadow LLC 8019990 000 $ 50,703 60 $ 3,500 00 $ 54,203 60
24 8261 S 100th St Richard & Maureen Pankowski 800 9980 001 $ - $ 6,500 OD $ 6,500 00
25 N/A 8252 S 100TH STREET LLC 8409977 009 $ 16,356 00 $ - $ 16,356 00
26 N/A John O'Malley 840 9977 001 $ $ - $ -
27 8307/8309 S 100th St Fredenck & Marilyn Graves 8410018 000 $ 14,051 10 $ 6,500 00 $ 20,55110
2.8 8310 S 100th St Harold & Lucille Flintrop 8409978000 $ 17,909 82 $ 3,500 00 $ 21,409 82
29 8310 S 100th St Allen Lembach 8409979 000 $ 16,356 00 $ $ 16,356 00
30 8321 S 100th St Gabriel Rivera & Marjorie Y Mendoza 8410019 000 $ 16,058 40 $ 6,500 OD $ 22,558 40
31 8333 S 100th St Lloyd A, Kristin A Hoeper 8410020000 $ 16,058 40 $ 6,500 00 $ 22,558 40
32 8360 S 100th St Franklin Four LLC 8409980 000 $ 41,791 22 $ 3,500 00 $ 45,291 22
33 8373 S 100th St Edward Struebing & Amanda A Queen 841 0022 001 $ 26,094 90 $ 6,500 00 $ 32,594 90
34 N/A Edward Struebing & Amanda Queen 841 0021 000 $ 16,058 40 $ - $ 16,058 40
35 8380/8376 $ 100th St Adriana M Landeros 840 9981 000 $ 37,373 46 $ 3,500 00 $ 40,873 46
36 8423 S 100th St Todd Watson 8410025 001 $ - $ 6,500 00 $ 6,500 00
37 N/A Loomis Top LLC 840 9982 003 $ 25,716 54 $ - $ 25,716 54
38 10010 W St Martins Rd Margaret Kawczynska 841-0001 000 $ - $ 6,500 00 $ 6,500 00
39 S Lovers Lane Rd Goldfinger LLC 840 9984 000 $ - $ - $



Vl L.he
Q) OJ

q 0> ro ....,
0 ~ C...J 0 0

I.I')
,IJ ....,
C: u C C

C 0 OJ ro
0 d. C 0 EC OJu 0 l L.
C OJ U'l (lJ

0 C: u OJ ....,
C: C .... ro

G 0 OJ 2
C u o ...,
Q) OJ C 0

C: ...., ...,.... U'l
...,

C>< 0 OJ C 0 0I.LI (lJ .... ·
,IJ (IJ ro .._ B.5 Ill ..., E (IJ

"C OJ C I.. I.. OJ
(ti L. C (IJ  cOJ ·ro ...., ..., U'l C0 d 0 r C:
0:: C: E z 3: ::> 0u



Ill
he
)
>
0
...I

ui
C
0
c
0
Gc
a)....
X
UJ
c

"C
r3
0
0:::

0.....
C: 00
.;:; .....
u C:
QJ 0
C: 5
C: u
0 QJ

u C:

C:
C:
0

"'Cl
u

QJ .....
..... ::J
V) C: 0 C:QJ .0.... ro ro roQJ..... E QJ E
C: .... .... ....

c QJ ::J QJ

ro ..... ..... V) .....
0 ro C: ro

E z 3 ::::, 3

Ill fw



"3L-
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTIONTO EXECUTE
STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL AGREEMENT ANDA
STATE/MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR

IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO AWISCONSIN
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT ON

S. LOVERS LANE/W. RYANROAD (USH 45 / STH 100) FROM
S. 60TH STREET TOW. ST. MARTINS ROAD IN THE

AMOUNT OF $624,700

MTG.DATE
March 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.12.

BACKGROUND
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is planning a project on S. Lovers Lane/ W. Ryan
Road (USH 45 /STH I00) from S. 60" Street to W. St. Martins Road. WisDOT has this project scheduled
to start on September 9, 2025, but there is an advanceable date of January 12, 2024.

At the June 15, 2021, Common Council meeting, Staff was directed to work with the WISDOT staff on
developing a 10-foot trail along the east side of STH 100 from the Root River bridge to the W St. Martins
Road/S. Lovers Lane Rd. intersection.

WisDOT is progressing on the design and has a State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal
Maintenance Agreement ready for execution.

ANALYSIS
The attached agreements commit Franklin to pay for and maintain participating elements in their project
that includes a sidewalk/shared-use path. The total project is expected to cost over $14 million. It is
anticipated that $151,500 is needed to obtain additional right-of-way to accommodate the Franklin
sidewalk/shared-use path and is included in Franklin's total estimate of $624,700. A detailed accounting
is shown on page 2 of 5 in the SFA.

OPTIONS
Execute agreements as previously requested.

FISCAL NOTE
The total project is expected to cost over $14 million and Franklin's portion is estimated to be $624,700.
This expenditure is expected to occur when billed in 2024 or 2025- depending on when the project is
constructed.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution 2022- a resolution to execute State/Municipal Financial
Agreement and a State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement for improvements related to a
Wisconsin Department of Transportation project on S. Lovers Lane / W. Ryan Road (USH 45 /
STH 100) from S. 60th Street to W. St. Martins Road in the amount of $624,700.

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - ---

RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL AGREEMENT AND A
STATE/MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO

A WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT ON
S. LOVERS LANE/ W. RYAN ROAD (USH 45 / STH 100) FROM

S. 60TH STREET TOW. ST. MARTINS ROAD IN THE AMOUNT OF $624,700

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Department of Transportation is designing a transportation project
for S. Lovers Lane (USH 45 / STH 100) and W. Ryan Road (STH 100) from S. 60th Street to W. St.
Martins Road circa 2024 or 2025; and

WHEREAS, the City ofFranklin desires a 10-foot pedestrian and bicycle pathway to be added
to the project for the enjoyment and use of Franklin residents; and

WHEREAS, the sidewalk/shared-use path will be maintained by City of Franklin once
constructed;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City of Franklin will enter into a
State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement with the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation.

Introduced at a regular order meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
________ day of , 2022 by _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2022,

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STATE/MUNICIPAL

MAINTENANCE

AGREEMENT

Date: November 18, 2021
ID: 2040-15-73
Road Name: STH 100
Limits: St Martins Rd to 60 St
County: Milwaukee

The signatory City of Franklin, heremafter called the Mumc1pahty, through its undersigned duly authorized
officers or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, heremafter called the
State, to mnut1ate and affect thus agreement to include the associated mamtenance responsibilities hereinafter
descnbed.

The authority for the Municipality to enter 1to th1s agreement with the State Is provded by Sect1on 84.07(1) of the
Statutes W1sconsmn statutes, Wisconsmn Admmmstrative Code, and State pohcy serve as the defimng documents for
State Hghway maintenance responsibilities

DESCRIPTION OF FACILITY·

Facility description upon completion of State project -- As detemuncd by project ID 2040-15-73

Thus request shall constatute agreement between the Muncipalty and the State, Is Subject to the terms and
cond1t1ons that follow (pages [2] - [3]); 1s made by the undersigned under proper authonty to make such
request for the designated Muntc1palty and upon signature by thc State, delivery to the Muntcrpal1ty and
upon folly executed signature of associated, applicable State Mumc1pal Fmancial Agreement for project
2040-15-73. The 1nut1aton and signature of the agreement will be subject to all the applicable federal and state
regulations. No term or prov1S1on of neither the State/Mumc1pal Mamtenance Agreement nor any of its
attachments may be changed, waived or termmated orally but only by an mstrument 111 wntmg executed by
both parties to the State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement

Central File \\Planrnng\Agreements\Mamtenance_Agreements\ Page I of 3 Milwaukee- SE Region



Signed for and in behalf ofthe City of Franklin (please sign in blue ink)

Name (pnnt) Stephen R. Olson Title Mayor

Signature Date

Name (pnnt) Sandra L Wesolowksi Title Citv Clerk

Signature Date

Provisions have been made to pay the liability that will accrue under this contract

Name (pnnt) Paul RotzenberQ Title Director of Finance & Treasurer

Signature Date

Approved as to form and execution

Name (print} Jesse A Wesolowski Title City Attorney

Sia nature Date

Signed for and in behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink)

Name Brian Roper Title WisDOT SE Region Maintenance Chief

Signature Date

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

In order to guarantee the Mumcipahty's foregomg agreements to maintain the facility to State standards, the
Munc1palty, through its above duly authonzed officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the State to set
off and withhold General Transportation Aids or momes otherwise due and payable by the State to the
munic1pahty, as determined by the State, for any maintenance the State must perform to the facility should
the Murnc1pahty fail to comply with the agreement

2. The State will not ms tall any additional 1tems, not necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, to a
state highway facility without the Municipality agreemng to maintamn those 1tems The State 1s responsible for
mamtamnmg the through travel way of any given highway fac1hty under the State's JUnsd1ction mcludmg.

(a) The energy, operation, repair and replacement of traffic signals and associated street hghtmg reqmred for
the signalized intersections within the limits of thus agreement for:

1. Signalized Intersections at STH 100 and 76 St, STH 100 and 60 St and STH 100 and Loom1s
Rd (STH 36)

2 Permitted lghtmng at at-grade intersections

(b} necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic except those items hsted m #3.

Central File \\Planning\Agreements\Maintenance_Agreements\ Page 2 of3 Milwaukee- SE Region



(c) Permuttmng author1ty ofutilities and access control on all State Trunk, US and Interstate Highways.

3. The Mumc1pahty shall at its own cost and expense mamtain all portmns within the specified hmits of this
agreement that he w1thm its junsd1ction for such mamtenance through statutory reqmrements in a manner
satisfactory to the State and shall make ample provision for such mamtenance each year to mclude:

(a) Mamntamn all items outside, and under, the travel way to mclude, but not hmted to, parkrng lanes, curb and
gutter, dramage fac1litJes, sidewalks, multi-use paths, retammg walls, pedestrian refuge 1slands and
landscapmg features.

(b) Remove snow and ice from sidewalks, multi-use paths, and pedestrian refuge islands.

(c) Implement a street sweeping program to help prevent the accumulatmn of dut, sand, leaves, paper, or
other clogging debris.

(d) Mamntam the storm sewer system to provide a free flow cond1t10n throughout the life of the fac1hty
Including, but not limited to, annual mspection ofmlets, catch basins, manholes, pipe; annual cleamng
and removal of blockages, replace broken or malfunctmnmg castmgs, grates, gnt covers, risers, covers
and frames, repa1r top slabs along with bottom and walls ofbasms Routme mortar repairs such as tuck
pomting and plastering to the mlets, catch basms, and manholes

(e) Mamntam clear nght-of-way ofall encroachments.

(f) Mamntam crosswalk pavement markings at unsignal1zed intersections and mid-block crossmgs The
munic1paltty shall obtam a permit with the State (contact Traffic Operatmns Umt (signing and
markmng)).

(g) Mamtam signs and pavement markmgs not necessary for the safe and efficient movement of traffic (no
parkmng signs, wayfinding signs, etc ) The municipality shall obtam a permit with the State (contact
Traffic Opcratmns Umt (s1gnmg and marking))

(h) Mamntamn and accept responsibility for the followmg as applicable to this agreement

1. Curb & gutter surface repair

2 Grass. mowmg, repair t1re ruts m turf, weed control, htter removal

3 Landscapmg removal and replacement ofdead plant material, prumng, watering

4 Other Ut1ht1es, Water and Samtary

4. The Mumcpalty, wthin the specified huts, agrees to:

(a) Prohibit angle parking

(b) Regulate parkmg along the highway The Mumc1pahty wtll file a parking declaration with the State

(c) Regulate or prohibit all parkmg at locations where and when the pavement area usually occupied by parked
vehicles will be needed to carry active traffic m the street.

5 The Municipality wll coordinate with the State to obtam any necessary Work on Right-of-Way Permits for
maintenance performed on or wthmn the state highway faculty or state rght-of-way

6 Thus agreement does not remove the current mum1pal maintenance responsibility.

7 The State or Mumc1pahty may request an amendment to tl11s agreement to mclude specific features later
requested by the Mumc1pahty throughout the design process

8 Upon completion of construction project, 2040-15-73, the Muncipalty will assume all afore mentioned
maintenance respons1blt1es

Central File I\Planning\Agreements\Maintenance_Agreements\ Page3 of3 Milwaukee- SE Region



STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
AGREEMENT FOR A STATE- LET

HIGHWAY PROJECT

Date November 18, 2021
I.D 2040-15-03/23/24/73
Road Name· STH 100
Title: C FRANKLIN, LOVERS LANE
Limits 60TH STREET TO ST MARTINS ROAD
County· Milwaukee
Roadway Length 2 96 Miles

The signatory City of Franklin, hereinafter called the Muncipalty, through its undersigned duly authonzed
officers or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsmn Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the
State, to 1111tiate and affect the highway or street improvement heremafter descnbed

The authority for the Municipality to enter mto thus agreement wth the State 1s provided by Sect1on 86 25(1), (2),
and (3) of the Statutes

NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY.

Existing Facility - Describe and give reason for request Improvement

Proposed Improvement - Nature ofwork As detennmed by project !>copmg.

Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to finish the project
completely which will be undertaken inclcpcnclcntly by the municipality A nominal amount 1s mcluded to
cover items 111 paragraph 4 (to be adjusted 111 the final plan)

Central File PlannmngProyet Agreement\Milwaukee Page 1 of5 ID 2040-15-03_23_24_73 -- SE Region



TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF COSTS
Total Federal/State Municipal

Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %

Preliminary Engineering
Plan Development $ 1,050,000 $ 1,050,000 100% $ - 0%

Real Estate Acquisition
Acquisition for Roadway (23) $ 105,000 $ 105,000 100% $ - 0%
Acquisition for sidewalk/path
(24) $ 151,500 $ - 0% $ 151,500 100%
Compensable Utilities $ - $ - 0% $ - 100%

'Construction
Participating $ 12,275,000 $ 12,275,000 100% $ - 0%

Sidewalk
Resurface section (STH 36 to
Puetz Rd) 5' Walk $ 7,500 $ 6,000 80% $ 1,500 20%
Resurface section (STH 36 to
Puetz Rd) additional 5' Walk $ 7,500 $ - $ 7,500 100%
Reconstruction section (Puetz
Rd to Prairie Grass Way )5
Walk $ 24,800 $ 24,800 100% $ - 0%
Reconstruction section (Puetz
Rd to Prairie Grass Way )
additional 5' Walk $ 24,800 $ - 0% $ 24,800 100%
Reconstruction section (St
Martins Rd to STH 36 & Prairie
Grass Way to Root River ) 10'
Walk $ 438,400 $ - 0% $ 438,400 100%

Non-Participating $ 1,000 $ - 0% $ 1,000 100%

Total Cost Distribution $ 14,085,500 $ 13,460,800 $ 624,700
1 Estimates include construction engineering

Thus request shall constitute agreement between the Munucrpaltty and the State, Is subject to the terms and
condrttons that follow (pages [3] - [5]), 1s made by the undersigned under proper authonty to make such request
for the designated Municipality, upon signature by the State, upon fully executed signature of applicable State
Municipal Maintenance Agreement and delivery to the Municipality The mutation and accomplishment of the
improvement will be subject to the applicable federal and state regulations No term or provus1on of neither the
State/Mum1c1pal Financial Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally
but only by an mstrument m wntmg executed by both parties to the State/Mumc1pal Fmancml Agreement.

Central File Planning\Project Agreement\Milwaukee Page 2 of5 ID 2040-15-03_23_24_73 -- SE Region



Signed for and in behalf of the City of Franklin (please sign in blue Ink)

Name (pnnt) Stephen R Olson Title Mayor

Signature Date

Name (onnt) Sandra L Wesolowksi Title Citv Clerk

Signature Date

Prov1s1ons have been made to pay the liability that will accrue under this contract

Name (print) Paul Rotzenberg Title Director of Finance & Treasurer

Signature Date

Approved as to form and execution

Name (print) Jesse A Wesolowski Title City Attorney

Sianature Date

Signed for and in behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink)

Name Tony Barth Title WisDOT SE Region Planning Chief

Signature Date

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

The Mumc1pahty shall pay to the State all costs mcurred by the State m connection with the 11nprovernent
which exceeds federal/state financmg commitments or are melgble for federal/state financing Local
part1cmpat1on shall be limited to the items and percentages set forth mn the Summary of Costs table, which
shows Mumc1pal fundmg pmt1c1pation In order to guarantee the Mumcipahty's foregomg agreements to pay
the State, the Mumc1pahty, through its above duly authonzed officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the
State to set off and withhold the reqmred reimbursement amount as determmed by the State from General
Transpo1tat1on Aids or any moneys otherwise due and payable by the State to the Mumcipahty

2 Fundmg of each project phase 1s subject to mclusion in an approved program and per the State's Facility
Development Manual (FDM) standards Federal aid and/or state transportation fund financmng wll be limited
to pait1c1pat1on 111 the costs of the followmg items as specified 111 the Summary ofCosts·

(a) Des1gn engineermng and state review services.

(b) Real Estate necessitated for the improvement

(c) Compensable utility adjustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project

(d) The gradmg, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and structure costs to State standards, excludmg the cost of
parking areas

Central File Plannmg\ProJect Agreement\M1lwaukee Page 3 of5 1D 2040-15-03_23_24_73 - SE Regton



(e) Storm sewer mams, culverts, laterals, manholes, mlets, catch basms, and connections for surface water
dramage of the improvement, mcludmg replacement and/or adjustments of ex1stmg storm sewer
manhole covers and mlet grates as needed

(f) Construction engineermng mnc1dental to mspecton and supervision ofactual constructrnn work, except for
111spect1on, stakmg, and testmg ofsamtary sewer and water mam

(g) S1gmng and pavement marking ncccsstated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, mcludmg detour
routes

(h) Replacement of ex1stmg sidewalks necessitated by construction and constmct1on of new sidewalk at the
time of construction Sidewalk 1s considered to be new 1f It's constructed mn a location where 1t has not
existed before

() Replacement ofexisting driveways, mn kind, necessitated by the project.

(j) New installations or alteration resultmg from roadway construction of standard State street lghtmng and
traffic signals or devices Alteration may mclude salvagmg and replacement ofexistmg components

3 Work necessary to complete the unprovement to be financed entirely by the Mumc1pahty or other utility or
fac1hty owner mcludes the followmg items

(a) New mstallat1ons of or alteration of samtary sewers and connectrnns, water, gas, electric, telephone,
telegraph, fire or police alarm fac1hties, parkmg meters, and similar utiht1es

(b) New installation or alteration ofsgns not necessary for the safe and efficient flow oftraffic.

(c) Roadway and bndge width m excess ofstandards

(d) Constrnct1on 111spect1on, stakmg, and material testmg and acceptance for construct10n of samtary
sewer and water mam

(e) Provide complete plans, specifications, and estimates for sanitary sewer and water mam work The
Municipality assumes full respons1b1lty for the design, mstallatrnn, mspectrnn, testmg, and operation of
the sanitary sewer and water system This relieves the State and all of its employees from the hab1hty
for all smts, act10ns, or clauns resultmg from the samtary sewer and water system construct1on.

(f) Parkmg lane costs

(g) Coordmatc, clean up, and fund any hazardous materials encountered for city utihty construction. All
hazardous material cleanup work shall be performed mn accordance to state and federal regulat10ns

4 As the work progresses, the Mumc1pahty will be billed for work completed which 1s not chargeable to
federal/state funds Upon completion ofthe project, a final audit wall be made to determine the final drvrs1on of
costs

5 lfthe Mu111c1paltty should withdraw the proJect, 1t shall rennburse the State for any costs mcurred by the State
111 behalf of the project

6 The work wall be admmmstered by the State and may include 1tems not chgtble for federal/state partc1pat1on

7 The Mumc1palty shall, in cooperation with the State, ass1st wIth public relations for the project and
announcements to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected property owners and the
commumty of the nature, extent, and tummng of the project and arrangements for handhng traffic w1thm and
around the project

8 Bas1s for local part1cmpat1on

(a) Funding for preliminary engmneermg for a connectmg highway 100% Federal/State
Central File. Plannmg\ProJect Agreement\M1lwaukee Page 4 ofS ID 2040-15-03_23_24_73 - SE Region



(b) Fundmg for real estate required for standard roadway construction, 100% State

(c) Fundmg for real estate required for sidewalk mstallatlon, 100% Mumc1pal

(d) Fundmg for compensable utthttes reqmred for standard roadway constmctton, 100% Mumc1pal.

(e) Fundmg for constmchon ofstandard roadway 1tems - 100% Federal/State

(f) Fundmg for new sidewalk, wthmn the resurface portion (St Martms Rd to Puetz Rd) 80% Federal State
20% Mumc1pal for standard 5' walk, and 100% Mumc1pal for the additional 5' walk Fundmg for new
sIdewalk within the reconstruction port1on (Puetz Rd to Prame Grass Way) 100% Federal/State of
standard 5' walk, and 100% Mun1c1pal for the additional '5 walk. Funding for new sidewalk (Praurte
Grass Way to 60 St) 1s 100% Mun1c1pal for 10' walk

(g) Funding for non-participatmng 1tems 100% Municipality.

Comments and Clarficaton: Thus agreement 1s an active agreement that may need to be amended as the project
1s des1gned It is understood that these amendments may be needed as some issues have not been fully evaluated
or resolved. The purpose ofth1s agreement 1s to specify the local and state mvolvement m fundmg the project.
A signed agreement is reqmred before the State will prepare or participate in the preparatmn of detailed designs,
acqu1re right-of-way, or participate m construction of a project that ments local mvolvement.

Central File Plannmg\ProJect Agreement\M1lwaukee Page S ofS ID 2040-15-03_23_24_73 - SE Region



APPROVAL

Shor
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

REQUEST TO PARTICIPATE IN STATE CONTRACT
FORPURCHASE OF 2,000 TONS OF SALT ANDAN

ADDITIONAL 400 TONS IN RESERVE

MTG. DATE
March 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.13.
BACKGROUND
Each year the State of Wisconsin reports the tonnage of salt that each community wants to have
included in the State contract. In addition to the State contract amount, an additional 20 percent
can be placed in reserve, which is optional for the City to purchase. In addition, Franklin estimates
salt usage and budgets the purchase in annual budgets.

ANALYSIS
In 2021, the price of salt was $75.52/ton. Staff is expecting the 2022 prices to be approximately
$80.00/ton (this accounts for an approximate 6% increase). Staff is anticipating a request in the
near future that will ask us to enter our request in the State Contract for the upcoming year.

In the past, the City has seen benefits of planning to have available twice the forecasted amount of
salt for each season. For severe winters- like 2014, many communities could not obtain salt or had
to pay excessive prices to get salt. Franklin had an adequate supply of salt on hand, used "normal
price salt", and saved a significant amount. History indicates that DPW has needed an average of
2,100 tons for a "normal season". Considering the amount and type of streets being added to the
system with the increased use of brine solution, the average need is now considered 2,400 tons.
Two times a normal season is approximately 4,800 tons. As of now, the 2021-22 snow season
appears to be on track for less than normal snow fall totals, allowing us to order less than our
average 2,400 tons needed (due to having a small surplus of salt that went unused this year).

The 2,400 tons, which includes the 400 ton reserve, at $80.00 per ton, is included in our operating
budget of $210,000.00 for 2022. Note that we do not have to purchase this reserve amount but it
is available for the bid amount if needed.

Staff recommends the following strategy for a 2022-23 salt order:
2,000 tons regular order (@$80.00/ton = $160,000.00)

400 tons for 20% reserve order (@$80.00/ton = $32,000.00)

So, Franklin could place an order for 2,400 tons with an expected cost of $192,000.00. This
amount fits within the total budgeted amount for 2022.

This budget also includes the purchase of Geomelt. Staff anticipates purchasing two loads at
$9,000/each = $18,000. And $192,000 + $18,000 = $210,000 budget.

OPTIONS
As past practice, it is important to order the salt with the State contract as our best prices are with
the State contract.

FISCAL NOTES
Staff recommends the following strategy for a 2022-23 salt order:

2,000 tons regular order (@$80.00/ton = $160,000.00)
400 tons for 20% reserve order (@$80.00/ton = $32,000.00)

So, Franklin could place an order for 2,400 tons with an expected cost of $192,000. This budget
also includes the purchase of Geomelt. Staff anticipates purchasing two loads at $9,000/each =
$18,000. And $192,000 + $18,000 = $210,000 budget.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to direct Staff to participate in State contract for purchase of 2,000 tons of salt with a
purchase of an additional 400 tons in reserve.

DPW:KLS/ams



BLANK PAGE

180



APPROVA~

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

SURVEY FORPARTICIPATION IN SUMP PUMP
COLLECTION PROJECTS

MTG.DATE
March 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.14.

BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin is working with and through Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewer District
(MMSD) to develop a Private Property Infiltration and Inflow (PPII) reduction policy and
program. The source of funding for this effort are PPII funds at MMSD earmarked for Franklin.

Staff met with MMSD and under the current progress, it is unlikely that Franklin can use all of the
earmarked PPII funds in the allotted time. Ideally, Franklin should identify an additional $800,000
to $900,000 of PPII projects by the end of 2022.

ANALYSIS
Brainstorming with MMSD staff indicates that constructing "storm lines" dedicated to private
sump pumps and home laterals would be a nice supplement to the new PPII policy. Staff has
compiled a list ofneighborhoods where there are known chronic sump pump issues. It is suspected
that when complaints are targeted to a home with sump pump discharge issues, many times the
homeowner fixes the problem by redirecting the discharge to the sanitary sewer lateral. The fix is
an out-of-site-out-of-mind solution but these additional flows to the sanitary sewer from unknown
sources are detrimental to the operational capacities of the sanitary sewer collection system.
Additional studies have shown that even when an older home is in compliance, the sump pump
discharges saturate the ground and add infiltration to the home lateral.

MMSD has indicated that they are likely to provide full funding if all of the homes along a
constructed storm line connects. The funding would also include a new pipe system from the
storm line to the exterior of the home where the sump pump discharges. To help select a project,
a survey of homeowners that are willing to participate is needed. Ideally, the projects would be all
or nothing participation. Again, these would ideally be no cost to the City or homeowner.

Staff has met with two experienced consultants and pre-planned how such a project could work.
Perhaps, both consultants would participate in an effort to develop consistent details (so all homes
are treated fairly). After neighborhoods are selected, each consultant would be tasked with
different project bundles that total $800,000 to $900,000. The projects can be designed and
constructed this calendar year.

There are currently 16 neighborhoods with sump pump issues that Staff is particularly interested
to solve. Unfortunately, these areas represent over 1,100 homes and there is no budget for a
mass mailing of this magnitude. Staff is even open to other suggestions if recommendations are
received in a timely manner.

1. W. Friar Lane (West ofS. Lovers Lane)
2. Mission Hills South No. 2 subdivision (S. Mission Drive and W. Allwood Drive)
3. S. 82nd Street and W. Coventry Drive
4. W. Forest Hill Avenue and W. Anita Lane (Hill View Estates subdivisions)
5. S. Lakeview Drive and W. Forest Hill Avenue (Imperial Heights No 2, No 3 subdivisions)
6. S. Drake Lane (Mission Hills West subdivisions)
7. W. Friar Lane and Chapel Hill Court (Mission Hills Northeast subdivision)
8. S. 36th Court (off S. 35th Street and W. Acre Avenue)



9. S. 68th Street and W. Drexel Avenue (Riverview West and Park View North subdivisions)
10. S. 68th Street and W. Pineberry Ridge (Robinwood Estates)
11. S. 68th Street and W. Lindner Drive (Southview East subdivision)
12. S. 31st Street to S. 35th Street (north of S. Ryan Road, Southwood Court)
13. Hawthorn Glen subdivision (S. 60th Street and W. Drexel Avenue- SW)
14. Root River Heights subdivision (S. 60th Street and W. Drexel Avenue- SE)
15. Oakes Estates subdivision (W. Warwick Way and S. Cambridge Dr)
16. Ryanwood Manor subdivision (S. 76th Street and W. Oakwood Road)

Staff would work with the GIS Staff to develop a web-based survey. Links would be available on
the City website and may be distributed electronically to entire distribution lists. This survey
would be similar to the one conducted for the trail along W. Forrest Home that could report
responses geospatially.

Staff would prioritize projects based on participation rates, age of homes, locations of discharges,
known sump pump issues, and targeted sewer-sheds with known PPII issues. It is unlikely that
projects will be widespread enough to distribute throughout the City of Franklin. However, some
neighborhoods could be identified and a follow-up paper survey could verify participation.

OPTIONS
A. Approve concept. Direct Staff to electronically survey neighborhoods and return with

professional services contracts with recommendations on selected projects.
B. Decline concept. Direct Staff to prepare MMSD for return of earmarked funds as

appropriate.

FISCAL NOTE
This PPII program is in the 2022 Sewer Utility budget and primarily funded using Franklin's
allotment of MMSD funds earmarked for this purpose. As envisioned, there would be no net
impact to the City budgets.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Direct Staff to electronically survey neighborhoods and return with professional
services contracts with recommendations on selected projects.

Engineering Department: GEM



APPROVAL

Slur
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

City of Franklin Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB) Program / GASB 74 and 75
Disclosure Report for Fiscal Year 2021

MEETING DATE
3/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.15.
Background
The City is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) to complete specific
analysis and financial reporting in regard to post-employment benefits other than pensions. The specific
benefit the City provides under these standards is retiree health insurance, for eligible employees who meet
certain criteria and elect the benefit. But, the obligation is calculated including all active benefit eligible
employees and retirees eligible for the benefit. The services of an actuary are required to complete the
analysis and financial reporting, according to the standards, for the obligation the City has due to the
promise of these benefits. Milliman, Inc. has been retained by the City to complete the required analysis
and provide the required report for fiscal year 2021. That report is attached for your review.

Analysis
This report was presented to and discussed with the Finance Committee at their February 22, 2022 meeting.
The Committee approved a motion recommending forwarding the report to the Common Council to accept
and place on file. The Committee felt it is important to share with the Common Council some highlights
from the report. Those highlights are as follows:

• The City of Franklin is among a small number of Wisconsin municipalities, estimated by the
consultant to be approximately 10% of municipalities, that have created a trust to fund future OPEB
service costs.

• The City of Franklin is among an even smaller number of Wisconsin municipalities, estimated by
the consultant to be approximately 1% of municipalities, that have fully funded the obligation.

• The City of Franklin is currently funded at greater than 100% of the liability due to favorable
economic conditions.

• The Actuarial Determined Contribution (ADC), funded through the City's annual budget, is
sufficient to meet the requirements of the expected obligations into the future. In fact, the ADC is
reduced in 2022 due to the current position of the fund.

Fiscal Impact
This is a regularly budgeted item that is reviewed regularly to ensure sufficient funding.

Recommendation
The Finance Committee and staff recommend that the Common Council accept the report and place it on
file to be utilized for the City's required financial reporting for the 2021 fiscal year.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to accept the City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Program/ GASB 74 and 75
Disclosure Report for Fiscal Year 2021 and place it on file.

DOA-PS



Financial Reporting Valuation



Milliman

CITY OF FRANKLIN
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM

GASB 74 and 75 DISCLOSURE
Fiscal Year: January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021

Prepared by

John M. Chmielewski, FSA, EA, MAAA
Principal and Consulting Actuary

Steven G. Hanson, ASA, MAAA
Consulting Actuary

Milliman, Inc
15800 Bluemound Road, Suite 100
Brookfield, WI 53005-6043
Tel +1 262 784 2250
mill1man com

February 18, 2022



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Table of Contents

Certification

Overview of GASB 74 and GASB 75

Executive Summary

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Money-Weighted Rate of Return

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

Depletion Date Projection

Net OPEB Liability

Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

OPEB Expense

Schedule of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

OPEB Liability and Expense Summary

Glossary

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions

Summary of Participant Data

Summary of Plan Provisions

Appendix A: Total OPEB Liability by Group

Appendix B: Rate Tables

1

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

23

24

25

26

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

Thus work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receve thus work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when revewmng the Mllmman work product



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Certification

Actuarial computations presented 1n this report under Statements No 74 and 75 of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board are for purposes of assisting the City in fulfilling its financial accounting
requirements No attempt is being made to offer any accounting opinion or advice Thus report is for fiscal
year January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 The reporting date for determining plan assets and obl1gat1ons
Is December 31, 2021 The calculations enclosed in this report have been made on a basis consistent with
our understanding of the plan prov1s1ons Determinations for purposes other than meeting financial reporting
requirements may be significantly different than the results contained in thus report Accordingly, additional
determInat1ons may be needed for other purposes, such as Judging benefit security or meeting employer
funding requirements

In preparing this report, we relied, without audit, on information as of October 1, 2021 furnished by the City
Thus Information includes, but rs not limited to, statutory prov1s1ons, member census data, and financial
1nformat1on The membership as of October 1, 2021 includes 208 active part1c1pants, 25 retirees, and 21
spouses of current retirees

We performed a limited review of the census and financial information used directly in our analysis and have
found them to be reasonably consistent and comparable with information used for other purposes The
valuation results depend on the integrity of thus information If any of thus Information Is inaccurate or
incomplete our results may be different and our calculations may need to be revised

We hereby certify that, to the best of our knowledge, this report, including all costs and l1ab1l1t1es based on
actuarial assumptions and methods, 1s complete and accurate and determined in conformance with generally
recognized and accepted actuarial principles and practices, which are consistent wth the Actuarial Standards
of Practice promulgated by the Actuarial Standards Board and the applicable Code of Professional Conduct,
amplifying Opinions and supporting Recommendations of the Amencan Academy of Actuaries

This valuation report 1s only an estimate of the plan's financial condition as of a single date It can neither
predict the plan's future cond1t1on nor guarantee future financial soundness Actuarial valuations do not
affect the ultimate cost of plan benefits, only the timing of plan contributions While the valuation Is based on
an array of 1nd1v1dually reasonable assumptions, other assumption sets may also be reasonable and
valuation results based on those assumptions would be different No one set of assumptions Is uniquely
correct Determining results using alternative assumptions 1s outside the scope of our engagement

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented In this
report due to factors such as, but not limited to, the following plan experience differing from that anticipated
by the economic or demographic assumptions, changes in economic or demographic assumptions,
increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these
measurements (such as the end of an amortization perod or addrtonal cost or contribution requirements
based on the plan's funded status), and changes in plan prov1s1ons or applicable law Due to the limited
scope of the actuarial assignment, we did not perform an analysis of the potential range of such future
measurements

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Endmg December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes M1ll1man does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or labilrty to other parties who receive this work M1ll1man
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the M1ll1man work product

Page 1



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Certification

The valuation results were developed using models intended for valuations that use standard actuarial
techniques In add1t1on, Milliman has developed certain models to develop the expected long term rate of
return on assets and estimate the claim costs and trend used in this analysis We have reviewed the models,
including their inputs, calculations, and outputs for consistency, reasonableness, and appropriateness to the
intended purpose and in compliance with generally accepted actuarial practice and relevant actuarial
standards of practice The models, including all input, calculations, and output may not be appropriate for any
other purpose

M1lhman's work Is prepared solely for the internal use and benefit of the City of Franklin To the extent that
M1ll1man's work 1s not subject to disclosure under applicable public records laws, M1ll1man's work may not be
provided to third parties without M1lhman's prior written consent Milliman does not intend to benefit or create
a legal duty to any third party rec1p1ent of its work product M1ll1man's consent to release its work product to
any third party may be conditioned on the third party signing a Release, subject to the following exceptions
(a) the Plan Sponsor may provide a copy of M1ll1man's work, in its entirety, to the Plan Sponsor's
professional service advsors who are subject to a duty of confidentiality and who agree to not use Mlhmman's
work for any purpose other than to benefit the City, and (b) the Plan Sponsor may provide a copy of
Milliman's work, mn its entirety, to other governmental entities, as required by law

This report and its use are subject to the terms of our Consulting Services Agreement with the City of
Franklin dated August 23, 2021

No third party recIpIent of M1lhman's work product should rely upon M1lhman's work product Such recIp1ents
should engage qualified professionals for advice appropriate to their specific needs

The consultants who worked on this assignment are actuaries M1lliman's advice 1s not intended to be a
substitute for qualified legal or accounting counsel

The signing actuaries are independent of the plan sponsor We are not aware of any relat1onsh1p that would
Impair the objectivity of our work

On the basis of the foregoing, we hereby certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this report Is
complete and has been prepared in accordance with generally recognized accepted actuarial principles and
practices We, John M Chm1elewsk1 and Steve G Hanson, are actuaries for Milliman, Inc We are members
of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the Quahf1cat1on Standards of the American Academy of
Actuaries to render the actuanal opinion contained herein Thus report uses the expertise of Milliman
healthcare and retirement actuaries Steve Hanson 1s responsible for the work related to the current
expected healthcare benefit costs and trend rates Jack Chmelewskt ts responsible for projecting the current
costs into future years using the valuation assumptions and methodology and then calculating the accounting
costs and lablites reported herein

ka,an
John M Chm1elewsk1, FSA, EA, MAAA
Principal and Consulting Actuary

Steven G Hanson, ASA, MAAA
Consulting Actuary

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Endmg December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes M1ll1man does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or hab1hty to other parties who receive this work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 2



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Overview of GASB 74 and GASB 75

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released accounting standards for public
postemployment benefit plans other than pension (OPEB) and partIc1pating employers 1n 2015 These
standards, GASB Statements No 74 and 75, have substantially revised the accounting requirements
previously mandated under GASB Statements No 43 and 45 The most notable change 1s the that the
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) has been eliminated and the Net OPEB L1ability will be an item on the
employer's f1nanc1al statement rather than a footnote entry

GASB 74 applies to financial reporting for public OPEB plans funded by OPEB trusts and 1s required to be
implemented for plan fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016 Note that a plan's fiscal year might not be
the same as the employer's fiscal year Even 1f the plan does not issue standalone financial statements, but
rather 1s considered a trust fund of a government, It Is subJect to GASB 74 Under GASB 74, enhancements
to the financial statement disclosures are required, along with certain reqwred supplementary information

GASB 75 governs the specifics of accounting for public OPEB plan obligations for part1cIpatmg employers
and Is required to be implemented for employer fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017 GASB 75
requires a liability for OPEB obligations, known as the Net OPEB Liability (Total OPEB Liability for unfunded
plans), to be recognized on the balance sheets of participating employers Changes in the Net OPEB
Liability (Total OPEB Liability for unfunded plans) will be immediately recognzed as OPEB Expense on the
income statement or reported as deferred inflows/outflows of resources depending on the nature of the
change

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes M1ll1man does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or labiltty to other parties who receive this work M1ll1man
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when revewIng the Mllmman work product

Page 3



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Executive Summary

Relationship Between Valuation Date, Measurement Date, and Reporting Date

The Valuation Date Is January 1, 2022 This Is the date as of which the actuarial valuation Is performed The
Measurement Date is December 31, 2021 This Is the date as of which the total OPEB hab1l1ty Is determined
The Reporting Date Is December 31, 2021 This 1s the plan's and/or employer's fiscal year ending date

Significant Changes

There have been no significant changes between the valuation date and fiscal year end

Participant Data as of January 1, 2022

Actives
Retirees
Spouses of Retirees
Beneficiaries
Total

208
25
21

0
254

GASS 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropnate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 4



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Actuarially Determined Contribution

The following exhibrt provides the detailed calculation of the Actuarally Determined Contribution for the
2021 and 2022 fiscal years

Fiscal Year Ending

Service Cost
Amortization Payment
Interest Cost
Actuarially Determined Contribution

Assumptions Used to Calculate ADC

Actuarial cost method
Asset valuation method
Amortization method
Discount Rate
Asset Earnings Rates
Payroll Growth

December 31, 2021

$238,367
66,435
19,812

324,614

Entry Age Normal
Market Value

17 Year Level Percent
650%
6 50%
3 00%

December 31, 2022

$248,638
(115,543)

16 161
149,256

Entry Age Normal
Market Value

16 Year Level Percent
6 50%
6 50%
3 00%

Expected Benefit Payments
The following shows the estimated benefit payments and actuarally determined contributions for the next 9
fiscal years

Fiscal Expected Actuarial
Year Benefit Determined
Ending Payments Contribution*

2021 $538,893 $324,614
2022 495,342 149,256
2023 543,217 162,376
2024 599,513 176,434
2025 666,233 191,487
2026 635,346 207,597
2027 728,299 224,824
2028 775,042 243,229
2029 787,938 262,872
2030 745,363 283,807

Actuarial Determined Contribution (ADC) is based on the projection of the market value
of assets and the plan liability using standard roll-forward methodology. The roll-forward
of assets assume that the ADC is contributed at the end of each fiscal year and that
benefit payments are paid directly from the Trust throughout the year.

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

Page 5

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes descnbed herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not mntend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive thus work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professonal when revewng the Milliman work product



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

December 31, 2020

Assets

December 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables and prepaid expenses
Recevable contributions
Receivable Investment income
Receivables from brokers for unsettled trades
Prepaid expenses

Total receivables

Investments
Fred income
Stocks
Short-term investments
Real estate
Alternative Investments

Total investments

Invested securrtes lending cash collateral

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities

$160,124 $151,984

0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0

2,424,202 2,778,277
5,227,188 6,143,505

0 0
0 0
0 0

7,651,390 8,921,782

0 0

0 0

7,811,514 9,073,766

Accrued expenses and benefits payable
Securities lending cash collateral
Payable to brokers for unsettled trades

Total liabilities

16,600
0
0

16,600

0
0
0

0

Net position restricted for postemployment benefits -----,------other than pensions $7,794,914 $9,073,766

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Millmman does not mtend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who recerve thus work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when revewng the Milliman work product

Page 6



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

December 31, 2021

Additions

Member contributions
Employer contributions

Total contributions

Investment income (loss)
Interest
Dvdends
Equity fund income, net
Net increase in fair value of investments
Securities lending Income

Less investment expenses
Direct investment expense
Securities lending management fees
Securities lending borrower rebates

Net investment income

Other income

Total additions

Deductions

Service benefits
Disability benefits
Death benefits
Refunds of member contributions
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Net increase (decrease)

Net position restricted for postemployment benefits other than pensions

Beginning of year (December 31, 2020)
End of year (December 31, 2021)

$147,403
374,367
521,770

1,313,914
0
0
0
0

75,975
0
0

1,237,939

0

1,759,709

472,857
N/A
N/A
N/A

8,000

480,857

1,278,852

7,794,914
$9,073,766

GASS 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the M1ll1man work product

Page 7



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Money-Weighted Rate of Return

Fiscal Year
Ending

December31

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Net
Money-Weighted
Rate of Return

N/A
N/A
NIA
N/A
NIA
N/A
N/A
N/A
NIA

1584%

Calculation of Money-Weighted Rate of Return

The money-weighted rate of return considers the changing amounts actually Invested during a period and
weights the amount of plan investments by the proportion of time they are available to earn a return during
that period External cash flows are determined on a monthly basis and are assumed to occur at the
beginning of each month External cash inflows are netted with external cash outflows, resulting in a net
external cash flow mn each month The money-weighted rate of return rs calculated net of investment
expenses

Net External
Net External Periods Period Cash Flows
Cash Flows Invested Weight With Interest

Beginning Value - January 1, 2021 $7,794,914 12 00 100 $9,029,422

Monthly net external cash flows
January 3,409 12 00 1 00 3,949
February 3,409 11 00 092 3,903
March 3,409 10 00 0 83 3,852
April 3,409 9 00 0 75 3,807
May 3,409 8 00 067 3,762
June 3,409 7 00 0 58 3,713
July 3,409 6 00 0 50 3,669
August 3,409 5 00 042 3,627
September 3,409 4 00 0 33 3,579
October 3,409 3 00 025 3,537
November 3,409 2 00 017 3,496
December 3,409 1 00 0 08 3,450

Ending Value - December 31, 2021 9,073,766 9,073,766

Money-Weighted Rate of Return 15 84%

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the Ctty for the purposes described herem and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or lability to other parties who receive thus work Milliman
recommends that third parties be anded by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 8



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The assumption for the long-term expected rate of return us determined by adding expected Inflation to
expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation The capital market
assumptions are per Mllmman's investment consulting practice as of December 31, 2021

Asset Class

US Cash
US Core Fred Income
US Equity Market

Assumed Inflation - Mean

Assumed Inflaton - Standard Deviation

Portfolio Real Mean Return

Portfolio Nominal Mean Return

Portfolio Standard Deviation

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

2 30%

123%

3 92%

622%

2 30%

1 23%

3 16%

5 56%

12 03%

6.50%

Long-Term Long-Term
Expected Expected
Arithmetic Geometric

Target Real Rate Real Rate
Index Allocation of Return of Return

BAML 3-Mon Tbill 167% -0 26% -0 26%
Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate 3062% 1 39% 1 28%
Russell 3000 67 71% 517% 3 57%

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Endmg December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes descnbed herem and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Mllmman does not mntend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive thus work Milliman
recommends that third parties be anded by their own actuary or other qualified professional when revewmng the Mllmman work product

Page 9



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Depletion Date Projection

GASB 74 and 75 generally require that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total OPEB L1ab1l1ty
(the Actuarial Accrued L1ab1llty calculated using the lnd1v1dual Entry Age Normal Cost Method) The long-term
expected return on plan investments may be used to discount liab11it1es to the extent that the plan's F1duc1ary
Net Position (far market value of assets) is projected to cover benefit payments and adm1rnstrat1ve
expenses A 20-year high quality (ANAa or higher) municipal bond yield or index rate must be used for
periods where the Fiduciary Net Position ts not projected to cover benefit payments and administratve
expenses Determining the discount rate under GASB 74 and 75 will often require that the actuary perform
complex proJectIons of future benefit payments and asset values GASB 74 and 75 (paragraph 29) do allow
for alternative evaluations of proJected solvency, 1f such evaluation can reliably be made GASB does not
contemplate a specific method for making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency, It Is left to professional
Judgment

The following circumstances Justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for the City of Franklin

The funded status of the plan is currently greater than 100%

The Actuarially Determined Contribution Is based on a closed amortization period, which
means that payment of the Actuarially Determined Contribution each year will bring the plan
to a 100% funded posrton by the end of the amortization period

GASB 74 and 75 specify that the proJectIons regarding future solvency assume that plan
assets earn the assumed rate of return and there are no future changes mn the plan provisions
or actuarial methods and assumptions, which means that the projections would not reflect any
adverse future experience which might impact the plan's funded posItIon

Based on these circumstances, it is our professional opinion that the detailed depletion date projections
outlined In GASB 74 and 75 will show that the Fiduciary Net Position rs always projected to be sufficient to
cover benefit payments and adm1nistrat1ve expenses

GASS 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes descnbed herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or hab1hty to other parties who receive this work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Mllmman work product

Page 10



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Net OPEB Liability

Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB liability
Fiduciary net position
Net OPEB hab11ity
Fiduciary net position as a % of total OPEB liability
Covered payroll
Net OPEB hab1l1ty as a % of covered payroll

December 31, 2020

$8,671,008
7,794,914

876,094
89 90%

NIA
NIA

December 31, 2021

$7,617,767
9,073,766

(1,455,999)
119 11%

N/A
N/A

The total OPEB llab1hty was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date, calculated based
on the discount rate and actuarial assumptions below, and was then projected forward to the measurement
date Any s1gn1ficant changes during this period have been reflected as prescribed by GASB 74 and 75

Discount Rate

Discount rate
Long-term expected rate of return, net of investment expense
Municipal bond rate

650%
650%

N/A

6 50%
6 50%

N/A

The plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current active and Inactive employees Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total OPEB l1ability
Is equal to the long-term expected rate of return

Other Key Actuarial Assumptions

The plan has not had a formal actuarial experience study performed

Valuation date

Measurement date

Actuarial cost method

January 1, 2020

December 31, 2020

Entry Age Normal

January 1, 2022

December 31, 2021

Entry Age Normal

GASS 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes descnbed herein and may not be appropnate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work Milliman
recommends that third parties be anded by their own actuary or other qualified professional when revewng the Milliman work product

Page 11



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Changes in Net OPEB Liability
Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB

Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Balances as of December 31, 2020

Changes for the year
Service cost

Interest on total OPEB hab1hty

Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs
Benefit payments

Employer contnbut1ons
Member contrbutons

Net investment income
Administrative expenses

Balances as of December 31, 2021

Liability
(a)

$8,671,008

238,367
563,984

0
(195,804)

(1,186,931)
(472,857)

7,617,767

Net Position
(b)

$7,794,914

(472,857)
374,367

147,403
1,237,939

(8,000)

9,073,766

Liability
(a) - (b)

$876,094

238,367
563,984

0
(195,804)

(1,186,931)

0
(374,367)

(147,403)
(1,237,939)

8,000

(1,455,999)

Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6 50%, as well
as what the City's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower (5 50%) or 1 percentage point higher (7 50%) than the current rate

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

5.50% 6.50% 7.50%

Total OPEB liability $8,161,965 $7,617,767 $7,114,165
Fiduciary net position 9,073,766 9,073,766 9,073,766
Net OPEB liability (911,801) (1,455,999) (1,959,601)

The following presents the net OPEB hab1ilty of the City, calculated using the current healthcare cost trend
rates as well as what the City's net OPEB liability would be If rt were calculated using trend rates that are 1
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current trend rates

Total OPEB liability

Fiduciary net position
Net OPEB liability

1% Decrease
$7,377,551

9,073,766
(1,696,215)

Current
Trend Rate

$7,617,767

9,073,766

(1,455,999)

1% Increase
$7,828,397

9,073,766

(1,245,369)

GASS 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive thus work Milliman
recommends that third parties be anded by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 12



e
m
Q)
>,

0

< z g
C
0

iii al
E
s&~ ~

""Cl
Cm

<( ""Cl

e
:::,
C,

\I:>
6
C

\I:>
m
e
m
Q)
>

<( 0
25

0

<(z

<( !:z o
Q)
t
0
Cl.
\I:>

::I; g
z

m
e
m
Q)
>
5
5

0
5
ma.

""Cl~
Q)
>
0
(.)

z
.0
!!!

CD
w
D..
0
m
:§....
0

~
m
CJ)
m
C
0.;:;
;;;
0a.
ID
C

z>
m
5
:::,

""Clu::

CJ>

°0CJ>
CJ>co

CD
w
D..
0
IDz

Cl
C

""Cl
C
Q)

6
CJ>
0)

IO
IO
'St

@
CJ>
0
<Or--coe

6
IO
CJ>
CJ>

co

g @
C Cl
!: C
Cl "O
Q) C.a Q)

C C
0 0

.;::; ~
;;; <Jl
0 0a. a.
6 6
C C

>> z>m m
5 5
:::, :::,

"O "Ou:: u::

'St <O
« O
CJ>!'-
'St (")
0) r---
1'- 0
I'- CJ>

0 'St
<O
I'- CJ>
co 'St
(') CJ>
IO l'-
<O I'-

'St 0
0 <O
'St I'-
0 0O
N (")
N IO
IO <O

::I; ::I;z z

<O
IO
N

0)
0
(")

r::- Q N
IO O IO
<O O <O
N
I'-
::!:-

a, N
IO !

5.a•c
0±:

0 .a
a. EE a,
uu 5

83 38$ ° 3
I'- (") 'St (')
0) <O 0) 0)
t O O

~ co :::!:-

N
0)
IO
<F>

I'- (') 0)
<O O (')
(") 'St 0)

'St I'- r---
1'- 'St (")
(") N
n9

co o + o o o
<O CO CJ> IO
'St O (")

< < <zzzzzz

< <<«zzzzzz

::l;'.':!;:%::l;<C::I;z z z z z

:%:%:%'.:!:=:%:%zzzzzz

< < <«zzzzzz

C:
0±zu, CJ)
0 C C/l

a.. _g QCl) Cz e
z> 8•c.,
:::s
E
LL

@

C Cl
C !:
C) "O
Q) C.a Q)

2
.0 .0g
CD CD
w w
D.. D..
0 0
m m

~ ~

co r---
0 <O
0 r---

1'
]. r
<O <O
co I'-

<O co
r O
I'- 0
0O r
IO I'
(") <O
co co

CJ)
Q)
CJ)
CJ)

.2
0
-;;;- CJ)
C Cl
m a.

e

3#$;
CO CJ> <O N
IO <O N (")
CJ>COl'-IO
-- :!.. 0
E

I'- 'St 0
<O co
(") 0)

co (")
(') <O
N IO
<F>

o o o o o @ oi

8 %%
(") I'- a, N
NLO (OT"""
} o :::!:, (")

0» o o o o o
lO""'-t QU)O)U)

r'l N <O
O<O NCONIO

RG "8g8
9

< < &<&<zzzzzzz

< <&& <zzzzzzz

< <<&<< 4zzzzzzz

< <&&<£zzzzzzz

< <<&<< <zzzzzzz

?
5cu
:J
alwa.
0

....
N
0
N

0
N
0
N

a,....
0
N

M....
0
N

N....
0
N

It)....
0
4

M...
Cl)
.a
E o
g5v
0
Cl
C:
5E
C: 0LI...
111
Cl)

>-
iii 00
C.) ....»
u:::

u,
0-nset=
"C
Q)-ns
Q)
et=
"C
C:
ns
Ez
.cns·-...J
alwa..
0-Q)z
C:
u,
Q)
C)
C:ns.c:u.,._
0
Q)

:::::s
"C
Q)
.c:
0n

C:
0:;;
111
:::s
111>
Cl
C:
E
0
C.
Cl)
0::
.!!!
C.)
C:
111
C:
u.
C:
111
E



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

OPEB Expense

January 1, 2020 to January 1, 2021 to
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021

k $238,367
* 563,984
* 0
* 8,000
* 0
* (507,978)

* (26,157)
* (115,248)
* (219,902)

$312,292 (58,934)

Service cost
Interest on total OPEB hab1hty
Effect of plan changes
Administrative expenses
Member contributions
Expected investment return net of investment expenses
Recognition of Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

Recognition of economic/demographic gains or losses
Recognition of assumpton changes or inputs
Recognition of investment gains or losses

OPEB Expense
Components of2020 OPEB Expense were not provided mn December 31 2020 Comprehensive Annual Fmanc1al Report

OPEB Expense

As of December 31, 2021, the deferred inflows and outflows of resources are as follows

Deferred Inflows/ Outflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date
Total

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

($335,478)
(1,055,633)

(909,130)
0

(2,300,241)

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

$101,693
160,505

0
0

262,198

Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
other postemployment benefits will be recogmzed in OPEB expense as follows

Year ended December 31
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter*

($361,306)
(489,142)
(336,904)
(287,398)
(141,405)
(421,888)

Note that addtonal future deferred inflows and outflows of resources may impact these numbers

Page 14GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

Thus work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes descnbed heremn and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Mllmman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who recerve thus work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by therr own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Mllmman work product



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Schedule of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

Amount Amount
Recognized Recognized Balance of Balance of

Original in Expense in Expense Deferred Deferred
Original Date Rec. for FYE through Inflows Outflows
Amount Established Period 12/31/2021 12/31/2021 12/31/2021 12/31/2021

Economic/ ($195,804) 12/31/2021 9 04 ($21,660) ($21,660) ($174,144) $0
demographic (190,666) 12/31/2020 13 00 (14,666) (29,332) (161,334) 0
(gains)/losses 132,200 12/31/2019 13 00 10,169 30,507 0 101,693

0 12/31/2018 0 00 0 0 0 0
Total (26,157) (20,485) (335,478) 101,693

Assumption (1,186,931) 12/31/2021 9 04 (131,298) (131,298) (1,055,633) 0
changes or 0 12/31/2020 0 00 0 0 0 0
inputs 208,655 12/31/2019 13 00 16,050 48,150 0 160,505

0 12/31/2018 0 00 0 0 0 0
Total (115,248) (83,148) (1,055,633) 160,505

Investment (729,961) 12/31/2021 5 00 (145,992) (145,992) (583,969) 0
(gains)/losses (247,535) 12/31/2020 5 00 (49,507) (99,014) (148,521) 0

(761,174) 12/31/2019 5 00 (152,234) (456,702) (304,472) 0
639,156 12/31/2018 500 127,831 511,324 0 127,832

Total (219,902) (190,384) (1,036,962) 127,832

Total for economic/demographic gains or losses
and assumption changes or inputs (1,391,111) 262,198

Net deferred (inflows)/outflows for investment gains or losses (909,130) 0

Total deferred (inflows)/outflows (2,300,241) 262,198

Total net deferrals (2,038,043)

Investment (gains)/losses are recognized mn OPEB expense over a period of five years,
economic/demographic (gamns)/losses and assumption changes or mnputs are recognzed over the average
remaining seruce life for all active and mnactve members

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive thus work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when revewng the Milliman work product

Page 15



zca
E
E
::::,
en
CL>
ti)
C:
CL>
Q.
><w
"C
C:ca
>:!::
.cca
...J
mwa.
0

s::
0
:;:;
ns
:::l
ns>
Cls::
t:
0
C.
(I)

0:::
ns·o
s::nss::

LL
s::ns
E

s

r-. '<I" 0 0 0 6 R 6 6G °Q) <O CX) 0 r-. lO '<I" 0 C')
ni U) C') a, 0 0 ~ N 0» a,
::::, C CX) C') CX) r-. <O lO 0» CX)
C Q) C') <O 0 g e v oC C. N lO o :s<( )(w

U) U) 6 C') r-. '<I" °III ::::, ni '<I" 0 <O C') '<I"w C. ... r-. '<I" C') a, 0...
a. >, g N r-. '<I" CX) N
0 <O '<I" r-. lO CX)±: Q) e ~ C') o... ..c 0
Q) ... Ez 3 Q):J z

° ? ~  r-. CX) N ;;;-
U) lO 0 .;; <O lO '<I" 0 '<I"
Es <O CX) 0 0 ~ N a, 0- <O lO <O m <O lO 0 CX)Q) s CX) 0 CX) N N e 5 C')z - N :s e !:::. e 0
Q) @0 :s ~...

C = > N 6Q)

E a U) r-. <O 0 C'),: 0 0> 0» ~... ,:U) 0 0 0» 0» a,
Q) 0 'E 0 N ~ 0> i;::: C') !:::. N g.!: C ::::, ~- 0
Q)z

r-. 6 6 CX)
"O U) ~ <O lO 0»
g ,: '<I" ~ 0 e... 0 CX) 0 <O Ng 'E CX) ~ :s <O

N - N
Q) ::::, IF>0 0

6 ? = <O CX) ="O £
0 0 C') N 0» e

g 0 CX) 0 C') N ~
<O lO <O <O ~ 5e 0 r-. 0 CX) C') C')..:: ~ ~ ~ C')

Q) .!: ~ e ~0 :s -
'

G R ? 0 '<I" e 0 6 C') CX) ~ r-. 0)

± a, <O CX) 0 C') 0 0 r-. <O <O 0
III 0 C') a, CX) a, 0 '<I" 0 m C') 0... w :c <O CX) C') lO <O e r-. r-. 0» '<I" lOQ) r-. C') <O 0) CX) '<I" 0 N r-. lOz a. m CX) ! o lO r-. C') '<I"0 :J ~

C '<I" R 6 C') CX) ~ r-. <O ....> 0 e lO 0 0 r-. <O <O <O.;::. 0 CX) 0 '<I" a, 0 C') r-. N
3 0C 0 iii '<I" N 0 r-. r-. 0 '<I" C') N3 0 0 r-. '<I" 0 N r-. r-.

ii: ::::, a. r-. :::!:, lO r-. C') 0 ...."O ... r-. 0» 9u:: Q) IF> ...
z Q)

..c
6 R G R E

0 '<I" e r-. Q)e 0 <O CX) 0 C') lO <O u
III 0 C') 0 CX) 0 CX) r-. Q)E w ;:::: CX) C') lO <O N r-. 0... :c C') <O 0 CX) r-.0 a. <O ClI- 0 m <O ! o '<I" C:J CX) !:::. '5~ Cw

(/)
...mCJ Q)

a. (/) >-c Q) ni(/) L.
(/)

CJ (/) 0 (/) u
0 o .... U)
N a. Q) (/) N u:::0 s (/) Q) 0 0(/) ...4 6 Q) o Ol v 0C (/) (/) E L. 0 C  -~

Q) (/) 0 0 .r:: iii Q)M (/) Q) 0 0 M ...
t (/) (/) O> 6 ::::,.0 o O> s (/) C CC Q) E U)..c g m (/) E= (/) iii 0 ..c 0E 0 .r:: Q) (/) O> a Q) E "oQ) (/) EQ) Cl) (/)

(/) 0 (/) (/) E o C z E Q) U)u w Q) C C C C 0 -;;; u 5Q) a.. Ol iii 0 Q) 0 -;;; 0 5 .0
::::, Q) Q)C a. (/)0 0 3 Ol "E. £ X 3 Q)

(/) .0 g (/) > 0 in> £- G .r::
~ E Q) .0 !: C ;:: m Q) - r,..

0 0 Q) Q) C iii = .... .... '5 (/) 0 "O:§ ::::, 0 0 CU) -;;; C .0 (/) E > = <ii O> 0 Q) U) Cm 0 g (/) >, ~ 0 C c 0 C C C a. m m,,, 0 C a. m m 0 0 0 0 X ,,,
s:I'Q) 0 0 .... .... .... a. -;;; "O Q) <ii .;:, .;:, .;:, Q) Q)u Q) -;;; 0 0 0 <ii Q) E >, E = c u r,..

C 0 ~ 6 5 5 .;::: ~ .0 6 -;;; 0 Ol O> O> m C IXlm 2 Q) E E Q) a. 0 0 0 ::::, m Cl)
ni Q) e e ge C a. Q)

E 0 0 0 C iii <(Q) c Q) "O Q) X > Q) Q) Q) C
III (J) w w w ID <( 5 w E w 0::: 0::: 0:: <( ID (!)

00 C
a> m
E E::::, -=(/) -=
g =
-g :5
m a,
li:: C
Q) 3:
C Q)

15 >e
"O C
C Q)sos


- Cll0 C
C 0
(/) iii
s3
-o e
C a.
Cll "O

£e<5::::,
(/) 0-

% s
0 .r::e- 0
5. 0
<ii c:-.r:: Cll5a
s±
(!) 3:g o
g5
(!) .r::ro ;._

oa.
0 "O
L. (!)

8
Cll Cll

2&- (/)0 (!)
C t
>, Cll
Cll Q.

E -o
"O !:
C .r::
e ro
~£
(!) </)
.r:: "O
"O C
(!) (!)
.o E

E0 03 o
> %
<I> C
Q) Cll

2 E
E a.-=e gs
Clg
a.
J!ls
C
Q)
III



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Glossary

Actuarially Determined
Contribution

Deferred Inflows/Outflows
of Resources

Discount Rate

Fiduciary Net Position

Long-Term Expected
Rate of Return

Money-Weighted
Rate of Return

Municipal Bond Rate

Net OPEB Liability

Projected Benefit Payments

Service Cost

Total OPEB Liability

A target or recommended contribution to a defined benefit OPEB plan for
the reporting period, determined based on the funding policy and most
recent measurement available when the contribution for the reporting
period was adopted

Portion of changes in net OPEB liablrty that is not immediately recognzed
in OPEB Expense These changes include differences between expected
and actual experience, changes in assumptions, and differences between
expected and actual earnings on plan investments

Single rate of return that, when applied to all projected benefit payments,
results in an actuarial present value of projected benefit payments equal to
the sum of

1) The actuarial present value of benefit payments projected to be made
in future periods where the plan assets are projected to be sufficient to
meet benefit payments, calculated using the Long-Term Expected Rate
of Return

2) The actuarial present value of projected benefit payments not included
In (1), calculated using the Municipal Bond Rate

Equal to market value of assets

Long-term expected rate of return on plan investments expected to be
used to finance the payment of benefits, net of investment expenses

The internal rate of return on plan investments, net of investment
expenses

Yield or Index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher

Total OPEB Liability minus the Plan's Fiduciary Net Position

All benefits estimated to be payable through the OPEB plan to current
active and inactive employees as a result of their past service and
expected future service

The portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments
that is attributed to a valuation year

The portion of actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that 1s
attributable to past periods of member service using the Entry Age Normal
cost method based on the requirements of GASS 74 and 75

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or hab1hty to other parties who receive this work Milliman
recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 17



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions
The following actuaral assumptions were used mn the development of the City of Franklin's retiree health
cost projections Where consistent with the terms of the plan, actuanal assumptions have utilized the
assumptions for the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) as provided in the December 31, 2020 Actuarial
Valuation reports These assumptions were adopted by the Employee Trust Funds Board in connection
with a study of experience dunng 2015-2017 In our opinion, these assumptions are reasonable for the
Intended purposes of the report Assumptions regarding participant elections are based on recent
experience and on our estimates of future experience

Interest Discount Rate:

Mortality:

Pre-Retirement Thus assumption applies to death while mn service Rates are based on the Wisconsin
2018 Mortality table (multiplied by 50% for males and females) as the base table and
project future improvements with 2018 generational improvement scale (multiplied by
50%), as adopted by the Board in connection with the 2015-2017 Experience Study
performed by the actuary for the Wisconsin Retirement System

Post-Retirement Thus assumption apples to death of participants after retirement Rates are based
on the Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table as the base table and project future
Improvements with 2018 generational improvement scale (multiplied by 50%), as
adopted by the Board in connection with the 2015-2017 Experience Study
performed by the actuary for the Wisconsin Retirement System

Post-D1sab1hty This assumption applies to death after disablement Rates are based on the 2015
2017 Expenence Study performed by the actuary for the Wisconsin Retirement
System as the base table and project future improvements with 2018 generational
improvement scale (multiplied by 50%), as adopted by the Board m connection with
the 2015-2017 Experience Study performed by the actuary for the Wisconsin
Retirement System
* Sample rates ofbase mortality tables are shown m Appendix A

Employee Turnover/Withdrawal: Ten-year select and ultimate rates of WRS for Protective with Social
Security for Protective Employees and General Employee for all other employees Separate rates for males
and females Ultimate rates after the tenth year are shown in the rate table m Appendix A Select rates are
as follows

2 12 3% 15 0% 95%
3 93% 11 5% 60%
4 76% 100% 50%
5 75% 95% 45%
6 5 8% 7 8% 40%
7 4 8% 70% 38%
8 47% 60% 35%
9 4 1% 57% 30%
10 40% 53% 25%

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or hab1hty to other parties who receive this work M1ll1man recommends
that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 18



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Disablement: WRS disability rates for Protective with Social Security for Protective Employees and
General Employee for all other employees Separate rates for General Employees for males and females
Rates shown mn the rate table in Appendix A

Retirement: WRS retirement rates for Protective with Social Security for Protective Employees and
General Employee for all other employees Separate rates for General Employees for male and females
Rates shown In the rate table in Appendix A

Percentage of Retirees Participating In Retiree Medical Coverage:
Future retirees Participation rates for future retirees are assumed to vary based on the level of
contribution to the city Retiree participation wll decrease as retree contributions Increase

Future Retirees
City Contribution Rate Participation Rate

50% or more 85%
45% 81%
40% 77%
35% 72%
30% 68%
25% 64%
20% 60%
15% 55%
10% 51%
5% 47%
0% 0%

Current retirees Actual retiree part1c1pat1on We have assumed spouses of current retirees will not elect coverage
after the death of the retiree

Percentage of Retirees Electing Family Coverage:
Future retirees 75% of Non-Rep, DPW, and Dispatch, and 80% of all others are assumed to elect family
coverage

Current retirees Actual family coverage election

Age Difference of Active Employees and Spouses: Spouses same age as part1c1pants

Annual Medical Trend Rate Assumptions: Based on recent experience, the experience of medical
Insurers, Milliman's future trend expectations, and judgment

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Mllmman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive thus work Mllmman recommends
that thrd parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 19



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Pre-65

Pre-65 Annual Medical
Year(s) Trend Rate
2022 47

2023 45

2024 44
2025 44
2026 43

2027-2028 42

2029-2034 41

2035-2042 42

2043-2050 43

2051-2064 42

2065 41

2066-2067 40

2068-2069 39

2070-2071 38

2072 37

2073+ 36

Salary Adjustment Factors: WRS for Protective with Soc1al Security for Protective Employees and
General Employee for all other employees (The salary adjustment factors that are used to project
earnings for each participant from the valuation date back to the participant's hire age and forward to the
participant's retirement age are shown below for sample years of service )

% Merit and Longevity Increase NextYear
----- ~---------------

Protective with
Service General Social Security

1 3 5% 4 8%
2 35 48

3 31 41

4 28 35

5 25 28

10 1 5 1 1

15 1 1 0 8

20 09 07

25 06 06

30 04 05

In addition to the merit and longevity increase, each person is assumed to get an economic increase of
3 00% each year

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropnate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive thus work Milliman recommends
that third parties be aided by ther own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 20



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Expected Monthly 2022 Medical Costs Per Retiree: We developed estimates of monthly 2022 medical
and adm1n1strat1ve costs per retiree by age based on the County's claims experience and current premium
rates, adjusted for demographic differences between retirees and all participants (actives and retrees
combined) and adjusted for plan benefit differences

In developing our projection of medical costs, we considered the potential mmpact of the emerging situation
regarding the COVID-19 pandemic Given the substantial uncertainty regarding the impact of COVID-19 on
claims costs, including whether the pandemic will increase or decrease costs in the future, we have chosen
not to make an adjustment to the projected costs At the time of this report, It Is not possible to predict the
outcomes, however, It Is known that the COVID-19 pandemic could have a material impact on future costs

Retiree Spouse
Age Male Female Male Female
55
60
64

$881
1,126
1,396

$990
1,157
1,306

$1,088
1,333
1,605

$1,197
1,364
1,513

Changes in Assumptions Since Prior Valuation:
■ Estimated annual claim costs were changed to reflect antIcIpated experience pursuant to a review of

the medical provisions and current premiums

■ Medical trend rates were changed to reflect ant1c1pated experience under the most recent Getzen model
application

■ The salary increase rate was changed from 2% to reflect WRS assumptions

■ The assumed age difference between employees and their spouses was changed from 2 to Oto reflect WRS
assumptions

The overall impact of the new assumptions Is a decrease in the benefit obligations

Rationale for Significant Assumptions: With any valuation of future benefits, assumptions of ant1c1pated
future events are required If actual events differ from the assumptions made, the actual cost of the plan
will vary as well The following assumptions should be reviewed for appropriateness

Demographic
Assumptions

Discount Rate

Medical Trend

Expected
Medical Costs

The City of Franklin partIcIpates in the Wisconsin Retirement System The
actuary for the system updates assumptions tnenrnally based upon plan
experience

The discount rate Is based upon the asset allocation of the City of Franklin OPEB
Trust Portfolio and M1ll1man's capital market expectations as of December 31,
2021

We are using medical inflation assumptions based on the "Long Term
Healthcare Costs Trend Resource Model" created for the Society of Actuaries
by Professor Thomas E Getzen of Temple University This model reflects the
most current academic research regarding future healthcare cost trends

Relative cost factors were developed from the Milliman Health Cost Guidelines
Based on the County's recent clamms experience, plan provisions, and relative
age cost factors assumptions, we developed age adjusted "per member per
month" (PMPM) costs for 2021

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not mtend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work Mllmman recommends
that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when revIewmg the Milliman work product

Page 21



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Salary Increase
and Age
Difference

Updated based on the 2015-2017 Wisconsmn Retirement System experience
study

Given the substantial uncertainty regarding the impact of COVID-19 on plan experience, we have chosen
not to make an adjustment mn the expected 2021 decrements At this time, It Is not possible to predict the
outcomes, however, It Is possible that the COVID-19 pandemc could have a material impact on the short
term plan experience

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive thus work Milliman recommends
that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 22



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Summary of Participant Data

2022 Monthly Retiree Medical Premiums: The current retiree medical premium rates are shown mn the
following table

2022 Monthly Health Insurance Premiums
Plan Single Retiree Plus Spouse

I HDHP

I PPO

$714 88
$79054

$1,724 74
$1,89972

2005 Monthly Retiree Medical Premiums: The frozen rates used for determmmg the city's contribution
for DIspatch retirees

pawrmm
$520 $1,200

Participant Data: We rehed on the following medical plan partIc1pant data as of October 1, 2021 We have
assumed no material changes m the partIcIpant data between October 1, 2021 and January 1, 2022

Participant Count Average Age Average Service
Active Employees 208 453

~-----'--------------------------------~ --- ---
Retirees/Spouses* 45 57 9

*Excludes retirees whose rounded age Is 65 or greater as of the valuation date

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Endmg December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or hab1hty to other parties who receive this work M1lhman recommends
that thrd parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

131

Page 23



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Summary of Plan Provisions
Retiree Eligibility and Benefits: The city pays 75% of the cost at the time of retirement for all retirees
(except Dispatch) until Age 65 For Dispatch employees, the city pays 75% of the cost as of 1/1/2005 until
Age 65 Surv1v1ng spouses of Police and Dispatch employees may remain on the plan by paying 100% of
the cost Retirement eligibility for each group Is summarized below

Group Age Years ofService
Pohce WP PA and 53+

1
Sergeants
Police Other 53+

Firefighters 53+

DIspatch 62+

DPW 60+

Non-Represented 62+

See (1)

15+

20+

20+

15+

20+

(1) 15+ 1f hired on or before 8/1/2010 20+ 1f hired after 8/1/2010

GASS 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive thus work Milliman recommends
that thrd parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 24



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Appendix A: Total OPEB Liability by Group

Group OPES Liability on 12/31/2021

Non-Represented 253 714

Police WPPA 2 494,742

Police Sergeants 550 851

Police Command 659 101

Dispatch 41 232

DPW 408 909

FIre 2 720 098

Fre Command 489 120

Total OPEB Liability 7 617 767

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Endmg December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or hab1hty to other parties who receive this work M1ll1man recommends
that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 25



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Appendix B: Rate Tables
General Employee

Separations from active status expressed as number of occurrences per 10,000

Normal
Withdrawal Retirement* Death Disability

Age Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female
25 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 0 0
26 NIA N/A 0 0 2 1 0 0
27 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 0 0
28 N/A NIA 0 0 2 1 0 1
29 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 0 1
30 370 470 0 0 2 1 0 2
31 360 460 0 0 2 1 0 2
32 350 450 0 0 3 2 0 2
33 330 430 0 0 3 2 0 2
34 310 410 0 0 3 2 0 2
35 300 390 0 0 4 2 1 2
36 280 370 0 0 4 2 1 2
37 260 350 0 0 4 2 1 2
38 ' 250 340 0 0 4 3 1 ! 2
39 250 330 0 0 5 3 2 3
40 240 320 0 0 5 3 2 3
41 240 310 0 0 5 3 3 3
42 230 300 0 0 5 4 3 3
43 220 290 0 0 5 4 4 4
44 210 280 0 0 6 4 4 4
45 200 270 0 0 6 5 4 4
46 190 260 0 0 6 5 4 4
47 180 250 0 0 7 5 4 4
48 180 240 0 0 7 6 6 5
49 170 230 0 0 8 6 7 6
50 170 220 0 0 8 7 9 6
51 160 210 0 0 9 8 10 7
52 160 200 0 0 11 8 12 8
53 160 200 0 0 14 9 13 9
54 160 200 0 0 16 11 15 10
55 0 0 0 0 19 12 17 12
56 0 0 0 0 21 13 19 13
57 0 0 1,900 1,700 23 14 21 14
58 0 0 1,900 1,700 24 15 23 15
59 0 0 1,900 1,700 26 16 25 16

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
Thus work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work Milliman recommends
that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when revewing the Milliman work product

Page 26



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

General Employee

Separations from active status expressed as number of occurrences per 10,000

Normal

Age Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female
60 0 0 1,900 1,700 27 17 30 16
61 0 0 1,900 1,700 29 19 0 0
62 0 0 2,600 2,700 30 20 0 0
63 0 0 2,900 2,700 34 22 0 0
64 0 0 2,800 2,700 37 24 0 0
65 0 0 3,000 3,000 42 26 0 0
66 0 0 3,500 3,500 46 29 0 0
67 0 0 3,000 3,000 51 31 0 0
68 0 0 1,900 2,500 56 35 0 0
69 0 0 1,900 2,500 61 39 0 0
70 0 0 1,900 2,500 68 44 0 0
71 0 0 1,900 2,000 75 49 0 0
72 0 0 1,900 2,000 82 56 0 0
73 0 0 1,900 2,000 92 63 0 0
74 0 0 1,900 2,000 102 71 0 0
75 0 0 10 000 10,000 114 80 0 0

Assumed retirement rates are 0% at ages 57-61 for Non-Represented and Dispatch and 0% at ages 57-59 for DPW
since not eligible for retiree medical benefits

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
This work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who recerve this work Milliman recommends
that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 27



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Protectivewith Social Security

Separations from active status expressed as number of occurrences per 10,000

Early/Normal
WithdrawalRetirementDeathDisability

Age Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female
25 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 1 1
26 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 1 1
27 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 1 1
28 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 1 1
29 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 1 1
30 230 230 0 0 2 1 1 1
31 230 230 0 0 2 1 1 1
32 220 220 0 0 3 2 1 1
33 210 210 0 0 3 2 1 1
34 200 200 0 0 3 2 1 1
35 200 200 0 0 4 2 1 1
36 190 190 0 0 4 2 1 1
37 180 180 0 0 4 2 1 1
38 170 170 0 0 4 3 1 1
39 170 170 0 0 5 3 2 2
40 160 160 0 0 5 ' 3 2 2

' I41 160 160 0 0 5 3 2 2
42 150 150 0 0 5 4 2 2
43 150 150 0 0 5 4 2 2
44 140 140 0 0 6 4 2 2
45 140 140 0 0 6 5 2 2
46 130 130 0 0 6 5 3 3
47 130 130 0 0 7 5 3 3
48 130 130 0 0 7 6 3 3
49 130 130 0 0 8 6 4 4
50 120 120 600 600 8 7 4 4
51 120 120 800 800 9 8 4 4
52 120 120 1,000 1,000 11 8 5 5
53 0 0 2,500 2,500 14 9 23 23
54 0 0 2,000 2,000 16 11 42 42
55 0 0 2,000 2,000 19 12 61 61
56 0 0 2,000 2,000 21 13 79 79
57 0 0 2,000 2,000 23 14 98 98
58 0 0 2,000 2,000 24 15 99 99
59 0 0 2,000 2,000 26 16 101 101

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
Thus work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receve thus work Mllmman recommends
that thrd parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 28



Milliman Financial Reporting Valuation

Protective with Social Security

Separations from active status expressed as number of occurrences per 10,000

Early/Normal
withdrawalRetirementDeathDisability

Age Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female
60 0 0 2,000 2,000 27 17 102 102
61 0 0 2,000 2,000 29 19 0 0
62 0 0 3,000 3,000 30 20 0 0
63 0 0 3,000 3,000 34 22 0 0
64 0 0 3,000 3,000 37 24 0 0
65 0 0 4,000 4,000 42 26 0 0
66 0 0 4,000 4,000 46 29 0 0
67 0 0 4,000 4,000 51 31 0 0
68 0 0 4,000 4,000 56 35 0 0
69 0 0 4,000 4,000 61 39 0 0
70 0 0 10,000 10,000 68 44 0 0
71 0 0 10,000 10,000 75 49 0 0
72 0 0 10,000 10,000 82 56 0 0
73 0 0 10,000 10,000 92 63 0 0
74 0 0 10,000 10,000 102 71 0 0
75 ' 0 0 I 10 000 10 000 114 80 0 0'

Assumed retirement rates are 0% at ages 50-52 since not elgble for retiree medical benefits

GASB 74 and 75 Disclosure for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021
City of Franklin Other Post-Employment Benefits Program
Thus work product was prepared solely for the City for the purposes described heremn and may not be appropriate to use for other
purposes Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or labtlity to other parties who receive this work Milliman recommends
that third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product

Page 29



APPROVAL

Slur
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Resolution 2022-,A Resolution Amending
Resolution 2013-6920 and Appending Resolution
2015-7062 Granting Limited Specific Authority for

Disbursements in Advance ofReview of
Voucher Listings

MEETING
DATE

3/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.16.

Background
The Common Council adopted Resolution 2013-6920 that grants authority for release of payments to vendors in
advance of Common Council review of voucher hstmngs in specific circumstances such as vendors who provide
cash discounts for timely payment or those who have a history of assessing late payment penalties/ fees.

The Common Council further adopted Resolution 2015-7062 which amended the specified hst of vendors to a
defmnition or descrrpton of vendors who qualfy under the prov1s1on of cash discounts or late payment penalty
as well as granted the Director of Fmnance author1ty to update the vendor list as cucumstances arise adding those
that meet the definition of vendors who qualify for early payments, requirmg the Duector of Finance to update
the Common Council as the hist changes, and placing a copy of sand lust on fle with the City Clerk for public
inspection.

Analysis
The proposed Resolution would delete the wordmg mn paragraph g) of Resolution 2013-6920 and replace 1t with
new wordmng. Below shows the orginal wording of paragraph g) that would be replaced by the new wording:

Original Wording of paragraph g)
11 g) Check payments not to exceed $250 with the specific approval of the Mayor, for products or services
in the respective amounts due pursuant to prior approved contracts, or purchase orders, or the like, or
as otherwise set by law."

New Wording of paragraph g):
11 g) Check payments with the specific approval of the Mayor and Duector of Administration, for
products or services in the respective amounts due pursuant to prior approved contracts, purchase
orders, authonzed in the current year Adopted Budget, or as otherwise set by law, 1f needed in advance
of the next scheduled Common Council meeting."

Please note that all vouchers released prior to Common Council approval as authorized by these resolutions are
required to be reported to the CommonCouncil at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Common Council
after the voucher 1s released.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the updated resolution language. Also, to fulfill the requrrement off) (2) of
Resolution 2015-7062, which states the Finance Director shall update the Common Council as the vendor hst
changes for advance disbursement, attached 1s an up-to-date lust of vendors qualfymng for early release of
payment.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A moton to adopt Resoluhon No. 2022-, A Resolution Amending Resolution 2013-6920 and Appendmg
Resolution 2015-7062 Granting L1muted Spec1fic Authority for Disbursements 1n Advance of Rev1ew of Voucher
Listings.

DOA-PS



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2022

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2013-6920 AND APPENDING RESOLUTION 2015-7062
GRANTING LIMITED SPECIFIC AUTHORITY FOR DISBURSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF

REVIEW OF VOUCHER LISTINGS

WHEREAS, the City ofFranklin pays 1ts blls under Wisconsmn Statute 66 0607, and

WHEREAS, there exists Resolutwn 2013-6920 that the Common Council adopted on October 15, 2013, grantmg
authority to 1ssue payments mn advance of Common Council review of voucher lstmngs mn specific circumstances as
identified therem, and

WHEREAS, there also exists Resolutwn 2015-7062 that the Common Council adopted on February 3, 2015,
amendmg the specified hst ofvendors to a defimtion or descnpt1on ofvendors who qualify under the prov1s1on ofcash
discounts or late payment penalty as well as granting the Director of Finance authority to update the vendor hst as
c1rcumstances anse that meet the defimtion ofvendors who qualify for early payments, updating the Common Council
as the list changes, and placing a copy ofsand lust on file wth the City Clerk for pubhc inspection, and

WHEREAS, there are infrequent mstances when payments need to be made to vendors for vanous reasons
between Counce1l meetings. and

WHEREAS. all such vouchers released pnor to Common Council approval as authonzed by Resolution 2013-
6920 (as revised from tune to time) be reported to the Common Council at the next regularly scheduled meetmg of the
Common Council after the voucher was released

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that section g) ofResolution 2013-6920 1s deleted mn 1ts entirety and
replaced with the following

"g) Check payments with the specific approval of the Mayor and Dtrector of Adm1111strat1on, for products or
services 111 the respective amounts due pursuant to pnor approved contracts, purchase orders, authonzed in the
current year Adopted Budget, or as otherwise set by law, ifneeded mn advance ofthe next scheduled Common
Council meetmng "

All other provisions ofResolution 2013-6920 and Resolution 2015-7062 are affirmed and unchanged

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmng ofthe Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin this 1st day ofMarch,
2022

APPROVED

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST

Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



see5a
Franklin◄ WISCONSIN

Finance Department

DATE

TO

FROM

COPY

SUBJECT

February 23, 2022

Mayor Olson, Common Council

Peggy Steeno, Director of Adm1nistrat1on

Kris Mains, Accounts Payable, Clerk's Office

Vendors qualifying for early release by Resolution 2013-6920

The following vendors are authorized for early release under Resolution 2013-6920 Resolution 2015
7062 gave Finance staff permIssIon to update the 11st as circumstances change

VENDORS OFFERING DISCOUNTS FOR QUICK PAYMENT:

CRC Concrete Raising Corp JSA Civil Engineers Sanofi Pasteur Inc

First Supply Luetzow Industries Veritv

** Home Depot NAPA

VENDORS QUALIFYING DUE TO ASSESSING LATE PAYMENT FEES/PENALTIES:

AT&T Sharp Electronics

Building Services Inc Stanley Walter Septic

**Beer Capital TDS

** Charter Communications Time Warner I Spectrum

DWD (Unemployment Tax) United Healthcare

Federal Express ** UMR - United Medical Resources

James Imaging Us Bank

Journal Sentinel Us Cellular

Menards Venzon Wireless

Mlw Metro Sewer District Wal-Mart/ Capital One

Pitney Bowes - Postage We Energies

Sam's Club Woodriver Energy

PAYROLL RELATED VENDORS:
Scott Satula/dba Southeast Inspection Management Srvc LLC

CHANGES
FINANCE FINANCIAL POLICIES EARLY RELEASE VENDORS RES 2015 7262

Celebratng Qualty of Lfe 9229estL0on s Road Far In WI5313 9630 (414427 754 Fi414 42776g1 franklmwt gov



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

March 1, 2022

REPORTS AND Potential Acquisition of Property from 11213 W. Swiss
RECOMMENDATIONS Street (TKN 796-0020-000) and 11225 W. Swiss Street

(TKN 796-0021-001) for a public pathway/trail project.
The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant

to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(e), for competitive and
bargaining reasons, to consider the potential acquisition

of property from 11213 W. Swiss Street (TKN 796-0020-
000) and 11225 W. Swiss Street (TKN 796-0021-001) to

be used for a public pathway/trail project along W.
Church Street and the negotiating of the purchase and the

investing ofpublic funds, including Park Impact fees
with regard to the potential acquisition thereof, and to

reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on
such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate

ITEM NUMBER

G.17.

The City is considering the development of a pathway along W. Church Street which may include land
acquisition from 11213 W. Swiss Street (TKN 796-0020-000) and 11225 W. Swiss Street (TKN 796-0021-
001).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(e), for competitive and bargaining reasons, to
consider the potential acquisition of property from 11213 W. Swiss Street (TKN 796-0020-000) and 11225 W.
Swiss Street (TKN 796-0021-001) to be used for a public pathway/trail project along W. Church Street and the
negotiating of the purchase and the investing of public funds, including Park Impact fees with regard to the
potential acquisition thereof, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

or

Whatever action the Council should otherwise deem appropriate.
Engineering Dept.: GEM; Legal Services Dept.: jw



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Resolution No. 2022-A Resolution Disallowing
Claim Submitted by Peter Peckarsky Received

November 29, 2021.
The Common Council may enter closed session

pursuant to $ 19.85(1)(e) and (g), Stats., to consider a
Notice of Claim submitted by Attorney Robert Pledl,
on behalfofhis client, Peter Peckarsky, announced

candidate for U.S. Senate, challenging the
unconstitutional practice ofmarking absentee

ballots with identifying information when absentee
ballots are counted at a central location pursuant to
Wis. Stat. $ 7.52(3)(a), and may reenter open session
at the same place thereafter to act on such matters

discussed therein as it deems appropriate

MEETING
DATE

03/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.18.

Background

A Notice of Claim was received by the City on November 29, 2021 from Attorney Robert Pledl, on
behalf of his client, Peter Peckarsky, announced candidate for U.S. Senate, challenging the
unconstitutional practice of marking absentee ballots with identifying information when absentee
ballots are counted at a central location pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 7.52(3)(a). This claim was referred to
the City's insurance carrier and legal counsel.

Attached is a draft resolution to disallow this claim as well as a draft disallowance letter to be mailed
by certified mail to the attorney for the claimant in the event the resolution is adopted.

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to S 19.85(1)(e) and (g), Stats., to consider a
Notice of Claim from Attorney Robert Pledl, on behalf of his client, Peter Peckarsky, announced
candidate for U.S. Senate, challenging the unconstitutional practice of marking absentee ballots with
identifying information when absentee ballots are counted at a central location pursuant to Wis. Stat.
§ 7.52(3)(a)., and may reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Recommendation

Staff recommends denial of the claim pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 893.80(1g) for disallowance of the
claim, based upon and in concurrence with legal counsel for the City that this claim is not properly
directed towards the City. The claim does not comply with the requisite notice provisions, the claim
does not provide the address of the claimant, and no mailing address can be ascertained by the City
of Franklin for Peter Peckarsky. Thus, legal counsel recommends that the City of Franklin disallow
this claim pursuant to the Wisconsin Statute for disallowance of claim $ 893.801g).



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to S 19.85(1)(e) and (g), Stats., to consider a
Notice of Claim from Attorney Robert Pledl, on behalf of his client, Peter Peckarsky, announced
candidate for U.S. Senate, challenging the unconstitutional practice of marking absentee ballots with
identifying information when absentee ballots are counted at a central location pursuant to Wis. Stat.
$ 7.52(3)a)., and may reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022-, A Resolution Disallowing Claim Submitted by Peter
Peckarsky Received November 29, 2021, and to further notify the attorney for the claimant by
certified mail at the law offices of Davis & Pledl, S.C. of the disallowance of the claim and the fact that
the claimant has six (6) months from the date of service of the notice of disallowance to appeal
pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 893.80(1g).

DOA-PS / City Attorney-JW



DRAFT
STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022----

RESOLUTION DISALLOWING CLAIM SUBMITTED BY PETER PECKARSKY
RECEIVED NOVEMBER 29, 2021

WHEREAS, on November 29, 2021, the City received the attached alleged ''Notice of
Claim by Peter Peckarsky- Announced Candidate for U.S. Senate" (the "Claim") (Exhibit A);

WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. sec. 893.80(ld) sets forth:

(Id) Except as provided in subs. (lg), (Im), (Ip) and (8), no action may be brought or
maintained against any volunteer fire company organized under ch. 213, political
corporation, governmental subdivision or agency thereof nor against any officer, official,
agent or employee of the corporation, subdivision or agency for acts done in their official
capacity or in the course of their agency or employment upon a claim or cause of action
unless:

(a) Within 120 days after the happening ofthe event giving rise to the claim, written
notice of the circumstances of the claim signed by the party, agent or attorney is
served on the volunteer fire company, political corporation, governmental
subdivision or agency and on the officer, official, agent or employee under s.
801.11. Failure to give the requisite notice shall not bar action on the claim if the
fire company, corporation, subdivision or agency had actual notice ofthe claim and
the claimant shows to the satisfaction of the court that the delay or failure to give
the requisite notice has not been prejudicial to the defendant fire company,
corporation, subdivision or agency or to the defendant officer, official, agent or
employee; and

(b) A claim containing the address ofthe claimant and an itemized statement of the
relief sought is presented to the appropriate clerk or person who performs the duties
of a clerk or secretary for the defendant fire company, corporation, subdivision or
agency and the claim is disallowed.

WHEREAS, the Claim submitted does not comply with the requisite notice provisions set
forth above;

WHEREAS, the Claim does not provide the address ofthe claimant and no mailing address
can be ascertained by the City ofFranklin for Peter Peckarsky;

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin ("City'), has on the
date hereof determined pursuant to Wis. Stat. sec. 893.80(lg), to disallow the Claim, if any, and
to provide notice to Davis & Pledl, S.C., attorneys for Peter Peckarsky, of the disallowance.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council for the City ofFranklin
that the proper City officials are hereby authorized and directed to disallow the following demand
for alleged damages against the City ofFranklin:

CLAIMANT:
Peter Peckarsky
(for damages allegedly incurred
by the City's compliance with
Wis. Stat. sec. 7.52(3)(a)).

DATE OFALLEGED LOSS:
Unspecified

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to inform the
attorneys for the Claimant by certified mail at the law offices of Davis & Pledl, S.C., 1433 N.
Water Street - Suite 400, Milwaukee, WI 53202 of the disallowance of the claim, if any, and the
fact that the Claimant has six (6) months from the date of service of the notice of disallowance to
appeal pursuant to Wis. Stat. sec. 893.80(1g).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to send a copy of this
resolution and notice of disallowance of the claim, if any, to the appropriate insurance carrier and
legal counsel for the City of Franklin.

Introduced at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin this 1st day
of March, 2022.

Passed at a regular meeting of the Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin this 1st day of
March, 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



DRAFT
DATE

Mr. Peter Peckarsky
c/o Attorney Robert Pledl
Davis & Pledl, S.C.
1433 N. Water Street- Suite 400
Milwaukee,WI53202

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT
REQUESTED -----~

#'--------------

Dear Mr. Peckarsky:

Your "Notice of Claim by Peter Peckarsky - Announced Candidate for U.S. Senate" (the
"Claim") was received by the City of Franklin on or about November 29, 2021. The Claim was referred
to our insurance carrier and legal counsel.

I am notifying you that without waiving any defenses the City of Franklin may have in regard
to the sufficiency of your alleged claim that the Common Council for the City of Franklin disallowed
the claim, if any, by formal action at its meeting on,2022.

I am also informing you pursuant to section 893.80(1g) of the Wisconsin Statutes that no
action on this claim may be brought against the City of Franklin after six (6) months from the date of
service of this notice.

Sincerely,

Sandra Wesolowski
City Clerk

cc: City Attorney
City Insurance Carrier (via email to alehocky@towncounsellaw.com)

Attachment: Resolution Disallowing Claim Submitted by Peter Peckarsky



k

,,J.°-....v. -.:...J -~-= "'I, -, _J .,.~ i •(i) -~~-

VICTORIA DAVIS DAVILA (14) 488-151 -,
ROBERT THEINE PLEDL (1) 488-135,'·}

1453 N WATER STREET - SUITE 4OO
MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN 53202

WVWW DAVISANDPLEDL COM

DAVIS Q
PLEDL,sc.

October 26, 2021

Franklin City Clerk
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Notice of Claim by Peter Peckarsky-Announced Candidate for U.S. Senate.

Dear City Clerk:

We represent Peter Peckarsky who is an announced candidate for U.S. Senate. This letter
accompanies a Notice of Claim regarding the manner ih which your municipality processes
and counts absentee ballots. Your municipality has provided by ordinance that all
absentee ballots will be canvassed by the murucipal board of absentee ballot canvassers at
a Central Count Absentee Ballot site according to the Wisconsin Elections Commission
website.http://elections.wi.gov/index.php/clerks/guidance/central-count-absentee
(accessed October 25, 2021).

As part of the Central Count procedure, Wis. Stat., §7.52(3)(a) requires the canvassers to
mark each ballot with the poll list number and to record either the elector's name or
number on the poll list. Both the ballot and poll list are public records. Anyone may access
the ballots and poll lists to determine how the individual voted. This violates the Wisconsin
Constitution's guarantee of a secret ballot in all elections. Art. III, §3.

We are prepared to file a legal action challenging the constitutionality of the portion of
Wis.Stat., §7 .52(3)(a) that requires identifying information on centrally counted absentee
ballots. We trust that your elected officials and election staff will consider modifying your
procedures to eliminate the unconstitutional practice of placing identifying information on
centrally counted absentee ballots. Please let us know us if there is any change in status.
That will determine whether your municipality will be involved in any future litigation.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Very truly yours,

ks±.28a



NOTICE OF CLAIM

To: Franklin City Clerk
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Claim of Peter Peckarsky -Announced Candidate for U.S. Senate

Circumstances ofClaim

1. The purpose of this Notice of Claim submitted pursuant to Wis. Stat., §893.80 is to
challenge the unconstitutional practice of marking absentee ballots with identifying
information when absentee ballots are counted at a central. location pursuant to Wis. Stat.,
§7.52(3)(a).

2. Article III, §3 of the Wisconsin Constitution states: "All votes shall be by secret
ballot."

3. Ballots canvassed at polling places, including absentee ballots, are processed and
counted without placing upon the actual ballot any number or other information that
identifies the person who cast that ballot.

4. Wis.Stat., S7.52(1)(a) authorizes municipalities to adopt an ordinance providing that
all absentee ballots will be canvassed at a Central Count Absentee Ballot site.

5. Wis.Stat., $7.52(3)(a) requires municipalities that choose the central count procedure
to mark each absentee ballot with information which reveals the true identity of each voter
who submits an absentee ballot. It states:

The board of absentee ballot canvassers shall mark the poll list number of each
elector who casts an absentee ballot on the back of the elector's ballot. The
board of absentee ballot canvassers shall then deposit the ballot into the proper
ballot box and enter the absent elector's name or poll list number after his or her
name on the poll list.

6. Absentee ballots marked with the voter's poll list number are public records, and
poll lists that contain the voter's name are public records. Wis. Stat., §19.35. Anyone can
access those records to determine how someone voted.

7. The requirement in Wis.Stat., §7 .52(3)(a) that information identifying each absentee
voter be marked on each ballot as part of the Central Count procedure is unconstitutional
because it denies voters the right to cast a secret ballot that is guaranteed by Article III, §3
of the Wisconsin Constitution.



Relief Sought

8. Central Count municipalities should modify their procedures to msure that no
identifying information is marked on absentee ballots.

9. Claimant intends to file a legal action seeking a declaratory judgment that the
portion of Wis.Stat., $7.52(3)(a) which requires identifying information on absentee ballots
is unconstitutional.

10. Claimant also intends to seek both a preliminary injunction and a permanent
injunction prohibiting Wisconsin municipalities from utilizing at any future elections a
Central Count procedure for absentee ballots that violates the secret ballot requirement in
the Wisconsin Constitution.

Date: October 26, 2021

DAVIS & PLEDL, SC
Attorneys for Claimant Peter Peckarsky

f.KrBy: Robert Theine Pledl
Wisconsin State Bar No. 1007710
1433 N. Water Street -- Suite 400
Milwaukee, WI 53202
TEL 414-488-1354
FAX 414-978-7282
Email rtp@davisandpledl.com



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

PURCHASE A RUNNION EQUIPMENT COMPANY
AERIAL BUCKET TRUCK FOR $229,916.00

MTG. DATE
March 1, 2022
ITEM NO.

G.19.
BACKGROUND
The 2022 Budget includes $275,000 in the Equipment Replacement Fund for an Aerial Bucket
Truck to replace vehicle #721 in the Highway Department. Unit #721 is a 2000 Sterling L7500.

On December 7, 2021, Common Council authorized Staff to solicit quotes for equipment
considered in the 2022 Highway Equipment Replacement and Capital Outlay Funds. This
authorization included the Aerial Bucket Truck. This vehicle was further discussed at the January
11, 2022, Board of Public Works meeting and they recommended a purchase from Terex Utilities
Inc for the total cost of $296,040.00. Due to supply and demand, the above unit was sold prior to
the approvals to purchase were complete.

ANALYSIS
Staff has identified another vehicle to replace the planned purchase from Terex. Runnion
Equipment Company has a unit with a smaller chassis and aerial lift. At this point in time, due to
supply issues, we are unable to secure a more ideal option and are in need of this equipment. The
next bucket truck will definitely need to be of the larger size to accommodate all of the functions
that DPW requires.

Beyond the unit from Runnion Equipment Company, Staff has exhausted all other available
options. Accordingly, this Runnion equipment is less expensive at $229,916.00.

This purchase is being made through the Sourcewell contract.

Runnion needs an approval from the authorizing agency (Common Council) before they will
dedicate this vehicle to Franklin. Time is of the essence and any delay will likely cause missing
out like it did with the last anticipated purchase. Staffwould provide this information to Board of
Public Works after the fact, not prior to as is our custom.

OPTIONS:
A. Authorize Staff to order a Runnion Aerial Bucket Truck
B. Other direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
Items listed in the Equipment Replacement Fund (42-0331) are estimates and Staff discusses with
the Board of Public Works how the overall annual budget is not exceeded. Since $229,916.00 is
less than the previous equipment, the highway portion for equipment replacement is still within
budget.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Authorize Staff to purchase a Runnion Equipment Company Aerial Bucket truck for
$229,916.00.k

Department ofEngmeermg GEM



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

AUTHORIE- u 5OLICIT
e •1 CONSIDERED IN THE 2022
HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT

AND CAPITAL OUTLAY FUNDS

MEETING 
12/07/21

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
Within the approved 2022 Public Works Department budget, in the Equipment Replacement
and Capital Outlay Funds, is the replacement of the following pieces of equipment

Sidewalk Machine
Truck Mounted Brine/Geo Sprayer
Trailer
Attachment Replacements
Guard Rail Replacements
Park Equipment Replacements
Plow Truck
Aerial Bucket Truck
Hydraulic Excavator

Price quotes will be solicited by DPW staff and approved by both the Board of Public Works
and Common Council.

Due to the anticipated increases mn pricing and current delays in manufacturing expected 1n
2022, we would hike to begin the process of securing quotes in early January m hopes of
receiving the equipment by Summer 2022.

OPTIONS
Authorize DPW staff to solicit quotes for the above equipment. Quotes will be sent to the
Board of Public Works for review & approval, and the recommendation will be sent to the
Common Council for approval.

FISCAL NOTE
These purchases are included m the 2022 approved budget as indicated above. The total
amount budgeted for these items 1s approximately $1,316.500.

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize DPW staff to solicit quotes for equipment considered m the 2022 Highway budgets
for the Board of Public Works to review and approve, and send to Common Council for final
approval.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Authorization for DPW staff to solicit equipment considered in the 2022 Highway Equipment
Replacement and Capital Outlay Funds.

DPWKS
DPW(L )/DPW/2022 Budget- Equipment Replacement & Capital Outlay



• RUNNION EQUIPMENT COMPANY
6201 East Ave Hodgkins, 1L. 60525 (708) 447-3169

1-800-824-6704 FAX (708) 447-3730 www.runnionequipment com

One (1)

City ofFranklm Public Wo1ks
7979 W. Ryan Rd
Franklin, WI 53132
Ph: 414-425-2592
Attn: Rich Katzfey

Page 2 of4

Knapheide 6150D54 steel service body equipped as follows:

- 94" wide
149"long

- Compartments (both sides)
- Compartments depth 20"

lV-18 75" W x 40"
- 2V -21"

3V -20.75" W
3V-Curbside walkup

- H- 52%2x18%°°
3V- 20.75x 40"

- 30" x 94" tatlshelfwith through compartment
- Backup alann
- Fire extinguisher
- Reflector kit
- 2" Pintle/Ball and 7 pin trailer receptacle
- C shape grounding lug

MOUNTED ON:

February 16, 2022

Quote # JP 322

UNIT#4872N

One (1) 2022 Chevy 6500 MD 4x4 equipped as follows:

- 23,000 GVWR
- Duramax 6.6L Turbo-Dresel V8 350hp @2700RPM, 700 Ib.f torque @1600 rpm
- Al Itson -mgged duty service - 6-speed w/double overdrive

Engine block heater
- Front and rear 19.57 steel wheels - panted black
- Tires-225-70R19 5
- Front axle 7 ,S0Olbs

Rear axles 15,500lbs
- 4-wheel ABS brakes
- Air conditioning
- Platform runmng boards

Continued on next page

REC SALES SIGNATURE DATE PURCHASER SIGNATURE DATE



• RUNNION EQUIPMENT COMPANY
6201 East Ave Hodgkins, IL 60525 (708) 447-3169

1-800-824-6704 FAX (708) 447-3730 www runnionequipment con

One (I)

City ofFranklin Public Works
7979 W. Ryan Rd
Franklm, WI 53132
Ph· 414-425-2592
Attn. Ruch Katzfey

Pagel of4

We are pleased to offer the followmg quotation for your considerat1on·

Dur-A-Lift Model DPM2-52DU eqmpped a<; follows

February 16, 2022

Quote# JP 322

UNIT# 4872N

CAT C Insulated aerial device
57 working height, 59' working height with basket elevator
54' height to bottom ofbasket
Mam boom fiberglass mscrt
Chassis isolator insert
31'-6° s1dc reach
24° x 42" x 42" walk-in fiberglass basket with step, mncludmng cover
550# basket capacity when not usmg wmch
400# basket capacity when usmng j1b
Hydraulically extendable nb. Jb 1s top-mounted with a maximum
capacity of 1000#
Hydraulic lcvclmg, stow, and dump
180° basket rotator
Body harness & lanyard
Contmuous rotation
Transmtsston mounted P.T.O, pump and hydraulic reservoir
12 volt emergency hydraulic backup system
Upper & lower operation controls with emergency shut down and
start/stop controls
4-ax1 HERC joystick control
Hydraulic tool c1rcurt at bucket
A frame outnggers with outrigger mterlock, 1md mount and rear mount
Outngger motion alann
Four 18" x 18" composite outrgger pads with two (2) outrigger pad
holders
Two (2) LrD dome strobe hghts
Four comer LED strobe hght!>
T1mbren load boosters on front and rear axle

Contmucd on next page

--- · ----- - --- ------------,-,------------.,---
REC SALES SIGNATURE DATE PURCHASER SIGNATURE DATE



• RUNNION EQUIPMENT COMPANY
6201 EastAve Hodgkins, 1L 60525 (708) 447-3169

1-800-824-6704 FAX (708) 447-3730 www.runnionequipment corn

City of Franklin Public Works
7979 W. Ryan Rd
Frankhn, WI 53132
Ph. 414-425-2592
Attn: Ruch Katzfey

Page 3 of 4
- Chromed gnlle and chromed bumper
- Power steering
- 40-gallon fuel tank
- 7 diagonal touch screen with Chevrolet infotainment W/Bluetooth
-. Power windows and locks with keyless entry
- 40/20/40 split bench seat- vinyl

Seatbelt color - orange
- Color white

Febrnary 16, 2022

Quote# JP 322

UNIT#4872N

Options, included:
- Hydraulic post pounder
- Tool circuit at ta1lshelf
- Non-slip coatmg applied to body floor, sidepack walls and tops,

front bulkhead, and tailshelftops and sides
- Arrow/Directional Bar
- 3000 watt inverter with dual deep cycle batteries
- Two (2) GO hghts with remotes installed on aluminum bulkhead
- Two wlute LED lights installed under tailshelf
- LED compartment lights
- Grip strut on top ofcompartments
- CSlV and CS2V -CTECH 6 Drawer Umts (4-3", 1-5", 1-7"), 18 0"W x 27.8"H x

17.5"

Pnce·
Options, not included, initial if selected

- One (l) additional year Durahft parts and labor warranty Add
- Extended chassis warranty - 72 months / 200k with Add·

$100.00 deductible

$ 222,267.00

$2,665.00
$4,984 00

Cooperative Pncmg Avatlable Through Sourcewcll

All prices F O.B Hodgkms, IL and subject to all applicable tax
Quote valid for 30 days, Due to market volatlty any future manufacturer surcharges

will be added to prce above. Unut subject to pr1or sale -- 10% deposit at time oforder.
Balance due upon nottficatton that unit is ready for delivery

Contmued on next page

REC SALES SIGNATURE DATE PURCHASER SIGNATURE DATE



RUNNION EQUIPMENT COMPANY
6201 East Ave Hodgkins, IL 60525 (708) 447-3169

1-800-824 6704 FAX (708) 447-3/30 wwwrunnionequtpment com

Page 4 of4
SALES ORDER -- TERMS ANDCONDITIONS OF SALE

City ofFranklin Public Works
7979 W. Ryan Rd
Franklin, W1 53132
Ph: 414-425-2592
Attn: Rich Katzfey

February 16, 2022

Quote # JP 322

UNIT#4872N

This document contains the terms of sale The entire contract between Seller and Buyer is contained in this Sales Order, no alleged oral promises or
conditions not set forth herein shall be binding upon seller or Buyer, and any prior negotiations between the parties are merged into the terms of this
document
Pnces quoted are subject to change without notice inconformity with the Manufacturer's Pnce List effect ive at the time of delivery. Prices do not include
taxes Any tax, impost, levy, duty or other charge hereinafter imposed by any government or other authority on this sale will be added to the purchase
price as herein noted or any later revision of the purchase price, and will be paid by Buyer unless Buyer provides Seller with a proper tax exemption
certificate

Upon acceptance of this order by Seller, If Buyer fails to perform the terms and conditions hereof, or refuses to accept delivery of the equipment accessories
or other items ordered within ten (10) days after notification that same are ready for delivery, the Seller, at its option may retain as liquidated damages
all money, trade-ins or other property delivered to Seller by Buyer as down payment hereunder. Buyer will pay any cost of collection for any amount
owed to Sellers, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees, court costs and interest In the amount of 1% per month (12%per annum), from
the date the amount is due.

Payment is due Seller from the date when Seller is prepared to make delivery All equipment and material is delivered FOB Seller's plant and title and
liability for loss or damage passes to Buyer upon Seller's delivery of the goods to a carrier or shipment to Buyer and any loss or damage thereafter shall
not relieve Buyer from any obligation hereunder Risk of loss for goods shall pass to the Buyer once payment is received by Seller.

Buyer rnay terminate this contract in whole upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to Seller In such event, Buyer shall be liable for termination
charges If goods ordered are a standard, manufactured catalog item, Buyer will pay a cancellation charge for each unit cancelled equal the greater of
20% of the purchase order item price or forfeiture of down payment/trade in. If goods are non-standard items built to the Buyer's custom order, Buyer
will pay for all cost, direct and indirect incurred and committed for this contract, together with a reasonable allowance for prorated expenses and anticipated
profits

Buyer agrees to comply fully and wth al laws and regulation concerning the purchase and sale of goods In particular, Buyer agrees to comply with all
applicable expo;t administration regulations of the United States, including, but not limited to, the Export Administration Act, insofar as they apply to the
sale of products

Buyer shall indemnify and hold harmless Seller, its employees, officers and directors and the respective successors and assigns, from and against any and
all hab11ity, damages, claims, causes of act ions, losses, costs and expenses {including attorney's fees) of any kind arising out of injuries to any person
(including death) or damage to any property caused by or related to the goods or any negligent act or omission of Buyer, its employees and agents

The validity, performance and construction of this Sales Order, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois, of the United States of America.

Seller shall not be liable, and shall be free from any potential liability for delay in delivery or non-delivery or any failure in shipment caused in whole, or in
art, by the occurrence of any contingency beyond control of either Seller or Seller's suppliers including, but not limited to act of war (whether an actual
declaration thereof is made or not) act of any government or any agency or subdivision thereof, judicial action, sabotage, Insurrection, terrorism, riot or
other act of civil disobedience, act of public enemy, failure or delay in transportation, strikes, lockouts, shortage of labor or labor troubles of any kind,
accidents, explosion, perils of the sea, fire, earthquake, flood, storm or any other act of God, restrictions or requisitions, shortage of labor, fuel, raw
material or machinery or technical failure where Seller has exercised ordinary care in the prevention thereof, failure of manufacturers to deliver, bankruptcy
or insolvency of manufacturers or suppliers, suspension of shipping facilities, act or default of any carrier or any other contingency of whatsoever nature
beyond Seller's control affecting production, transportation to boarding pomnt, loading, forwarding or unloading in such a situation at destination of the
goods covered by this contract including disturbances existing at the time this contract was made In such a situation, lf shipments or delivery 1s not
made during the period contracted for, Buyer shall accept delivery under this contract when shipment is made, provided, however, Buyer shall not be
obligated to accept delivery if shipment is not made within a reasonable time after the cessation of the aforementioned impediments or causes Seller
may allocate delivery among Seller's customers.

This order shall not be binding upon Seller until accepted by Seller in writing hereon and when so accepted, the original order with original signatures as
qiven Seller and in Seller's possession shall be conclusive and binding upon the parties hereto

The Buyer hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of this Sales Order and Terms and Conditions

REC SALES SIGNATURE DATE PURCHASER SIGNATURE DATE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

Slr COUNCIL ACTION 03/01/2022

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing from meeting of March 1, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As recommended by the License Committee.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



en;Kt 'ts' "
Franklin

«f
WISCONSIN

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda*
Alderman Room

March 1, 2022 - 5:55 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Aoolicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Henzig, Kimberly A
2021-2022 Iron Mike'sNew
6:00 p.m.

Extraordinary Mulligan's Irish Pub & Grill - St. Patrick's Day Party
Entertainment Special Person in Charge: Brian FrancsEvent

6:0Sp.m. Location: 8933 S. 27h Street
Date of Event: 3/17/2022

Operator Knurowski, Robert E
2021-2022 Walgreens #05884New

Operator Locke, Kailey M
2021-2022 Iron Mike'sNew

Operator Orlowski, Allie B
2021-2022 Walgreens # 15020New

Amendment to Public Change of Civic Celebration Event Closing Hours on
Grant Application and Monday, July 4, 2022Closing Hours of Civic
Celebration Event Changing from 10:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m.

John Berqner, Chairman of Civic Celebration Commission

Time
3. Adiournment
Notice 1s grven that a majority of the Common Councl may attend thus meeting to gather mnformaton about an agenda rtem over which they have
deers1on-making respons1blrty Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Council will not take formal act1on at thus meeting



APPROVAL

5 st»
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
3/01/2022

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated February 11, 2022 through March 1, 2022 Nos 186983 through Nos 187173 in the
amount of$ 4,844,401 37 Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos 4838 through Nos 4864, Library vouchers
totaling $ 8,044 80, Tourism vouchers totaling $ 1,250 00, Water Utility vouchers totaling$ 86,663.26 and Property
Tax vouchers totaling $ 76,000 20 Voided checks in the amount of($ 9,851 37) are separately listed

**Includedm this disbursement are wire transfers to Bond Trust Services mn the amount of$ 3,672,369.59 which
were approved at the Council meeting on February 15, 2022

Early release disbursements dated February 11, 2022 through February 28, 2022 in the amount of$ 4,573,923 67
are provded on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement lstng These payments have
been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920 and 2015-7062

The net payroll dated February 25, 2022 1s $ 455,649 60, previously estimated at$ 420,000 Payroll deductions
dated February 25, 2022 are$ 430,035 16, previously estimated at$ 475,000

The estimated payroll for March 11, 2022 1s $ 442,000 wth estimated deductions and matching payments of
$255,000

Attached is a list of property tax disbursements EFT's Nos 409 through Nos 414 and 300(S) through 302(S)
dated February 11, 2022 through February 28, 2022 in the amount of $ 10,504,375 35 $ 48,282 50 represents
refund reimbursements,$ 3,000,000 00 represents temporary investments and $ 7,456,092 85 represents tax
settlements from US Bank There 1s also an additional $ 9,039,808 57 of tax settlements from American Deposits
These payments have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

Included in this distribution llstmg are property tax settlements which were approved at the Council meeting on
February 15, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of March 1, 2022 in the amount of $ 4,844,401 37 and

• Payroll dated February 25, 2022 in the amount of$ 455,649 60 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 430,035 16, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated March 11, 2022 in the amount of$ 442,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 255,000, plus City matching payments and

• Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of February 28, 2022 in the amount of$ 19,544,183 92.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept - KM


	Common Council Meeting Agenda-3-1-2022
	CC Mtg Packet 1 of 2-3-1-2022
	Item G3-Strauss 2022-03-01 CC ACTION SHEET Strauss Special Use
	CC Mtg Packet 2of2-3-1-2022

